

Legal Department

J. PHILLIP CARVER General Attorney

BellSouth Telecommunications, Inc. 150 South Monroe Street Room 400 Tallahassee, Florida 32301 (404) 335-0710

January 23, 2002

Mrs. Blanca S. Bayó Director, Division of the Commission Clerk and Administrative Services Florida Public Service Commission 2540 Shumard Oak Boulevard Tallahassee, FL 32399-0850

Re: Docket No. 000121-TP (OSS)

Dear Ms. Bayó:

Enclosed is an original and 10 copies of BellSouth's Performance Assessment Plan, including the Service Quality Measurement Plan (SQM) and the Self Effectuating Remedy Plan (SEEM), which we ask that you file in the captioned matter. The attached final versions of the SQM and the SEEM plan include the changes proposed by the Florida Public Service Commission Staff in their letter dated January 10, 2002. However, after a review of the changes proposed in this letter, BellSouth noted several issues that required clarification by Staff. The issues are as follow:

1. In the letter of January 10, 2002, under the Business Rules for the measurement P-4 is a requirement to add the language "when the CN is returned to the ALEC." P-4 is BellSouth's existing measurement that does not include a Completion Notice. Measurement P-4<u>A</u> is the measurement that includes the Completion Notice. Consequently this language has been added to measurement P-4A rather than P-4.

2. Also in the letter of January 10, under the Business Rules for the measurement P-5, Average Completion Notice Interval, is the requirement to remove the reference to C-SCOTS, the CLEC Service Order Tracking System. Staff has agreed it should be referenced in the Business Rules of

CORDS

DOCUMENT NUMBER DATE

this measurement since it is one means of Completion Notification. Thus, the C-SOTS reference has been moved to the end of the sentence.

3. The letter of January 10, 2002 required the removal of proposed red lined language in the maintenance measurements, M&R-1, M&R-3, M&R-4, and M&R-5. Specifically, the red lined language proposed adding exclusions from these measurements for troubles, which were determined to be Test Ok, Found OK, or No Trouble Found. BellSouth has removed this red lined language, as required. However these exclusions were also in measurement M&R-2, Customer Trouble Report Rate, which was approved by the Commission's Order in this Docket. Thus, if the exclusions remain in M&R-2, this measurement would be inconsistent with the remaining maintenance and repair measurements. To avoid this inconsistency, BellSouth is voluntarily removing these exclusions from M&R-2. BellSouth does not believe the ALECs will object to the removal of these exclusions.

It is BellSouth's understanding that Staff concurs in these changes.

The Commission's Order in this docket required the addition of a Service Order Accuracy Measurement (SOA), but did not order a penalty to be associated with the measure. BellSouth proposes to voluntarily add a Tier II penalty.

Service Order Accuracy is a regional measurement of the accuracy of the service order as compared to the Local Service Request. Service Order Accuracy is a Provisioning Measurement, listed in the attached SQM as measurement P-11, beginning at page 3-41. The appropriate penalty type to be associated with this measurement is Tier II because errors in service orders, should they occur at all, would likely affect all CLECs rather than just one.

The SEEM Plan attached has been modified to reflect the Tier II penalty associated with the SOA measurement. The SEEM Disaggregation— Analog/Benchmark section has also been modified to include the product disaggregation and associated benchmarks related to the Service Order Accuracy SEEM measurement. There are three levels of disaggregation in SEEM: Resale, UNE, and UNE-P. These three levels of disaggregation capture the bulk of service order activity. The disaggregation levels are similar to those specified in Verizon's New York Performance Assurance Plan.

The three Service Order Accuracy SEEM measurements have also been added to Table B-2 in the Florida SEEM Plan, which tabulates the Tier II measurements. Should one of the SOA metrics be missed (accuracy of less than 95%), the penalty would be paid according to Table A-2 of the Florida SEEM plan at \$3,450 for Resale and \$10,000 for UNE and UNE-P.

.

A copy of this letter is enclosed. Please mark it to indicate that the original was filed and return the copy to me. Copies have been served to the parties shown on the attached Certificate of Service.

Sincerely,

Q. Phillip Corver J. Phillip Carver ULA)

Enclosures

cc: All parties of record Marshall M. Criser, III Nancy B. White R. Douglas Lackey

-

.

.....

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE Docket No. 000121-TP

I HEREBY CERTIFY that a true and correct copy of the foregoing was served via

Federal Express and (*) Hand Delivery this 23rd day of January, 2002 to the following:

Jason K. Fudge (*) Tim Vaccaro Staff Counsel Florida Public Service Commission Division of Legal Services 2540 Shumard Oak Boulevard Tallahassee, FL 32399-0850 Tel. No. (850) 413-6181 Fax. No. (850) 413-6250 jfudge@psc.state.fl.us

AT&T Virginia C. Tate Senior Attorney 1200 Peachtree Street Suite 8100 Atlanta, GA 30309 Tel. No. (404) 810-4922 vtate@att.com

GTE Florida, Inc. Kimberly Caswell P.O. Box 110, FLTC0007 Tampa, FL 33601-0110 Tel. No. (813) 483-2617 Fax. No. (813) 223-4888 kimberly.caswell@verizon.com

Nanette Edwards (+) Regulatory Attorney ITC^DeltaCom 4092 S. Memorial Parkway Huntsville, Alabama 35802 Tel. No. (256) 382-3856 Fax. No. (256) 382-3936 nedwards@itcdeltacom.com Scott A. Sapperstein Intermedia Communications, Inc. One Intermedia Way M.C. FLT-HQ3 Tampa, Florida 33647-1752 Tel. No. (813) 829-4093 Fax. No. (813) 829-4923 sasapperstein@intermedia.com

Charles J. Pellegrini Katz, Kutter, Haigler, Alderman, Bryant & Yon, P.A. 106 East College Avenue Suite 1200 Tallahassee, FL 32301 Counsel for Intermedia Tel. No. (850) 577-6755 Fax No. (850) 222-0103 jpellegrini@katzlaw.com Counsel for Intermedia charlesp@katzlaw.com

Peter M. Dunbar, Esquire Karen M. Camechis, Esquire Pennington, Moore, Wilkinson, Bell & Dunbar, P.A. Post Office Box 10095 (32302) 215 South Monroe Street, 2nd Floor Tallahassee, FL 32301 Tel. No. (850) 222-3533 Fax. No. (850) 222-2126 pete@penningtonlawfirm.com Brian Chaiken Legal Counsel Supra Telecom 1311 Executive Center Drive Suite 200 Tallahassee, FL 32301 Tel. No. (850) 402-0510 Fax. No. (850) 402-0522 bchaiken@stis.com

Michael A. Gross Vice President, Regulatory Affairs & Regulatory Counsel Florida Cable Telecomm. Assoc. 246 East 6th Avenue Tallahassee, FL 32303 Tel. No. (850) 681-1990 Fax. No. (850) 681-9676 mgross@fcta.com

Susan Masterton Charles J. Rehwinkel Sprint Post Office Box 2214 MS: FLTLHO0107 Tallahassee, Florida 32316-2214 Tel. No. (850) 599-1560 Fax. No. (850) 878-0777 susan.masterton@mail.sprint.com

Donna Canzano McNulty (+) MCI WorldCom, Inc. 325 John Knox Road The Atrium, Suite 105 Tallahassee, FL 32303 Tel. No. (850) 422-1254 Fax. No. (850) 422-2586 donna.mcnulty@wcom.com

Brian Sulmonetti MCI WorldCom, Inc. 6 Concourse Parkway, Suite 3200 Atlanta, GA 30328 Tel. No. (770) 284-5493 Fax. No. (770) 284-5488 brian.sulmonetti@wcom.com Catherine F. Boone, Esq. (+) Covad Communications Company 10 Glenlake Parkway Suite 650 Atlanta, Georgia 30328 Tel. No. (678) 579-8388 Fax. No. (678) 320-9433 <u>cboone@covad.com</u>

John Rubino George S. Ford Z-Tel Communications, Inc. 601 South Harbour Island Blvd. Tampa, Florida 33602 Tel. No. (813) 233-4630 Fax. No. (813) 233-4620 gford@z-tel.com

Joseph A. McGlothlin Vicki Gordon Kaufman McWhirter, Reeves, McGlothlin, Davidson, Decker, Kaufman, et. al 117 South Gadsden Street Tallahassee, Florida 32301 Tel. No. (850) 222-2525 Fax. No. (850) 222-5606 imcglothlin@mac-law.com vkaufman@mac-law.com Represents KMC Telecom Represents Covad Represents MPower

Jonathan E. Canis Michael B. Hazzard Kelley Drye & Warren, LLP 1200 19th Street, N.W., Fifth Floor Washington, DC 20036 Tel. No. (202) 955-9600 Fax. No. (202) 955-9792 jacanis@kelleydrye.com mhazzard@kelleydrye.com

.

Tad J. (T.J.) Sauder Manager, ILEC Performance Data Birch Telecom of the South, Inc. 2020 Baltimore Avenue Kansas City, MO 64108 Tel. No. (816) 300-3202 Fax. No. (816) 300-3350

John D. McLaughlin, Jr. KMC Telecom 1755 North Brown Road Lawrence, Georgia 30043 Tel. No. (678) 985-6262 Fax. No. (678) 985-6213 jmclau@kmctelecom.com

Andrew O. Isar Ascent 3220 Uddenberg Lane, NW Suite 4 Gig Harbor, WA 98335 Tel. No. (253) 851-6700 Fax. No. (253) 851-6474 <u>aisar@millerisar.com</u>

Richard D. Melson Hopping Green Sams & Smith Post Office Box 6526 Tallahassee, FL 32314 Tel. No. (850) 222-7500 Fax. No. (850) 224-8551 rickm@hgss.com

Jeremy Marcus Elizabeth Braman Norman H. Horton, Jr. (+) Messer, Caparello & Self 215 South Monroe Street Suite 701 Post Office Box 1876 Tallahassee, FL 32302-1876 Represents e.spire Tel. No. (850) 222-0720 Fax. No. (850) 224-4359 nhorton@law.fla.com Renee Terry, Esq. e.spire Communications, Inc. 131 National Business Parkway Suite 100 Annapolis Junction, MD 20701 Tel. No. (301) 361-4298 Fax. No. (301) 361-4277

John Kerkorian Mpower Communications, Corp. 5607 Glenridge Drive Suite 300 Atlanta, GA 30342 Tel. No. (404) 554-1217 Fax. No. (404) 554-0010 ikerkorian@mpowercom.com

Suzanne F. Summerlin, Esq. 1311-B Paul Russell Road Suite 201 Tallahassee, FL 32301 Tel. No. (850) 656-2288 Fax. No. (850) 656-5589 summerlin@nettally.com

Dulaney O'Roark III (+) WorldCom, Inc. Six Concourse Parkway Suite 3200 Atlanta, GA 30328 Tel. No. (770) 284-5498 De.ORoark@mci.com Claudia E. Davant AT&T State President Legislative and Regulatory Affairs 101 N. Monroe Street Suite 700 Tallahassee, FL 32301 Tel. No. (850) 425-6360 Fax. No. (850) 425-6361 cdavant@att.com

Carver (LA) J. Phillip Carver

(+) Signed Protective Agreement

#237366

BellSouth Service Quality Measurement Plan (SQM)

Florida Performance Metrics

Measurement Descriptions Version 2.00

Issue Date: January 23, 2002

Introduction

The BellSouth Service Quality Measurement Plan (SQM) describes in detail the measurements produced to evaluate the quality of service delivered to BellSouth's customers both wholesale and retail. The SQM was developed to respond to the requirements of the Communications Act of 1996 Section 251 (96 Act) which required BellSouth to provide non-discriminatory access to Competitive Local Exchange Carriers $(CLEC)^1$ and their Retail Customers. The reports produced by the SQM provide regulators, CLECs and BellSouth the information necessary to monitor the delivery of non-discriminatory access.

This plan results from the many divergent forces evolving from the 96 Act. The 96 Act, the Georgia Public Service Commission (GPSC) Order (Docket 7892-U 12/30/97), LCUG 1-7.0, the FCC's NPRM (CC Docket 98-56 RM9101 04/17/98), the Louisiana Public Service Commission (LPSC) Order (Docket U-22252 Subdocket C 04/19/98), numerous arbitration cases, LPSC sponsored collaborative workshops (10/98-02/00), and proceedings in Alabama, Mississippi, and North Carolina have and continue to influence the SQM. This version of the SQM reflects the Florida Public Service Commission Order No PSC-01-1819-FOF-TP, issued September 10, 2001.

The SQM and the reports flowing from it must change to reflect the dynamic requirements of the industry. New measurements are added as new products, systems, and processes are developed and fielded. New products and services are added as the markets for them develop and the processes stabilize. The measurements are also changed to reflect changes in systems, correct errors, and respond to both 3rd Party audit requirements and the Florida PSC.

This document is intended for use by someone with knowledge of telecommunications industry, information technologies and a functional knowledge of the subject areas covered by the BellSouth Performance Measurements and the reports that flow from them.

Once it is approved, the most current copy of this document can be found on the web at URL: <u>https://</u><u>pmap.bellsouth.com</u> in the Help folder.

Report Publication Dates

Each month, preliminary SQM reports will be posted to BellSouth's SQM web site (https://www.pmap.bellsouth.com) by 8:00 A.M. EST on the 21st day of each month or the first business day after the 21st. The validated SQM reports will be posted by 8:00 A.M. on the last day of the month. Reports not posted by this time will be considered late for SEEM payment purposes. Validated SEEM reports will be posted on the 15th of the following month. SEEM payments due will also be paid on the 15th of the following month. For instance: May data will be posted in preliminary SQM reports on June 21. Final validated SQM reports will be posted on the 15th of the following month. BellSouth shall retain the performance measurement raw data files for a period of 18 months and further retain the monthly reports produced in PMAP for a period of three years.

1. Alternative Local Exchange Companies (ALEC) and Competing Local Providers (CLP) are referred to as Competitive Local Exchange Carriers (CLEC) in this document.

Report Delivery Methods

CLEC SQM and SEEM reports will be considered delivered when posted to the web site. The Florida Public Service Commission (FPSC) has access to the web site. In addition, a copy of the Monthly State Summary reports will be filed with the FPSC as soon as possible after the last day of each month.

Revision History

Version	Issue Date	Changes
V0.01	Feb. 27, 2001	Initial BellSouth Proposal
V1.00 DRAFT	Sep. 20, 2001	This version reflects the Florida Public Service Commission Staff Recommenda- tions, dated August 2, 2001, and approved by the Commission on August 14, 2001 in Docket No. 000121-TP.
V1.01	Oct. 25, 2001	This version reflects the changes based on the FPSC Workshop, Oct. 15, 2001 (Docket No. 000121-TP).
V1.02	Nov. 29, 2001	This version reflects the changes based on the FPSC Workshop held on Nov. 9, 2001 (Docket No. 000121-TP) and the Memorandum on the Motions For Reconsideration dated Nov. 19, 2001.
V2.00	Jan. 23, 2002	This version incorporates changes based on the PAP Changes document (Florida Self-Effectuating Enforcement Mechanism Administrative Plan BellSouth Tele- communications Staff's Recommended Modifications Needed for Order Com- pliance.) This is the final version which will be filed in Florida, January 23, 2001 and incorporates the changes directed by the FPSC Staff in the letter dated January 10, 2002

.



Contents

Section 1: Operations Support Systems (OSS)

OSS-1:	Average Response Time and Response Interval (Pre-Ordering/Ordering)	- 1-1
OSS-2:	Interface Availability (Pre-Ordering/Ordering)	- 1-5
OSS-3:	Interface Availability (Maintenance & Repair)	- 1-8
OSS-4:	Response Interval (Maintenance & Repair)	1-10
PO-1:	Loop Makeup - Response Time - Manual	1-12
PO-2:	Loop Make Up - Response Time - Electronic	1-14

Section 2: Ordering

O-1: Acknowledgement Message Timeliness	S	2-1
O-2: Acknowledgement Message Completen	ness	2-3
O-3: Percent Flow-Through Service Request	ts (Summary)	2-5
O-4: Percent Flow-Through Service Request	ts (Detail)	2-8
O-5: Flow-Through Error Analysis	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	2-11
O-6: CLEC LSR Information		2-13
LSR Flow Through Matrix		2-15
O-7: Percent Rejected Service Requests		2-18
O-8: Reject Interval		2-20
0-9: Firm Order Confirmation Timeliness -		2-24
O-10: Service Inquiry with LSR Firm Order C	Confirmation (FOC) Response Time Manual	2-27
O-11: Firm Order Confirmation and Reject Re	esponse Completeness	2-29
O-12: Speed of Answer in Ordering Center	• • •	2-31

Section 3: Provisioning

P-1:	Mean Held Order Interval & Distribution Intervals	3-1
P-2:	Average Jeopardy Notice Interval & Percentage of Orders Given Jeopardy Notices	3-4
P-3:	Percent Missed Initial Installation Appointments	3-7
P-3A:	Percent Missed Installation Appointments Including Subsequent Appointments	3-10
P-4:	Average Completion Interval (OCI) & Order Completion Interval Distribution	3-13
P-4A:	Average Order Completion and Completion Notice Interval (AOCCNI) Distribution	3-16
P-5:	Average Completion Notice Interval	3-20
P-6:	% Completions/Attempts without Notice or < 24 hours Notice	3-23
P-7:	Coordinated Customer Conversions Interval	3-25
P-7A:	Coordinated Customer Conversions - Hot Cut Timeliness % Within Interval and Average Interval	3-27
P-7B:	Coordinated Customer Conversions – Average Recovery Time	3-29
P-7C:	Hot Cut Conversions - % Provisioning Troubles Received Within 7 days of a completed Service Order	3-31
P-8:	Cooperative Acceptance Testing - % of xDSL Loops Successfully Tested	3-33
P-9:	% Provisioning Troubles within 30 days of Service Order Completion	3-35
P-10:	Total Service Order Cycle Time (TSOCT)	3-38
P-11:	Service Order Accuracy	3-41
P-12:	LNP-Average Disconnect Timeliness Interval & Disconnect Timeliness Interval Distribution	3-43

Section 4: Maintenance & Repair

M&R-1: N	Aissed Repair Appointments	 4-1
M&R-2. C	ustomer Trouble Report Rate	 4-4

BELLSOUTH[®]

Florida Performance Metrics

Contents

M&R-3:	Maintenance Average Duration	- 4-7
M&R-4:	Percent Repeat Troubles within 30 Days	4-10
M&R-5:	Out of Service (OOS) > 24 Hours	. 4.13
M&R-6:	Average Answer Time – Renair Centers	4-16
M&R-7:	Mean Time To Notify CLEC of Network Outages.	. 4-17

Section 5: Billing

	0	
B-1:	Invoice Accuracy	5-1
B-2:	Mean Time to Deliver Invoices	5-3
B-3:	Usage Data Delivery Accuracy	5-5
B-4:	Usage Data Delivery Completeness	5-7
B-5:	Usage Data Delivery Timeliness	5-9
B-6:	Mean Time to Deliver Usage	- 5-11
B- 7:	Recurring Charge Completeness	- 5-13
B-8:	Non-Recurring Charge Completeness	- 5-14
B-9;	Percent Daily Usage Feed Errors Corrected in X Business Days	- 5-15
B-10:	Percent Billing Errors Corrected in X Days	- 5-17

Section 6: Operator Services And Directory Assistance

	• •
OS-1:	Speed to Answer Performance/Average Speed to Answer – Toll 6-1
OS-2:	Speed to Answer Performance/Percent Answered with "X" Seconds - Toll 6-3
DA-I:	Speed to Answer Performance/Average Speed to Answer – Directory Assistance (DA) 6-4
DA-2:	Speed to Answer Performance/Percent Answered within "X" Seconds - Directory Assistance (DA) 6-5

Section 7: Database Update Information

D-1:	Average Database Update Interval	7.	-1
D-2:	Percent Database Update Accuracy	7.	-3
D-3:	Percent NXXs and LRNs Loaded by the LERG Effective Date	7.	-5

Section 8: E911

E-1:	Timeliness	8-	1
E-2:	Accuracy	8-	3
E-3:	Mean Interval	8-	4

Section 9: Trunk Group Performance

TGP-1:	Trunk Group Performance-Aggregate 9-1
TGP-2:	Trunk Group Performance – CLEC Specific9-3

Section 10: Collocation

C-1:	Collocation Average Response Time	10-1
C-2:	Collocation Average Arrangement Time	10-3
C-3:	Collocation Percent of Due Dates Missed	10-5

Section 11: Change Management

CM-1:	Timeliness of Change Management Notices	11-1
CM-2:	Change-Management Notice Average Delay Days	11-3
CM-3:	Timeliness of Documents Associated with Change	11-4
CM-4:	Change Management Documentation Average Delay Days	11-5
CM-5:	Notification of CLEC Interface Outages	11-7

Appendix	A: Reporting Scope	A-1
A-1:	Standard Service Groupings	A-1
A-2:	Standard Service Order Activities	A-1

,

Contents

Appendix	Appendix B: Glossary of Acronyms and Terms			
Appendix	C: BellSouth Audit Policy	C-1		
C-1:	BellSouth's Internal Audit Policy	C-1		
C-2:	BellSouth's External Audit Policy	C-1		

-



Section 1: Operations Support Systems (OSS)

OSS-1: Average Response Time and Response Interval (Pre-Ordering/ Ordering)

Definition

Average response time and response intervals are the average times and number of requests responded to within certain intervals for accessing legacy data associated with appointment scheduling, service & feature availability, address verification, request for Telephone numbers (TNs), and Customer Service Records (CSRs).

Exclusions

Syntactically incorrect queries.

Business Rules

The average response time for retrieving pre-order/order information from a given legacy system is determined by summing the response times for all requests submitted to the legacy systems during the reporting period and dividing by the total number of legacy system requests for that month.

The date/time stamp shall begin when BST receives a query at the BellSouth Gateway and shall end when the query is transmitted from the BST Gateway (applies to both TAG and LENS). For BellSouth, the response interval starts when the client application (RNS or ROS) submits a request to the legacy system and ends when the appropriate response is returned to the client application. The number of accesses to the legacy systems during the reporting period which take less than 2.3 seconds, the number of accesses which take more than 6 seconds, and the number which are less than or equal to 6.3 seconds are also captured.

Calculation

Response Time = (a - b)

- a = Date & Time of Legacy Response
- b = Date & Time of Legacy Request

Average Response Time = $c \div d$

- c = Sum of Response Times
- d = Number of Legacy Requests During the Reporting Period

Report Structure

- Interface Type
- Not CLEC Specific
- Not product/service specific
- Regional Level

Data Retained

Relating to CLEC Experience	Relating to BellSouth Performance
 Report Month Legacy Contract (per reporting dimension) Response Interval Regional Scope 	 Report Month Legacy Contract (per reporting dimension) Response Interval Regional Scope

SQM Disaggregation - Analog/Benchmark

	SQM Level of Disaggregation	SQM Analog/Benchmark
	RSAG - Address (Regional Street Address Guide-Address) - stores street address information used to validate customer	• Parity + 2 seconds
•	RSAG – TN (Regional Street Address Guide-Telephone number) – contains information about facilities available and telephone numbers working at a given address. CLECs and	
	BellSouth query this legacy system.	
8	ATLAS (Application for Telephone Number Load	
	Administration and Selection) – acts as a warehouse for storing	
	system It enables CLECs and BallSouth service rans to select	
	and reserve telephone numbers. CLECs and BellSouth query	
	this legacy system.	
:	COFFI (Central Office Feature File Interface) – stores	
	information about product and service offerings and	
	availability. CLECs query this legacy system.	
8	DSAP (DOE Support Application) - provides due date	
	information. CLECs and BellSouth query this legacy system.	
	CRIS (Customer Record Information System) – Source of	
	information about individual sustamors including	
	listings addresses features services etc. CLECs and	
	BellSouth can query for CSR information	
	P/SIMS (Product/Services Inventory Management system) –	
	provides information on capacity, tariffs, inventory and service	
	availability. CLECs query this legacy system.	
١	OASIS (Obtain Available Services Information Systems) -	
	Information on feature and rate availability. BellSouth queries	
	this legacy system.	

System	Contract	Data	< 2.3 sec.	> 6 sec.	<u>≤</u> 6.3 sec.	Avg. Sec.	# of Calls
RSAG	RSAG-TN	Address	x	x	x	x	x
RSAG	RSAG-ADDR	Address	x	x	x	x	x
ATLAS	ATLAS-TN	TN	x	x	x	x	x
DSAP	DSAP-DDI	Schedule	x	x	x	x	x
CRIS	CRSACCTS	CSR	x	x	x	x	x
OASIS	OASISCAR	Feature/Service	x	x	x	x	x
OASIS	OASISLPC	Feature/Service	x	x	x	x	x
OASIS	OASISMTN	Feature/Service	x	x	x	x	x
OASIS	OASISBIG	Feature/Service	x	x	x	x	x

Table 1: Legacy System Access Times For RNS

Table	2:	Legacy	System	Access	Times	For F	₹0S
-------	----	--------	--------	--------	-------	-------	------------

System	Contract	Data	< 2.3 sec.	> 6 sec.	<u>≤</u> 6.3 sec.	Avg. sec.	# of Calls
RSAG	RSAG-TN	Address	x	x	x	x	x
RSAG	RSAG-ADDR	Address	x	x	x	x	х
ATLAS	ATLAS-TN	TN	x	x	x	x	x

Florida Performance Metrics

Operations Support Systems (OSS)

System	Contract	Data	< 2.3 sec.	> 6 sec.	<u>≤</u> 6.3 sec.	Avg. sec.	# of Calls
DSAP	DSAP-DDI	Schedule	x	x	x	x	x
CRIS	CRSOCSR	CSR	x	x	x	x	x
OASIS	OASISBIG	Feature/Service	x	x	x	x	x

Table 2: Legacy System Access Times For R0S

Table 3: Legacy System Access Times For LENS

System	Contract	Data	< 2.3 sec.	> 6 sec.	<u>≤</u> 6.3 sec.	Avg. sec.	# of Calls
RSAG	RSAG-TN	Address	x	x	x	x	x
RSAG	RSAG-ADDR	Address	x	x	x	x	x
ATLAS	ATLAS-TN	TN	x	x	x	x	x
DSAP	DSAP	Schedule	x	x	x	x	x
CRIS	CRSECSRL	CSR	x	X	x	x	x
COFFI	COFFI/USOC	Feature/Service	x	x	x	x	x
P/SIMS	PSIMS/ORB	Feature/Service	x	x	x	x	x

Table 4: Legacy System Access Times For TAG

System	Contract	Data	< 2.3 sec.	> 6 sec.	<u>≤</u> 6.3 sec.	Avg. sec.	# of Calls
RSAG	RSAG-TN	Address	x	x	x	x	x
RSAG	RSAG-ADDR	Address	x	x	x	x	x
ATLAS	ATLAS-TN	TN	x	x	x	x	x
ATLAS	ATLAS-MLH	TN	x	x	x	x	x
ATLAS	ATLAS-DID	TN	x	x	x	x	x
DSAP	DSAP-DDI	Schedule	x	x	x	x	x
CRIS	TAG-CSR	CSR	x	x	x	x	x
P/SIMS	PSIM/ORB	Feature/Service	x	x	x	x	x

SEEM Measure

	SEEM	Measure
Yes	Tier I	
	Tier II	X

Note: CLEC specific data is not available in this measure. Queries of this sort do not have company specific signatures.

SEEM Disaggregation - Analog/Benchmark

SEEM Disaggregation	SEEM Analog/Benchmark
 RSAG - Address (Regional Street Address Guide-Address) - stores street address information used to validate customer addresses. CLECs and BellSouth query this legacy system. RSAG - TN (Regional Street Address Guide-Telephone number) - contains information about facilities available and telephone numbers working at a given address. CLECs and BellSouth query this legacy system. ATLAS (Application for Telephone Number Load Administration and Selection) - acts as a warehouse for storing telephone numbers that are available for assignment by the system. It enables CLECs and BellSouth service reps to select and reserve telephone numbers. CLECs and BellSouth query this legacy system. COFFI (Central Office Feature File Interface) - stores information about product and service offerings and availability. CLECs query this legacy system. DSAP (DOE Support Application) - provides due date information. CLECs and BellSouth query this legacy system. CRIS (Customer Record Information System) - Source of CSR (Customer Service Record) information. Contains information about individual customers including listings, addresses, features, services, etc. CLECs and BellSouth can query for CSR information. P/SIMS (Product/Services Inventory Management system) - provides information on capacity, tariffs, inventory and service availability. CLECs query this legacy system. OASIS (Obtain Available Services Information Systems) - Information on feature and rate availability. BellSouth queries this legacy system. 	• Parity + 2 Seconds

SEEM OSS Legacy Systems

System	BellSouth	CLEC
	Telephone Number/Add	ress
RSAG-ADDR	RNS, ROS	TAG, LENS
RSAG-TN	RNS, ROS	TAG, LENS
Atlas	RNS,ROS	TAG LENS
	Appointment Scheduli	ng
DSAP	RNS, ROS	TAG, LENS
	CSR Data	
CRSACCTS	RNS	
CRSOCSR	ROS	
CRSECSRL		LENS
TAG-CSR		TAG
	Service/Feature Availab	ility
OASISBIG	RNS, ROS	
PSIMS/ORB		LENS, TAG

OSS-2: Interface Availability (Pre-Ordering/Ordering)

Definition

Percent of time OSS interface is functionally available compared to scheduled availability. Availability percentages for CLEC interface systems and for all Legacy systems accessed by them are captured. ("Functional Availability" is the amount of time in hours during the reporting period that the legacy systems are available to users. The planned System Scheduled Availability is the time in hours per day that the legacy system is scheduled to be available.)

Scheduled availability is posted on the ICS Operations internet site: (www.interconnection.bellsouth.com/oss/osshour.html)

Exclusions

None

Business Rules

This measurement captures the functional availability of applications/interfaces as a percentage of scheduled availability for the same systems. Only full outages are included in the calculation for this measure. Full outages are defined as occurrences of either of the following:

- Application/Interface application is down or totally inoperative.
- Application is totally inoperative for customers attempting to access or use the application. This includes transport outages when they may be directly associated with a specific application.

Comparison to an internal benchmark provides a vehicle for determining whether or not CLECs and retail BellSouth entities are given comparable opportunities for use of pre-ordering and ordering systems.

(Note: Scheduled maintenance will not be performed between the hours of 8:00 a.m through 9:00 p.m. Monday through Friday.)

Calculation

Interface Availability (Pre-Ordering/Ordering) = $(a \div b) \times 100$

- a = Functional Availability
- b = Scheduled Availability

Report Structure

- Interface Type
- Not CLEC Specific
- Not product/service specific
- Regional Level

Data Retained

Relating to CLEC Experience	Relating to BellSouth Performance
Report Month Legacy Contract Type (per reporting dimension) Regional Scope Hours of Downtime 	Report Month Legacy Contract Type (per reporting dimension) Regional Scope Hours of Downtime

SQM Disaggregation - Analog/Benchmark

SQM Level of Disaggregation	SQM Analog/Benchmark
Regional Level	• ≥ 99.5%

OSS Interface Availability

OSS Interface	Applicable to	% Availability
EDI	CLEC	x
LENS	CLEC	x
LEO	CLEC	x
LESOG	CLEC	x
PSIMS	CLEC	x
TAG	CLEC	x
LNP Gateway	CLEC	x
COG	CLEC	x
SOG	CLEC	x
DOM	CLEC	x
DOE	CLEC/BellSouth	x
CRIS	CLEC/BellSouth	x
ATLAS/COFFI	CLEC/BellSouth	x
BOCRIS	CLEC/BellSouth	x
DSAP	CLEC/BellSouth	x
RSAG	CLEC/BellSouth	x
SOCS	CLEC/BellSouth	x
SONGS	CLEC/BellSouth	x
RNS	BellSouth	x
ROS	BellSouth	x

SEEM Measure

	SEEM Measure	
Yes	Tier I	
	Tier II	X

SEEM Disaggregation - Analog/Benchmark

SEEM Disaggregation	SEEM Analog/Benchmark
Regional Level	• ≥ 99.5%

SEEM OSS Interface Availability

OSS Interface	Applicable to	% Availability
EDI	CLEC	x
LENS	CLEC	x
LEO	CLEC	x
LESOG	CLEC	x
PSIMS	CLEC	x

Florida Performance Metrics

OSS Interface	Applicable to	% Availability
TAG	CLEC	x
TAG	CLEC	x
LNP Gateway	CLEC	x
COG	CLEC	x
SOG	CLEC	x
DOM	CLEC	x

.

OSS-3: Interface Availability (Maintenance & Repair)

Definition

This measures the percentage of time the OSS Interface is functionally available compared to scheduled availability. Availability percentage for the CLEC and BellSouth interface systems and for the legacy systems accessed by them are captured.

Scheduled availability is posted on the ICS Operations internet site: (www.interconnection.bellsouth.com/oss/osshour.html)

Exclusions

None

Business Rules

This measure is designed to compare the OSS availability versus scheduled availability of BellSouth's legacy systems.

Note: Only full outages are used in the calculation of Application Availability. A full outage is incurred when any of the following circumstances exists:

- The application or system is down.
- The application or system is inaccessible, for any reason, by the customers who normally access the application or system.
- More than one work center cannot access the application or system for any reason.
- When only one work center accesses an application or system and 40% or more of the clients in that work center cannot access the application.
- When 40% of the functions the clients normally perform or 40% of the functionality that is normally provided by an application or system is unavailable.

(Note: Scheduled maintenance will not be performed between the hours of 8:00 a.m through 9:00 p.m. Monday through Friday.)

Calculation

OSS Interface Availability (a ÷ b) X 100

- a = Functional Availability
- b = Scheduled Availability

Report Structure

- Interface Type
- Not CLEC Specific
- Not product/service specific
- Regional Level

Data Retained

Relating to CLEC Experience	Relating to BellSouth Performance
 Availability of CLEC TAFI Availability of LMOS HOST, MARCH, SOCS, CRIS,	 Availability of BellSouth TAFI Availability of LMOS HOST, MARCH, SOCS, CRIS,
PREDICTOR, LNP and OSPCM ECTA	PREDICTOR, LNP and OSPCM

SQM Disaggregation - Analog/Benchmark

SQM Level of Disaggregation	SQM Analog/Benchmark
Regional Level	• ≥ 99.5%

OSS Interface Availability (M&R)

OSS Interface	% Availability
BellSouth TAFI	x
CLEC TAFI	x
CLEC ECTA	x
BeilSouth & CLEC	x
CRIS	x
LMOS HOST	x
LNP	x
MARCH	x
OSPCM	x
PREDICTOR	x
SOCS	x

SEEM Measure

..

SEEM Measure		
Yes	Tier I	
	Tier II	X

SEEM Disaggregation - Analog/Benchmark

SEEM Disaggregation	SEEM Analog/Benchmark		
Regional Level	• ≥ 99.5%		

OSS Interface Availability (M&R)

OSS Interface	% Availability	
CLEC TAFI	x	
CLEC ECTA	x	

.

OSS-4: Response Interval (Maintenance & Repair)

Definition

The response intervals are determined by subtracting the time a request is received on the BellSouth side of the interface from the time the response is received from the legacy system. Percentages of requests falling into each interval category are reported, along with the actual number of requests falling into those categories.

Exclusions

None

Business Rules

This measure is designed to monitor the time required for the CLEC and BellSouth interface system to obtain from BellSouth's legacy systems the information required to handle maintenance and repair functions. The clock starts on the date and time when the request is received on the BellSouth side of the interface and the clock stops when the response has been transmitted through that same point to the requester.

Note: The OSS Response Interval BellSouth Total Report is a combination of BellSouth Residence and Business Total.

Calculation

OSS Response Interval = (a - b)

- a = Query Response Date and Time
- b = Query Request Date and Time

Percent Response Interval (per category) = $(c + d) \times 100$

- c = Number of Response Intervals in category "X"
- d = Number of Queries Submitted in the Reporting Period

where, "X" is ≤ 4 , $> 4 \le 10$, ≤ 10 , > 10, or > 30 seconds.

Average Interval = $(e \div f)$

- e = Sum of Response Intervals
- f = Number of Queries Submitted in the Reporting Period

Report Structure

- Not CLEC Specific
- Not product/service specific
- Regional Level

Data Retained

Relating to CLEC Experience	Relating to BellSouth Performance		
CLEC Transaction Intervals	BellSouth Business and Residential Transactions Intervals		

SQM Disaggregation - Analog/Benchmark

SQM Level of Disaggregation	SQM Analog/Benchmark	
Regional Level	Average Interval	

Operations Support Systems (OSS)

Legacy System Access Times for M&R

System	BellSouth &	Count					
	CLEC	<u><</u> 4	> 4 <u><</u> 10	<u><</u> 10	> 10	> 30	Avg. Int.
CRIS	· x	x	x	x	x	x	x
DLETH	x	x	x	x	x	x	x
DLR	x	x	x	x	x	x	x
LMOS	x	x	x	x	x	x	x
LMOSupd	x	x	x	x	x	x	x
LNP	x	x	x	x	x	x	x
MARCH	x	x	x	x	x	x	x
OSPCM	x	x	x	x	x	x	x
Predictor	x	x	x	x	x	x	x
SOCS	x	x	x	x	x	x	x
NIW	x	x	x	x	x	x	x

SEEM Measure

SEEM Measure			
Yes	Tier I		
_	Tier II	X	

SEEM Disaggregation - Analog/Benchmark

SEEM Disaggregation	SEEM Analog/Benchmark	
• Region	Average Interval	

PO-1: Loop Makeup - Response Time - Manual

Definition

This report measures the average interval and percent within the interval from the submission of a Manual Loop Makeup Service Inquiry (LMUSI) to the distribution of Loop Makeup information back to the CLEC.

Exclusions

- Inquiries, which are submitted electronically.
- Designated Holidays are excluded from the interval calculation.
- Weekends are excluded from the interval calculation.
- Canceled Inquiries

Business Rules

The CLEC Manual Loop Makeup Service Inquiry (LMUSI) process includes inquiries submitted via mail or FAX to BellSouth's Complex Resale Support Group (CRSG)

This measurement combines three intervals:

- 1. From receipt of a valid Service Inquiry for Loop Makeup to hand off to the Service Advocacy Center (SAC) for "Look-up."
- 2. From SAC start date to SAC complete date
- 3. From SAC complete date to date the Complex Resale Support Group (CRSG) distributes loop makeup information back to the CLEC.

The "Receive Date" is defined as the date the Manual LMUSI is received by the CRSG It is counted as day Zero. LMU "Return Date" is defined as the date the LMU information is sent back to the CLEC from BellSouth. The interval calculation is reset to Zero when a CLEC initiated change occurs on the Manual LMU request.

Note: The Loop Make Up Service Inquiry Form does not require the CLEC to furnish the type of Loop. The CLEC determines whether the loop makeup will support the type of service they wish to order or not and qualifies the loop. If the loop makeup will support the service, a firm order LSR is submitted by the CLEC.

(A valid Service Inquiry is an inquiry that has all required fields populated correctly and has not been returned for clarification.)

Calculation

Response Interval = (a - b)

- a = Date the LMUSI returned to CLEC
- b = Date the LMUSI is received

Average Interval = $(c \div d)$

- c = Sum of all Response Intervals
- d = Total Number of LMUSIs received within the reporting period

Percent within interval = (e + f) X 100

- e = Total LMUSIs received within the interval
- f = Total Number of LMUSIs processed within the reporting period

Report Structure

- CLEC Aggregate
- CLEC Specific
- Geographic Scope
 - State
- Region
- Interval for manual LMUs:
- $0 \le 1 \text{ day}$
- $>1 \leq 2$ days
- $>2 \leq 3$ days

- $0 \leq 3 \text{ days}$
- >3 ≤ 6 days
- $>6 \le 10$ days
- > 10 days
- Average Interval in days

Data Retained

Relating to CLEC Experience	Relating to BellSouth Performance	
Report Month		
 Total Number of Inquiries 		
SI Intervals		
State and Region		

SQM Disaggregation - Analog/Benchmark

SQM Level of Disaggregation	SQM Analog/Benchmark
• Loops	Benchmark • 95% ≤ 3 Business Days

SEEM Measure

SEEM Measure			
Yes	Tier I		
	Tier II	X	

SEEM Disaggregation - Analog/Benchmark

SEEM Disaggregation	SEEM Analog/Benchmark
• Loops	Benchmark • 95% ≤ 3 Business Days

PO-2: Loop Make Up - Response Time - Electronic

Definition

This report measures the average interval and the percent within the interval from the electronic submission of a Loop Makeup Service Inquiry (LMUSI) to the distribution of Loop Makeup information back to the CLEC.

Exclusions

- Manually submitted inquiries.
- Designated Holidays are excluded from the interval calculation.
- Canceled Requests.

Business Rules

The response interval starts when the CLEC's Mechanized Loop Makeup Service Inquiry (LMUSI) is submitted electronically through the Operational Support Systems interface, LENS, TAG or RoboTAG. It ends when BellSouth's Loop Facility Assignment and Control System (LFACS) responds electronically to the CLEC with the requested Loop Makeup data via LENS, TAG or RoboTAG Interfaces.

Note: The Loop Make Up Service Inquiry Form does not require the CLEC to furnish the type of Loop. The CLEC determines whether the loop makeup will support the type of service they wish to order or not and qualifies the loop. If the loop makeup will support the service, a firm order LSR is submitted by the CLEC. EDI is not a pre-ordering system, and, therefore, is not applicable in this measure.

Calculation

Response Interval = (a - b)

- a = Date and Time the LMUSI returned to CLEC
- b = Date and Time the LMUSI is received

Average Interval = (c ÷ d)

- c = Sum of all response intervals
- d = Total Number of LMUSIs received within the reporting period

Percent within interval = $(e \div f) \times 100$

- e = Total LMUSIs received within the interval
- f = Total Number of LMUSIs processed within the reporting period

Report Structure

- CLEC Aggregate
- CLEC Specific
- Geographic Scope
- State
- Region
- Interval for electronic LMUs:
 - $0 \le 1$ minute
- $>1 \le 5$ minutes
- $0 \leq 5$ minutes
- $> 5 \le 8$ minutes
- $> 8 \le 15$ minutes
- > 15 minutes
- Average Interval in minutes

Data Retained

Relating to CLEC Experience	Relating to BellSouth Performance
 Report Month Legacy Contract Response Interval Regional Scope 	Not Applicable

SQM Disaggregation - Analog/Benchmark

SQM Level of Disaggregation	SQM Analog/Benchmark
• Loop	Benchmark • 95% ≤ 1 Minute

SEEM Measure

SEEM Measure		
Yes	Tier l	
	Tier II	X

SEEM Disaggregation - Analog/Benchmark

SEEM Disaggregation	SEEM Analog/Benchmark
• Loop	 95% ≤ 1 Minute



Section 2: Ordering

O-1: Acknowledgement Message Timeliness

Definition

This measurement provides the response interval from the time a Message/LSR is electronically submitted via EDI or TAG until an acknowledgement notice is sent by the system.

Exclusions

None

Business Rules

The process includes EDI & TAG system functional acknowledgements for all Local Service Requests (LSRs) which are electronically submitted by the CLEC. The start time is the receipt time of the LSR at BellSouth's side of the interface (gateway). The end time is when the acknowledgement is transmitted by BellSouth at BellSouth's side of the interface (gateway). For those CLECs using EDI, if more than one CLEC uses the same ordering center, an Acknowledgement Message will be returned to the "Aggregator", however, BellSouth will not be able to determine which specific CLEC this message represented.

Calculation

Response Interval = (a - b)

- a = Date and Time Acknowledgement Notices returned to CLEC
- b = Date and Time Messages/LSRs electronically submitted by the CLEC via EDI or TAG respectively

Average Response Interval = (c ÷ d)

- c = Sum of all Response Intervals
- d = Total number of electronically submitted Messages/LSRs received, via EDI or TAG respectively, in the Reporting Period.

Reporting Structure

- CLEC Aggregate
- CLEC Specific
- Geographic Scope
- Region
- Electronically Submitted LSRs
 - $0 \le 10$ minutes
 - $> 10 \leq 20$ minutes
 - $> 20 \leq 30$ minutes
 - $0 \le 30$ minutes
 - $> 30 \leq 45$ minutes
 - $> 45 \leq 60$ minutes
 - $> 60 \le 120$ minutes
 - > 120 minutes
- · Average interval for electronically submitted LSRs in minutes

Data Retained

Relating to CLEC Experience	Relating to BellSouth Performance
Report MonthRecord of Functional Acknowledgements	Not Applicable

SQM Disaggregation - Analog/Benchmark

SQM Level of Disaggregation	Retail Analog/Benchmark
• EDI	• EDI – 95% ≤ 30 Minutes
• TAG	• TAG – 95% ≤ 30 Minutes

SEEM Measure

SEEM Measure			
Yes	Tier I	X	
	Tier II	Х	

SEEM Disaggregation - Analog/Benchmark

SEEM Disaggregation	SEEM Analog/Benchmark
• EDI	• EDI – 95% ≤ 30 Minutes
• TAG	• TAG – 95% ≤ 30 Minutes

O-2: Acknowledgement Message Completeness

O-2: Acknowledgement Message Completeness

Definition

This measurement provides the percent of Messages/LSRs received via EDI or TAG, which are acknowledged electronically.

Exclusions

Manually submitted LSRs

Business Rules

EDI and TAG send Functional Acknowledgements for all LSRs, which are electronically submitted by a CLEC. For those CLECs using EDI, if more than one CLEC uses the same ordering center, an Acknowledgement Message will be returned to the "Aggregator", however, BellSouth will not be able to determine which specific CLEC this message represented. The Acknowledgement Message is returned prior to the determination of whether the LSR will be partially mechanized or fully mechanized.

Calculation

Acknowledgement Completeness = $(a \div b) \times 100$

- a = Total number of Functional Acknowledgements returned in the reporting period for Messages/LSRs electronically submitted by EDI or TAG respectively
- b = Total number of electronically submitted Messages/LSRs received in the reporting period by EDI or TAG respectively

Report Structure

- CLEC Aggregate
- CLEC Specific
- Geographic Scope
 - Region

Note: Acknowledgement message is generated before the system recognizes whether this message (LSR) will be partially or fully mechanized.

Data Retained

Relating to CLEC Experience	Relating to BellSouth Performance
Report Month Record of functional acknowledgements	Not Applicable

SQM Disaggregation - Analog/Benchmark

SQM Level of Disaggregation	SQM Analog/Benchmark
• EDI	Benchmark: 100%
• TAG	

SEEM Measure

SEEM Measure			
Yes	Tier I	X	
	Tier II	X	

Ordering

SEEM Disaggregation - Analog/Benchmark

SEEM Disaggregation	SEEM Analog/Benchmark
• ED1	Benchmark: 100%
• TAG	

O-3: Percent Flow-Through Service Requests (Summary)

O-3: Percent Flow-Through Service Requests (Summary)

Definition

The percentage of Local Service Requests (LSR) and LNP Local Service Requests (LNP LSRs) submitted electronically via the CLEC mechanized ordering process that flow through and reach a status for a FOC to be issued, without manual intervention.

Exclusions

- Fatal Rejects
- Auto Clarification
- Manual Fallout for Percent Flow-Through only
- CLEC System Fallout

Business Rules

The CLEC mechanized ordering process includes all LSRs, including supplements (subsequent versions) which are submitted through one of the three gateway interfaces (TAG, EDI and LENS), that flow through and reach a status for a FOC to be issued, without manual intervention. These LSRs can be divided into two classes of service: Business and Residence, and two types of service: Resale, and Unbundled Network Elements (UNE). The CLEC mechanized ordering process does not include LSRs which are submitted manually (for example, fax and courier) or are not designed to flow through (for example, Manual Fallout.)

Definitions:

Fatal Rejects: Errors that prevent an LSR, submitted electronically by the CLEC, from being processed further. When an LSR is submitted by a CLEC, LEO/LNP Gateway will perform edit checks to ensure the data received is correctly formatted and complete. For example, if the PON field contains an invalid character, LEO/LNP Gateway will reject the LSR and the CLEC will receive a Fatal Reject.

Auto-Clarification: Clarifications that occur due to invalid data within the LSR. LESOG/LAUTO will perform data validity checks to ensure the data within the LSR is correct and valid. For example, if the address on the LSR is not valid according to RSAG, or if the LNP is not available for the NPA NXXX requested, the CLEC will receive an Auto-Clarification.

Manual Fallout: Planned Fallout that occur by design. Certain LSRs are designed to fallout of the Mechanized Order Process due to their complexity. These LSRs are manually processed by the LCSC. When a CLEC submits an LSR, LESOG/LAUTO will determine if the LSR should be forwarded to LCSC for manual handling. Following are the categories for Manual Fallout:

- 1. Complex*
- 2. Special pricing plans
- 3. Some Partial migrations
- 4. New telephone number not yet posted to BOCRIS
- 5. Pending order review required
- 6. CSR inaccuracies such as invalid or missing CSR data in CRIS
- Denials-restore and conversion, or disconnect and conversion orders
- 9. Class of service invalid in certain states with some types of service
- 10. Low volume such as activity type "T" (move)
- 11. More than 25 business lines, or more than 15 loops
- 12. Transfer of calls option for the CLEC end users
- 13. Directory Listings (Indentions and Captions)

- 7. Expedites (requested by the CLEC)
- * See "LSR Flow-Through Matrix" on page 15. for a list of services, including complex services, and whether LSRs issued for the services are eligible to flow through.

Total System Fallout: Errors that require manual review by the LCSC to determine if the error is caused by the CLEC, or is due to BellSouth system functionality. If it is determined the error is caused by the CLEC, the LSR will be sent back to the CLEC for clarification. If it is determined the error is BellSouth caused, the LCSC representative will correct the error, and the LSR will continue to be processed.

Z Status: LSRs that receive a supplemental LSR submission prior to final disposition of the original LSR.

BELLSOUTH°

Florida Performance Metrics

Ordering

Calculation

Percent Flow Through = $a \div [b - (c + d + e + f)] \times 100$

- a = The total number of LSRs that flow through LESOG/LAUTO and reach a status for a FOC to be issued
- b = the number of LSRs passed from LEO/LNP Gateway to LESOG/LAUTO
- c = the number of LSRs that fail out for manual processing
- d = the number of LSRs that are returned to the CLEC for clarification
- e = the number of LSRs that contain errors made by CLECs
- f = the number of LSRs that receive a Z status.

Percent Achieved Flow Through = $a + [b-(c+d+e)] \times 100$

- a = the number of LSRs that flow through LESOG/LAUTO and reach a status for a FOC to be issued.
- b = the number of LSRs passed from LEO/LNP Gateway to LESOG/LAUTO
- c = the number of LSRs that are returned to the CLEC for clarification
- d = the number of LSRs that contain errors made by CLECs
- e = the number of LSRs that receive Z status

Report Structure

- CLEC Aggregate
 - Region

Data Retained

Relating to CLEC Experience	Relating to BellSouth Performance	
 Report Month Total Number of LSRs Received, by Interface, by CLEC TAG EDI LENS Total Number of Errors by Type, by CLEC Fatal Rejects Auto Clarification CLEC Caused System Fallout Total Number of Errors by Error Code Total Fallout for Manual Processing 	 Report Month Total Number of Errors by Type BellSouth System Error 	

SQM Disaggregation - Analog/Benchmark

SQM Level of Disaggregation	SQM Analog/Benchmark ^a
• Residence	Benchmark: 95%
• Business	Benchmark: 90%
• UNE	Benchmark: 85%
• LNP	• Benchmark: 85%

a. Benchmarks do not apply to the "Percent Achieved Flow Through."

SEEM Measure

SEEM Measure				
Yes	Tier I			
	Tier II	X		

SEEM Disaggregation - Analog/Benchmark

SEEM Disaggregation	SEEM Analog/Benchmark ^a
• Residence	Benchmark: 95%
• Business	Benchmark: 90%
• UNE	Benchmark: 85%
• LNP	Benchmark: 85%

a. Benchmarks do not apply to the "Percent Achieved Flow Through."

O-4: Percent Flow-Through Service Requests (Detail)

O-4: Percent Flow-Through Service Requests (Detail)

Definition

A detailed list, by CLEC, of the percentage of Local Service Requests (LSR) and LNP Local Service Requests (LNP LSRs) submitted electronically via the CLEC mechanized ordering process that flow through and reach a status for a FOC to be issued, without manual or human intervention.

Exclusions

- Fatal Rejects
- Auto Clarification
- Manual Fallout for Percent Flow-Through only
- CLEC System Fallout

Business Rules

The CLEC mechanized ordering process includes all LSRs, including supplements (subsequent versions) which are submitted through one of the three gateway interfaces (TAG, EDI, and LENS), that flow through and reach a status for a FOC to be issued, without manual intervention. These LSRs can be divided into two classes of service: Business and Residence, and two types of service: Resale, and Unbundled Network Elements (UNE). The CLEC mechanized ordering process does not include LSRs, which are submitted manually (for example, fax and courier) or are not designed to flow through (for example, Manual Fallout.)

Definitions:

Fatal Rejects: Errors that prevent an LSR, submitted electronically by the CLEC, from being processed further. When an LSR is submitted by a CLEC, LEO/LNP Gateway will perform edit checks to ensure the data received is correctly formatted and complete. For example, if the PON field contains an invalid character, LEO/LNP Gateway will reject the LSR and the CLEC will receive a Fatal Reject.

Auto-Clarification: Clarifications that occur due to invalid data within the LSR. LESOG/LAUTO will perform data validity checks to ensure the data within the LSR is correct and valid. For example, if the address on the LSR is not valid according to RSAG, or if the LNP is not available for the NPA NXXX requested, the CLEC will receive an Auto-Clarification.

Manual Fallout: Planned Fallout that occur by design. Certain LSRs are designed to fallout of the Mechanized Order Process due to their complexity. These LSRs are manually processed by the LCSC. When a CLEC submits an LSR, LESOG/LAUTO will determine if the LSR should be forwarded to LCSC for manual handling. Following are the categories for Manual Fallout:

- 1. Complex*
- 2. Special pricing plans
- 3. Some Partial migrations
- 4. New telephone number not yet posted to BOCRIS
- 5. Pending order review required
- 6. CSR inaccuracies such as invalid or missing CSR data in CRIS
- 8. Denials-restore and conversion, or disconnect and conversion orders
- 9. Class of service invalid in certain states with some types of service
- 10. Low volume such as activity type "T" (move)
- 11. More than 25 business lines, or more than 15 loops
- 12. Transfer of calls option for the CLEC end users
- 13. Directory Listings (Indentions and Captions)

- 7. Expedites (requested by the CLEC)
- * See "LSR Flow-Through Matrix" on page 15. for a list of services, including complex services, and whether LSRs issued for the services are eligible to flow through.

Total System Fallout: Errors that require manual review by the LCSC to determine if the error is caused by the CLEC, or is due to BellSouth system functionality. If it is determined the error is caused by the CLEC, the LSR will be sent back to the CLEC for clarification. If it is determined the error is BellSouth caused, the LCSC representative will correct the error, and the LSR will continue to be processed.

Z Status: LSRs that receive a supplemental LSR submission prior to final disposition of the original LSR.
BELLSOUTH°

Florida Performance Metrics

Calculation

Percent Flow Through = $a \div [b \cdot (c + d + e + f)] \times 100$

- a = The total number of LSRs that flow through LESOG/LAUTO and reach a status for a FOC to be issued
- b = the number of LSRs passed from LEO/LNP Gateway to LESOG/LAUTO
- c = the number of LSRs that fall out for manual processing
- d = the number of LSRs that are returned to the CLEC for clarification
- e = the number of LSRs that contain errors made by CLECs
- f = the number of LSRs that receive a Z status.

Percent Achieved Flow Through = $a \div [b-(c+d+e)] \times 100$

- a = the number of LSRs that flow through LESOG/LAUTO and reach a status for a FOC to be issued.
- b = the number of LSRs passed from LEO/LNP Gateway to LESOG/LAUTO
- c = the number of LSRs that are returned to the CLEC for clarification
- d = the number of LSRs that contain errors made by CLECs
- e = the number of LSRs that receive Z status

Report Structure

Provides the flow through percentage for each CLEC (by alias designation) submitting LSRs through the CLEC mechanized ordering process. The report provides the following:

- CLEC (by alias designation)
- Number of fatal rejects
- Mechanized interface used
- Total mechanized LSRs
- Total manual fallout
- Number of auto clarifications returned to CLEC
- Number of validated LSRs
- Number of BellSouth caused fallout
- Number of CLEC caused fallout
- Number of Service Orders Issued
- Base calculation
- CLEC error excluded calculation

Data Retained

Relating to CLEC Experience	Relating to BellSouth Performance	
 Report Month Total Number of Lsrs Received, by Interface, by CLEC TAG EDI LENS Total Number of Errors by Type, by CLEC Fatal Rejects Auto Clarification CLEC Errors Total Number of Errors by Error Code Total Fallout for Manual Processing 	 Report Month Total Number of Errors by Type BellSouth System Error 	

SQM Level of Disaggregation	SQM Analog/Benchmark ^a
• Residence	Benchmark: 95%
• Business	Benchmark: 90%
• UNE	Benchmark: 85%



Florida Performance Metrics

SQM Level of Disaggregation	SQM Analog/Benchmark ^a
• LNP	Benchmark: 85%
 Benchmarks do not apply to the "Percent Achieved Figure 1. 	ow Through."

SEEM Measure

SEEM Measure		
	Tier I	X
Yes	Tier II	

SEEM Disaggregation	SEEM Analog/Benchmark
• Residence	Benchmark: 95%
• Business	Benchmark: 90%
• UNE	Benchmark: 85%
• LNP	Benchmark: 85%

O-5: Flow-Through Error Analysis

O-5: Flow-Through Error Analysis

Definition

An analysis of each error type (by error code) that was experienced by the LSRs that did not flow through or reached a status for a FOC to be issued.

Exclusions

Each Error Analysis is error code specific, therefore exclusions are not applicable.

Business Rules

The CLEC mechanized ordering process includes all LSRs, including supplements (subsequent versions) which are submitted through one of the three gateway interfaces (TAG, EDI, and LENS), that flow through and reach a status for a FOC to be issued. The CLEC mechanized ordering process does not include LSRs which are submitted manually (for example, fax and courier).

Calculation

Total for each error type.

Report Structure

Provides an analysis of each error type (by error code). The report is in descending order by count of each error code and provides the following:

- Error Type (by error code)
- Count of each error type
- Percent of each error type
- Cumulative percent
- Error Description
- CLEC Caused Count of each error code
- Percent of aggregate by CLEC caused count
- Percent of CLEC caused count
- BellSouth Caused Count of each error code
- Percent of aggregate by BellSouth caused count
- Percent of BellSouth by BellSouth caused count.

Data Retained

Relating to CLEC Experience	Relating to BellSouth Performance	
 Report Month Total Number of Lsrs Received Total Number of Errors by Type (by Error Code) CLEC caused error 	 Report Month Total Number of Errors by Type (by Error Code) BellSouth System Error 	

SQM Disaggregation - Analog/Benchmark

SQM Level of Disaggregation	SQM Analog/Benchmark
Not Applicable	Not Applicable

SEEM Measure

SEEM Measure		
No	Tier I	
	Tier II	



Florida Performance Metrics

Ordering

SEEM Disaggregation	SEEM Analog/Benchmark
Not Applicable	Not Applicable

O-6: CLEC LSR Information

Definition

A list with the flow through activity of LSRs by CC, PON and Ver, issued by each CLEC during the report period.

Exclusions

- Fatal Rejects
- LSRs submitted manually

Business Rules

The CLEC mechanized ordering process includes all LSRs, including supplements (subsequent versions) which are submitted through one of the three gateway interfaces (TAG, EDI, and LENS), that flow through and reach a status for a FOC to be issued. The CLEC mechanized ordering process does not include LSRs which are submitted manually (for example, fax and courier).

Calculation

Not Applicable

Report Structure

Provides a list with the flow through activity of LSRs by CC, PON and Ver, issued by each CLEC during the report period with an explanation of the of the columns and content. This report is available on a CLEC specific basis. The report provides the following for each LSR.

- CC
- PON
- Ver
- Timestamp
- Type
- Err #
- Note or Error Description

Data Retained

Relating to CLEC Experience	Relating to BellSouth Performance
 Report Month Record of LSRs Received by CC, PON and Ver Record of Timestamp, Type, Err # and Note or Error Description for Each LSR by CC, PON and Ver 	Not Applicable

SQM Disaggregation - Analog/Benchmark

SQM Level of Disaggregation	SQM Analog/Benchmark
Not Applicable	Not Applicable

SEEM Measure -

SEEM Measure		
No	Tier I	
	Tier II	



Florida Performance Metrics

Ordering

SEEM Disaggregation - Analog/Benchmark

-

SEEM Disaggregation	SEEM Analog/Benchmark
Not Applicable	Not Applicable

•

Florida Performance Metrics

Ordering

LSR Flow Through Matrix

	Product Type	Reqtype	ACT Type	F/T ³	Complex Service	Complex Order	Planned Fallout For Manual Handling ¹	EDi	TAG ²	LENS ⁴
2 wire analog DID trunk port	U,C	A	N,T	No	UNE	Yes	NA	N	N	N
2 wire analog port	U	A	N,T	No	UNE	No	Yes	Y	Y	N
2 wire ISDN digital line	U,C	A	N,T	No	UNE	Yes	NA	N	N	N
2 wire ISDN digital loop	U,C	A	N,T	Yes	UNE	Yes	No	Y	Y	N
3 Way Calling	R,B	E,M	N,C,T,V,W	Yes	No	No	No	Y	Y	Y
4 wire analog voice grade loop	U,C	A	N,T	Yes	UNE	Yes	No	Y	Y	N
4 wire DSO & PRI digital loop	U,C	A	N,T	No	UNE	Yes	NA	N	N	N
4 wire DS1 & PRI digital loop	U,C	A	N,T	No	UNE	Yes	NA	N	N	N
4 wire ISDN DSI digital trunk ports	U,C	A	N,T	No	UNE	Yes	NA	N	N	N
Accupulse	С	E	N,C,T,V,W	No	Yes	Yes	NA	N	N	N
ADSL	R,B,C	E	V,W	No	UNE	No	No	Y	Y	N
Area Plus	R,B	E,M	N,C,T,V,W	Yes	No	No	No	Y	Y	Y
Basic Rate ISDN	U,C	A	N,T	No	Yes	Yes	Yes	Y	Y	N
Basic Rate ISDN 2 Wire	C	Е	C, D,T,V,W	No	Yes	Yes	Yes	Y	Y	N
Basic Rate ISDN 2 Wire	С	E	N,T	No	Yes	Yes	N/A	N	N	N
Basic Rate ISDN 2 Wire UNE P	C	M	N,C,D,V	No	YES	Yes	N/A	N	N	N
Analog Data/Private Line	C	E	N, C, T, V, W, D, P, Q	No	Yes	Yes	N/A	N	N	N
Call Block	R,B	E,B,M	N,C,T,V,W	Yes	No	No	No	Y	Y	Y
Call Forwarding	R,B	E,B,M	N,C,T,V,W	Yes	No	No	No	Y	Y	Y
Call Return	R,B	E,B,M	N,C,T,V,W	Yes	No	No	No	Y	Y	Y
Call Selector	R,B	E,B,M	N,C,T,V,W	Yes	No	No	No	Y	Y	Y
Call Tracing	R,B	E,B,M	N,C,T,V,W	Yes	No	No	No	Y	Y	Y
Call Waiting	R,B	E,B,M	N,C,T,V,W	Yes	No	No	No	Y	Y	Y
Call Waiting Deluxe	R,B	E,B,M	N,C,T,V,W	Yes	No	No	No	Y	Y	Y
Caller ID	R,B	E,B,M	N,C,T,V,W	Yes	No	No	No	Y	Y	Y
CENTREX	C	Р	V,P	No	Yes	Yes	NA	N	N	N
DID ACT W	С	N	w	No	Yes	Yes	Yes	Y	Y	Y
Digital Data Transport	U	E	N,C,T,V,W	No	UNE	Yes	NA	N	N	N
Directory Listing Indentions	B,U	B,C,E,F, J,M,N	N,C,T,R,V,W,P,Q	No	No	No	Yes	Y	Y	Y
Directory Listings Captions	R,B,U	B,C,E,F, J,M,N	N,C,T,R,V,W,P,Q	No	No	Yes	Yes	Y	Y	Y
Directory Listings (simple)	R,B,U	B,C,E,F, J,M,N	N,C,T,R,V,W,P,Q	Yes	No	No	No	Y	Y	Y
DS3	U	A,M	N,C,V	No	UNE	Yes	NA	N	Ν	N
DS1Loop	U	A,M	N,C,V	Yes	UNE	Yes	No	Y	Y	N
DSO Loop	U	A, B	N,C,D,T,V	Yes	UNE	Yes	No	Y	Y	N
Enhanced Caller ID	R,B	E,M	C,D,N,T,V,W	Yes	No	No	No	Y	Y	Y

Version 2.00

LSR Flow Through Matrix

Florida Performance Metrics

Ordering

	Product Type	Reqtype	ACT Type	Е/Т ³	Complex Service	Complex Order	Planned Fallout For Manual Handling ¹	EDI	TAG ²	LENS ⁴
ESSX	С	Р	C,D,T,V,S,B,W,L ,P,Q	No	Yes	Yes	NA	N	N	N
Flat Rate/Business	В	E, M	C,D,N,T,V,W	Yes	No	No	No	Y	Y	Y
Flat Rate/Residence	R	E, M	C,D,N,T,V,W	Yes	No	No	No	Y	Y	Y
FLEXSERV	С	E	N,C,D,T,V,W,P,Q	No	Yes	Yes	NA	N	N	N
Frame Relay	С	E	N,C,D,V,W	No	Yes	Yes	NA	N	N	N
FX	C	E	N,C,D,T,V,W,P,Q	No	Yes	Yes	NA	N	N	N
Ga. Community Calling	R,B	E, M	C,D,N,T,V,W	Yes	No	No	No	Y	Y	Y
HDSL	U	A	N,C,D	Yes	UNE	No	No	Y	Y	N
Hunting MLH	R,B	E, M	C,D,N,T,V,W	No	C/S4	C/S	Yes	Y	Y	N
Hunting Series Completion	R,B	E, M	C,D,N,T,V,W	Yes	C/S	C/S	No	Y	Y	Y
INP to LNP Conversion	U	C	C	No	UNE	Yes	Yes	Y	Y	N
LightGate	С	Е	N,C,D,T,V,W,P,Q	No	Yes	Yes	NA	N	N	N
Line Sharing	U	A	C,D	Yes	UNE	No	No	Y	Y	Y
Local Number Portability	U	С	C,D,P,V,Q	Yes	UNE	Yes	No	Y	Y	N
LNP With Complex Listing	С	C	P,V,Q,W	No	UNE	Yes	Yes	Y	Y	N
LNP with Partial Migration	U	C	D,P,V,Q	No	UNE	Yes	Yes	Y	Y	N
LNP with Complex Services	С	C	P,V,Q,W	No	UNE	Yes	Yes	Y	Y	N
Loop+INP	U	В	D,P,V,Q	Yes	UNE	No	No	Y	Y	N
Loop+LNP	U	В	C,D,N,V	Yes	UNE	No	No	Y	Y	N
Measured Rate/Bus	R,B	E,M	C,D,T,N,V,W	Yes	No	No	No	Y	Y	Y
Measured Rate/Res	R,B	E,M	C,D,T,N,V,W	Yes	No	No	No	Y	Y	Y
Megalink	С	Е	N,V,W,T,D,C,P,Q	No	Yes	Yes	NA	N	N	N
Megalink-T1	С	E,M	N,V,W,T,D,C,P,Q	No	Yes	Yes	NA	N	N	N
Memory Call	R,B	E, M	C,D,N,T,V,W	Yes	No	No	No	Y	Y	Y
Memory Call Ans. Svc.	R,B	E, M	C,D,N,T,V,W	Yes	No	No	No	Y	Y	Y
Multiserv	C	Р	N,C,D,T,V,S,B, W,L,P,Q	No	Yes	Yes	NA	N	N	N
Native Mode LAN Interconnec- tion (NMLI)	C	E	N,C,D,V,W	No	Yes	Yes	NA	N	N	N
Off-Prem Stations	C	E	N,C,D,V,W,T,P,Q	No	Yes	Yes	NA	N	N	N
Optional Calling Plan	R,B	E, M	N	Yes	No	No	No	Y	Y	Y
Package/Complete Choice and Area Plus	R,B	E, M	N,T,C,V,W	Yes	No	No	No	Y	Y	Y
Pathlink Primary Rate ISDN	С	E	N,C,D,T,V,W,P,Q	No	Yes	Yes	NA	N	N	N
Pay Phone Provider	В	E	C,D,T,N,V,W	No	No	No	NA	N	N	N
PBX Standalone Port	С	F	N,C,D	No	Yes	Yes	Yes	Y	Y	N
PBX Trunks	R,B	E	N,C,D,V,W,T,P,Q	No	Yes	Yes	Yes	Y	Y	N
Port/Loop PBX	U	М	A,C,D,V	No	No	No	Yes	Y	Y	N
Port/Loop Simple	U	М	A,C,D,V	Yes	No	No	Yes	Y	Y	Y
Preferred Call Forward	R,B,U	E	C,D,T,N,V,W	Yes	No	No	No	Y	Y	Y
RCF Basic	R,B	E	N,D,W,T,F	Yes	No	No	No	Y	Y	Y

LSR Flow Through Matrix

Version 2.00

Issue Date: January 23, 2002

Florida Performance Metrics

ut For ual ling ¹	5	G ²	154

Ordering

	Product Type	Reqtype	ACT Type	F/T ³	Complex Service	Complex Order	Planned Fallout Fo Manual Handling ¹	EDI	TAG ²	LENS ⁴
Remote Access to CF	R,B	E,M	C,D,T,N,V,W	Yes	No	No	No	Y	Y	Y
Repeat Dialing	R,B	E,M	C,D,T,N,V,W	Yes	No	No	No	Y	Y	Y
Ringmaster	R,B	E,M	C,D,T,N,V,W	Yes	No	No	No	Y	Y	Y
Smartpath	R,B	E	C,D,T,N,V,W	No	Yes	Yes	NA	N	N	N
SmartRING	C	E	N,D,C,V,W	No	Yes	Yes	NA	N	N	N
Speed Calling	R,B	E	C,D,T,N,V,W	Yes	No	No	No	Y	Y	Y
Synchronet	C	E	N	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Y	Y	Ν
Tie Lines	C	E	N,C,D,V,W,T,P,Q	No	Yes	Yes	NA	N	N	Ν
Touchtone	R,B	E	C,D,T,N,V,W	Yes	No	No	No	Y	Y	Y
Unbundled Loop-Analog 2W, SL1, SL2	U	A,B	C,D,T,N,V,W	Yes	UNE	No	No	Y	Y	Y
WATS	R,B	E	W,D	No	Yes	Yes	NA	N	Ν	N
XDSL	C,U	A,B	N,T,C,V,D	Yes	UNE	No	No	Y	Y	N
XDSL Extended LOOP	C,U	A,B	N,T,C,V,D	No	UNE	Yes	NA	N	N	N
Collect Call Block	R,B	E	N,T,C,V,W,D	Yes	No	No	No	Y	Y	Y
900 Call Block	R,B	E	N,T,C,V,W,D	Yes	No	No	No	Y	Y	Y
3rd Party Call Block	R,B	E	N,T,C,V,W,D	Yes	No	No	No	Y	Y	Y
Three Way Call Block	R,B	E	N,T,C,V,W,D	Yes	No	No	No	Y	Y	Y
PIC/LPIC Change	R,B	E	T,C,V,	Yes	No	No	No	Y	Y	Y
PIC/LPIC Freeze	R,B	Е	N,T,C,V	Yes	No	No	No	Y	Y	Y

Note¹: Planned Fallout for Manual Handling denotes those services that are electronically submitted and are not intended to flow through due to the complexity of the service.

Note²: The TAG column includes those LSRs submitted via Robo TAG.

Note³: For all services that indicate 'No' for flow-through, the following reasons, in addition to errors or complex services, also prompt manual handling: Expedites from CLECs, special pricing plans, denials – restore and conversion or disconnect and conversion both required, partial migrations (although conversions-as-is flow through), class of service invalid in certain states with some TOS – e.g. government, or cannot be changed when changing main TN on C activity, low volume – e.g. activity type T=move, pending order review required, more than 25 business lines, CSR inaccuracies such as invalid or missing CSR data in CRIS, Directory listing indentions and captions, transfer of calls option for CLEC end user – new TN not yet posted to BOCRIS. Many are unique to the CLEC environment.

Note⁴: Services with C/S in the Complex Service and/or the Complex Order columns can be either complex or simple.

Note⁵: EELs are manually ordered.

Note⁶: LSRs submitted for Resale Products and Services for which there is a temporary promotion or discount plan will be processed identically to those LSRs ordering the same Products or Services without a promotion or discount plan.

Note: The Flow Through Matrix is continually being updated and expanded with additional information about the listed products and services. BellSouth will not change any "Yes" designation to "No" without commission approval. The most current pre-approved matrix will be posted to the PMAP web site (www.pmap.bellsouth.com).

O-7: Percent Rejected Service Requests

Definition

Percent Rejected Service Request is the percent of total Service Requests [(Local Service Requests (LSRs) or Access Service Requests (ASRs)] received which are rejected due to error or omission. Service Requests are considered valid when they are submitted by the CLEC and pass edit checks to insure the data received is correctly formatted and complete.

Exclusions

- Service Requests canceled by the CLEC prior to being rejected/clarified.
- Fatal Rejects
- Order Activities of BellSouth or the CLEC associated with internal or administrative use of local services (Record Orders, Test Orders, etc.) where identifiable.

Business Rules

Fully Mechanized: An LSR/Service Request is considered "rejected" when it is submitted electronically but does not pass edit checks in the ordering systems (EDI, LENS, TAG, LESOG, LNP Gateway, LAUTO) and is returned to the CLEC without manual intervention. There are two types of "Rejects" in the Mechanized category:

A Fatal Reject occurs when a CLEC attempts to electronically submit an LSR but required fields are either not populated or incorrectly populated and the request is returned to the CLEC before it is considered a valid LSR.

Fatal rejects are reported in a separate column, and for informational purposes ONLY. They are not considered in the calculation of the percent of total LSRs rejected or the total number of rejected LSRs.

An Auto Clarification occurs when a valid LSR is electronically submitted but rejected from LESOG or LAUTO because it does not pass further edit checks for order accuracy.

Partially Mechanized: A valid LSR, which is electronically submitted (via EDI, LENS, TAG) but cannot be processed electronically and "falls out" for manual handling. It is then put into "clarification" and sent back (rejected) to the CLEC.

Non-Mechanized: LSRs which are faxed or mailed to the LCSC for processing and "clarified" (rejected) back to the CLEC by the BellSouth service representative.

Interconnection Trunks: Interconnection Trunks are ordered on Access Service Requests (ASRs). ASRs are submitted to and processed by the Local Interconnection Service Center (LISC). Trunk data is reported as a separate category.

Calculation

Percent Rejected Service Requests = (a ÷ b) X 100

- a = Total Number of Service Requests Rejected in the reporting period
- b = Total Number of Service Requests Received in the reporting period

Report Structure

- Fully Mechanized, Partially Mechanized, Non-Mechanized
- Trunks
- CLEC Specific
- CLEC Aggregate
- Geographic Scope
 - State
 - Region
- Product Specific percent Rejected
- · Total percent Rejected

O-7: Percent Rejected Service Requests

Data Retained

Relating to CLEC Experience	Relating to BellSouth Performance
 Report Month Total Number of LSRs Total Number of Rejects State and Region Total Number of ASRs (Trunks) 	• Not Applicable

SQM Disaggregation - Analog/Benchmark

SQM Level of Disaggregation	SQM Analog/Benchmark
Mechanized, Partially Mechanized and Non-Mechanized	Diagnostic
Resale - Residence	
Resale - Business	
Resale – Design (Special)	
Resale PBX	
Resale Centrex	
Resale ISDN	
LNP Standalone	
INP Standalone	
• 2W Analog Loop Design	
 2W Analog Loop Non-Design 	
 2W Analog Loop with INP Design 	
 2W Analog Loop with INP Non-Design 	
 2W Analog Loop with LNP Design 	
 2W Analog Loop with LNP Non-Design 	
 UNE Digital Loop < DS1 	
• UNE Digital Loop \geq DS1	
 UNE Loop + Port Combinations 	
UNE Combination Other	
UNE ISDN Loop	
UNE Other Design	
UNE Other Non-Design	
• UNE Line Splitting	
• EELs	
• Switch Ports	
• UNE xDSL (ADSL, HDSL, UCL)	
• Line Sharing	
Local Interoffice Transport	
Local Interconnection Trunks	

SEEM Measure

SEEM Measure							
No	Tier I						
	Tier II						

SEEM Disaggregation	SEEM Analog/Benchmark
Not Applicable	Not Applicable

Definition

Reject Interval is the average reject time from receipt of Service Requests [(Local Service Requests (LSRs) or Access Service Requests (ASRs)] to the distribution of a Reject. Service Requests are considered valid when they are submitted by the CLEC and pass edit checks to insure the data received is correctly formatted and complete.

Exclusions

- Service Requests canceled by CLEC prior to being rejected/clarified.
- Fatal Rejects
- Designated Holidays are excluded from the interval calculation.
- · LSRs which are identified and classified as "Projects"
- The following hours for Partially mechanized and Non-mechanized LSRs are excluded from the interval calculation:

Residence Resale Group – Monday through Saturday 7:00PM until 7:00AM From 7:00 PM Saturday until 7:00 AM Monday

Business Resale, Complex, UNE Groups - Monday through Friday 6:00PM until 8:00AM From 6:00 PM Friday until 8:00 AM Monday.

Local Interconnection Service Center (LISC) - Monday through Friday 4:30 P.M. until 8:00 A M. From 4:30 P.M.Friday until 8:00 A.M. Monday

The hours excluded will be altered to reflect changes in the Center operating hours. The LCSC will accept faxed LSRs only during posted hours of operation.

The interval will be the amount of time accrued from receipt of the LSR until normal closing of the center if an LSR is worked using overtime hours.

In the case of a Partially Mechanized LSR received and worked after normal business hours, the interval will be set at one (1) minute.

Business Rules

The Reject interval is determined for each rejected LSR processed during the reporting period. The Reject interval is the elapsed time from when BellSouth receives LSR (date and time stamps in EDI or TAG) until that LSR is rejected back to the CLEC. Elapsed time for each LSR (date and time stamps in EDI or TAG) is accumulated for each reporting dimension. The accumulated time for each reporting dimension is then divided by the associated total number of rejected LSRs to produce the reject interval distribution.

Fully Mechanized: The elapsed time from receipt of a valid electronically submitted LSR (date and time stamp in EDI translator or TAG) until the LSR is rejected (date and time stamp or reject in EDI translator, or TAG). Auto Clarifications are considered in the Fully Mechanized category.

Partially Mechanized: The elapsed time from receipt of a valid electronically submitted LSR (date and time stamp in EDI translator or TAG) until it falls out for manual handling. The stop time on partially mechanized LSRs is when the LCSC Service Representative clarifies the LSR back to the CLEC via EDI translator, or TAG.

Non-Mechanized: The elapsed time from receipt of a valid LSR (date and time stamp of FAX or date and time mailed LSR is received in the LCSC) until notice of the reject (clarification) is returned to the CLEC via LON.

Interconnection Trunks: Interconnection Trunks are ordered on Access Service Requests (ASRs). ASRs are submitted to and processed by the Local Interconnection Service Center (LISC). Trunk data is reported as a separate category.

Calculation

Reject Interval = (a - b)

- a = Date and Time of Service Request Rejection
- b = Date and Time of Service Request Receipt

Average Reject Interval = $(c \div d)$

- c = Sum of all Reject Intervals
- d = Number of Service Requests Rejected in Reporting Period

Ordering

Florida Performance Metrics

O-8: Reject Interva

Reject Interval Distribution = $(e \div f) \times 100$

- e = Service Requests Rejected in reported interval
- f = Total Number of Service Requests Rejected in Reporting Period

Report Structure

- Fully Mechanized, Partially Mechanized, Non-Mechanized
- CLEC Specific
- CLEC Aggregate
- Geographic Scope
 - State
 - Region
- Fully Mechanized:
 - $0 \leq 4$ minutes
 - $>4 \leq 8$ minutes
 - $>8 \le 12$ minutes $> 12 - \le 60$ minutes
 - $0 \leq 1$ hour
 - $> 1 \cdot \leq 4$ hours
 - $>4-\leq 8$ hours
 - $> 8 \le 12$ hours
 - $> 12 \le 16$ hours
 - $> 16 \leq 20$ hours
 - $> 20 \leq 24$ hours
- > 24 hours
- Partially Mechanized:
 - $0 \leq 1$ hour
 - $> 1 \leq 4$ hours
 - $>4-\leq 8$ hours
 - $> 8 \le 10$ hours $0 - \le 10$ hours
 - > 10 \leq 18 hours
 - $0 \le 18$ hours
 - $> 18 \leq 24$ hours
 - > 24 hours
- Non-mechanized:
- $0 \leq 1$ hour > $1 - \leq 4$ hours
- $>4 \leq 8$ hours
- $> 8 \le 12$ hours
- $> 12 \le 16$ hours
- > 16 ≤ 20 hours
- $> 20 \cdot \leq 24$ hours
- $0 \leq 24$ hours
- > 24 hours
- Trunks:
- $0 \leq 36$ hours
- > 36 hours
- · Average Interval is reported in business hours.

Data Retained

Relating to CLEC Experience	Relating to BellSouth Performance
Report Month Reject Interval Total Number of LSRs Total Number of Rejects State and Region Total Number of ASRs (Trunks) 	• Not Applicable

SQM Disaggregation - Analog/Benchmark

SQM Level of Disaggregation	SQM Analog/Benchmark
 Resale – Residence Resale – Business Resale – Design (Special) Resale PBX Resale Centrex Resale ISDN LNP Standalone INP Standalone 2W Analog Loop Design 2W Analog Loop Non-Design 2W Analog Loop with INP Design 2W Analog Loop with INP Non-Design 2W Analog Loop with LNP Non-Design 2W Analog Loop with LNP Design 2W Analog Loop with LNP Non-Design UNE Digital Loop < DS1 UNE Digital Loop < DS1 UNE Combination Other UNE Combination Other UNE Other Design UNE Other Design UNE Line Splitting EELs Switch Ports UNE xDSL (ADSL, HDSL, UCL) Line Sharing Local Interoffice Transport 	 Fully Mechanized: 97% ≤ 1Hour Partially Mechanized: 95% ≤ 10 Hours Non-Mechanized: - 95% ≤ 24 Hours
Local Interconnection Trunks	• Trunks: 95% ≤ 36 Hours

SEEM Measure

SEEM Measure		
Yes	Tier I	X
	Tier II	x

SEEM Disaggregation - Analog/Benchmark

SEEM Disaggregation	SEEM Analog/Benchmark
Fully Mechanized	• $97\% \leq 1$ hour

Ordering

Florida Performance Metrics

O-8: Reject Interval

SEEM Disaggregation	SEEM Analog/Benchmark
Partially Mechanized	• $95\% \le 10$ hours
Non-Mechanized	• 95% ≤ 24 hours
Local Interconnection Trunks	• 95% ≤ 36 hours

O-9: Firm Order Confirmation Timeliness

O-9: Firm Order Confirmation Timeliness

Definition

Interval for Return of a Firm Order Confirmation (FOC Interval) is the average response time from receipt of valid LSR to distribution of a Firm Order Confirmation. The interval will include an electronic facilities check.

Exclusions

- Service Requests canceled by CLEC prior to being confirmed.
- Designated Holidays are excluded from the interval calculation.
- · LSRs which are identified and classified as "Projects"
- The following hours for Partially mechanized and Non-mechanized LSRs are excluded from the interval calculation:

Residence Resale Group – Monday through Saturday 7:00PM until 7:00AM From 7:00 PM Saturday until 7:00 AM Monday

Business Resale, Complex, UNE Groups – Monday through Friday 6:00PM until 8:00AM From 6:00 PM Friday until 8:00 AM Monday.

Local Interconnection Service Center (LISC) - From 4:30 P.M. Friday until 8:00 A.M. Monday (ASRs received after 2:00PM will be counted as if received at 8:00AM the next business day.)

The hours excluded will be altered to reflect changes in the Center operating hours. The LCSC will accept faxed LSRs only during posted hours of operation.

The interval will be the amount of time accrued from receipt of the LSR until normal closing of the center if an LSR is worked using overtime hours.

In the case of a Partially Mechanized LSR received and worked after normal business hours, the interval will be set at one (1) minute.

Business Rules

- Fully Mechanized: The elapsed time from receipt of a valid electronically submitted LSR (date and time stamp in EDI or TAG) until the LSR is processed, appropriate service orders are generated and a Firm Order Confirmation is returned to the CLEC via EDI translator or TAG.
- Partially Mechanized: The elapsed time from receipt of a valid electronically submitted LSR (date and time stamp in EDI, or TAG) which falls out for manual handling until appropriate service orders are issued by a BellSouth service representative via Direct Order Entry (DOE) or Service Order Negotiation Generation System (SONGS) to SOCS and a Firm Order Confirmation is returned to the CLEC via EDI translator, or TAG
- Non-Mechanized: The elapsed time from receipt of a valid paper LSR (date and time stamp of FAX or date and time paper LSRs received in LCSC) until appropriate service orders are issued by a BellSouth service representative via Direct Order Entry (DOE) or Service Order Negotiation Generation System (SONGS) to SOCS and a Firm Order Confirmation is sent to the CLEC via LON.
- Interconnection Trunks: Interconnection Trunks are ordered on Access Service Requests (ASRs). ASRs are submitted to and processed by the Local Interconnection Service Center (LISC). The elapsed time is measured from receipt of a valid ASR (date and time stamp of a FAX or paper ASR received in the LISC) until the appropriate orders are issued by a BellSouth representative and a FOC issued in EXACT. Trunk data is reported as a separate category.

Calculation

Firm Order Confirmation Interval = (a - b)

- a = Date and Time of Firm Order Confirmation
- b = Date and Time of Service Request Receipt

```
Average FOC Interval = (c \div d)
```

- c = Sum of all Firm Order Confirmation Times
- d = Number of Service Requests Confirmed in Reporting Period

FOC Interval Distribution = (e + f) X 100

- e = Service Requests Confirmed in Designated Interval
- f = Total Service Requests Confirmed in the Reporting Period

Florida Performance Metrics

Report Structure

- Fully Mechanized, Partially Mechanized, Non-Mechanized
- CLEC Specific
- CLEC Aggregate
- Geographic Scope
- State
- Region
- Fully Mechanized:
 - $0 \leq 15$ minutes
- $> 15 \leq 30$ minutes
- $> 30 \leq 45$ minutes
- > 45 \leq 60 minutes
- $> 60 \leq 90$ minutes
- $> 90 \leq 120$ minutes
- > $120 \le 180$ minutes
- $0 \leq 3$ hours
- $> 3 \le 6$ hours
- $> 6 \le 12$ hours
- $> 12 \leq 24$ hours
- $> 24 \leq 48$ hours
- > 48 hours
- Partially Mechanized:
- $0 \leq 4$ hours
- $> 4 \le 8$ hours
- > 8 ≤ 10 hours
- $0 \leq 10$ hours
- $> 10 \le 18$ hours
- $0 \leq 18$ hours
- $> 18 \leq 24$ hours $> 24 - \leq 48$ hours
- > 48 hours
- Non-mechanized:
- $0 \leq 4$ hours
- $>4 \leq 8$ hours
- $> 8 \le 12$ hours
- > $12 \leq 16$ hours 0 - ≤ 24 hours
- $> 16 \leq 20$ hours
- $> 20 \leq 24$ hours
- $> 24 \leq 36$ hours
- $0 \leq 36$ hours
- > 36 \leq 48 hours
- > 48 hours
- Trunks:
- $0 \leq 48$ hours
- > 48 hours
- · Average Interval is reported in business hours

Data Retained

Relating to CLEC Experience	Relating to BellSouth Performance
 Report month Interval for FOC Total number of LSRs State and Region Total Number of ASRs (Trunks) 	Not Applicable

Ordering

SQM Disaggregation - Analog/Benchmark

SQM Level of Disaggregation	SQM Analog/Benchmark	
 Resale – Residence Resale – Business Resale – Design (Special) Resale PBX Resale PBX Resale Centrex Resale ISDN LNP Standalone 2W Analog Loop Design 2W Analog Loop Non-Design 2W Analog Loop with INP Design 2W Analog Loop with INP Non-Design 2W Analog Loop with LNP Design 2W Analog Loop with LNP Design 2W Analog Loop with LNP Non-Design UNE Digital Loop < DS1 UNE Digital Loop < DS1 UNE Loop + Port Combinations UNE Combination Other UNE Other Design UNE Other Design UNE Line Splitting EELs Switch Ports UNE xDSL (ADSL, HDSL, UCL) Line Sharing Local Interoffice Transport 	 Fully Mechanized: - 95% ≤3 Hours Partially Mechanized: - 95% ≤ 10 Hours Non-Mechanized: - 95% ≤ 24 Hours 	
Local Interconnection Trunks	• Trunks: 95% ≤ 48 Hours	

SEEM Measure

SEEM Measure		
Yes	Tier I	X
	Tier II	X

SEEM Disaggregation	SEEM Analog/Benchmark
Fully Mechanized	• 95% ≤ 3 Hours
Partially Mechanized	• 95% ≤ 10 Hours
Non-Mechanized	• 95% ≤ 24 Hours
Local Interconnection Trunks	• 95% ≤ 48 Hours

O-10: Service Inquiry with LSR Firm Order Confirmation (FOC) Response Time Manual¹

Definition

This report measures the interval and the percent within the interval from the submission of a Service Inquiry (SI) with Firm Order LSR to the distribution of a Firm Order Confirmation (FOC).

Exclusions

- Designated Holidays are excluded from the interval calculation.
- Weekend hours from 5:00PM Friday until 8:00AM Monday are excluded from the interval calculation of the Service Inquiry.
- Canceled Requests
- Electronically Submitted Requests

Business Rules

This measurement combines four intervals:

- 1. From receipt of a valid Service Inquiry with LSR to hand off to the Service Advocacy Center (SAC) for Loop 'Look-up'.
- 2. From SAC start date to SAC complete date.
- 3. From SAC complete date to the Complex Resale Support Group (CRSG) complete date with hand off to LCSC.
- 4. From receipt of a valid SI/LSR in the LCSC to Firm Order Confirmation.
 - (A valid Service Inquiry is an inquiry that has all required fields populated correctly and has not been returned for clarification.)

Calculation

FOC Timeliness Interval = (a - b)

- a = Date and Time Firm Order Confirmation (FOC) for SI with LSR returned to CLEC
- b = Date and Time SI with LSR received

Average Interval = $(c \div d)$

- c = Sum of all FOC Timeliness Intervals
- d = Total number of SIs with LSRs received in the reporting period

Percent Within Interval = $(e \div f) \times 100$

- e = Total number of Service Inquiries with LSRs received by the CRSG to distribution of FOC by the Local Carrier Service Center (LCSC)
- f = Total number of Service Inquiries with LSRs received in the reporting period

Report Structure

- CLEC Aggregate
- CLEC Specific
- Geographic Scope
 - State
 - Region
- Intervals
 - $0-\leq 3$ days
 - $> 3 \leq 5$ days
 - $0-\leq 5$ days
 - $> 5 \le 7$ days
 - $> 7 \le 10$ days $> 10 - \le 15$ days
 - >10-515>15 days
- Average Interval measured in days

1. See O-9 for FOC Timeliness

.

Orderina

Ordering

Data Retained

Relating to CLEC Experience	Relating to BellSouth Performance	
 Report Month Total Number of Requests SI Intervals State and Region 	Not Applicable	

SQM Disaggregation - Analog/Benchmark

SQM Level of Disaggregation	SQM Analog/Benchmark
 xDSL (includes UNE unbundled ADSL, HDSL and UNE Unbundled Copper Loops) Unbundled Interoffice Transport 	 95% Returned ≤ 5 Business Days

SEEM Measure

	SEEM Measure		
No	Tier I		
	Tier II		

SEEM Disaggregation	SEEM Analog/Benchmark
Not Applicable	Not Applicable

0-11: Firm Order Confirmation and Reject Response Completeness

O-11: Firm Order Confirmation and Reject Response Completeness

Definition

A response is expected from BellSouth for every Local Service Request transaction (version). Firm Order Confirmation and Reject Response Completeness is the corresponding number of Local Service Requests received to the combination of Firm Order Confirmation and Reject Responses.

Exclusions

• Service Requests canceled by the CLEC prior to FOC or Rejected/Clarified.

Business Rules

Mechanized – The number of FOCs or Auto Clarifications sent to the CLEC from EDI, or TAG in response to electronically submitted LSRs.

Partially Mechanized – The number of FOCs or Rejects sent to the CLEC from EDI, or TAG in response to electronically submitted LSRs which fall out for manual handling by the LCSC personnel.

Non-Mechanized: The number of FOCs or Rejects sent to the CLECs by FAX server.

Interconnection Trunks: Interconnection Trunks are ordered on Access Service Requests (ASRs). ASRs are submitted to and processed by the Local Interconnection Service Center (LISC). Trunk data is reported as a separate category.

For CLEC Results:

Percent responses is determined by computing the number of Firm Order Confirmations and Rejects transmitted by BellSouth and dividing by the number of Local Service Requests (all versions) received in the reporting period.

Calculation

Firm Order Confirmation / Reject Response Completeness = (a + b) X 100

- a = Total Number of Service Requests for which a Firm Order Confirmation or Reject is Sent
- b = Total Number of Service Requests Received in the Report Period

Report Structure

Fully Mechanized, Partially Mechanized, Non-Mechanized and Interconnection Trunks

- State and Region
- CLEC Specific
- CLEC Aggregate

Data Retained

Relating to CLEC Experience	Relating to BellSouth Performance
Report month Total number of LSRs Total number of rejects Total number of ASRs (Trunks) Total number of FOCs 	• Not Applicable

O-11: Firm Order Confirmation and Reject Response Completeness

SQM Disaggregation - Analog/Benchmark

SQM Level of Disaggregation	SQM Analog/Benchmark
Resale Residence	• 95% Returned
Resale Business	
• Resale Design (Special)	
Resale PBX	
Resale Centrex	
Resale ISDN	
LNP Standalone	
INP Standalone	
 2W Analog Loop Design 	
 2W Analog Loop Non-Design 	
 2W Analog Loop with INP Design 	
 2W Analog Loop with INP Non-Design 	
 2W Analog Loop with LNP Design 	
2W Analog Loop with LNP Non-Design	
• UNE Digital Loop < DS1	
• UNE Digital Loop \geq DS1	
UNE Loop + Port Combinations	
UNE Combination Other	
UNE ISDN Loop	
• UNE Other Design	
UNE Other Non-Design	
UNE Line Splitting	
• EELs	
Switch Ports	
• UNE xDSL (ADSL, HDSL, UCL)	
Line Sharing	
Local Interoffice Transport	
Local Interconnection Trunks	

SEEM Measure

SEEM Measure		
Yes	Tier I	X
	Tier II	X

SEEM Disaggregation	SEEM Analog/Benchmark
Fully Mechanized Partially Mechanized	• 95% Returned
Non-Mechanized	
Local Interconnection Trunks	

O-12: Speed of Answer in Ordering Center

Definition

Measures the average time a customer is in queue.

Exclusions

None

Business Rules

The clock starts when the appropriate option is selected (i.e., 1 for Resale Consumer, 2 for Resale Multiline, and 3 for UNE-LNP, etc.) and the call enters the queue for that particular group in the LCSC. The clock stops when a BellSouth service representative in the LCSC answers the call. The speed of answer is determined by measuring and accumulating the elapsed time from the entry of a CLEC call into the BellSouth automatic call distributor (ACD) until a service representative in BellSouth's Local Carrier Service Center (LCSC) answers the CLEC call.

Calculation

Speed of Answer in Ordering Center = $(a \div b)$

- a = Total seconds in queue
- b = Total number of calls answered in the Reporting Period

Report Structure

Aggregate

- CLEC Local Carrier Service Center
- BellSouth
 - Business Service Center
 - Residence Service Center

Note: Combination of Residence Service Center and Business Service Center data under development

Data Retained

Relating to CLEC Experience	Relating to BellSouth Performance
 Mechanized Tracking Through LCSC Automatic Call Distributor 	Mechanized Tracking Through BellSouth Retail Center Support System

SQM Disaggregation - Analog/Benchmark

SQM Level of Disaggregation	SQM Analog/Benchmark
Aggregate • CLEC – Local Carrier Service Center • BellSouth • Business Service Center • Residence Service Center	• Parity with Retail

SEEM Measure

SEEM Measure		
Yes	Tier I	
	Tier II	X

SEEM Disaggregation	SEEM Analog/Benchmark
 CLEC Local Carrier Service Center BellSouth Business Service Center Residence Service Center 	Parity With Retail



Section 3: Provisioning

P-1: Mean Held Order Interval & Distribution Intervals

Definition

When delays occur in completing CLEC orders, the average period that CLEC orders are held for BellSouth reasons, pending a delayed completion, should be no worse for the CLEC when compared to BellSouth delayed orders. Calculation of the interval is the total days orders are held and pending but not completed that have passed the currently committed due date; divided by the total number of held orders. This report is based on orders still pending, held and past their committed due date. The distribution interval is based on the number of orders held and pending but not completed over 15 and 90 days. (Orders reported in the >90 day interval are also included in the >15 day interval.)

Exclusions

- Order Activities of BellSouth or the CLEC associated with internal or administrative use of local services (Record Orders, Listing Orders, Test Orders, etc.) Test order types may be C, N, R, or T.
- Disconnect (D) & From (F) orders
- Orders with appointment code of 'A' for Rural orders.

Business Rules

Mean Held Order Interval: This metric is computed at the close of each report period. The held order interval is established by first identifying all orders, at the close of the reporting interval, that both have not been reported as completed in SOCS and have passed the currently committed due date for the order and identifying all orders that have been reported as completed in SOCS after the currently committed due date for the order. For each such order, the number of calendar days between the earliest committed due date on which BellSouth had a company missed appointment and the close of the reporting period is established and represents the held order interval for that particular order. The held order interval is accumulated by the standard groupings, unless otherwise noted, and the reason for the order being held. The total number of days accumulated in a category is then divided by the number of held orders within the same category to produce the mean held order interval. The interval is by calendar days with no exclusions for Holidays or Sundays.

CLEC Specific reporting is by type of held order (facilities, equipment, other), total number of orders held, and the total and average days.

Held Order Distribution Interval: This measure provides data to report total days held and identifies these in categories of >15 days and > 90 days. (Orders counted in >90 days are also included in > 15 days).

Calculation

Mean Held Order Interval = a + b

- a = Sum of held-over-days for all Past Due Orders Held for the reporting period
- b = Number of Past Due Orders Held and Pending But Not Completed and past the committed due date

Held Order Distribution Interval (for each interval) = $(c \div d) \times 100$

- c = # of Orders Held for ≥ 15 days or # of Orders Held for ≥ 90 days
- d = Total # of Past Due Orders Held and Pending But Not Completed)

Report Structure

- CLEC Specific
- CLEC Aggregate
- BellSouth Aggregate
- Circuit Breakout < 10, ≥ 10 (except trunks)
- Dispatch/Non-Dispatch

BELLSOUTH®

Florida Performance Metrics

Data Retained

Relating to CLEC Experience	Relating to BellSouth Performance
 Report Month CLEC Order Number and PON (PON) Order Submission Date (TICKET_ID) Committed Due Date (DD) Service Type (CLASS_SVC_DESC) Hold Reason Total line/circuit count Geographic Scope 	 Report Month BellSouth Order Number Order Submission Date Committed Due Date Service Type Hold Reason Total line/circuit count Geographic Scope
Note: Code in parentheses is the corresponding header found in the raw data file.	

SQM LEVEL of Disaggregation	SQM Analog/Benchmark	
Resale Residence	Retail Residence	
Resale Business	Retail Business	
• Resale Design	Retail Design	
Resale PBX	Retail PBX	
Resale Centrex	Retail Centrex	
Resale ISDN	Retail ISDN	
LNP (Standalone)	Retail Residence and Business (POTS)	
• INP (Standalone)	Retail Residence and Business (POTS)	
2W Analog Loop Design	Retail Residence and Business Dispatch	
2W Analog Loop Non-Design	Retail Residence and Business - POTS Excluding Switch- Based Orders	
2W Analog Loop With LNP - Design	Retail Residence and Business Dispatch	
2W Analog Loop With LNP- Non-Design	Retail Residence and Business - POTS Excluding Switch	
2W Analog Loop With INP-Design	Retail Residence and Business Dispatch	
• 2W Analog Loop With INP-Non-Design	Retail Residence and Business - POTS Excluding Switch- Based Orders	
UNE Digital Loop < DS1	Retail Digital Loop < DS1	
• UNE Digital Loop \geq DS1	 Retail Digital Loop ≥ DS1 	
 UNE Loop + Port Combinations Dispatch In Switch Based 	 Retail Residence and Business Dispatch In Switch Based 	
UNE Switch Ports	Retail Residence and Business (POTS)	
UNE Combo Other	Retail Residence, Business and Design Dispatch	
UNE xDSL (HDSL, ADSL and UCL)	ADSL Provided to Retail	
UNE ISDN (Includes UDC)	Retail ISDN - BRI	
UNE Line Sharing	ADSL Provided to Retail	
• UNE Other Design	Retail Design	
UNE Other Non-Design	Retail Residence and Business	
Local Transport (Unbundled Interoffice Transport)	Retail DS1/DS3 Interoffice	

Florida Performance Metrics

SQM LEVEL of Disaggregation	SQM Analog/Benchmark
Local Interconnection Trunks	Parity with Retail
UNE Line Splitting	ADSL to Retail
• EELs	Retail DS1/DS3

SEEM Measure

SEEM Measure		
No	Tier I	
	Tier II	

SEEM Disaggregation	SEEM Analog/Benchmark
Not Applicable	Not Applicable

P-2: Average Jeopardy Notice Interval & Percentage of Orders Given Jeopardy Notices

P-2: Average Jeopardy Notice Interval & Percentage of Orders Given Jeopardy Notices

Definition

When BellSouth can determine in advance that a committed due date is in jeopardy for facility delay, it will provide advance notice to the CLEC.

The interval is from the date/time the notice is released to the CLEC/BellSouth systems until 5pm on the commitment date of the order. The Percent of Orders is the percentage of orders given jeopardy notices for facility delay in the count of orders confirmed in the report period.

Exclusions

- · Orders held for CLEC end user reasons
- Disconnect (D) & From (F) orders

Business Rules

When BellSouth can determine in advance that a committed due date is in jeopardy for facility delay, it will provide advance notice to the CLEC. The number of committed orders in a report period is the number of orders that have a due date in the reporting period. Jeopardy notices for interconnection trunks results are usually zero as these trunks seldom experience facility delays. The Committed due date is considered the Confirmed due date.

Calculation

Jeopardy Interval = a - b

- a = Date and Time of Jeopardy Notice
- b = Date and Time of Scheduled Due Date on Service Order

Average Jeopardy Interval = $c \div d$

- c = Sum of all jeopardy intervals
- d = Number of Orders Notified of Jeopardy in Reporting Period

Percent of Orders Given Jeopardy Notice = $(e \div f) \times 100$

- e = Number of Orders Given Jeopardy Notices in Reporting Period
- f = Number of Orders Confirmed (due) in Reporting Period)

Report Structure

- CLEC Specific
- CLEC Aggregate
- BellSouth Aggregate
- Mechanized Orders
- Non-Mechanized Orders
- Dispatch/Non-Dispatch

Data Retained

Relating to CLEC Experience	Relating to BellSouth Performance
 Report Month⁻ CLEC Order Number and PON Date and Time Jeopardy Notice sent Committed Due Date Service Type 	 Report Month BellSouth Order Number Date and Time Jeopardy Notice sent Committed Due Date Service Type
Note: Code in parentheses is the corresponding header found in the raw data file.	

P-2: Average Jeopardy Notice Interval & Percentage of Orders Given Jeopardy Notices

SQM Disaggregation - Analog/Benchmark

SQM LEVEL of Disaggregation	SQM Analog/Benchmark
Resale Residence	Retail Residence
Resale Business	Retail Business
Resale Design	Retail Design
Resale PBX	Retail PBX
Resale Centrex	Retail Centrex
Resale ISDN	Retail ISDN
LNP (Standalone)	Retail Residence and Business (POTS)
• INP (Standalone)	Retail Residence and Business (POTS)
2W Analog Loop Design	Retail Residence and Business Dispatch
2W Analog Loop Non-Design	Retail Residence and Business - POTS Excluding Switch- Based Orders
2W Analog Loop With LNP - Design	Retail Residence and Business Dispatch
2W Analog Loop With LNP- Non-Design	Retail Residence and Business - POTS Excluding Switch- Based Orders
• 2W Analog Loop With INP-Design	Retail Residence and Business Dispatch
2W Analog Loop With INP-Non-Design	Retail Residence and Business - POTS Excluding Switch- Based Orders
UNE Digital Loop < DS1	Retail Digital Loop < DS1
 UNE Digital Loop ≥ DS1 	 Retail Digital Loop ≥ DS1
 UNE Loop + Port Combinations Dispatch In Switch Based 	 Retail Residence and Business Dispatch In Switch Based
UNE Switch Ports	Retail Residence and Business (POTS)
UNE Combo Other	Retail Residence, Business and Design Dispatch
• UNE xDSL (HDSL, ADSL and UCL)	ADSL Provided to Retail
UNE ISDN (Includes UDC)	Retail ISDN - BRI
UNE Line Sharing	ADSL Provided to Retail
UNE Other Design	Retail Design
UNE Other Non-Design	Retail Residence and Business
Local Transport (Unbundled Interoffice Transport)	Retail DS1/DS3 Interoffice
Local Interconnection Trunks	Parity with Retail
UNE Line Splitting	ADSL to Retail
• EELs	Retail DS1/DS3
Average Jeopardy Notice Interval (Electronic only)	• 95% >= 48 Hours

SEEM Measure

SEEM Measure			
No	Tier I		
	Tier II		



Provisioning

SEEM Disaggregation	SEEM Analog/Benchmark
Not Applicable	Not Applicable

P-3: Percent Missed Initial Installation Appointments

P-3: Percent Missed Initial Installation Appointments

(This metric was not ordered by FPSC)

Definition

"Percent missed initial installation appointments" monitors the reliability of BellSouth commitments with respect to committed due dates to assure that the CLEC can reliably quote expected due dates to their retail customer as compared to BellSouth. This measure is the percentage of total orders processed for which BellSouth is unable to complete the service orders on the committed due dates and reported for Total misses and End User Misses.

Exclusions

- Canceled Service Orders
- Order Activities of BellSouth or the CLEC associated with internal or administrative use of local services (Record Orders, Listing Orders Test Orders, etc.)
- Disconnect (D) & From (F) orders
- End User Misses

Business Rules

Percent Missed Initial Installation Appointments (PMI) is the percentage of orders with completion dates in the reporting period that are past the original committed due date. Missed Appointments caused by end-user reasons will be excluded and reported separately. The first commitment date on the service order that is a missed appointment is the missed appointment code used for calculation whether it is a BellSouth missed appointment or an End User missed appointment. The "due date" is any time on the confirmed due date. Which means there cannot be a cutoff time for commitments, as certain types of orders are requested to be worked after standard business hours. Also, during Daylight Savings Time, field technicians are scheduled until 9PM in some areas and the customer is offered a greater range of intervals from which to select.

Calculation

Percent Missed Installation Appointments = $(a \div b) X 100$

- a = Number of Orders with Completion date in Reporting Period past the Original Committed Due Date
- b = Number of Orders Completed in Reporting Period

Report Structure

- CLEC Specific
- CLEC Aggregate
- BellSouth Aggregate
- Report in Categories of <10 lines/circuits ≥ 10 lines/circuits (except trunks)
- Dispatch/Non-Dispatch

Data Retained

Relating to CLEC Experience	Relating to BellSouth Performance
 Report month CLEC Order Number and PON (PON) Committed Due Date (DD) Completion Date (CMPLTN DD) Status Type Status Notice Date Standard Order Activity Geographic Scope Note: Code in parentheses is the corresponding header found in the raw data file. 	 Report month BellSouth Order Number Committed Due Date (DD) Completion Date (CMPLTN DD) Status Type Status Notice Date Standard Order Activity Geographic Scope

SQM Disaggregation - Analog/Benchmark

SQM LEVEL of Disaggregation	SQM Analog/Benchmark
• Resale Residence	Retail Residence
Resale Business	Retail Business
• Resale Design	Retail Design
Resale PBX	• Retail PBX
Resale Centrex	Retail Centrex
Resale ISDN	Retail ISDN
• LNP (Standalone)	Retail Residence and Business (POTS)
• INP (Standalone)	Retail Residence and Business (POTS)
2W Analog Loop Design	Retail Residence and Business Dispatch
2W Analog Loop Non-Design	Retail Residence and Business - POTS Excluding Switch- Based Orders
2W Analog Loop With LNP - Design	Retail Residence and Business Dispatch
2W Analog Loop With LNP- Non-Design	Retail Residence and Business - POTS Excluding Switch- Based Orders
2W Analog Loop With INP-Design	Retail Residence and Business Dispatch
• 2W Analog Loop With INP-Non-Design	Retail Residence and Business - POTS Excluding Switch- Based Orders
• UNE Digital Loop < DS1	Retail Digital Loop < DS1
• UNE Digital Loop ≥ DS1	 Retail Digital Loop ≥ DS1
UNE Loop + Port Combinations Dispatch In	Retail Residence and Business Dispatch In
- Switch Based	- Switch Based
UNE Switch Ports	Retail Residence and Business (POIS)
	Retail Residence, Business and Design Dispatch
 UNE XDSL (HDSL, ADSL and UCL) Without Conditioning With Conditioning 	 ADSL Provided to Retain Without Conditioning With Conditioning (BellSouth does not offer this service to Retail)
UNE ISDN (Includes UDC)	Retail ISDN - BRI
UNE Line Sharing	ADSL Provided to Retail
UNE Other Design	Retail Design
UNE Other Non-Design	Retail Residence and Business
Local Transport (Unbundled Interoffice Transport)	Retail DS1/DS3 Interoffice
Local Interconnection Trunks	Parity with Retail
UNE Line Splitting	ADSL to Retail
• EELs	Retail DS1/DS3

SEEM Measure

SEEM Measure		
No	Tier I	
	Tier II	



Provisioning

SEEM Disaggregation	SEEM Analog/Benchmark
Not Applicable	Not Applicable

P-3A: Percent Missed Installation Appointments Including Subsequent Appointments

Definition

"Percent missed installation appointments" monitors the reliability of BellSouth commitments with respect to committed due dates to assure that the CLEC can reliably quote expected due dates to their retail customer as compared to BellSouth. This measure is the percentage of total orders processed for which BellSouth is unable to complete the service orders on the committed due dates and reported for Total misses and End User Misses.

Exclusions

- Canceled Service Orders
- Order Activities of BellSouth or the CLEC associated with internal or administrative use of local services (Record Orders, Listing Orders Test Orders, etc.) Test order types may be C, N, R, or T.
- Disconnect (D) & From (F) orders
- End User Misses

Business Rules

Percent Missed Installation Appointments (PMI) is the percentage of orders with completion dates in the reporting period that are past the original committed due date. Missed Appointments caused by end-user reasons will be excluded and reported separately. The "due date" is the commitment time (if applicable) on the confirmed due date.

Calculation

Percent Missed Installation Appointments = $(a \div b) \times 100$

- a = Number of Appointments in Reporting Period past the Original (Date/Time as applicable) Committed and Subsequent Committed Due Date
- b = Number of Appointments on Orders Completed in Reporting Period

Report Structure

- CLEC Specific
- CLEC Aggregate
- BellSouth Aggregate
- Report in Categories of <10 lines/circuits ≥ 10 lines/circuits (except trunks)
- Dispatch/Non-Dispatch

Data Retained

Relating to CLEC Experience	Relating to BellSouth Performance
 Report Month CLEC Order Number and PON (PON) Committed Due Date (DD) Completion Date (CMPLTN DD) Status Type Status Notice Date Standard Order Activity 	 Report Month BellSouth Order Number Committed Due Date (DD) Completion Date (CMPLTN DD) Status Type Status Notice Date Standard Order Activity
• Geographic Scope Note: Code in parentheses is the corresponding header found in the raw data file.	• Geographic Scope

SQM Disaggregation - Analog/Benchmark

SQM LEVEL of Disaggregation	SQM Analog/Benchmark
Resale Residence	Retail Residence
Resale Business	Retail Business
Resale Design	• Retail Design
• Resale PBX	• Retail PBX
Resale Centrex	Retail Centrex
• Resale ISDN	• Retail ISDN
LNP (Standalone)	Retail Residence and Business (POTS)
• INP (Standalone)	Retail Residence and Business (POTS)
2W Analog Loop Design	Retail Residence and Business Dispatch
• 2W Analog Loop Non-Design	Retail Residence and Business - POTS Excluding Switch- Based Orders
2W Analog Loop With LNP - Design	Retail Residence and Business Dispatch
• 2W Analog Loop With LNP- Non-Design	Retail Residence and Business - POTS Excluding Switch- Based Orders
2W Analog Loop With INP-Design	Retail Residence and Business Dispatch
2W Analog Loop With INP-Non-Design	Retail Residence and Business - POTS Excluding Switch- Based Orders
UNE Digital Loop < DS1	Retail Digital Loop < DS1
• UNE Digital Loop \geq DS1	 Retail Digital Loop ≥ DS1
UNE Loop + Port Combinations	Retail Residence and Business
- Dispatch In - Switch Based	- Dispatch In - Switch Based
UNE Switch Ports	Retail Residence and Business (POTS)
UNE Combo Other	Retail Residence, Business and Design Dispatch
UNE xDSL (HDSL, ADSL and UCL)	ADSL Provided to Retail
- Without Conditioning	- Without Conditioning
- With Conditioning	- With Conditioning (BellSouth does not offer this service to Retail)
• UNE ISDN (Includes UDC)	Retail ISDN - BRI
UNE Line Sharing	ADSL Provided to Retail
UNE Other Design	Retail Design
UNE Other Non-Design	Retail Residence and Business
• Local Transport (Unbundled Interoffice Transport)	Retail DS1/DS3 Interoffice
Local Interconnection Trunks	• Parity with Retail
UNE Line Splitting	ADSL to Retail
• EELs -	Retail DS1/DS3

SEEM Measure

SEEM Measure		
Yes	Tier I	X
	Tier II	X

SEEM Disaggregation	SEEM Analog/Benchmark
Resale Residence	Retail Residence
Resale Business	Retail Business
Resale Design	• Retail Design
Resale PBX	• Retail PBX
Resale Centrex	Retail Centrex
Resale ISDN	• Retail ISDN
LNP (Standalone)	Retail Residence and Business (POTS)
• INP (Standalone)	Retail Residence and Business (POTS)
2W Analog Loop Design	Retail Residence and Business Dispatch
2W Analog Loop Non-Design	Retail Residence and Business - POTS Excluding Switch- Based Orders
2W Analog Loop With LNP - Design	Retail Residence and Business Dispatch
2W Analog Loop With LNP- Non-Design	Retail Residence and Business - POTS Excluding Switch- Based Orders
2W Analog Loop With INP-Design	Retail Residence and Business Dispatch
• 2W Analog Loop With INP-Non-Design	Retail Residence and Business - POTS Excluding Switch- Based Orders
UNE Digital Loop < DS1	Retail Digital Loop < DS1
• UNE Digital Loop \geq DS1	• Retail Digital Loop ≥ DS1
 UNE Loop + Port Combinations Dispatch In Switch Based 	 Retail Residence and Business Dispatch In Switch Based
UNE Switch Ports	Retail Residence and Business (POTS)
UNE Combo Other	Retail Residence, Business and Design Dispatch
 UNE xDSL (HDSL, ADSL and UCL) Without Conditioning With Conditioning 	 ADSL Provided to Retail Without Conditioning With Conditioning (BellSouth does not offer this service to Retail)
UNE ISDN (Includes UDC)	Retail ISDN - BRI
UNE Line Sharing	ADSL Provided to Retail
Local Transport (Unbundled Interoffice Transport)	Retail DS1/DS3 Interoffice
Local Interconnection Trunks	Parity with Retail
UNE Line Splitting	ADSL Provided to Retail
UNE Other Design	Retail Design
UNE Other Non-Design	Retail Residence and Business
• EELs	Residence, Business and Design Dispatch
P-4: Average Completion Interval (OCI) & Order Completion Interval Distribution

(This metric not ordered by the FPSC)

Definition

The "average completion interval" measure monitors the interval of time it takes BellSouth to provide service for the CLEC or its own customers. The "Order Completion Interval Distribution" provides the percentages of orders completed within certain time periods. This report measures how well BellSouth meets the interval offered to customers on service orders.

Exclusions

- Canceled Service Orders
- Order Activities of BellSouth or the CLEC associated with internal or administrative use of local services (Record Orders, Listing Orders, Test Orders, etc.)
- Disconnect (D&F) orders (Except "D" orders associated with LNP Standalone)
- "L" Appointment coded orders (where the customer has requested a later than offered interval)
- · End user-caused misses

Business Rules

The actual completion interval is determined for each order processed during the reporting period. The completion interval is the eläpsed time from when BellSouth issues a FOC or SOCS date time stamp receipt of an order from the CLEC to BellSouth's actual order completion date. The clock starts when a valid order number is assigned by SOCS and stops when the technician or system completes the order in SOCS. Elapsed time for each order is accumulated for each reporting dimension. The accumulated time for each reporting dimension is then divided by the associated total number of orders completed. Orders that are worked on zero due dates are calculated with a .33-day interval (8 hours) in order to report a portion of a day interval. These orders are issued and worked/completed on the same day. They can be either flow through orders (no field work-non-dispatched) or field orders (dispatched).

The interval breakout for UNE and Design is: 0.5 = 0.< 5, 5-10 = 5.<10, 10-15 = 10.<15, 15-20 = 15.<20, 20-25 = 20.<25, 25-30 = 25.<30, $\ge 30 = 30$ and greater.

Calculation

Completion Interval = (a - b)

- a = Completion Date
- b = FOC/SOCS date time-stamp (application date)

Average Completion Interval = (c ÷ d)

- c = Sum of all Completion Intervals
- d = Count of Orders Completed in Reporting Period

Order Completion Interval Distribution (for each interval) = $(e + f) \times 100$

- e = Service Orders Completed in "X" days
- f = Total Service Orders Completed in Reporting Period

Report Structure

- CLEC Specific
- CLEC Aggregate
- · BellSouth Aggregate
- · Dispatch/Non-Dispatch categories applicable to all levels except trunks
- Residence & Business reported in day intervals = 0,1,3,4,5,5+
- UNE and Design reported in day intervals =0-5,5-10,10-15,15-20,20-25,25-30,≥ 30
- All Levels are reported <10 line/circuits; ≥ 10 line/circuits (except trunks)
- ISDN Orders included in Non-Design

Data Retained

Relating to CLEC Experience	Relating to BellSouth Performance
 Report Month CLEC Company Name Order Number (PON) Application Date & Time Completion Date (CMPLTN_DT) Service Type (CLASS_SVC_DESC) Geographic Scope 	 Report Month BellSouth Order Number Order Submission Date & Time Order Completion Date & Time Service Type Geographic Scope
Note: Code in parentheses is the corresponding header found in the raw data file.	

SQM LEVEL of Disaggregation	SQM Analog/Benchmark
Resale Residence	Retail Residence
Resale Business	Retail Business
Resale Design	Retail Design
Resale PBX	• Retail PBX
Resale Centrex	Retail Centrex
Resale ISDN	Retail ISDN
LNP (Standalone)	Retail Residence and Business (POTS)
• INP (Standalone)	Retail Residence and Business (POTS)
2W Analog Loop Design	Retail Residence and Business Dispatch
• 2W Analog Loop Non-Design	 Retail Residence and Business - POTS Excluding Switch- Based Orders
• 2W Analog Loop With LNP - Design	Retail Residence and Business Dispatch
• 2W Analog Loop With LNP- Non-Design	Retail Residence and Business - POTS Excluding Switch- Based Orders
2W Analog Loop With INP-Design	Retail Residence and Business Dispatch
2W Analog Loop With INP-Non-Design	Retail Residence and Business - POTS Excluding Switch- Based Orders
UNE Digital Loop < DS1	Retail Digital Loop < DS1
 UNE Digital Loop ≥ DS1 	• Retail Digital Loop ≤ DS1
 UNE Loop + Port Combinations Dispatch In Switch Based 	 Retail Residence and Business Dispatch In Switch Based
UNE Switch Ports	Retail Residence and Business (POTS)
UNE Combo Other	• Retail Residence, Business and Design Dispatch
 UNE xDSL (HDSL, ADSL and UCL) Without Conditioning With Conditioning 	$- \leq 5$ Days $- \leq 12$ Days
UNE ISDN (Includes UDC)	• Retail ISDN - BRI
UNE Line Sharing	ADSL Provided to Retail
Local Transport (Unbundled Interoffice Transport)	Retail DS1/DS3 Interoffice
Local Interconnection Trunks	Parity with Retail

SQM LEVEL of Disaggregation	SQM Anaiog/Benchmark
UNE Line Splitting	ADSL to Retail
UNE Other Design	Retail Design
UNE Other Non-Design	Retail Residence and Business
• EELs	Retail DS1/DS3

SEEM Measure

SEEM Measure		
No	Tier I	
	Tier II	

SEEM Disaggregation	SEEM Analog/Benchmark
Not Applicable	Not Applicable

P-4A: Average Order Completion and Completion Notice Interval (AOCCNI) Distribution

Definition

The "Order Completion And Completion Notice Interval Distribution" provides the percentages of orders completed within certain time periods. This report measures how well BellSouth meets the interval offered to customers and notice of completion to the CLEC on service orders.

Exclusions

- Canceled Service Orders
- Order Activities of BellSouth or the CLEC associated with internal or administrative use of local services (Record Orders, Listing Orders, Test Orders, etc.) Test order types may be C, N, R, or T.
- Disconnect (D&F) orders (Except "D" orders associated with LNP Standalone)
- "L" Appointment coded orders (where the customer has requested a later than offered interval)
- End user-caused misses

Business Rules

The interval is determined for each order processed during the reporting period. The completion interval for AOCCNI is the elapsed time from when BellSouth issues a FOC or SOCS date time stamp receipt of an order from the CLEC to BellSouth's return of the completion notice (CN) to the CLEC. Elapsed time for each order is accumulated for each reporting dimension. The accumulated time for each reporting dimension is then divided by the associated total number of orders completed. Orders that are worked on zero due dates are calculated with a .33-day interval (8 hours) in order to report a portion of a day interval. These orders are issued and worked/ completed on the same day. They can be either flow through orders (no field work-non-dispatched) or field orders (dispatched).

The interval breakout for UNE and Design is: 0.5 = 0.< 5, 5-10 = 5-<10, 10-15 = 10-<15, 15-20 = 15-<20, 20-25 = 20-<25, 25-30 = 25-<30, $\ge 30 = 30$ and greater.

Calculation

Completion Interval = (a - b)

- a = Date and Time Completion Notice is sent
- b = FOC/SOCS date time-stamp (application date)

Average Completion Interval = $(c \div d)$

- c = Sum of all Completion Intervals
- d = Count of Orders Completed in Reporting Period

Order Completion Interval Distribution (for each interval) = $(e \div f) \times 100$

- e = Service Orders Completed in "X" days
- f = Total Service Orders Completed in Reporting Period

Report Structure

- CLEC Specific
- CLEC Aggregate
- BellSouth Aggregate
- Dispatch/Non-Dispatch categories applicable to all levels except trunks
- Residence & Business reported in day intervals = 0,1,2,3,4,5,5+
- UNE and Design reported in day intervals = 0-5, 5-10, 10-15, 15-20, 20-25, $25-30, \ge 30$
- All Levels are reported <10 line/circuits; ≥ 10 line/circuits (except trunks)
- ISDN Orders included in Non-Design
- Mechanized/Non-Mechanized (Non-Mechanized is not applicable to BellSouth)

Data Retained

Relating to CLEC Experience	Relating to BellSouth Performance
 Report Month CLEC Company Name Order Number (PON) Application Date & Time Completion Date (CMPLTN_DT) Service Type (CLASS_SVC_DESC) Geographic Scope 	 Report Month BellSouth Order Number Order Submission Date & Time Order Completion Date & Time Service Type Geographic Scope
Note: Code in parentheses is the corresponding header found in the raw data file.	

SQM Level of Disaggregation	SQM Analog/Benchmark
Resale Residence	Retail Residence
Resale Business	Retail Business
• Resale Design	Retail Design
• Resale PBX	• Retail PBX
Resale Centrex	Retail Centrex
Resale ISDN	Retail ISDN
LNP (Standalone)	Retail Residence and Business (POTS)
• INP (Standalone)	Retail Residence and Business (POTS)
2W Analog Loop Design	Retail Residence and Business Dispatch
• 2W Analog Loop Non-Design	Retail Residence and Business - POTS Excluding Switch- Based Orders
2W Analog Loop With LNP - Design	Retail Residence and Business Dispatch
• 2W Analog Loop With LNP- Non-Design	Retail Residence and Business - POTS Excluding Switch- Based Orders
2W Analog Loop With INP-Design	Retail Residence and Business Dispatch
2W Analog Loop With INP-Non-Design	Retail Residence and Business - POTS Excluding Switch- Based Orders
UNE Digital Loop < DS1	Retail Digital Loop < DS1
• UNE Digital Loop ≥ DS1	 Retail Digital Loop ≤ DS1
 UNE Loop + Port Combinations Dispatch In Switch Based 	 Retail Residence and Business Dispatch In Switch Based
UNE Switch Ports	Retail Residence and Business (POTS)
UNE Combo Other	Retail Residence, Business and Design Dispatch
 UNE xDSL (HDSL, ADSL and UCL) Without Conditioning With Conditioning 	 - ≤ 5 Days - ≤ 12 Days
UNE ISDN (Includes UDC)	Retail ISDN - BRI
UNE Line Sharing	ADSL Provided to Retail
Local Transport (Unbundled Interoffice Transport)	Retail DS1/DS3 Interoffice
Local Interconnection Trunks	• Parity with Retail

SQM Level of Disaggregation	SQM Analog/Benchmark
UNE Line Splitting	ADSL to Retail
• UNE Other Design	Retail Design
• UNE Other Non-Design	Retail Residence and Business
• EELs	Retail DS1/DS3

SEEM Measure

SEEM Measure			
Yes	Tier I	X	
	Tier II	X	_

SEEM Disaggregation	SEEM Analog/Benchmark
Resale Residence	Retail Residence
Resale Business	Retail Business
• Resale Design	Retail Design
• Resale PBX	• Retail PBX
Resale Centrex	Retail Centrex
• Resale ISDN	• Retail ISDN
LNP (Standalone)	Retail Residence and Business (POTS)
• INP (Standalone)	Retail Residence and Business (POTS)
2W Analog Loop Design	Retail Residence and Business Dispatch
2W Analog Loop Non-Design	Retail Residence and Business - POTS Excluding Switch- Based Orders
2W Analog Loop With LNP - Design	Retail Residence and Business Dispatch
2W Analog Loop With LNP- Non-Design	Retail Residence and Business - POTS Excluding Switch- Based Orders
2W Analog Loop With INP-Design	Retail Residence and Business Dispatch
2W Analog Loop With INP-Non-Design	 Retail Residence and Business - POTS Excluding Switch- Based Orders
UNE Digital Loop < DS1	Retail Digital Loop < DS1
• UNE Digital Loop ≥ DS1	 Retail Digital Loop ≤ DS1
 UNE Loop + Port Combinations Dispatch In Switch Based 	 Retail Residence and Business Dispatch In Switch Based
UNE Switch Ports	Retail Residence and Business (POTS)
UNE Combo Other	Retail Residence, Business and Design Dispatch
 UNE xDSL (HDSL, ADSL and UCL) Without Conditioning With Conditioning 	$- \le 5$ Days $- \le 12$ Days
UNE ISDN (Includes UDC)	• Retail ISDN - BRI
UNE Line Sharing	ADSL Provided to Retail
Local Transport (Unbundled Interoffice Transport)	Retail DS1/DS3 Interoffice

SEEM Disaggregation	SEEM Analog/Benchmark
Local Interconnection Trunks	Parity with Retail
UNE Line Splitting	ADSL Provided to Retail
UNE Other Design	Retail Design
• UNE Other Non-Design	Retail Residence and Business
• EELs	Residence, Business and Design Dispatch

P-5: Average Completion Notice Interval

Definitions

The Completion Notice Interval is the elapsed time between the BellSouth reported completion of work and the issuance of a valid completion notice to the CLEC.

Exclusions

- Cancelled Service Orders
- Order Activities of BellSouth or the CLEC associated with internal or administrative use of local services (Record Orders, Listing Orders, Test Orders, etc.) Test order types may be C, N, R, or T.
- D&F orders (Exception: "D" orders associated with LNP Standalone)

Business Rules

Measurement on interval of completion date and time entered by a field technician on dispatched orders, and 5PM start time on the due date for non-dispatched orders; to the release of a notice to the CLEC/BellSouth of the completion status. The field technician notifies the CLEC the work was complete and then he/she enters the completion time stamp information in his/her computer. This information switches through to the SOCS systems either completing the order or rejecting the order to the Work Management Center (WMC). If the completion is rejected, it is manually corrected and then completed by the WMC. The notice is returned on each individual order.

The start time for all orders is the completion stamp either by the field technician or the SPM due date stamp; the end time for mechanized orders is the time stamp the notice was transmitted to the CLEC interface (LENS, EDI, OR TAG). For non-mechanized orders the end time will be date and timestamp of order update from the FAX record via LON or C-SOTS system.

Calculation

Completion Notice Interval = (a - b)

- a = Date and Time of Notice of Completion
- b = Date and Time of Work Completion

Average Completion Notice Interval = $c \div d$

- c = Sum of all Completion Notice Intervals
- d = Number of Orders with Notice of Completion in Reporting Period

Report Structure

- CLEC Specific
- CLEC Aggregate
- · BellSouth Aggregate
- Mechanized Orders
- Non-Mechanized Orders
- Dispatch/Non-Dispatch
- Reporting intervals in Hours; 0,1-2,2-4,4-8,8-12,12-24, ≥ 24 plus Overall Average Hour Interval (The categories are inclusive of these time intervals: 0-1 = 0.99; 1-2 =1-1.99; 2-4 = 2-3.99, etc.)
- Reported in categories of <10 line / circuits; > 10 line/circuits (except trunks)

Data Retained

Relating to CLEC Experience	Relating to BellSouth Performance
Report Month CLEC Order Number (so. phr)	Report Month BellSouth Order Number (so. nbr)
Work Completion Date (cmpltn_dt)	Work Completion Date (cmpltn_dt)
Work Completion Time Completion Notice Availability Date	Work Completion Time Completion Notice Availability Date
Completion Notice Availability Time Service Type	 Completion Notice Availability Time Service Type
Geographic Scope	Geographic Scope
Note: Code in parentheses is the corresponding header found in the raw data file.	NOTE: Code in parentheses is the corresponding header found in the raw data file.

SQM Disaggregation - Analog/Benchmark

SQM LEVEL of Disaggregation	SQM Analog/Benchmark
Resale Residence	Retail Residence
Resale Business	Retail Business
• Resale Design	Retail Design
Resale PBX	Retail PBX
Resale Centrex	Retail Centrex
Resale ISDN	• Retail ISDN
LNP (Standalone)	Retail Residence and Business (POTS)
• INP (Standalone)	Retail Residence and Business (POTS)
2W Analog Loop Design	Retail Residence and Business Dispatch
2W Analog Loop Non-Design	Retail Residence and Business - POTS Excluding Switch- Based Orders
2W Analog Loop With LNP - Design	Retail Residence and Business Dispatch
2W Analog Loop With LNP- Non-Design	Retail Residence and Business - POTS Excluding Switch- Based Orders
2W Analog Loop With INP-Design	Retail Residence and Business Dispatch
2W Analog Loop With INP-Non-Design	Retail Residence and Business - POTS Excluding Switch- Based Orders
UNE Digital Loop < DS1	Retail Digital Loop < DS1
• UNE Digital Loop \geq DS1	• Retail Digital Loop ≤ DS1
 UNE Loop + Port Combinations Dispatch In Switch Based 	 Retail Residence and Business Dispatch In Switch Based
UNE Switch Ports	Retail Residence and Business (POTS)
UNE Combo Other	Retail Residence, Business and Design Dispatch
• UNE xDSL (HDSL, ADSL and UCL)	ADSL Provided to Retail
UNE ISDN (Includes UDC)	Retail ISDN - BRI
UNE Line Sharing	ADSL Provided to Retail
Local Transport (Unbundled Interoffice Transport)	Retail DS1/DS3 Interoffice
Local Interconnection Trunks	Parity with Retail

Last Revised 1/22/02

SQM LEVEL of Disaggregation	SQM Analog/Benchmark
UNE Line Splitting	• ADSL to Retail
UNE Other Design	Retail Design
• UNE Other Non-Design	Retail Residence and Business
• EELs	Retail DS1/DS3

SEEM Measure

SEEM Measure		
No	Tier I	
	Tier II	

SEEM Disaggregation	SEEM Analog/Benchmark
Not Applicable	Not Applicable

P-6: % Completions/Attempts without Notice or < 24 hours Notice

Definition

The purpose of this measure is to report if BellSouth is returning a FOC to the CLEC in time for the CLEC to notify their customer of the scheduled date.

Exclusions

- Cancelled Orders
- Expedited Orders
- "0" dated orders or any request where the subscriber requested an earlier due date of < 24 hours prior to the original commitment date, or any LSR received < 24 hours prior to the original commitment date.

Business Rules

For CLEC Results:

BellSouth may also exclude from calculation any LSRs received from the requesting CLEC with less than 24 hour notice prior to the commitment date.

For BellSouth Results:

BellSouth does not provide a FOC to its retail customers.

Calculation

Percent Completions or Attempts without Notice or with Less Than 24 Hours Notice = $(a + b) \times 100$

- a = Completion Dispatches (Successful and Unsuccessful) With No FOC or FOC Received < 24 Hours of Original Committed Due Date
- b = All Completions

Report Structure

- CLEC Specific
- CLEC Aggregate
- Dispatch /Non-Dispatch
- Total Orders FOC < 24 Hours
- Total Completed Service Orders
- % FOC < 24 Hours

Data Retained

Relating to CLEC Experience	Relating to BellSouth Performance
Committed Due Date (DD)FOC End Timestamp	Not Applicable
 Report Month CLEC Order Number and PON 	
Geographic Scope State / Region	

SQM Disaggregation - Analog/Benchmark

SQM Level of Disaggregation	SQM Analog/Benchmark	
Resale Residence	• <= 5%	
Resale Business		
Resale Design		
Resale PBX		
Resale Centrex		
Resale ISDN		
LNP (Standalone)		
• INP (Standalone)		
 2W Analog Loop Design 		
 2W Analog Loop Non-Design 		
2W Analog Loop Design With LNP		
 2W Analog Loop Non-Design With LNP 		
 2W Analog Loop Design With INP 		
 2W Analog Loop Non-Design With INP 		
 UNE Digital Loop < DS1 		
 UNE Digital Loop ≥DS1 		
UNE Loop + Port Combinations		
- Dispatch In		
- Switch Based		
• UNE Switch ports		
UNE Combo Other		
 UNE xDSL (HDSL, ADSL and UCL) 		
UNE ISDN (Includes UDC)		
UNE Line Sharing		
UNE Line Splitting		
Local Transport (Unbundled Interoffice Transport)		
 Local Interconnection Trunks 		
• EELS		

SEEM Measure

SEEM Measure		
No	Tier I	
	Tier II	

SEEM Disaggregation	SEEM Analog/Benchmark
Not Applicable	Not Applicable

P-7: Coordinated Customer Conversions Interval

Definition

This report measures the average time it takes BellSouth to disconnect an unbundled loop from the BellSouth switch and cross connect it to CLEC equipment. This measurement applies to service orders with INP and LNP, and where the CLEC has requested BellSouth to provide a coordinated cutover.

Exclusions

- Any order canceled by the CLEC will be excluded from this measurement.
- Delays due to CLEC following disconnection of the unbundled loop
- Unbundled Loops where there is no existing subscriber loop and loops where coordination is not requested.

Business Rules

Where the service order includes LNP, the interval includes the total time for the cutover including the translation time to place the line back in service on the ported line. When the service order includes INP, the interval includes the total time for the cutover including the translation time to place the link back in service on the ported line. The interval is calculated for the entire cutover time for the service order and then divided by items worked in that time to give the average per-item interval for each service order.

Calculation

Coordinated Customer Conversions Interval = (a - b)

- a = Completion Date and Time for Cross Connection of a Coordinated Unbundled Loop
- b = Disconnection Date and Time of an Coordinated Unbundled Loop

Percent Coordinated Customer Conversions (for each interval) = (c ÷ d) X 100

- c = Total number of Coordinated Customer Conversions for each interval
- d = Total Number of Unbundled Loop with Coordinated Conversions (items) for the reporting period

Report Structure

- CLEC Specific
- CLEC Aggregate
- The interval breakout is -0.5 = 0.45, 5-15 = -5.415, -15 = 15 and greater, plus Overall Average Interval.

Data Retained

 Report Month CLEC Order Number Committed Due Date (DD) Service Type (CLASS_SVC_DESC) Cutover Start Time Cutover Completion time Portability Start and Completion Times (INP orders) 	No BellSouth Analog Exists
• Total Conversions (Items) Note: Code in parentheses is the corresponding header found in the raw data file.	

Unbundled Loops with INP	• $95\% \leq 15$ minutes
Unbundled Loops with LNP	• 95% ≤ 15 minutes



SEEM Measure

SEEM Measure		
Yes	Tier I	X
	Tier II	X

SEEM Disaggregation	SEEM Analog/Benchmark
Unbundled Loops With INP	• $95\% \le 15$ minutes
 Unbundled Loops With LNP 	• $95\% \le 15$ minutes

P-7A: Coordinated Customer Conversions – Hot Cut Timeliness % Within Interval and Average Interval

Definition

This category measures whether BellSouth begins the cutover of an unbundled loop on a coordinated and/or a time specific order at the CLEC requested start time. It measures the percentage of orders where the cut begins within 15 minutes of the requested start time of the order and the average interval.

Exclusions

- Any order canceled by the CLEC will be excluded from this measurement.
- Delays caused by the CLEC
- Unbundled Loops where there is no existing subscriber loop and loops where coordination is not requested.
- All unbundled loops on multiple loop orders after the first loop.

Business Rules

This report measures whether BellSouth begins the cutover of an unbundled loop on a coordinated and/or a time specific order at the CLEC requested start time. The cut is considered on time if it starts 15 minutes before or after the requested start time. Using the scheduled time and the actual cutover start time, the measurement will calculate the percent within interval and the average interval. If a cut involves multiple lines, the cut will be considered "on time" if the first line is cut within the interval. ≤ 15 minutes includes intervals that began 15:00 minutes or less before the scheduled cut time and cuts that began 15 minutes or less after the scheduled cut time; >15 minutes, <30 minutes includes cuts within 15:00 – 30:00 minutes either prior to or after the scheduled cut time; >30 minutes includes cuts greater than 30:00 minutes either prior to or after the scheduled cut time. If IDLC is involved, a four hour window applies to the start time. (8 A.M. to Noon or 1 P.M. to 5 P.M.) This only applies if BellSouth notifies the CLEC by 10:30 A.M. on the day before the due date that the service is on IDLC.

A Hot Cut is considered complete when one of the following occurs:

- 1. BellSouth performs the hot cut, notifies the CLEC by telephone.
- 2. BellSouth performs the hot cut and attempts to notify the CLEC by telephone, but receives no answer and leaves a phone message.

Calculation

% within Interval = $(a \div b) \times 100$

- a = Total Number of Coordinated Unbundled Loop Orders for the interval
- b = Total Number of Coordinated Unbundled Loop Orders for the reporting period

Interval = (c - d)

- c = Scheduled Time for Cross Connection of a Coordinated Unbundled Loop Order
- d = Actual Start Date and Time of a Coordinated Unbundled Loop Order

Average Interval = $(e \div f)$

- Sum of all Intervals
- Total Number of Coordinated Unbundled Loop Orders for the reporting period.

Report Structure

- CLEC Specific
- CLEC Aggregate

Reported in intervals of early, on time and late cuts $\% \le 15$ minutes; % > 15 minutes, ≤ 30 minutes; % > 30 minutes, plus Overall Average Interval

Data Retained

Relating to CLEC Experience	Relating to BellSouth Performance
 Report Month CLEC Order Number (so_nbr) Committed Due Date (DD) Service Type (CLASS_SVC_DESC) Cutover Scheduled Start Time Cutover Actual Start Time Total Conversions Orders 	• No BellSouth Analog exists
Note: Code in parentheses is the corresponding header found in the raw data file.	

SQM Disaggregation - Analog/Benchmark

SQM Level of Disaggregation	SQM Analog/Benchmark
 Product Reporting Level SL1 Time Specific SL1 Non-Time Specific SL2 Time Specific SL2 Non-Time Specific 	• 95% Within + or – 15 Minutes of Scheduled Start Time
- SL1 IDLC - SL2 IDLC	• 95% Within 4-hour Window

SEEM Measure

SEEM Measure			
Yes	Tier I	Х	
	Tier II	X	

SEEM Disaggregation	SEEM Analog/Benchmark
 SL1 Time Specific SL1 Non-Time Specific SL2 Time Specific SL2 Non-Time Specific 	• 95% Within + or – 15 Minutes of Scheduled Start Time
- SL1 IDLC - SL2 IDLC	• 95% Within 4-hour Window

P-7B: Coordinated Customer Conversions – Average Recovery Time

P-7B: Coordinated Customer Conversions – Average Recovery Time

Definition

Measures the time between notification and resolution by BellSouth of a service outage found that can be isolated to the BellSouth side of the network. The time between notification and resolution by BellSouth must be measured to ensure that CLEC customers do not experience unjustifiable lengthy service outages during a Coordinated Customer Conversion. This report measures outages associated with Coordinated Customer Conversions prior to service order completion.

Exclusions

- · Cutovers where service outages are due to CLEC caused reasons when the CLEC agrees
- Cutovers where service outages are due to end-user caused reasons when the CLEC agrees

Business Rules

Measures the outage duration time related to Coordinated Customer Conversions from the initial trouble notification until the trouble has been restored and the CLEC has been notified. The duration time is defined as the time from the initial trouble notification until the trouble has been restored and the CLEC has been notified. The interval is calculated on the total outage time for the circuits divided by the total number of outages restored during the report period to give the average outage duration.

Calculation

Recovery Time = (a - b)

- a = Date & Time That Trouble is Closed by CLEC
- b = Date & Time Initial Trouble is Opened with BellSouth

Average Recovery Time = $(c \div d)$

- c = Sum of all the Recovery Times
- d = Number of Troubles Referred to the BellSouth

Report Structure

- CLEC Specific
- CLEC Aggregate

Data Retained

Relating to CLEC Experience	Relating to BellSouth Performance
 Report Month CLEC Company Name CLEC Order Number (so_nbr) Committed Due Date (DD) Service Type (CLASS_SVC_DESC) CLEC Acceptance Conflict (CLEC_CONFLICT) CLEC Conflict Resolved (CLEC_CON_RES) CLEC Conflict MFC (CLEC_CONFLICT_MFC) Total Conversion Orders 	• None
Note: Code in parentheses is the corresponding header found in the raw data file.	

SQM Level of Disaggregation	SQM Analog/Benchmark
Unbundled Loops with INP	• Diagnostic (To Be Established at The 6 Month Review
Unbundled Loops with LNP	Period)



SEEM Measure

	SEEM Measure	
No	Tier I	
	Tier II	

SEEM Disaggregation	SEEM Analog/Benchmark
Not Applicable	Not Applicable

P-7C: Hot Cut Conversions - % Provisioning Troubles Received Within 7 days of a completed Service Order

Definition

The Percent Provisioning Troubles received within 7 days of a completed service order associated with a Hot Cut Conversion (CCC) measures the quality and accuracy of Coordinated Customer Conversion Activities.

Exclusions

- Any order canceled by the CLEC
- Troubles caused by Customer Provided Equipment

Business Rules

Measures the quality and accuracy of completed service orders associated with Coordinated and Non-coordinated Customer Conversions. The first trouble report received on a circuit ID within 7 days following a service order completion is counted in this measure. Subsequent trouble reports are measured in Repeat Report Rate. Reports are calculated searching in the prior report period for completed Coordinated Customer Conversion service orders and following 7 days after the completion of the service order for a trouble report issue date.

Calculation

% Provisioning Troubles within 7 days of service order completion = $(a \div b) \times 100$

- a = The sum of all CCC Circuits with a trouble within 7 days following service order(s) completion
- b = The total number of CCC service order circuits completed in the previous report calendar month

Report Structure

- CLEC Specific
- CLEC Aggregate
- Dispatch/Non-Dispatch

Data Retained

Relating to CLEC Experience	Relating to BellSouth Performance
 Report Month CLEC Order Number (so_nbr) PON Order Submission Date (TICKET_ID) Order Submission Time (TICKET_ID) Status Type Status Notice Date Standard Order Activity Geographic Scope Total Commission Ciamita 	No BellSouth Analog exists
Note: Code in parentheses is the corresponding header found in the raw data file.	

SQM Level of Disaggregation	SQM Analog/Benchmark
UNE Loop Design	• $\leq 5\%$ (To be reviewed after six month period)
UNE Loop Non-Design	



SEEM Measure

SEEM Measure			
Yes	Tier I	X	
	Tier II	X	

SEEM Disaggregation	SEEM Analog/Benchmark
UNE Loop DesignUNE Loop Non-Design	• $\leq 5\%$ (To be reviewed after six month period)

P-8: Cooperative Acceptance Testing - % of xDSL Loops Successfully Tested

Definition

A loop will be considered successfully cooperatively tested when both the CLEC and ILEC representatives agree that the loop has passed the cooperative testing.

Exclusions

- Testing failures due to CLEC (incorrect contact number, CLEC not ready, etc.)
- xDSL lines with no request for cooperative testing

Business Rules

When a BellSouth technician finishes delivering an order for an xDSL loop where the CLEC order calls for cooperative testing at the customer's premise, the BellSouth technician is to call a toll free number to the CLEC testing center. The BellSouth technician and the CLEC representative at the center then test the line. As an example of the type of testing performed, the testing center may ask the technician to put a short on the line so that the center can run a test to see if it can identify the short. CLEC caused failures will be captured in the raw data files.

Calculation

Cooperative Acceptance Testing - % of xDSL Loops Successfully Tested = $(a \div b) X 100$

- a = Total number of successful xDSL cooperative tests for xDSL lines where cooperative testing was requested in the reporting period
- b = Total Number of xDSL line tests requested by the CLEC and scheduled in the reporting period

Report Structure

- CLEC Specific
- CLEC Aggregate
- Type of Loop tested

Data Retained

Relating to CLEC Experience	Relating to BellSouth Performance
 Report Month CLEC Company Name (OCN) CLEC Order Number (so_nbr) and PON (PON) Committed Due Date (DD) Service Type (CLASS_SVC_DESC) Acceptance Testing Completed (ACCEPT_TESTING) Acceptance Testing Declined (ACCEPT_TESTING) Total xDSL Orders Missed Appointments Code (SO_MISSED_CMMT_CD) 	• No BellSouth Analog Exists
Note: Code in parentheses is the corresponding header found in the raw data file.	

SQM Disaggregation - Analog/Benchmark

SQM Level of Disaggregation	SQM Analog/Benchmark
 UNE xDSL ADSL HDSL UCL OTHER 	• 95% of Lines Successfully Tested

SEEM Measure

SEEM Measure		feasure	
	Yes	Tier I	x
		Tier II	X

SEEM Disaggregation	SEEM Analog/Benchmark
 UNE xDSL ADSL HDSL UCL Other 	• 95% of Lines Successfully Tested

P-9: % Provisioning Troubles within 30 days of Service Order Completion

P-9: % Provisioning Troubles within 30 days of Service Order Completion

Definition

Percent Provisioning Troubles within 30 days of Service Order Completion measures the quality and accuracy of Service order activities.

Exclusions

- Canceled Service Orders
- Order Activities of BellSouth or the CLEC associated with internal or administrative use of local services (Record Orders, Listing Orders, Test Orders, etc.) Test order types may be C, N, R, or T.
- D & F orders
- Trouble reports caused and closed out to Customer Provided Equipment (CPE)

Business Rules

Measures the quality and accuracy of completed orders. The first trouble report from a service order after completion is counted in this measure. Subsequent trouble reports are measured in Repeat Report Rate. Reports are calculated searching in the prior report period for completed service orders and following 30 days after completion of the service order for a trouble report issue date.

D & F orders are excluded as there is no subsequent activity following a disconnect.

Note: Standalone LNP historical data is not available in the maintenance systems (LMOS or WFA).

Calculation

% Provisioning Troubles within 30 days of Service Order Activity = (a + b) X 100

- a = Trouble reports on all completed orders 30 days following service order(s) completion
- b = All Service Orders completed in the previous report calendar month

Report Structure

- CLEC Specific
- CLEC Aggregate
- BellSouth Aggregate
- Reported in categories of <10 line/circuits; ≥ 10 line/circuits (except trunks)
- Dispatch /Non-Dispatch (except trunks)

Data Retained

Relating to CLEC Experience	Relating to BellSouth Performance
 Report Month CLEC Order Number and PON Order Submission Date (TICKET_ID) Order Submission Time (TICKET_ID) Status Type Status Notice Date Standard Order Activity Geographic Scope Note: Code in parentheses is the corresponding header 	 Report Month BellSouth Order Number Order Submission Date Order Submission Time Status Type Status Notice Date Standard Order Activity Geographic Scope

SQM LEVEL of Disaggregation	SQM Analog/Benchmark
Resale Residence	Retail Residence

BELLSOUTH[®]

Florida Performance Metrics

SQM LEVEL of Disaggregation	SQM Analog/Benchmark
Resale Business	Retail business
• Resale Design	Retail Design
Resale PBX	• Retail PBX
Resale Centrex	Retail Centrex
Resale ISDN	Retail ISDN
LNP (Standalone)	Retail Residence and Business (POTS)
• INP (Standalone)	• Retail Residence and Business (POTS)
2W Analog Loop Design	Retail Residence and Business Dispatch
2W Analog Loop Non-Design	Retail Residence and Business - (POTS Excluding Switch- Based Orders)
2W Analog Loop With LNP Design	Retail Residence and Business Dispatch
2W Analog Loop With LNP Non-Design	Retail Residence and Business - (POTS Excluding Switch- Based Orders)
2W Analog Loop With INP Design	Retail Residence and Business Dispatch
2W Analog Loop With INP Non-Design	Retail Residence and Business (POTS - Excluding Switch- Based Orders)
 UNE Digital Loop < DS1 	Retail Digital Loop < DS1
• UNE Digital Loop ≥ DS1	• Retail Digital Loop ≥ DS1
• UNE xDSL (HDSL, ADSL and UCL)	ADSL provided to Retail
UNE ISDN (Includes UDC)	Retail ISDN BRI
UNE Line Sharing	ADSL Provided to Retail
 UNE Loop + Port Combinations Dispatch In Switch-Based 	 Retail Residence and Business Dispatch In Switch-Based
UNE Switch Ports	Retail Residence and Business (POTS)
UNE Combo Other	 Retail Residence, Business and Design Dispatch (Including Dispatch Out and Dispatch In)
Local Transport (Unbundled Interoffice Transport)	Retail DS1/DS3 Interoffice
UNE Other Non-Design	Retail Residence and Business
UNE Other Design	Retail Design
Local Interconnection Trunks	Parity with Retail
UNE Line Splitting	ADSL to Retail
• EELs	Retail DS1/DS3

SEEM Measure

SEEM Measure			
Yes	Tier I	X	
	Tier II	x	

SEEM Disaggregation - Analog/Benchmark

SEEM Disaggregation	SEEM Analog/Benchmark
Resale Residence	Retail Residence
Resale Business	Retail business
Resale Design	Retail Design
• Resale PP K	Retail PBX
Resale Centrex	Retail Centrex
• Resale ISDN	Retail ISDN
LNP (Standalone)	Retail Residence and Business (POTS)
• INP (Standaione)	Retail Residence and Business (POTS)
2W Analog Loop Design	Retail Residence and Business Dispatch
2W Analog Loop Non-Design	Retail Residence and Business - (POTS Excluding Switch- Based Orders)
2W Analog Lcop With LNP Design	Retail Residence and Business Dispatch
2W Analog Loop With LNP Non-Design	Retail Residence and Business - (POTS Excluding Switch- Based Orders)
2W Analog Loop With INP Design	Retail Residence and Business Dispatch
• 2W Analog Loop With INP Non-Design	Retail Residence and Business (POTS - Excluding Switch- Based Orders)
• UNE Digital Loop < DS1	Retail Digital Loop < DS1
• UNE Digital Loop ≥ DS1	• Retail Digital Loop ≥ DS1
UNE Loop + Port Combinations	Retail Residence and Business
- Dispatch In	- Dispatch In - Switch-Based
UNE Switch Ports	Retail Residence and Business (POTS)
• UNE Combo Other	Retail Residence, Business and Design Dispatch (Including Dispatch Out and Dispatch In)
• UNE xDSL (HDSL, ADSL and UCL)	ADSL provided to Retail
UNE ISDN (Includes UDC)	Retail ISDN BRI
UNE Line Sharing	ADSL Provided to Retail
• Local Transport (Unbundled Interoffice Transport)	Retail DS1/DS3 Interoffice
Local Interconnection Trunks	Parity with Retail
UNE Line Splitting	ADSL Provided to Retail
UNE Other Non-Design	Retail Residence and Business
UNE Other Design	Retail Design
• EELs	Residence, Business and Design Dispatch

-

P-10: Total Service Order Cycle Time (TSOCT)

P-10: Total Service Order Cycle Time (TSOCT)

Definition

This report measures the total service order cycle time from receipt of a valid service order request to the return of a completion notice to the CLEC Interface.

Exclusions

- Canceled Service Orders
- Order Activition of BellSouth or the CLEC associated with internal or administrative use of local services (Record Orders, Listing Orders, Test Orders, etc.) Test order types may be C, N, R, or T.
- D (Disconnect Except "D" orders associated with LNP Standalone.) and F (From) orders. (From is disconnect side of a move order when the customer moves to a new address).
- "L" Appointment coded orders (where the customer has requested a later than offered interval)
- Orders with CLEC/Subscriber caused delays or CLEC/Subscriber requested due date changes.

Business Rules

The interval is determined for each order processed during the reporting period. This measurement combines three reports: FOC Timeliness, Average Order Completion Interval and Average Completion Notice Interval.

This interval starts with the receipt of a valid service order request and stops when a completion notice is sent to the CLEC Interface (LENS, TAG OR LDI). Elapsed time for each order is accumulated for each reporting dimension. The accumulated time for each reporting dimension is then divided by the associated total number of orders completed. Orders that are worked on zero due dates are calculated with a .33 day interval (8 hours) in order to report a portion of a day interval. These orders are issued and worked/completed on same day. They can be either flow through orders (no field work-non-dispatched) or field orders (dispatched).

Reporting is by Fully Mechanized, Partially Mechanized and Non-Mechanized receipt of LSRs.

Calculation

Total Service Order Cycle Time = (a - b)

- a = Service Order Completion Notice Date
- b = Service Request Receipt Date

Average Total Service Order Cycle Time = $(c \div d)$

- c = Sum of all Total Service Order Cycle Times
- d = Total Number Service Orders Completed in Reporting Period

Total Service Order Cycle Time Interval Distribution (for each interval) = (e ÷ f) X 100

- e = Total Number of Service Requests Completed in "X" minutes/hours
- f = Total Number of Service Requests Received in Reporting Period

Report Structure

- CLEC Specific
- CLEC Aggregate
- · BellSouth Aggregate
- Fully Mechanized; Partially Mechanized; Non-Mechanized
- Report in categories of <10 line/circuits; ≥ 10 line/circuits (except trunks)
- Dispatch /Non-Dispatch categories applicable to all levels except trunks
- Intervals 0-5, 5- 0, 10-15, 15-20, 20-25, 25-30, \geq 30 Days. The interval breakout is: 0-5 = 0-<5, 5-10 = 5-<10, 10-15 = 10-<15, 15-20 = 15-<20, 20-25 = 20-<25, 25-30 = 25-<30, \geq 30 = 30 and greater.

Data Retained

Relating to CLEC Experience	Relating to BellSouth Performance
 Report Month Interval for FOC CLEC Company Name (OCN) Order Number (PON) Su' mi sic + Date & Time TICKET_ID) Completion Date (CMPLTN_DT) Service Type (CLASS_SVC_DESC) Geographic Scope 	 Report Month BellSouth Order Number Order Submission Date & Time Order Completion Date & Time Service Type Geographic Scope
Note: Code in parentheses is the corresponding header found in the raw data file	

SQM Disaggregation - Analog/Benchmark

SQM Level of Disaggregation	SQM Analog/Benchmark
• Resale Residence	• Diagnostic
• Resale Business	
Resale Design	
• Resale PBX	
Resale Centrex	
Resale ISDN	
LNP (Standalone)	
• INP (Standalone)	
• 2W Analog Loop Design	
2W Analog Leep Non-Design	
 2W Analog Loop With LNP Design 	
• 2W Analog Leop With LNP Non-Design	
2W Analog Loop With INP Design	
2W Analog Loop With INP Non-Design	
UNE Switch Ports	
UNE Loop + Port Combinations	
- Dispatch In	
- Switch Based	
UNE Combo Other	
• UNE xDS1 (HDSL, ADSL and UCL)	
• UNE ISDN (Includes UDC)	
UNE Line Sharing	
• UNE Other Design	
UNE Other Non -Design	
UNE Digital Loops < DS1	
• UNE Digital Loops ≥ DS1	
• Local Transport (Unbundled Interoffice Transport)	
Local Interconnection Trunks	
• UNE Line Splitting	
• EELs -	<u> </u>

SEEM Measure

SEEM Measure		
No	Tier I	
	Tier II	

SEEM Disaggregation	SEEM Analog/Benchmark	
Not Applicable	Not Applicable	

P-11: Service Order Accuracy

Definition

The "service order accuracy" measurement measures the accuracy and completeness of BellSouth service orders by comparing what was ordered and what was completed.

Exclusions

- Cancelled Service Orders
- Order Activities of BellSouth or the CLEC associated with internal or administrative use of local services (Record Orders, Listing Orders, Test Orders, etc.)
- D & F orders

Business Rules

A statistically valid sample of service orders, completed during a monthly reporting period, is compared to the original account profile and the order that the CLEC sent to BellSouth. An order is "completed without error" if all service attributes and account detail changes (as determined by comparing the original order) completely and accurately reflect the activity specified on the original order and any supplemental CLEC order. For both small and large sample sizes, when a Service Request cannot be matched with a corresponding Service Order, it will not be counted. For small sample sizes an effort will be made to replace the service request.

Service Order Accuracy Sampling Process: A list of all orders completed in the report month is generated. The orders are then listed by the disaggregations specified in the SQM. For each disaggregation, the quantity of completed orders and the error rate for each disaggregation from the previous month are entered into a "Stratified Random Sampling for Proportions" formula. This formula determines the number of orders that are to be reviewed for each disaggregation. Once the sample size for each disaggregation is determined, the specified quantity of orders for each disaggregation are pulled for review.

Calculation

Percent Service Order Accuracy = (a ÷ b) X 100

- a = Orders Completed without Error
- b = Orders Completed in Reporting Period

Report Structure

- CLEC Aggregate
- Reported in categories of <10 line/circuits; > = 10 line/circuits
- Dispatch/Non-Dispatch

Data Retained

Relating to CLEC Experience	Relating to BellSouth Experience
 Report Month CLEC Order Number and PON Local Service Request (LSR) Order Submission Date Committed Due Date 	No BellSouth Analog Exist
Service Type Standard Order Activity	

SQM Disaggregation - Analog/Benchmark

SQM LEVEL of Disaggregation	SQM Analog/Benchmark:
Resale Residence	• 95% Accurate
Resale Business	
• Resale Design (Specials)	
• UNE Specials (Design)	
• UNE (Non-Design)	
Local Interconnection Trunks	

SEEM Measure

SEEM Measure		
Yes	Tier I	
	Tier II	X

SEEM Disaggregation	SEEM Analog/Benchmark
• Resale	• 95%
• UNE	• 95%
• UNE-P	• 95%

P-12: LNP-Average Disconnect Timeliness Interval & Disconnect Timeliness Interval Distribution

P-12: LNP-Average Disconnect Timeliness Interval & Disconnect Timeliness Interval Distribution

Definition

Disconnect Timeliness is defined as the interval between the time ESI Number Manager receives the valid 'Number Ported' message from NPAC (signifying the CLEC 'Activate') until the time the Disconnect is completed in the Central Office switch. This interval effectively measures BellSouth responsiveness by isolating it from impacts that are caused by CLEC related activities.

Exclusions

- · Canceled Service Orders
- Order Activities of BellSouth or the CLEC associated with internal or administrative use of local services (Record Orders, Listing Orders, Test Orders, etc.) where identifiable.

Business Rules

The Disconnect Timeliness interval is determined for each number ported associated with a disconnect service order processed on an LSR during the reporting period. The Disconnect Timeliness interval is the elapsed time from when BellSouth receives a valid 'Number Ported' message in ESI Number Manager (signifying the CLEC 'Activate') for each telephone number ported until each number on the service order is disconnected in the Central Office switch. Elapsed time for each ported number is accumulated for each reporting dimension. The accumulated time for each reporting dimension is then divided by the total number of selected telephone numbers disconnected in the reporting period.

Calculation

Disconnect Timeliness Interval = (a - b)

- a = Completion Date and Time in Central Office switch for each number on disconnect order
- b = Valid 'Number Ported' message received date & time

Average Disconnect Timeliness Interval = $(c \div d)$

- c = Sum of all Disconnect Timeliness Intervals
- d = Total Number of disconnected numbers completed in reporting period

Disconnect Timeliness Interval Distribution (for each interval) = $(e \div f) \times 100$

- e = Disconnected numbers completed in "X" days
- f = Total disconnect numbers completed in reporting period

Report Structure

- CLEC Specific
- CLEC Aggregate
- · Geographic Scope
 - State, Region

Data Retained

Relating to CLEC Experience	Relating to BellSouth Performance
 Order Number Telephone Number / Circuit Number Committed Due Date Receipt Date / Time (ESI Number Manager) Date/Time of Recent Change Notice 	• Not Applicable

Provisioning

SQM Disaggregation - Analog/Benchmark

SQM Level of Disaggregation:	SQM Analog/Benchmark	
• LNP	• $95\% \le 15$ Minutes	

SEEM Measure

SEEM Measure		
No	Tier I	
	Tier II	

SEEM Disaggregation	SEEM Analog/Benchmark
Not Applicable	Not Applicable

Section 4: Maintenance & Repair

M&R-1: Missed Repair Appointments

Definition

The percent of trouble reports not cleared by the committed date and time.

Exclusions

- Trouble tickets canceled at the CLEC request.
- · BellSouth trouble reports associated with internal or administrative service.
- Customer Provided Equipment (CPE) troubles or CLEC Equipment Trouble.

Business Rules

The negotiated commitment date and time is established when the repair report is received. The cleared time is the date and time that BellSouth personnel clear the trouble and closes the trouble report in his/her Computer Access Terminal (CAT) or workstation. If this is after the Commitment time, the report is flagged as a "Missed Commitment" or a missed repair appointment. When the data for this measure is collected for BellSouth and a CLEC, it can be used to compare the percentage of the time repair appointments are missed due to BellSouth reasons. (No access reports are not part of this measure because they are not a missed appointment.)

Note: Appointment intervals vary with force availability in the POTS environment. Specials and Trunk intervals are standard interval appointments of no greater than 24 hours. Standalone LNP historical data is not available in the maintenance systems (LMOS or WFA).

Calculation

Percentage of Missed Repair Appointments = (a ÷ b) X 100

- a = Count of Customer Troubles Not Cleared by the Quoted Commitment Date and Time
- b = Total Trouble reports closed in Reporting Period

Report Structure

- Dispatch/Non-Dispatch
- CLEC Specific
- CLEC Aggregate
- BellSouth Aggregate

Data Retained

Relating to CLEC Experience	Relating to BellSouth Performance
 Report Month CLEC Company Name Submission Date & Time (TICKET_ID) Completion Date (CMPLTN_DT) Service Type (CLASS_SVC_DESC) Disposition and Cause (CAUSE_CD & CAUSE_DESC) Geographic Scope Note: Code in parentheses is the corresponding header found in the raw data file. 	 Report Month BellSouth Company Code Submission Date & Time Completion Date Service Type Disposition and Cause (Non-Design /Non-Special Only) Trouble Code (Design and Trunking Services) Geographic Scope

SQM Disaggregation - Analog/Benchmark

SQM Level of Disaggregation	SQM Analog/Benchmark
Resale Residence	Retail Residence
Resale Business	Retail Business
Resale Design	Retail Design
• Resale PFX	• Retail PBX
Resale Centrex	Retail Centrex
• Resale ISDN	Retail ISDN
2W Analog Loop Design	Retail Residence & Business Dispatch
• 2W Analog Loop Non - Design	Retail Residence & Business (POTS) (Exclusion of switch- based feature troubles
• UNE Digital Loop < DS1	Retail Digital Loop < DS1
• UNE Digital Loop \geq DS1	 Retail Digital Loop ≥ DS1
UNE Loop + Port Combinations	Retail Residence & Business
UNE Switch ports	Retail Residence & Business (POTS)
UNE Combo Other	Retail Residence, Business & Design Dispatch
• UNE xDSL (HDSL, ADSL and UCL)	ADSL provided to Retail
• UNE ISDN	• Retail ISDN – BRI
UNE Line Sharing	ADSL provided to Retail
UNE Other Design	Retail Design
UNE Other Non-Design	Retail Residence and Business
Local Interconnection Trunks	Parity with Retail
Local Transport (Unbundled Interoffice Transport)	Retail DS1/DS3 Interoffice

SEEM Measure

SEEM Measure		
Yes	Tier I	X
	Tier II	X

SEEM Disaggregation	SEEM Analog/Benchmark
Resale Residence	Retail Residence
Resale Business	Retail Business
Resale Design	Retail Design
• Resale PBX -	Retail PBX
Resale Centrex	Retail Centrex
• Resale ISDN	Retail ISDN
2W Analog Loop Design	Retail Residence & Business Dispatch
• 2W Analog Loop Non – Design	Retail Residence & Business (POTS) (Exclusion of switch- based feature troubles
UNE Digital Loop < DS1	Retail Digital Loop < DS1

SEEM Disaggregation	SEEM Analog/Benchmark
• UNE Digital Loop ≥ DS1	 Retail Digital Loop ≥ DS1
UNE Loop + Por: Combinations	Retail Residence & Business
UNE Switch ports	Retail Residence & Business (POTS)
UNE Combo Other	Retail Residence, Business & Design Dispatch
• UNE NDSL (HDSL, ADSL and UCL)	ADSL provided to Retail
• UNE ISDN	• Retail ISDN – BRI
UNE Line Sharing	ADSL provided to Retail
UNE Other Design	Retail Design
UNE Other Non-Design	Retail Residence and Business
Local Transport (Unbundled Interoffice Transport)	Retail DS1/DS3 Interoffice
Local Interconnection Trunks	Parity with Retail

M&R-2: Customer Trouble Report Rate

M&R-2: Customer Trouble Report Rate

Definition

Initial and repeated customer direct or referred troubles reported within a calendar month per 100 lines/circuits in service.

Exclusions

- Trouble lickets car celed at the CLEC request.
- BellSouth trouble reports associated with internal or administrative service.
- Customer Provided Equipment (CPE) troubles or CLEC Equipment Trouble.

Business Rules

Customer Trouble Report Rate is computed by accumulating the number of maintenance initial and repeated trouble reports during the reporting period. The resulting number of trouble reports are divided by the total "number of service" lines, ports or combination that exist for the CLECs and BellSouth respectively at the end of the report month.

Calculation

Customer Trouble Report Rate = (a + b) X 100

- a = Count of Initial and Repeated Trouble Reports closed in the Current Period
- b = Number of Service Access Lines in service at End of the Report Period

Report Structure

- CLEC Specific
- CLEC Aggregate
- BellSouth Aggregate

Data Retained

Relating to CLEC Experience	Relating to BellSouth Performance
 Report Month CLEC Company Name Ticket Submission Date & Time (TICKET_ID) Ticket Completion Date (CMPLTN_DT) Service Type (CLASS_SVC_DESC) Disposition and Cause (CAUSE_CD & CAUSE_DESC) # Service Access Lines in Service at the end of period Geographic Scope Note: Code in parentheses is the corresponding header found in the raw data file. 	 Report Month BellSouth Company Code Ticket Submission Date & Time Ticket Completion Date Service Type Disposition and Cause (Non-Design /Non-Special Only) Trouble Code (Design and Trunking Services) # Service Access Lines in Service at the end of period Geographic Scope

SQM Level of Disaggregation	SQM Analog/Benchmark
Resale Residence	Retail Residence
Resale Business	Retail Business
Resale Design	Retail Design
• Resale PBX	Retail PBX
Resale Centrex	Retail Centrex
Resale ISDN	Retail ISDN
2W Analog Loop Design	Retail Residence & Business Dispatch
BELLSOUTH[®]

Florida Performance Metrics

SQM Level of Disaggregation	SQM Analog/Benchmark
• 2W Analog Loop Non – Design	 Retail Residence & Business (POTS) (Exclusion of switch- based feature troubles)
UNE Digital Loop < DS1	Retail Digital Loop < DS1
• UNE Digital Loop ≥ DS1	 Retail Digital Loop ≥ DS1
UNE Locy + combinations	Retail Residence & Business
UNE Switch Ports	Retail Residence & Business (POTS)
UNE Contoo Other	Retail Residence, Business & Design Dispatch
• UNE xDSL (HDSL, ADSL and UCL)	ADSL provided to Retail
• UNE ISDN	• Retail ISDN – BRI
UNE Line Sharing	ADSL provided to Retail
UNE Other Design	Retail Design
UNE Other Non-Design	Retail Residence and Business
Local Interconnection Trunks	Parity with Retail
Local Transport (Unbundled Interoffice Transport)	Retail DS1/DS3 Interoffice

SEEM Measure

SEEM Measure		
Yes	Tier I	X
	Tier II	X

SEEM Disaggregation - Analog/Benchmark

SEEM Disaggregation	SEEM Analog/Benchmark
Resale Residence	Retail Residence
Resale Business	Retail Business
Resale Design	Retail Design
Resale PBX	Retail PBX
Resale Centrex	Retail Centrex
• Resale ISDN	Retail ISDN
2W Analog Loop Design	Retail Residence & Business Dispatch
• 2W Analog Loop Non – Design	Retail Residence & Business (POTS) (Exclusion of switch- based feature troubles)
• UNE Digital Loop < DS1	Retail Digital Loop < DS1
• UNE Digital Loop ≥ DS1	 Retail Digital Loop ≥ DS1
UNE Loop + Port Combinations	Retail Residence & Business
UNE Switch ports	Retail Residence & Business (POTS)
UNE Com bo Other	Retail Residence, Business & Design Dispatch
• UNE xDSL (HDSL, ADSL and UCL)	ADSL provided to Retail
UNE ISDN	Retail ISDN – BRI
UNE Line Sharing	ADSL provided to Retail
UNE Other Design	Retail Design

Last Revised 1/22/02



SEEM Disaggregation	SEEM Analog/Benchmark
UNE Other Non-Design	Retail Residence and Business
Local Transport (Unbundled Interoffice Transport)	Retail DS1/DS3 Interoffice
Local Interconnection Trunks	Parity with Retail

M&R-3: Maintenance Average Duration

Definition

The Average curation of Customer Trouble Reports from the receipt of the Customer Trouble Report to the time the trouble report is cleared.

Exclusions

- Trouble tickets canceled at the CLEC request.
- BellSouth trouble reports associated with internal or administrative service.
- Customer Provided Equipment (CPE) troubles or CLEC Equipment Trouble.

Business Rules

For Average Duration the clock starts on the date and time of the receipt of the correct report information, i.e. correct telephone number, correct circuit identification, trouble description, etc. for the repair request. The clock stops on the date and time the service is restored and the BellSouth or CLEC customer is notified (when the technician completes the trouble ticket on his/her CAT or work systems).

Calculation

Maintenance Duration = (a - b)

- a = Date and Time of Service Restoration
- b = Date and Time Trouble Ticket was Opened

Average Maintenance Duration = (c + d)

- c = Total of all maintenance durations in the reporting period
- d = Total Closed Troubles in the reporting period

Report Structure

- Dispatch/Non-Dispatch
- CLEC Specific
- CLEC Aggregate
- · BellSouth Aggregate

Data Retained

Relating to CLEC Experience:	Relating to BellSouth Performance:
Report month	Report month
Total Tickets (LINE NBR)	Total Tickets
CLEC Company Name	BellSouth Company Code
• Ticket Submission Date & Time (TICKET ID)	Ticket Submission Date
• Ticket Completion Date (CMPLTN DT)	Ticket Submission Time
Service Type (CLASS SVC DESC)	Ticket Completion Date
• Disposition and Cause (CAUSE CD & CAUSE DESC)	Ticket Completion Time
• Geographic Scope	Total Duration Time
Note: Code in parentheses is the corresponding header found in me raw data file.	 Service Type Disposition and Cause (Non-Design /Non-Special Only) Trouble Code (Design and Trunking Services) Geographic Scope

SQM Level of Disaggregation	SQM Analog/Benchmark
Resale Residence	Retail Residence
Resale Business	Retail business

SQM Level of Disaggregation	SQM Analog/Benchmark
• Resale Design	• Retail Design
• Resale PBX	• Retail PBX
Resale Centrex	Retail Centrex
• Resale ISDN	Retail ISDN
• TW A al g Loop Design	Retail Residence & Business Dispatch
• 2W Analog Loop Non – Design	• Retail Residence & Business (POTS) (Exclusion of switch- based feature troubles)
UNE Digital Loop < DS1	Retail Digital Loop < DS1
• UNE Digital Loop \geq DS1	• Retail Digital Loop \geq DS1
UNE Loop + Port Combinations	Retail Residence & Business
UNE Switch ports	Retail Residence & Business (POTS)
UNE Combo Other	Retail Residence, Business & Design Dispatch
• UNE xDSL (HDSL, ADSL and UCL)	ADSL provided to Retail
• UNE ISDN	• Retail ISDN – BRI
• UNE _ ir. : Sharing	ADSL provided to Retail
• UNE Other Design	Retail Design
UNE Other Non-Design	Retail Residence and Business
Local Transport (Unbundled Interoffice Transport)	Retail DS1/DS3 Interoffice
Local Interconnection Trunks	Parity with Retail

SEEM Measure

SEEM Measure			
Yes	Tier I	X	
	Tier II	X	

SEEM Disaggregation - Analog/Benchmark

SEEM Disaggregation	SEEM Analog/Benchmark
Resale Residence	Retail Residence
Resale Business	Retail Business
Resale Design	Retail Design
• Resale PBX	Retail PBX
Resale Centrex	Retail Centrex
Resale ISDN	Retail ISDN
2W Analog Loop Design	Retail Residence & Business Dispatch
• 2W Analog Loop Non – Design	Retail Residence & Business (POTS) (Exclusion of switch- based feature troubles)
• UNE Digital Loop < DS1	Retail Digital Loop < DS1
• UNE Digital Loop ≥ DS1	 Retail Digital Loop ≥ DS1
UNE Loop + Port Combinations	Retail Residence & Business
UNE Switch ports	Retail Residence & Business (POTS)

,

SEEM Disaggregation	SEEM Analog/Benchmark
UNE Conibo Other	• Retail Residence, Business & Design Dispatch
• UNE xDSL (HDSL, ADSL and UCL)	ADSL provided to Retail
• UNE ISDN	• Retail ISDN – BRI
UNE Line Sharing	ADSL provided to Retail
• UN South or Design	Retail Design
UNE Other Non-Design	Retail Residence and Business
Local Transport (Unbundled Interoffice Transport)	Retail DS1/DS3 Interoffice
Local Interconnection Trunks	Parity with Retail

M&R-4: Percent Repeat Troubles within 30 Days

Definition

Closed trouble reports on the same line/circuit as a previous trouble report received within 30 calendar days as a percent of total troubles closed reported

Exclusions

- Trouble tickets canceled at the CLEC request.
- BellS buth couble reports associated with internal or administrative service.
- Customer Provided Equipment (CPE) troubles or CLEC Equipment Trouble.

Business Rules

Includes Customer trouble reports received within 30 days of an original Customer trouble report

Calculation

Percent Repeat Troubles within 30 Days = $(a \div b) \times 100$

- a = Count of closed Customer Troubles where more than one trouble report was logged for the same service line within a continuous 30 days
- b = Total Trouble Reports Closed in Reporting Period

Report Structure

- Dispatch/Non-Dispatch
- CLEC Specific
- CLEC Aggregate
- BellSouth Aggregate

Data Retained

Relating to CLEC Experience	Relating to BellSouth Performance
 Report month Total Tickets (LINE_NBR) CLEC Company Name Ticket Submission Date & Time (TICKET_ID) Ticket Completion Date (CMPLTN_DT) Total and Percent Repeat Trouble Reports within 30 Days (TOT_REPEAT) Service Type Disposition and Cause (CAUSE_CD & CAUSE_DESC) Geographic Scope Note: Code in parentheses is the corresponding header found in the raw data file 	 Report month Total Tickets BellSouth Company Code Ticket Submission Date Ticket Submission Time Ticket Completion Date Ticket Completion Time Total and Percent Repeat Trouble Reports within 30 Days Service Type Disposition and Cause (Non-Design /Non-Special Only) Trouble Code (Design and Trunking Services) Geographic Scope

SQM Level of Disaggregation	SQM Analog/Benchmark
• Resale Fesidence	Retail Residence
• Resale Business	Retail business
Resale Design	Retail Design
• Resale PBX	• Retail PBX
• Resale Centrex	Retail Centrex

BELLSOUTH[®]

Florida Performance Metrics

Maintenance & Repair

SQM Level of Disaggregation	SQM Analog/Benchmark
Resale INDN	Retail ISDN
• 2W Analog Loop Design	Retail Residence & Business Dispatch
2W Analog Loop Non – Design	Retail Residence & Business (POTS) (Exclusion of switch- based feature troubles)
• TNE Tigital Loop < DS1	Retail Digital Loop < DS1
UNE Digital Loop ≥ DS1	 Retail Digital Loop ≥ DS1
UNE LOOD + Port Combinations	Retail Residence & Business
UNE Switch ports	Retail Residence & Business (POTS)
UNE Con bo Other	Retail Residence, Business & Design Dispatch
• UNE XESL (HDSL, ADSL and UCL)	ADSL provided to Retail
• UNE (SDN	• Retail ISDN – BRI
UNE Line Sharing	ADSL provided to Retail
• UNE Other Design	Retail Design
UNE Other Non-Design	Retail Residence and Business
Local Exesport (Unbundled Interoffice Transport)	Retail DS1/DS3 Interoffice
• Local abarconnection Trunks	Parity with Retail

SEEM Measure

SEEM Measure		
Yes	Tier I	X
	Tier II	X

SEEM Disaggregation	SEEM Analog/Benchmark
Resale Rusidence	Retail Residence
Rusale Business	Retail Business
Resale Design	Retail Design
• Resale PBX	• Retail PBX
Resale Centrex	Retail Centrex
Resale ISDN	Retail ISDN
2W Analog Loop Design	Retail Residence & Business Dispatch
• 2W Analog Loop Non – Design	• Retail Residence & Business (POTS) (Exclusion of switch- based feature troubles)
UNE Digital Loop < DS1	Retail Digital Loop < DS1
• UNE Digital Loop ≥ DS1	• Retail Digital Loop \geq DS1
UNE Loop + Port Combinations	Retail Residence & Business
UNE Switch ports	Retail Residence & Business (POTS)
UNE Combo Other	Retail Residence, Business & Design Dispatch
• UNE XDSL (HDSL, ADSL and UCL)	ADSL provided to Retail
UNE ISDN	Retail ISDN – BRI

BELLSOUTH®

Florida Performance Metrics

SEEM Disaggregation	SEEM Analog/Benchmark
• UNE 1 m. Sharing	ADSL provided to Retail
• UNE Oth / Design	• Retail Design
UNE Other Non-Design	Retail Residence and Business
Local Transport (Unbundled Interoffice Transport)	Retail DS1/DS3 Interoffice
C.cl. at reonnection Trunks	Parity with Retail

M&R-5: Out of Service (OOS) > 24 Hours

Definition

For Out of Service Troubles (no dial tone, cannot be called or cannot call out) the percentage of Total OOS Troubles cleared in excess of 24 hours. (All design services are considered to be out of service).

Exclusions

- Trouble Reports canceled at the CLEC request
- BellSouth Trouble Reports associated with administrative service
- Customet Provided Equipment (CPE) Troubles or CLEC Equipment Troubles.

Business Rules

Customer Trouble reports that are out of service and cleared in excess of 24 hours. The clock begins when the trouble report is created in LMOS/WFA and the trouble is counted if the elapsed time exceeds 24 hours.

Calculation

Out of Service (OOS) > 24 hours = $(a \div b) \times 100$

- $a = T_{CLE}$ C1 ared Troubles OOS > 24 Hours
- b = Total OUS Troubles in Reporting Period

Report Structure

- Dispatch/Non-Dispatch
- CLEC Specific
- BellSouth Aggregate
- CLEC Aggregate

Data Retained

Relating to CLEC Experience	Relating to BellSouth Performance
 Report A. ath Total Hickets CLEC Company Name Ticket Substission Date & Time (TICKET_ID) Ticket Completion Date (CMPLTN_DT) Percentage of Customer Troubles out of Service > 24 Hours (OOS>24_FLAG) Service type (CLASS_SVC_DESC) Disposition and Cause (CAUSE_CD & CAUSE-DESC) Geographip Scope Note: Code in parentheses is the corresponding header found in the raw data file. 	 Report Month Total Tickets BellSouth Company Code Ticket Submission Date Ticket Submission time Ticket Completion Date Ticket Completion Time Percent of Customer Troubles out of Service > 24 Hours Service type Disposition and Cause (Non-Design/Non-Special only) Trouble Code (Design and Trunking Services) Geographic Scope

SQM Level of Disaggregation	SQM Analog/Benchmark
• Resale Pesidence	Retail Residence
Resale Business	Retail Business
Resale Design	Retail Design
• Resale PBX	Retail PBX
• Resale Centrex	Retail Centrex

SQM Level of Disaggregation	SQM Analog/Benchmark
• Resale ISDN	• Retail ISDN
2W Analog Loop Design	Retail Residence & Business Dispatch
• 2W Analog Loop Non – Design	Retail Residence & Business (POTS) (Exclusion of switch- based feature troubles)
• UNE Dig al Loop < DS1	Retail Digital Loop < DS1
 UNE Digital Loop ≥ DS1 	 Retail Digital Loop ≥ DS1
UNE Loop - Port Combinations	Retail Residence & Business
UNE Switch ports	Retail Residence & Business (POTS)
UNE Combo Other	Retail Residence, Business & Design Dispatch
• UNE xDSL (HDSL, ADSL and UCL)	ADSL provided to Retail
• UNE ISDN	• Retail ISDN – BRI
UNE Line Sharing	ADSL provided to Retail
UNE Other Design	• Retail Design
UNE Other Non-Design	Retail Residence and Business
• Local Thumsport (Unbundled Interoffice Transport)	Retail DS1/DS3 Interoffice
• Local Induceonnection Trunks	Parity with Retail

SEEM Measure

SEEM Measure		
Yes	Tier I	X
	Tier II	X

SEEM Disaggregation - Analog/Benchmark

SEEM Disaggregation	SEEM Analog/Benchmark
Resalu Rusidence	Retail Residence
• Rosale Business	Retail Business
• Resale Design	• Retail Design
Resale PBX	• Retail PBX
Resale Centrex	Retail Centrex
Resale ISDN	Retail ISDN
2W Analog Loop Design	Retail Residence & Business Dispatch
• 2W Analog Loop Non – Design	Retail Residence & Business (POTS) (Exclusion of switch- based feature troubles)
• UNE Digital Loop < DS1	Retail Digital Loop < DS1
• UNE Digital Loop≥DS1	 Retail Digital Loop ≥ DS1
UNE Loop + Port Combinations	Retail Residence & Business
UNE Switch Ports	Retail Residence & Business (POTS)
UNE Combo Other	• Retail Residence, Business & Design Dispatch
• UNE xDSL (HDSL, ADSL and UCL)	ADSL provided to Retail
• UNE ISDN	• Retail ISDN – BRI

Version 2.00

BELLSOUTH*

Florida Periormance Metrics

SEEM Disaggregation	SEEM Analog/Benchmark
• UNE Line Sharing	ADSL provided to Retail
UNE Ota & Design	Retail Design
UNE Other Non-Design	Retail Residence and Business
Local Transport (Unbundled Interoffice Transport)	Retail DS1/DS3 Interoffice
.c _t n. :connection Trunks	Parity with Retail

M&R-6: Average Answer Time – Repair Centers

Definition

This report measures the average time a customer is in queue.

Exclusions

None

Business Rules

The clock starts when a CLEC Representative or BellSouth customer makes a choice on the Repair Center's menu and is put in queue for the next repair attendant. The clock stops when the repair attendant answers the call (abandoned calls are not included).

Note: The Total Column is a combined BellSouth Residence and Business number.

Calculation

Answer Time for BellSouth Repair Centers = (a - b)

- a = Time BellSouth Repair Attendant Answers Call
- $b = Tim \epsilon$ of entry into queue after ACD Selection

Average Answer Time for BellSouth Repair Centers = $(c \div d)$

- c = Sum of an Answer Times
- d = Total number of calls by reporting period

Report Structure

- CLEC Aggregate
- · BellSouth Aggregate

Data Retained

Relating to CLEC Experience	Relating to BellSouth Performance
CLEC AV ¹ rage Answer Time	BellSouth Average Answer Time

SQM Disaggregation - Analog / Benchmark

SQM Level of Disaggregation	Retail Analog / Benchmark
Region. CLEC/BellSouth Service Centers and BellSouth Repair Centers are regional.	• For CLEC, Average Answer Times in UNE Center and BRMC are comparable to the Average Answer Times in the BellSouth Repair Centers.

SEEM Measure

	SEEM Measure		
	No	Tier I	
1		Tier II	

SEEM Disaggregation	SEEM Analog/Benchmark
Not Applicable	Not Applicable

M&R-7: Mean Time To Notify CLEC of Network Outages

M&R-7: Mean Time To Notify CLEC of Network Outages

Definition

BellSouth will inform the CLEC of any Network outages (key customer accounts)

Exclusions

None

Busineso Etaes

The time it takes for BellSouth to notify the CLEC and appropriate BellSouth personnel of a customer impacting network incident in equipment that may be utilized by the CLEC. When BellSouth becomes aware of a network incident, the CLEC and appropriate BellSouth jets curel will be notified electronically. The notification time for each outage will be measured in minutes and divided by the number of outages for the reporting period. The CLECs will be notified the same way and at the same time as BellSouth personnel. These are broadcast messages. It is up to those receiving the message to determine if they have customers affected by the incident.

Calculation

Time to Notify CLEC = (a - b)

- a = Date and Time BellSouth Notified CLEC
- + b = Date and time BellSouth detected network incident

Mean Time \uparrow for the CLEC = (c ÷ d)

- c = Sum of all Times to Notify CLEC
- d = Coun. . Network Incidents

Report Structure

- BellSouth Aggregate
- CLEC Aggregate
- CLEC Specific

Data Retained

Relating to CLEC Experience	Relating to BellSouth Performance
 Report Month Major Network Events Date/rune of Incident Date/lune of Notification 	 Report Month Major Network Events Date/Time of Incident Date/Time of Notification

SQM Disaggregation - Analog / Benchmark

SQM Level of Disaggregation	Retail Analog / Benchmark
BailSouth Aggregate CLEC Aggregate CLEC Specific	Parity by Design

SEEM Measure

SEEM Measure			
No	Tier I		
	Tier II		

SEEM Disaggregation	SEEM Analog/Benchmark
Not Applicable	Not Applicable



Section 5: Billing

B-1: Invoice Accuracy

Definition

This measure provides the percentage of accuracy of the billing invoices rendered to CLECs during the current month.

Exclusions

- Adjustments not related to billing errors (e.g., credits for service outage, special promotion credits, adjustments to satisfy the customer)
- Test Accounts

Business Fulles

The *cccuracy* of billing invoices delivered by BellSouth to the CLEC must enable them to provide a degree of billing accuracy comparative to BellSouth bills rendered to retail customers of BellSouth. CLECs request adjustments on bills determined to be incorrect. The BellSouth Billing verification process includes manually analyzing a sample of local bills from each bill period. The bill verification process draws from a mix of different customer billing options and types of service. An end-to-end auditing process is performed for new products and services. Internal measurements and controls are maintained on all billing processes. The CLEC-specific raw data file (which is available on the PMAP web site) will contain the number of bills and adjustments for the reporting month. The number of bills and bill adjustments will be displayed by OCN and/or ACNA.

Calculation

Invoice Accumcy = $[(a - b) \div a] \times 100$

- a = Absolute Value of Total Billed Revenues during current month
- b = Ploselut Value of Billing Related Adjustments during current month

Measure of Adjustments =[(c-d)/ c] x 100

- $c = N_U mber \circ f$ Bills in current month
- d= Number of Billing-related Adjustments in current month

Report Structure

- CLEC Specific
- CLEC Aggregate
- BellSouth Aggregate
- Geographi. Scope
 - Region
 - Stare

Data Retainec

Relating to CLEC Experience	Relating to BellSouth Performance
 Report Month Invoice Type UNE Resale Tre op medion Total Filled Revenue Billing Kelated Adjustments Number of Bills Number of Adjustments 	 Report Month Retail Type CRIS CABS Total Billed Revenue Billing Related Adjustments

SQM Disaggregation - Analog/Benchmark

SQM Level of Disaggregation	SQM Analog/Benchmark
 Product/Invoice Type Resale UNE Interconnection 	Parity with BellSouth Retail Aggregate

SEEM Measure

SEEM Measure			
Yes	Tier I	X	
	Tier II	x	_

SEEM Disaggregation - Analog/Benchmark

SEEM Disaggregation	SEEM Analog/Benchmark
Result UNE	Parity with Retail
• Interconnection	

Billing

B-2: Mear Time to Deliver Invoices

Definition

Bill Distribution is calculated as follows: CRIS BILLS-The number of workdays is reported for CRIS bills. This is calculated by counting the Bill Period date as the first work day. Weekends and holidays are excluded when counting workdays. J/N Bills are counted in the CRIS work day category for the purposes of the measurement since their billing account number (Q account) is provided from the CRIS statem.

CABS BILLS- The number of calendar days is reported for CABS bills. This is calculated by counting the day following the Bill Period date as the first calendar day. Weekends and holidays are included when counting the calendar days.

Exclusions

None

Business Rules

This report measures the mean interval for timeliness of billing records delivered to CLECs in an agreed upon format. CRIS-based invoices are measured in business days, and CABS-based invoices in calendar days.

Calculation

Involce Time...tess = (a - b)

- <u>a</u> = In old > Transmission Date
- b = Close Date of Scheduled Bill Cycle

Mean Time To Deliver Invoices = $(c \div d)$

- c = Sum of all Invoice Timeliness intervals
- d = Count of Invoices Transmitted in Reporting Period

Report Structure

- CLEC Specific
- CLEC Aggregate
- BeilSouth Aggregate
- Geograp il. Scope
- Region
- State

Data Retained

Relating to CLEC Experience	Relating to BellSouth Performance
 Report Month Invoice Type UNE Resale Interconnection State Invoice Transmission Count Date of Scheduled Bill Close 	 Report Month Invoice Type CRIS CABS Invoice Transmission Count Date of Scheduled Bill Close

SQM Disaggregation - Analog/Benchmark

SQM Level of Disaggregation	SQM Analog/Benchmark
Product/Invoice Type	 CRIS-based invoices will be released for delivery within six
• Resale	(6) business days. CABS-based invoices will be released for delivery within
• UNE	eight (8) calendar days. CLEC Average Delivery Intervals for both CRIS and CABS
• Interconnection	Invoices are comparable to BellSouth Average delivery for
• State	both systems.

SEEM Measure

SEEM Measure			
Yes	Tier I	x	
	Tier II	X	

SEEM Disagg regation - Analog/Benchmark

SEEM Disaggregation	SEEM Analog/Benchmark
 CLEC State CRIS CABS BST-State 	• Parity with Retail

B-2: Mean Time to Deliver Invoices

B-3: Usage Data Delivery Accuracy

B-3: Usage Data Delivery Accuracy

Definition

This measurement captures the percentage of recorded usage that is delivered error free and in an acceptable format to the appropriate Competitive Local Exchange Carrier (CLEC). These percentages will provide the necessary data for use as a comparative measurement for BellSouth performance. This measurement captures Data Delivery Accuracy rather than the accuracy of the individual usage recording.

Exclusions

None

Business Rules

The accuracy of the data delivery of usage records delivered by BellSouth to the CLEC must enable them to provide a degree of accuracy comparative to BellSouth bills rendered to their retail customers. If errors are detected in the delivery process, they are investigated, evaluated and documented. Errors are corrected and the data retransmitted to the CLEC.

Calculation

Usage Data Delivery Accuracy (Packs) = (a - b) + a X 100 (This calculation not ordered by the FPSC)

- b = T /e' number of usage data packs requiring retransmission during current month

Usage Data Delivery Accuracy (Records) = $(c - d) \div c \times 100$

- c = Total number of usage records sent during current month
- d = fotal number of usage records requiring retransmission during current month

Report Structure

- CLEC Aggregate
- · BellSouth Aggregate
- · Geographic Scope
- Region

Data Retained

Relating to CLEC Experience	Relating to BellSouth Performance
 Report Mc th Record Type BellSouth Recorded Non-BeilSouth Recorded Number of Records Packs 	 Report Month Record Type Number of Records Packs

SQM Disaggregation - Analog/Benchmark

SQM Level of Disaggregation	SQM Analog/Benchmark
• Region	Parity With Retail

SEEM Measure

SEEM Measure		
Yes	Tier I	
	Tier II	X

Billing

SEEM Disaggregation	SEEM Analog/Benchmark
CLEC state (in Florida, SEEM is based on records.)BellSouth Region	• Parity with Retail

B-4: Usage Data Delivery Completeness

Definition

This measurement provides percentage of complete and accurately recorded usage data (usage recorded by BellSouth and usage recorded by other companies and sent to BellSouth for billing) that is processed and transmitted to the CLEC within thirty (30) days of the message recording date. A parity measure is also provided showing completeness of BellSouth messages processed and transmitted via CMDS BillSouth delivers its own retail usage from recording location to billing location via CMDS as well as delivering billing data to other computers. Finelitiess, Completeness and Mean Time to Deliver Usage measures are reported on the same report.

Exclusions

None

Business Rules

The purpose of these measurements is to demonstrate the level of quality of usage data delivered to the appropriate CLEC. Method of delivery is at the option of the CLEC.

Calculation

Usage Data Delivery Completeness = $(a \div b) \times 100$

- $a \in \text{lotal number of Recorded usage records delivered during current month that are within thirty (30) days of the message recording date$
- $b = T \cos a$ number of Recorded usage records delivered during the current month

Report Structure

- CLEC Specific
- CLEC Aggregate
- BellSouth Aggregate
- Region

Data Retained

Relating to CLEC Experience	Relating to BellSouth Performance
 Report Month Record Type BellSouth Recorded Non-BedSouth Recorded 	Report Month Record Type

SQM Disaggregation - Analog/Benchmark

SQM Level of Disaggregation	SQM Analog/Benchmark
• Region	Parity With Retail

SEEM Measure

SEEM Measure		
No	Tier I	
	Tier II	



Florida Peliforinance Metrics

Billing

SEEM Disaggregation	SEEM Analog/Benchmark
Not Applicable	Not Applicable

B-5: Usage Data Delivery Timeliness

B-5: Usage Data Delivery Timeliness

Definition

This measurement provides a percentage of recorded usage data (usage recorded by BellSouth and usage recorded by other companies and sent to BellSouth for billing) that is delivered to the appropriate CLEC within six (6) calendar days from the receipt of the initial recording. A parity measure is also provided showing timeliness of BellSouth messages processed and transmitted via CMDS. Timeliness. Completeness and Mean Time to Deliver Usage measures are reported on the same report.

Exclusions

None

Business Rules

The purpose of this measurement is to demonstrate the level of timeliness for processing and transmission of usage data delivered to the appropriate CLEC. The usage data will be mechanically transmitted or mailed to the CLEC data processing center once daily. The Timeliness interval of usage recorded by other companies is measured from the date BellSouth receives the records to the date BellSouth distributes to the CLEC. Method of delivery is at the option of the CLEC

Calculation

Usage $\text{Jata } \Gamma$ elivery Timeliness Current month = $(a \div b) \times 100$

- $a = Tct\epsilon$ number of usage records sent within six (6) calendar days from initial recording/receipt
- b = Total number of usage records sent

Report Structure

- CLEC Aggregate
- CLEC Specific
- BellSouth Aggregate
- Region

Data Retained

Relating to CLEC Experience	Relating to BellSouth Performance
 Report Month Record Type BellSouth Recorded Nort-Bet South Recorded 	 Report Month Record Type

SQM Level of Disaggregation - Analog/Benchmark

SQM Level of Disaggregation	SQM Analog/Benchmark
• Kegion	Parity with Retail

SEEM Measure

SEEM Measure			
No	Tier I		
	Tier II		



Billing

SEEM Disaggregation - Analog/Benchmark

SEEM Disaggregation	SEEM Analog/Benchmark
• Not AppHathle	Not Applicable

,

B-6: Mean Time to Deliver Usage

Definition

This measurement provides the average time it takes to deliver Usage Records to a CLEC. A parity measure is also provided showing timeliness of BellSouth messages processed and transmitted via CMDS. Timeliness, Completeness and Mean Time to Deliver Usage measures are reported on the same report.

Exclusione

None

Business Rules

The purpose of his measure is to calculate the average number of days it takes BellSouth to deliver usage data to the appropriate CLEC. The calculation reflects the differences between the date the data is transmitted or mailed to the CLEC and the date the data is generated by Customer divided by the total record volume delivery.

Each delivery record is calculated as the time, in days, between when the customer generates the call and when BellSouth delivers the usage data to the CLEC. Each delivery record is categorized by the resulting number of days.

An estimated interval is calculated for each category by taking the total number of usage data records delivered for that period and multiplying it by the total number of days in that period. The mean (average) time to deliver the usage data is calculated by summing all estimated theorem als and dividing by the total number of records delivered.

Note: Any usage record falling in the 30+ day interval will be added using an average figure of 31.5 days.

Usage data is inechanically transmitted or mailed to the CLEC data processing center once daily. Method of delivery is at the option of the CLEC.

Calculation

Delivery Interval Record = (a - b)

- a = Date BellSouth delivers the usage data
- b = Date usage data is generated by the customer

Estimated In erval = (c X d)

- c = Number of records delivered in each category
- d = Number of days to deliver for the category

Mean Time t Deliver Usage = (e + f)

- e = Sum of all estimated intervals
- f = Total number of records delivered

Report Structure

- CLEC Aggregate
- CLEC Specific
- BellSouth Aggregate
- Region

Data Retained

Relating to CLEC Experience	Relating to BellSouth Performance
 Report Month Record Type BellSouth Recorded Non-BellSouth Recorded 	 Report Month Record Type

Billing

SQM Level of Disaggregation - Analog/Benchmark

SQM Level of Disa	aggregation	SQM Analog/Benchmark
Region	٠	Parity With Retail

SEEM Measure

SEEM Measure		
No	Tier I	
	Tier II	

SEEM Disaggregation - Analog/Benchmark

SEEM Disaggregation	SEEM Analog/Benchmark
Not Applicable	Not Applicable

B-6: Mean Time to Deliver Usage

B-7: Recurring Charge Completeness

B-7: Recurring Charge Completeness

Definition

This measure captures percentage of fractional recurring charges appearing on the correct bill.

Exclusions

Near

Business Rules

The effective date of the recurring charge must be within 30 days of the bill date for the charge to appear on the correct bill.

Calculation

```
Recurring Charge Completeness = (a ÷ b) X 100
```

- a = Count of fractional recurring charges that are on the correct bill¹
- b = Total count of fractional recurring charges that are on the correct bill

¹Correct bill = next available bill

Report Star clare

- CLEC Specific
- CLEC Aggregate
- BellSouth Aggregate

Data Retained

Relating to CLEC Experience	Relating to BellSouth Performance
Report month	Report month
Invoice Type	Retail Analog
Total Recurring Charges Billed	 Total recurring charges billed
Tote! Billed On Time	Total Billed On Time

SQM Level of Disaggregation - Analog/Benchmark

SQM Level of Disaggregation	SQM Analog/Benchmark
Production the Type	
• Resale	• Parity
• UNE	Benchmark 90%
Interconnection	Benchmark 90%

SEEM Measure

	SEEM Measure		
No	Tier I		
	Tier II		

SEEM Disaggregation	SEEM Analog/Benchmark
Not Applicable	Not Applicable

B-8: Non-Recurring Charge Completeness

B-8: Non-Recurring Charge Completeness

Definition

This measure captures percentage of non-recurring charges appearing on the correct bill.

Exclusions

Netti

Busineso Ranes

The effective date of the non-recurring charge must be within 30 days of the bill date for the charge to appear on the correct bill.

Calculation

Non-Recurring Charge Completeness = (a + b) X 100

- a = Count of non-recurring charges that are on the correct bill¹
- b = Total count of non-recurring charges that are on the correct bill

¹Correct bill = next available bill

Report Streenare

- CLEC Scientific
- · CLEU Aggregate
- BeliSouth 4.3gregate

Data Rovalliece

Relating to CLEC Experience	Relating to BellSouth Performance
 Report month Invoice type Total non-recurring charges billed Total billed on time 	 Report month Retail Analog Total non-recurring charges billed Total billed on time

SQM Level condition - Analog/Benchmark

SQM Level of Disaggregation	SQM Analog/Benchmark
Picduom Autoo Type	
• Resale	• Parity
• UNE	Benchmark 90%
• Interconnection	Benchmark 90%

SEEM Measure

	SEE	M Measure
No	Tier I	
	Tier II	

SEEM Disaggregation	SEEM Analog/Benchmark
• Not Applicable	Not Applicable

Ū

-9: Percent Daily Usage Feed Errors Corrected in X Business Days

B-9: Percent Daily Usage Feed Errors Corrected in X Business Days

Definition

Measures the timel, correction of Daily Usage Feed (DUF) errors in record information and Pack formats measured separately. Errors included (1) Pack Failure errors and (2) EMI content errors in records.

Exclusion is

- Usage that cannot be corrected and resent or usage that the CLEC doesn't want Retransmitted.
- CLaC and the such File Retransmission forms disputed by BellSouth SMEs that do not result in an EMI error.
- CLEC notification received by BellSouth > 10 business days from transmission date of errored messages or packs.

Business Butes

This measure will provide the % of errors corrected in X Business days.

Pack Failure errors are defined as a DUF header/trailer error containing one or more of the following conditions: Grand total records not equal to records in pack or sequence/invoice numbers for a from RAO is not sequential

EMI content errors are defined as those records with errors contained in the EMI detail records that cause a message to be unbillable by the CLEC

 On_{C} rough earlier concerved via the CLEC Problem/Issue/File Retransmission form will be included in this measure. To locate the form, go to the PMAP web site (<u>http://www.pmap.bellsouth.com/</u>) and click the Documentation Downloads link, then select the "CLEC Problem discussed" like Retransmission form."

When circurastances arise for multiple content errors it is not necessary for the form to be filled out in its entirety, the CLECs agree to provide sufficient information for content error research so that a thorough investigation and resolution can be completed.

For each type error condition, a new CLEC Problem/Issue/File Retransmission form should be submitted.

EMI content errors should be attached in a separate file from the CLEC Problem/Issue/File Retransmission form

Elapsed time i measured in business days.

The clock start when BellSouth receives CLEC's Problem/Issue/File Retransmission form.

The clock stops when BellSouth provides the corrected usage to the CLEC using the predesignated DUF delivery method.

This meas are opplies only to CLECs that are ODUF and ADUF participants

Calculation

Timeliness of Daily Usage EMI Content Errors Corrected = (a + b) X 100

- a = Total (under of Daily Usage Records with EMI Content Errors Corrected in the reporting month within 10 Business Days.
- b = Total number of Daily Usage Records with EMI Content Errors corrected in reporting month.

Timeliness of Daily Usage Pack Format Errors Corrected = (c ÷ d) X 100

- c= Total number of Daily Osage Packs with Format Errors Corrected in the reporting month within 4 Business Days.
- d = Total number of Daily Usage Packs with Format Errors corrected in reporting month

Report Structure

- · CLEC Specific
- Total member of BST disputed Daily Usage Records with EMI Content Errors received in reporting month.
- Total number of Daily Usage Records with EMI Content Errors received in reporting month.
- Total turbler of BST disputed Daily Usage Packs with Format Errors received in reporting month
- Total putther of Daily Usage Packs with Format Errors received in reporting month
- CLEC Aggregate
- Geographic Scope
 - Rэ_Бій..

Data Retained

Relating to CLEC Experience	Relating to BellSouth Performance
 Report nichth BeliSouth Recorded Non-BeliSouth Recorded 	• None

SQM Level or Disaggregation - Analog/Benchmark

SQM Level of Disaggregation	SQM Analog/Benchmark
• Region	Diagnostic

SEEM Measure

	SEEM Measure		
No	Tier I		
	Tier II		

SEEM Disaggregation	SEEM Analog/Benchmark
• Not Apparcable	Not Applicable

B-10: Percent Billing Errors Corrected in X Days

B-10: Percent Billing Errors Corrected in X Days

Definition

Measures timely carrier bill adjustments.

Exclusions

Billing udjustments requests that are rejected by BellSouth or disputed by BellSouth.

Adjustments that are initiated by BellSouth.

Business Rules

This measure applies to CLEC wholesale bill adjustments. IXC Access billing adjustment requests are not reflected in this measure. Elapsed time is measured in outpress days. Clock starts when BellSouth receives the ALECs Billing Adjustment Request (BAR) form (BAR form and instructions found at WWW.interconnection.bellsouth.com/forms/html/billing & collections.html) and the clock stops when adjustments is made to bill through ACATS or BOCRIS (generally next CLEC bill unless adjustment request after middle of the month). BellSouth will report separately those adjustment requests that are disputed by BellSouth.

Calculation

Percent Billing Errors Corrected in 45 Days = (a / b) X 100

- a = Number of BellSouth Adjustments in 45 Days
- $b = T_{\rm ofc}$, $N_{\rm integral of Accjustment}$ Requests in Reporting Period

Report Structure

- CLEC Spectric
- CLEC Aggregate
- Geographic Scope:
- State Specific

Data Retained

Relating to CLEC Experience	Relating to BellSouth Performance
 Number of Bell South Adjustments in 45 days Total number of Billing Adjustment Requests in Reporting Perfoc Number of Adjustments disputed by BellSouth (reported separately) 	• None

SQM Disaggregation - Retail Analog/Benchmark

SQM Level of Disaggregation	SQM Analog/Benchmark
• State	• Diagnostic

SEEM Measure

SEEM Measure		
No	Tier I	
	Tier II	



SEEM Disaggregation	SEEM Analog/Benchmark
Not Applicable	Not Applicable



Section 6: Operator Services And Directory Assistance

OS-1: Speed to Answer Performance/Average Speed to Answer - Toll

Definition

Measurement of the average time in seconds calls wait before answered by a toll operator.

Exclusions

None

Business Rules

The clock starts when the customer enters the queue and the clock stops when a BellSouth representative answers the call or the customer contract contrest contract contract contract contrest contract contract

Calculation

Speed to Answer Performance/Average Speed to Answer - Toll = a + b

- a = Total queue time
- b = Total calls answered

Note: lot a queue time includes time that answered calls wait in queue as well as time abandoned calls wait in queue prior to abandonment.

Report Subscure

- · Reported for the aggregate of BellSouth and CLECs
 - State

Data Retained (on Aggregate Basis)

- For the stems below, BellSouth's Performance Measurement Analysis Platform (PMAP) receives a final computation; therefore, no raw data file is available in PMAP
- Month
- Call Type (Tol1)
- Average upe if of Answer

SQM Level of Disaggregation	SQM Analog/Benchmark
• None	Parity by Design



SEEM Measure

SEEM Measure				
No	Tier I			
	Tier II			

SEEM: Disk meters tion - Analog/Benchmark

SEEM Disaggregation	SEEM Analog/Benchmark
• Not A ₁ pileable	Not Applicable

OS-2: Speed to Answer Performance/Percent Answered with "X" Seconds – Toll

Definition

Measurement of the percent of toll calls that are answered in less than ten seconds

Exclusions

None

Business Rules

The clock starts when the customer enters the queue and the clock stops when a BellSouth representative answers the call or the customer abandons the call. The length of each call is determined by measuring, using a scanning technique, and accumulating the elapsed time from the entry of a customer call into the BellSouth call management system queue until the customer call is abandoned or transferred to BellSouth personnel assigned to handle calls for assistance. The system makes no distinction between CLEC customers and BellSouth customers.

Calculation

The Percent Answered within "X" Seconds measurement for toll is derived by using the BellCore Statistical Answer Conversion Tables, to prover the Average Speed to Answer measure into a percent of calls answered within "X" seconds. The BellCore Conversion Tables are specific to the defined parameters of work time, number of operators, max queue size and call abandonment rates.

Report Structure

- Reporter, for the aggregate of BellSouth and CLECs
- State

Data Retained (on Aggregate Basis)

- For the items below, BellSouth's Performance Measurement Analysis Platform (PMAP) receives a final computation; therefore, no raw data file is available in PMAP
- Month
- Ca¹¹ T 'p* (Toll:
- Average Optical of Auswer

SQM Disaggregation - Analog/Benchmark

SOM Level of Disaggregation:	SQM Analog/Benchmark
• None	Parity by Design

SEEM Measure

SEEM Measure		
No	Tier I	
	Tier II	

SEEM isaggregation	SEEM Analog/Benchmark
Not Applicable	Not Applicable

DA-1: Speed to Answer Performance/Average Speed to Answer – Directory Assistance (DA)

Definition

Measurement of the average time in seconds calls wait before answered by a DA operator.

Exclusions

None

Business Rules

The clock stats when the customer enters the queue and the clock stops when a BellSouth representative answers the call or the customer abardons the call. The length of each call is determined by measuring, using a scanning technique, and accumulating the elapsed time from the entry of a customer call into the BellSouth call management system queue until the customer call is abandoned or transferred to BellSouth personnel assigned to handle calls for assistance. The system makes no distinction between CLEC customers and BellSouth customers.

Calculation

Speed : Answer Performance/Average Speed to Answer - Directory Assistance (DA) = a + b

• a = .c.a. quoue time

• b = Teral culls answered

Note: fotal queue time includes time that answered calls wait in queue as well as time abandoned calls wait in queue prior to abandonment.

Report Saucture

- · Reported for the aggregate of BellSouth and CLECs
- State

Data Retained (on Aggregate Basis)

- For the latential below, BellSouth's Performance Measurement Analysis Platform (PMAP) receives a final computation; therefore, no raw data the is available in PMAP
- Month
- Call Type (DA)
- Average Sprotl of Answer

SQM Level of Disaggregation - Analog/Benchmark

SQM Level of Disaggregation	SQM Analog/Benchmark
• None	Parity by Design

SEEM Measure

SEEM Measure		
No	Tier I	
	Tier II	

SEEM Disaggregation	SEEM Analog/Benchmark
No: Applicable	Not Applicable
DA-2: Speed to Answer Performance/Percent Answered within "X" Seconds – Directory Assistance (DA)

Definition

Measurement of the percent of DA calls that are answered in less than twelve seconds.

Exclusions

None

Business Rules

The clock stars when the customer enters the queue and the clock stops when a BellSouth representative answers the call or the customer abardons the call. The length of each call is determined by measuring, using a scanning technique, and accumulating the elapsen interface of the customer call into the BellSouth call management system queue until the customer call is abandoned or transferred to BellSouth personnel assigned to handle calls for assistance. The system makes no distinction between CLEC customers and BellSouth elaton.ers.

Calculation

The Person' Answered within "X" Seconds measurement for DA is derived by using the BellCore Statistical Answer Conversion Tables, to use the Average Speed to Answer measure into a percent of calls answered within "X" seconds. The BellCore Conversion Tables are specific to the defined parameters of work time, number of operators, max queue size and call abandonment rates.

Report Structure

- Repetted for the aggregate of BellSouth and CLECs
 - Stale

Data Retained (on Aggregate Basis)

- For the items below, BellSouth's Performance Measurement Analysis Platform (PMAP) receives a final computation; therefore, no raw data file is available in PMAP.
- Month
- Call 7. 2 (PA)
- Average option of Aristier

SQM Disaggregation - Analog/Benchmark

SOM Level of Disaggregation	SQM Analog/Benchmark
• None	Parity by Design

SEEM Measure

SEEM Measure		
No	Tier I	
	Tier II	

SEEM Disaggregation - Analog/Benchmark

SEEM Lisaggregation	SEEM Analog/Benchmark
Not Applicable	Not Applicable



Section 7: Database Update Information

D-1: Average Database Update Interval

Definition

This report in bestates the interval from receipt of the database change request to the completion of the update to the database for Line Information, Database (LIDB), Directory Assistance and Directory Listings.

Exclusions

- Updates Car us ed by the CLEC
- Initial update when supplemented by CLEC
- BellSh an up lates as a disted with internal or administrative use of local services.

Business Filles

The interval for the measure begins with the date and time stamp when a service order is completed and the completion notice is released to all systems to be updated with the order information including Directory Assistance, Directory Listings, and Line Information Database (LIDB). The end time stamp is the date and time of completion of updates to the system.

For BellSoam Results:

The BellSouth computation is identical to that for the CLEC with the clarifications noted below.

Other Clarifications and Qualification:

- For LIDE, the elapsed time for a BellSouth update is measured from the point in time when the BellSouth file maintenance process make the LIDE update information available until the date and time reported by BellSouth that database updates are completed.
- Results for the CLECs are captured and reported at the update level by Reporting Dimension (see below).
- Th or plate is the date upon which BellSouth issues the Update Completion Notice to the CLEC-
- If $u \in C \subseteq E^{-1}$ (maters a supply next to the originally submitted update and the supplement reflects changes in customer requirements (rathe that to pendidg to EodSouth initiated changes), then the update submission date and time will be the date and time of BellSouth descript of a syntactically correct update supplement. Update activities responding to BellSouth initiated changes will not result in changes to the update submission date and time used for the purposes of computing the update completion interval.
- Elaps of time comeasured in hours and hundredths of hours rounded to the nearest tenth of an hour.
- Because this should be a highly automated process, the accumulation of elapsed time continues through off-schedule, weekends and holidays, hey over, scheduled maintenance windows are excluded-

Calculation

Update inten .f=(n b)

- a = Commetion Date & Time of Database Update
- b = 5 and the im Dire and Time of Database Change

Average Update Interval = (c + d)

- c = Sum cl'al' Updato Intervais
- d = Tetal Number of Updates Completed During Reporting Period

Report Structure

- CLEC Specific (Under development)
- CLEO Aggregate
- Bell South Agenegate

Florida " main to deal Metrics

Data Retained

Relating to CLEC Experience	Relating to BellSouth Performance
Database File Submission Fime	Database File Submission Time
 Davabase File Update Completion Time 	 Database File Update Completion Time
 CLu C Number of Submissions 	 BellSouth Number of Submissions
• Total have real Uniates	 Total Number of Updates

SQM Discogration - Amalog/Benchmark

3QNI Level of Disaggregation:	SQM Analog/Benchmark
Dattion The • LIDB • Directory Lotifization • Directory Assistance	Parity by Design

SEEM Measure

..

SEEM Measure		
No	Tier I	
 	Tier II	

SEEM Disaggregation - Analog/Benchmark

SEEM Disaggregation	SEEM Analog/Benchmark
Not Applicable	Not Applicable

D-2: Percent Database Update Accuracy

D-2: Percent Database Update Accuracy

Definition

This report theasures the accuracy of database updates by BellSouth for Line Information Database (LIDB) Directory Assistance and Directory 'List's using a statistically valid sample of LSRs/Orders in a manual review. This manual review is not conducted on BellSouth Reta. Orders.

Exclusions

- Upin the statisticy in DLEC
- Initial action where supplemented by CLEC
- CLEC orders that had CLEC errors
- Bell South a venter associated with internal or administrative use of local services.

Business Rules

For each update completed during the reporting period, the original update that the CLEC sent to BellSouth is compared to the database following completion of the update by BellSouth. An update is "completed without error" if the database completely and accurately reflects the authority specified on the original and supplemental update (e.g., orders) submitted by the CLEC. Each database (e.g., LIDB, Directory Australia and Directory Listings) should be separately tracked and reported.

A stall de by valid ample of CLEC Orders will be pulled each month. The sample will be used to test the accuracy of the database update process. This is a manual process.

Calculation

Percent Update Accuracy = $(a \div b) \times 100$

- a = Number of Updates Completed Without Error
- $b = \sum_{i \in \mathcal{A}} b \in i$ (ordates Completed

Report Structure

- CLEC Ageneted
- CLEC Sperify (not available in this report)
- BellS suff. A spressie (not as allable in this report)

Data Retained

Relating to CLEC Experience	Relating to BellSouth Performance
 Report Notatio CLEC Order Number (so_nbr) and PON (PON) Local service Request (LSR) Order Submission Date Number of Sters Reviewed 	• Not Applicable
Note: Code in parentheses is the corresponding header found in the raw data file.	

SQM Disay: sgation - Analog/Benchmark

UQIT Level of Disaggregation	SQM Analog/Benchmark
Databhse of po	95% Accurate
• LIDB	
• Direttery Listings	



Florida Peulomance Metrics

SEEM Measure

SEEM Measure		
No	Tier I	
	Tier II	

SEEM) same negation - Analog/Benchmark

JEEM Disaggregation	SEEM Analog/Benchmark
Not Applicable	Not Applicable

D-3: Percent NXXs and LRNs Loaded by the LERG Effective Date

D-3: Percent NXXs and LRNs Loaded by the LERG Effective Date

Definition

Measurement of the percent of NXX(s) and Location Routing Numbers LRN(s) loaded and tested in new end office and/or tandem switches by the Local-Exchange Routing Guide (LERG) effective date when facilities are in place. BellSouth has a single provisioning process for both NXX(s) and LRN(s). In this measure BellSouth will identify whether or not a particular NXX has been flagged as LNP capable (set trigg at for dips) by the LERG effective date.

An LRN is ascalled by the owner of the switch and is placed into the software translations for every switch to be used as an administ arbit power to reate NXX(s) in LNP capable switches. The LRN is a result of Local Number Porting and is housed in a national database provided by the Number Portability Administration Center (NPAC). The switch owner is responsible for notifying NPAC and requesting the effective date that will be reflected in the LERG. The national database downloads routing tables into BellSouth's Service Centrol Point (SCP) regional database, which are queried by switches when routing ported numbers.

The basic NXX routing process includes the addition of all NXX(s) in the response translations. This addition to response translations is what supports LRN routing. Routing instructions for all NXX(s), including LRN(s), are received from the Advance Routing & Trunking System (ARTS) and all routing, including response, is established based on the information contained in the Translation Work Instructions (TwTess) ioc ament.

Exclusions

- Activation theorem the CLEC's interconnection arrangements and facilities are not in place by the LERG effective date.
- Expedite second

Business Rules

Data for the initial NXX(s) and LRN(s) in a local calling area will be based on the LERG effective date or completion of the initial interconnection frume group(s), whichever is longer. Data for additional NXX(s) in the local calling area will be based on the LERG effective date. The LERG effective date is loaded into the system at the request of the CLEC. It is contingent upon the CLEC to engineer, order, and install interconnection arrangements and facilities prior to that date.

The total Count of NXX(s) and LRN(s) that were scheduled to be loaded and those that were loaded by the LERG effective date in BellSouth switches will be captured in the Work Force Administration -Dispatch In database.

Calculation

Percent N Content of the LERG Effective Date = $(a \div b) \times 100$

- a = Count on NNKS and LRNS loaded by the LERG effective date
- $b = T_{OUL} \times \dots \otimes$ and $\bot RNs$ to be scheduled and loaded by the LERG effective date

Report Structure

- CLEC Specific
- CLEC Agg. sgate
- BellSouth (Not Applicable)

Data Retained

Alefating to C'.EC Experience	Relating to BellSouth Performance
Company Name Company Sole	Not Applicable
NPANNELA LERG Effective Date	
· Louder	

SQM Disaggregation - Analog/Benchmark

SQM Level of Disaggregation	SQM Analog/Benchmark
 Geographic Scope Region 	100% by LERG Effective Date

SEEM Milita Julie

SEEM Measure		
No	Tier I	
	Tier II	

SEEM Disaggregation - Analog/Benchmark

SEEM Disaggregation	SEEM Analog/Benchmark
Not Applicable	Not Applicable

Section 8: E911

E-1: Timeliness

Definition

Measures the percent of batch orders for E911 database updates (to CLEC resale and BellSouth retail records) processed successfully within a 24-nour period.

Exclusions

- Any resale order canceled by a CLEC
- Facilities-based CI FC orders

Business Fulles

The 24 the U(g) (g) (g) (g) (g) (g) (g) period is calculated based on the date and time processing starts on the batch orders and the date and time processing starts on the batch orders and the date and time processing starts when SCC (the BellSouth E911 vendor) receives E911 files containing batch orders extracted from the BellSouth Service Order Control System (SOCS). Processing stops when SCC loads the individual records to the E911 database. The E911 database includes updates to the Automatic Location Identification (ALI) database. The system indices no distinction between CLEC resale records and BellSouth retail records.

Calculation

E911 Timeliness = $(a + b) \times 100$

- a = Number of batch orders processed within 24 hours
- b = Tota' sumper of b, toh olders submitted

Report Strucktre

Reported for the aggregate of CLEC resale updates and BellSouth retail updates

- State
- Region

Data Retained

- Report month
- Aggregate lat

SQM Disaggregation - Analog/Benchmark

SQM Level of Disaggregation		SQM Analog/Benchmark
• None		Parity by Design

SEEM Measure

SEEM Measure		
	No	Tier 1
		Tier II

Florida Field. : a log Metrics

SEEM Disaggregation - Analog/Benchmark

SEEM Disaggregation	SEEM Analog/Benchmark
Not Appl'duble	Not Applicable

E911

.

E-2: Accuracy

Definition

Measures the percent of E911 telephone number (TN) record updates (to CLEC resale and BellSouth retail records) processed successfully for E911 (including the Automatic Location Identification (ALI) database).

Exclusional

- Any resale order canceled by a CLEC
- Facilities 1 100 EC orders

Business Rules

Accuracy is t_{d-2} is t_{d-2} is the strength the number of records processed without error at the conclusion of the processing cycle. Mechanical processing starts when SCC (the BellSouth E911 vendor) receives E911 files containing telephone number (TN) records extracted from BellSouth's Service Order Control System (SOCS). The system makes no distinction between CLEC resale records and BellSouth retail records.

Calculation

E911 Accuracy = (a ÷ b) X 100

- a = Nambor of record individual updates processed with no errors
- b = Totel number of individual record updates

Report Structure

Reported for the aggregate of CLEC resale updates and BellSouth retail updates

- State
- Region

Data Retained

- Report month
- Aggregate l'ata

SQM Disaggregation - Analog/Benchmark

SQM Level of Disaggregation	SQM Analog/Benchmark
• None	Parity by Design

SEEM Measure

SEEM Measure			
No	Tier I		
	Tier II		

SEEM Disaggregation - Analog/Benchmark

SEEM Disaggregation	SEEM Analog/Benchmark
Not Applicable	Not Applicable

Last Revised 1/22/02

E-2: Accuracy

E-3: Mean Interval

Definition

Measures the mean interval processing of E911 batch orders (to update CLEC resale and BellSouth retail records) including processing against the Automatic Location Identification (ALI) database.

Exclusional

- Any resule order canceled by a CLEC
- Fach Contract CO EC inders

Business Rules

The product $ng p i \in n_{2}$ or culated based on the date and time processing starts on the batch orders and the date and time processing stops on the batch orders. Data is posted is 4-hour increments up to and beyond 24 hours. The system makes no distinction between CLEC result records and BellSouth retail records.

Calculation

E911 Interval = (a - b)

- $a = D_{1,2}$ and time of batch order completion
- $b = L_{abc}$ and of batch order submission

• c = Sim of J! E91' Intervals

• **d** = Number of batch orders completed

Report Structure

Reported for the aggregate of CLEC resale updates and BellSouth retail updates

- State
- Region

Data Reit.i. ed.

- Report mon a
- Aggingens ...

SQM Disaggregation - Analog/Benchmark

 SOM Level of Disaggregation	SQM Analog/Benchmark
 • None	Parity by Design

SEEM Measure

SEEM Measure		
No	Tier I	
	Tier II	

SEEM Disaggrogation - Analog/Benchmark

SEEM Disaggregation	SEEM Analog/Benchmark
Not Applicable	Not Applicable

Section 9: Trunk Group Performance

TGP-1: Trunk Group Performance-Aggregate

Definition

The Trunk Group Performance report displays, over a reporting cycle, aggregate, average trunk group blocking data for each hour of each day of the reporting cycle, for both CLEC affecting and BellSouth affecting trunk groups.

Exclusions

- Trunk Groups io: which there was no valid data available for an entire study period
- Duplicate armk group information

Busines - Pulles

The purpose of the Touck Group Ferformance Report is to provide trunk blocking measurements on CLEC and BellSouth trunk groups for completed could be intent of the report that it be used for network management and/or engineering.

Monti ' Evelage Blocking:

- The reporting type: includes both business and non-business days in a calendar month.
- Monthly as the st blocking values are calculated for each trunk group for each of the 24 time consistent hours across a reporting cycle.

Aggregate Monthly Blocking:

- Used to compare aggregate blocking across trunk groups which terminate traffic at CLEC points of presence versus BellSouth switches.
- Aggregate monthly blocking data is calculated for each hour of the day across all trunk groups assigned to a category.

Trun 1 Dating of axion:

This report doubles, or chareporting cycle, aggregate, average blocking data for each hour of a day. Therefore, for each reporting cycle, 24 blocking data for each hour of a day. Therefore, for each reporting cycle, 24 blocking data for each aggregate groups of selected trunk groups. These groups are CLEC affecting and BellSouth affecting trunk groups. In order to assign trunk groups to each aggregate group, all trunk groups are first assigned to a category. A trunk group's end points and the type of traffic that is transmitted on it define a category. Selected categories of trunk groups are assigned to the aggregate groups so that trunk reports can be generated. The categories to which trunk groups have been assigned for this report the ablock.

CLEC Affecting Untegerla.

	Point A	Point B
Calegory 1:	BellSouth End Office	BellSouth Access Tandem
Category 3:	BellSouth End Office	CLEC Switch
Category 4:	BellSouth Local Tandem	CLEC Switch
_ Category D:	BellSouth Access Tandem	CLEC Switch
Category 10:	BellSouth End Office	BellSouth Local Tandem
Chingony 16	BellSouth Tandem	BellSouth Tandem
BellSouth Affecting Categories:		
	Point A	Point B
Category 9:	BellSouth End Office	BellSouth End Office

BHUSOUTH°

Florida Periodos roa Metrics

Calculation

Monthly Annuage Repeking:

- For each hour of the day each day's raw data are summed across all valid measurements days in a report cycle for blocked and attempted calls.
- The sum of the blo. led calls is divided by the total number of calls attempted in a reporting period.

Aggregate Monthly Plocking:

- For each accuracy because hor to they sums of the blocked and attempted calls from each trunk group are separately aggregated over all trunk groups within each assigned category.
- The total crocked calls is divided by the total call attempts within a group to calculate an aggregate monthly blocking for each assigned group.
- The result $_{\rm e}$ in $a_{\rm SU}$ regate monthly average blocking value for each of the 24 hours by group.
- The ofference between the CLEC and BellSouth affecting trunk groups are also calculated for each hour.

Report Structure

- CLEC Aggregate
- · BellSouth Aggregate
 - State

Data R 🐔 🕐 e

	Relating to BellSouth Performance
 Report Month Total Fruide Croups Number of Truck Groups by CLEC Hourly Blueking Per Truck Group Hourly Using Per Truck Group Hourly Char Artempts Per Truck Group 	 Report Month Total Trunk Groups Aggregate Hourly Blocking Per Trunk Group Hourly Usage Per Trunk Group Hourly Call Attempts Per Trunk Group

SQM Disaggregation - Analog/Benchmark

SC Level of Disaggregation	SQM Analog/Benchmark
 CLEC (1997) - 10 Rell'S, 2000 / grogate 	• Any 2 hour period in 24 hours where CLEC blockage exceeds BellSouth blockage by more than 0.5% using trunk groups 1, 3, 4, 5, 10, 16 for CLECs and 9 for BellSouth

SEEM Maladu .

	SEEM Me	asure
Yes	Tier I	
	Tier II	X

SEEM Disagoregation - Analog/Benchmark

SEEM Disaggregation	SEEM Analog/Benchmark
 CL^{TC} Aggrogue BellSouth Aggrogate 	• Any 2 hour period in 24 hours where CLEC blockage exceeds BellSouth blockage by more than 0.5% using trunk groups 1,3,4,5,10,16 for CLECs and 9 for BellSouth

Florida Pertonnance Metrics

TGP-2: Trunk Group Performance – CLEC Specific

TGP-2: Trunk Group Performance – CLEC Specific

Definit(c) i

The Trunk Group Porformance report displays, over a reporting cycle, aggregate, average trunk group blocking data for each hour of each day of the reporting cycle, for both CLEC affecting and BellSouth affecting trunk groups.

Exclusion a

- Trun'. From s for which there was no valid data available for an entire study period
- Duplies are greated or ation

Business Rules

The purpersublet f to f the form report is to provide trunk blocking measurements on CLEC and BellSouth trunk groups for comparison only. It is not the intent of the report that it be used for network management and/or engineering.

Month Autor Description

- The reported payeds to choice both business and non-business days in a calendar month.
- Monthly average blocking values are calculated for each trunk group for each of the 24 time consistent hours across a reporting cycle.

Aggregate Monthly Blocking:

- Use the other applied a plocking across trunk groups which terminate traffic at CLEC points of presence versus BellSouth switches
- Aggregate montaily blocking data is calculated for each hour of the day across all trunk groups assigned to a category.

Trunk Collect Fration:

• This applies of the contract points group is an generated for two aggregate groups of selected trunk groups. These groups are CLEC affecting and BellSouth affecting trunk groups. In order to assign trunk groups to each aggregate group, all trunk groups are first assigned to a category. A transformer set points and the type of traffic that is transmitted on it define a category. Selected categories of trunk groups to that trunk reports can be generated. The categories to which trunk groups have been assigned to a locate of the categories to that trunk reports can be generated. The categories to which trunk groups have been assigned to a locate of the categories are us follows.

CLEC Affecting Categorias

	Point A	Point B
Chiegory 1:	BellSouth End Office	BellSouth Access Tandem
Cotegory 3:	BellSouth End Office	CLEC Switch
Ciklegory 4	BellSouth Local Tandem	CLEC Switch
Calegory 5.	BellSouth Access Tandem	CLEC Switch
Lategory 10;	BellSouth End Office	BellSouth Local Tandem
alle my 16.	BellSouth Tandem	BellSouth Tandem

BellSouth Affecting Categories:

Category 9:

Point A BellSouth End Office

Point B

BellSouth End Office

Calculation

Monthly Anoran B information

- For each noticet ne day, each day's raw data are summed across all valid measurements days in a report cycle for blocked and attempted colls.
- The sum of the clocked calls is divided by the total number of calls attempted in a reporting period.

Aggregate Monthly Blocking:

Florida Fenturi rande lifetrios

- For each home of the day, the monthly sums of the blocked and attempted calls from each trunk group are separately aggregated over all trunk groups within each assigned category.
- The total biocked caus is divided by the total call attempts within a group to calculate an aggregate monthly blocking for each assigned group.
- The result of the 24 hours by group.
- The difference be ween the CLEC and BellSouth affecting trunk groups are also calculated for each hour.

Report Strateman.

- CLEC Stellin
- S 😳

Data Retained

Relaxing to CLEC Experience	Relating to BellSouth Performance
 Report Month Total Trank Groups Number of Trank Groups by CLEC Hourly Blocking Per Trank Group Hourly Usage Per Trank Group Hourly Usage Per Trank Group Hourly Concerning SPer Trank Group 	 Report Month Total Trunk Groups Aggregate Hourly Blocking Per Trunk Group Hourly Usage Per Trunk Group Hourly Call Attempts Per Trunk Group

SQM Disaggregation - Analog/Benchmark

SQ.VI Level of Disaggregation	SQM Analog/Benchmark
CLEC Trank C =	• Any 2 hour period in 24 hours where CLEC blockage exceeds BellSouth blockage by more than 0.5% using trunk groups 1, 3, 4, 5, 10, 16 for CLECs and 9 for BellSouth

SEEM Measure

	SEEM N	leasure
Yes	Tier I	X
I	Tier II	

SEEM Disaggrepation - Analog/Benchmark

SEEM Disaggregation	SEEM Analog/Benchmark
CLEC Truck Group BellSouth Think Group	• Any 2 hour period in 24 hours where CLEC blockage exceeds BellSouth blockage by more than 0.5% using trunk groups 1, 3, 4, 5, 10, 16 for CLECs and 9 for BellSouth

Section 10: Collocation

C-1: Collocation Average Response Time

Definition

Measures the average time (counted in calendar days) from the receipt of a complete and accurate collocation application (including receipt c.) application fee if required) to the date BellSouth returns a response electronically or in writing. Within 10 calendar days after having received a bona fide application for physical collocation, BellSouth must respond as to whether space is available or not.

Exclusions

Any application canceled by the CLEC

Busines Pullat

The clock set is $n \ln n$ date to a Be-IS both receives a complete and accurate collocation application accompanied by the appropriate application feature to the clock stops on the date that BellSouth returns a response. The clock will restart upon receipt of changes to the original application request.

Calculation

Response Time = (a - b)

- a = Request Response Date
- $b = R_{122}$ lest Submission Date

Average Resp. to Time = (c + d)

- c = Sum of all Response Times
- die Constructive esponses Fleturne 1 within Reporting Period

Report Scrubiuse

- Incividual CLEC (alias) aggregate
- Aggregate of all CLECs

Data Retained

- Report Deriba
- Aggits is data

SQM Disaggregation - Analog/Benchmark

SQM Level of Disaggregation	SQM Analog/Benchmark	
 State Virtual-Initial Virtual-Augment Prysical Cogec-initial Physical Coged-Augment Capalean Coge assemitial Physical Cogelan -Augment 	 Virtual - 15 Calendar Days Physical Caged - 15 Calendar Days Physical Cageless - 15 Calendar Days 	

Florida F. formatic Mainea

SEEM Measure

	SEEM Measure		
No	Tier I		
	Tier II		

SEEN DE THE BUILTING ALL log/Benchmark

المعند عنية aggregation	SEEM Analog/Benchmark
• No. A ₂ pilet se	Not Applicable

C-2: Collocation Average Arrangement Time

Definition

Measures the average time (counted in calendar days) from receipt of a complete and accurate Bona Fide firm order (including receipt of appropriate fee if required) to the date BellSouth completes the collocation arrangement and notifies the CLEC and the CLEC accepts the arrangement.

Exclusions

Any provide the state party led by the CLEC

Business Rules

The clock states to the cate that Dedbouth receives a complete and accurate Bone Fide firm order accompanied by the appropriate fee. The clock stops on the date that BellSouth completes the collocation arrangement and notifies the CLEC. The cable assignments associated with the specific collocation request will be provided prior to completion of the arrangement.

Calculation

Arrangement Time = (a - b)

- a = Dite Collor allow Arrangement is Complete
- + $b \gg 7$ it . Cruch for Collocation Arrangement Submitted

Aver g = (1, 2, ..., 1, ..., 1) ($a \neq (a \neq d$)

- c = Sum of all Arrangement Times
- d = 10tai Number of Collocation Arrangements Completed during Reporting Period

Report Structure

- Individual CLEC (atias) aggregate
- Aggregate of all CLECs

Data Retained

- · Report perie 1
- ، مى يە Augr. ي

SQM Disaggregation - Analog/Benchmark

SQM Level of Disaggregation	SQM Analog/Benchmark
 Stre Virtual-Initial Virtual-Augment Physical Caged-Initial Physical Caged-Augment Physical Cageless-Initial Physical Cageless-Augment 	 Virtual - 60 Calendar Days Virtual-Augment - 45 Calendar Days (Without Space Increase) Virtual-Augment - 60 Calendar Days (With Space Increase) Physical Caged - 90 Calendar Days (Ordinary) Physical Caged-Augment - 45 Calendar Days (Without Space Increase) Physical Caged-Augment - 90 Calendar Days (With Space Increase) Physical Cagedess - 90 Calendar Days Physical Cagedless - 45 Calendar Days (With Space Increase) Physical Cagedless - 45 Calendar Days (Without Space Increase) Physical Cagedless - Augment - 45 Calendar Days (Without Space Increase) Physical Cagedless - Augment - 45 Calendar Days (Without Space Increase) Physical Cagedless - Augment - 90 Calendar Days (Without Space Increase)

SEEM Musisure

	SEEM Measure		
No	Tier I		
	Tier II		

Florida Per ormance Metrics

Collocation

SEEM Disciplingation - Analog/Benchmark

SEEM Disaggregation	SEEM Analog/Benchmark
• Nue Amplicable	Not Applicable

Florida Performance Metrics

C-3: Collocation Percent of Due Dates Missed

C-3: Collocation Percent of Due Dates Missed

Definition

Measures the percent of missed due dates for both virtual and physical collocation arrangements

Exclusions

Any Blital firm program below by the CLEC

Businesd Euler

Percent Due Dates Missed is the percent of total collocation arrangements which BellSouth is unable to complete by end of the BellSouth committed due date. The clock starts on the date that BellSouth receives a complete and accurate Bona Fide firm order accomplete considered are completed on or before the committed due date if it is not completed on or before the committed due date

Calculation

% of Due Dates Missed = $(a \div b) \times 100$

- $a = N_{42}$ ber of Completed Orders that were not completed within BellSouth Committed Due Date during Reporting Period
- $b = N^{1}$...bet of Olders Completed in Reporting Period

Report Structure

- Individual CLEC (alias) aggregate
- Aggregate of all CLECs

Data Retained

- Report period
- Aggragate data

SQM Disaggregation - Analog/Benchmark

C/2M Level of Disaggregation	SQM Analog/Benchmark	
• Stota	• \geq 95% on time	
• Virtual-Iniliai		
• Virtual- Augmen		
• Physical Caged- initial		
Physical C (1914) igment		
• Physical Cageless-Initial		
Physical Cageless- Augment		

SEEM Measure

ſ	SEEM Measure			
ľ	Yes	Tier I	X	
		Tier II	X	

SEEM Disaggregation - Analog/Benchmark

SEEM Disaggregation	SEEM Analog/Benchmark
All Collocation Arrangements	• \geq 95% on time



Section 11: Change Management

CM-1: Imelates of Change Management Notices

Definition

Measures whener CLECs receive required software release notices on time to prepare for BellSouth interface/system changes so CLEC interfaces one first burget by change.

Exclusions

- Changes to release dates for reasons outside BellSouth control, such as the system software vendor changes. For example: a patch to fix a software problem
- Type 5. Competing entropy of the stage of

Busines 🐁 🐁

This metric is designed to measure the percent of change management notices sent to the CLECs according to notification standards and time frames set forth in the Change Control Process. The CCP is used by BellSouth and the CLECs to manage requested changes to the BellSouth Local Interfaces.

The clock starts on the softication date. The clock stops on the software release date. When project events occur (scope changes, analysis informatical etc.), the software release date may change. A revised notification would be required and the clock would restart. Based on release constraints for defects/expedites, notification may be less than the agreed upon interval in the CCP for new features.

Calculation

Timelines: of change Management Notices = $(a \div b) \ge 100$

- a = Tetal of other of Change Management Notifications Sent Within Required Time frames
- Ent Tous Control Change Management Notifications Sent

Report Samuchure

• BellSouth Augustaute

Data Retained

- Report Foricu
- Notice Date
- $Re!_{e_{1}} \gg Date$

SQM Disaggregation - Analog/Benchmark

Level of Disaggregation		SQM Analog/Benchmark
Reption	-	• 98% on time

SEEM Measure

SEEM Measure		
Yes	Tier I	
	Tier II	X

Version 2.00



Florida Pacito Sama Matrice

SEEM Disaggregation - Analog/Benchmark

SiEEM Disaggregation	SEEM Analog/Benchmark
• Region	• 98% on time

CM-2: Change Management Notice Average Delay Days

Definition

Measures the average delay days for change management system release notices sent outside the time frame set forth in the Change Control Process.

Exclusion as

- · Changes to release dotes for reasons outside BellSouth control, such as the system vendor
- Tripulation and the locs/Expedites), as defined by the Change Control Process

Business Rules

This metric is e construction of the percent of change management notices sent to the CLECs according to notification standards and time frames set forth in the Change Control Process. The CCP is used by BellSouth and the CLECs to manage requested changes to the BellSouth Local Interfaces.

The clock starts on the notification due date. The clock stops on the software release date. When project events occur (scope changes, analysis information, etc.), the software release date may change. A revised notification would be required and the clock would restart. Based on release constraints for defects/expedites, notification may be less than the agreed upon interval in the CCP for new features

Calculat or

Change V in general Notice Delay Days = (a - b)

```
• a = Date Notice Sent
```

```
• b = D itu Nolle : Due
```

Chang. If $a = g(c_{i,j}, a_{i,j}) \in Average Delay Days = (c \div d)$

- c = Sum of al' Change Management Notice Delay Days
- d = Total Number of Notices Sent Late

Report Structure

· BellSouth Aggregate

Data Retarres

- Reput.
- Notice Data
- Relia e litte

SQM Disaggregation - Analog/Benchmark

SQM Level of Disaggregation	SQM Analog/Benchmark	
• Regron	• ≤ 5 Days	

SEEM Misabure

	SEEM Measure		
No	Tier I		
	Tier II		

SEEM Disaggregation - Analog/Benchmark

SEEM Disaggregation	SEEM Analog/Benchmark
Not Applicable	Not Applicable

Florida Person ance vietrics

CM-3: Timess of Documents Associated with Change

Definition

Measures (vitothe) CLECs received requirements or business rule documentation on time to prepare for BellSouth interface/system changes so CLEC interfaces are not impaired by change as set forth in the Change Control Process governed by the CLEC/BellSouth Review Boston

Exclusiona

- Determine the the case dates that slip less than 30 days for a change mandated by regulatory or legal entities (Federal Commune of the commission/authority, or state and federal courts) or CLEC request.
- Type 6 Change Requests (Defects/Expedites), as defined by the Change Control Process.

Business Rules

This metric is designed to measure the percent of requirements or business rule documentation sent to the CLECs according to documentation star certais and time frames set forth in the Change Control Process. The CCP is used by BellSouth and the CLECs to manage requirements of business to the BellSouth Local Interfaces.

The clock starts on the business rule documentation release date. The clock stops on the software release date. When project events occur (scope changes, analysis information, etc.), the software release date may change. Revisions to documentation could be required and the clock would resurt.

Calculatio .

Timeliness o. Documents Associated with Change = $(a \div b) \ge 100$

- a = Charge Mangement Dobumentation Sent Within Required Time frames after Notices
- $b = T/t_{\rm eld} \times u$ (ber of Change Management Documentation Sent

Report Structure

• BellSouth Lag 23 9

Data Retained

- Real ford
- Notice Date
- Roles as Due

SQM Disaggrugation - Analog/Benchmark

JQM Level of Disaggregation	SQM Analog/Benchmark
• Relian	• 98% on Time

SEEM Measure

	SEEM Measure		
-	Yes	Tier I	
		Tier II	X

SEEM Disagging atton - Analog/Benchmark

SEEM Disaggregation	SEEM Analog/Benchmark
• Regior.	• 98% on Time

CM-4: Change Management Documentation Average Delay Days

CM-4: Change Management Documentation Average Delay Days

Definition

Measure $de = e_{1} e_{2} e_{3} e_{4}$ de s for requirements or business rule documentation sent outside the time frames set forth in the Change Control $2r + e_{2}$

Exclusic la

- Documents on tor release dates that slip less than 30 days for reasons outside BellSouth control, such as changes due to Regulatory mail (a. o., CLEC) equals.
- Type 5 Charles Requests (Defects/Expedites), as defined by the Change Control Process.

Business Rules

This metric and function measure the percent of requirements or business rule documentation sent to the CLECs according to documentation statutures and time frames set forth in the Change Control Process. The CCP is used by BellSouth and the CLECs to manage requested changes to the BellSouth Local Interfaces.

The clock starts on the business rule documentation release date. The clock stops on the software release date. When project events occur (scope changes, analysis information, etc.), the software release date may change. Revisions to documentation could be required and the clock would restart.

Calculation

Change Management Documentation Delay Days = (a - b)

- a = Date Documentation Provided
- b a Dut (Dr. Command in Dub)

Change M is eq. ... Documentation Average Delay Days = (c + d)

- c = Sum of all CM Documentation Delay Days
- $a = \log c$ Chapter Management Documents Sent

Report Structure

• Bellin un Algeregele

Data Retained

- Report 16.1.1.
- Notice Dal.
- Rules le la .

SQM Disaggregation - Analog/Benchmark

CORL Level of Disaggregation	SQM Analog/Benchmark
Region	• ≤ 5 Days

SEEM Maasulle

SEEM Measure		
No	Tier I	
	Tier II	

SEEM Disagaregation - Analog/Benchmark

SEEM Disaggregation	SEEM Analog/Benchmark
• Not A ***	Not Applicable

Change Management

CM-5: Notification of CLEC Interface Outages

CM-5: Notification of CLEC Interface Outages

Definition

Measures the time it takes BellSouth to notify the CLEC of an outage of an interface.

Exclusions

Nc :

Business Ethioa

This much religions to notify the CLEC of interface outages within 15 minutes of BellSouth's verification that an outage has taken place. This metric will be expressed as a percentage.

Calculation

Notify ation of CLEC Interface Outages = $(a \div b) \times 100$

- a = Number Vinter ace Outages where CLECS are notified within 15 minutes
- b = Total Number of Interface Outages

Report Scholate

• CLEC Agglegate

Data Retained

Relating to CLEC Experience	Relating to BellSouth Performance
Number o Interface Outages	Not Applicable
 Number of Netifications ≤ 15 minutes 	

SQM Disaggregation - Acalog/Benchmark

TIM Level of Disaggregation	SQM Analog/Benchmark
• By inclution type for all interfaces accessed by CLECs	• $97\% \le 15$ Minutes

Interface	Applicable to
EDI	CLEC
CSOTS	CLEC
LENS	CLEC
TAG	CLEC
ECTA	CLEC
TAFI	CLEC/BellSouth

SEEM Moasure

SEEM Measure		
No	Tier I	
-	Tier II	

BELLSOUTH

Florida Pelliphicande Metrics

Change Management

SEEM Olsaggregation - Analog/Benchmark

.

SEEM Disaggregation	SEEM Analog/Benchmark
Not Applicable	Not Applicable



Appendix A: Reporting Scope

A-1: Standard Service Groupings

See individual reports in the body of the SQM.

A-2: Standard Service Order Activities

The scale the generic Bellineu h/CLH/C service order activities which are included in the Pre-Ordering, Ordering, and Provisioning section of this document. It is not meant to indicate specific reporting categories.

Service Order Activity Types

- Service Mig. atlans Without Changes
- Service Migrations With Changes
- Move and Change Activities
- Service Disconnects (Unless noted otherwise)
- New Service Installations

Pre-Ordening Quory Types

- Address
- Telephone Numeri
- Appoint la Subsuling
- Custome is livice Record
- Feller av latifier
- Service 'noviny

Maintenance Query Types

TAFI - TAF' querles the systems below

- CRIS
- March
- Predictor
- LMOS
- LLA
- Dien I
- ENGCape
- LNP
- NIW
- OSP1 4
- \$000

Report Levels

- CLEC RESH
- CLEC State
- CLEC Region
- Aggregate CLVC S ate

Version 2.00



Florida Perconnance Metrics

- Aggregate Cried Reg...n
- · BeliSourn State

..

• BellScur (Right)

.

,

Appendix B: Glossary of Acronyms and Terms

Symbols used in calculations

- Σ A mathematical symbol representing the sum of a series of values following the symbol.
- A mathematical operator representing subtraction.
- + A mathematical operator representing addition.
- + A inachematical operator representing division.
- < A mathematical symbol that indicates the metric on the left of the symbol is less than the metric on the right.
- \leq A ma hematical symbol that indicates the metric on the left of the symbol is less than or equal to the metric on the right.
- > A mathematical symbol that indicates the metric on the left of the symbol is greater than the metric on the right.
- > A mathematical symbol that indicates the metric on the left of the symbol is greater than or equal to the metric on the right.
- () Parentheses, used to group mathematical operations which are completed before operations outside the parentheses.

A

ACT: the or of cOUDistributor - A service that provides status monitoring of agents in a call center and routes high volume incoming telephone daris to available agents while collecting management information on both callers and attendants.

Aggregate: Survectal of all items in like category, e.g. CLEC aggregate equals the sum total of all CLECs' data for a given reporting level.

ALEC: Alternative Local Exchange Company = FL CLEC

ADSL: Asy ametrical Digital Subscriber Line

ASR: Access Service Request - A request for access service terminating delivery of carrier traffic into a Local Exchange Carrier's network.

ATLATT $\mathbf{M} = \mathbb{T} \cup \mathbb{A} \mathbb{S}$ software contract for Telephone Number.

Auto Clarification: The number of LSRs that were electronically rejected from LESOG and electronically returned to the CLEC for correction.

В

BFR: Bona Hed Request

Version 2.00

BELSOUTH'

Florida Port in manita fletrice

BII $L^{\infty} \subseteq C \subseteq \mathbb{R}^{n}$ process had functions by which billing data is collected and by which account information is processed in order to render accurate and timely billing.

BOCRIS: Bus dess Office Customer Record Information System (Front-end to the CRIS database.)

BRI: Basic Rate ISDN

BPC (*D*) (*S*) (*D*) (*D*) (*S*) (*D*) (*D*) (*D*) (*D*) (*D*) (*D*) (*D*)

Bea5... a URSouth release munications, Inc.

С

CABS: Carlier Access Billing System

CCC: Coordinated Customer Conversions

CCP: Change Control Process

 $Ce^{-1}C^{-1} = c e^{-1} e^{-1}$ be projected by local exchange carriers, which is similar to a Private Branch Exchange (PBX) but the switching equipment is located in the telephone company Central Office (CO).

CKTrtheast squestion for elements combined in a service configuration

CLFC: Commentive Local Exchange Carrier

CLP: Comparative Local Provider = NC CLEC

CM: Change Management

CMDS: Centralized Message Distribution System - Telcordia administered national system used to transfer specially formatted messages among companies

COFFI. Use the Other Febture File Interface - Provides information about USOCs and class of service. COFFI is a part of DOE/ $SON_{12} = 1$ and t = 1 and t = 1 and t = 1 and t = 1.

CRIS: Customer Record Information System - This system is used to retain customer information and render bills for telecondrum units as service

CR5ACCT3 CR18 software contract for CSR information

CRSG: Complex Resale Support Group

C-SOTS: CLEC Service Order Tracking System

CSR. Du to her Scruice Record

- ----

CTTC is the state of the stat

D

DA: Directory Assistance

DESIGN: Design Service is defined as any Special or Plain Old Telephone Service Order which requires BellSouth Design Eaglineering Activities

BEN COUTH

Florida Pariour lay Usin factios

DISPOSETION & CAUSE: Types of trouble conditions, e.g. No Trouble Found, Central Office Equipment, Customer Premises Equipment, etc.

DLETH: Display Lengthy Trouble History - A history report that gives all activity on a line record for trouble reports in LMOS

DLR: Date the Pacord - A report that gives detailed line record information on records maintained in LMOS

DS-v: DS-v: Standard speed for one digital voice signal (64000 bps).

DS-1+ 24 DS On (1.54- 24h/see life, carrier systems)

DOE: Direct Order Entry System - An internal BellSouth service order entry system used by BellSouth Service Representatives to induce the induced service orders in BellSouth format.

DSAP: DOE (Direct Order Entry) Support Application - The BellSouth Operations System which assists a Service Representative or similar carrier agent in negotiating service provisioning commitments for non-designed services and Unbundled Network Elements.

DSAPNDE FSAP offware contract for schedule information.

DSL: Digital Stoppriber Line

DUI: Lia acts. U. ite information

Ε

E911: Provides callers access to the applicable emergency services bureau by dialing a 0-digit in versal telephone number.

EDI: Electron o Data interchange - The computer-to-computer exchange of inter and/or intra-company business documents in a public secondard format.

ESSN: Descould tonic (Service

FG

Fatal Refer. The number of LSRs that were electronically rejected from LEO, which checks to see of the LSR has all the required net is deneedly populated.

Flow-Three in the context of this document, LSRs submitted electronically via the CLEC mechanized ordering process that flow through to the BellSouth OSS without manual or human intervention.

FOC: First Order Confirmation - A notification returned to the CLEC confirming that the LSR has been received and accepted, including the present of commutation thate.

FX: Fore gat takehange

-

Η

HAL: "Hat in Off" Assignment Logic - Front end access and error resolution logic used in interfacing BellSouth Operations Systems such as ATLAS, BOCRIS, LMOS, PSIMS, RSAG and SOCS.

HAUCRIS: HAU sofe are contract for CSR information

HDSL: High Density Subsenber Loop/Line

OBELL SOUTH

Florida Parkan takes Metrics

IJK

ILSC In State Out Explange Company

INP: Internetsein im Forteholity

ISDN: Integrated Services Digital Network

L

LAN: Logal Area Network

LAUTO: The act in nucle processor in the LNP Gateway that validates LSRs and issues service orders.

LCSC: Local Carrier Service Center - The BellSouth center which is dedicated to handling CLEC LSRs, ASRs, and Preordering transactions atong with associated expedite requests and escalations.

Legacy System: Ferry used to refer to BellSouth Operations Support Systems (see OSS)

LENS: Local Electrange Negotiation System - The BellSouth LAN/web server/OS application developed to provide both preordoring, and or pring electronic interface functions for CLECs.

LEO: Local Exchange Ordering - A BellSouth system which accepts the output of EDI, applies edit and formatting checks, and reformats the Local Service Requests in BellSouth Service Order format.

LERG: Contractor Routing, Guide

LESOC - Local Fourier Service Order Generator - A BellSouth system which accepts the service order output of LEO and enterpoint Service. Order lato the Service Order Control System using terminal emulation technology.

 $LFAC \gg -\infty$. First, the states ment and Control System

LIDE. Mile Liferin Mex Datorase

LMOS: Loop Maintenance Operations System - A system that provides a mechanized means of maintaining customer line records and the englang, processing, and tracking trouble reports.

LMOS FORMER ICS host computer

LMOSupd: 11405 indate allows trouble tickets on line records to be entered into LMOS.

LMU: Loor Маке-пр

LMi S. C.o. Mass-or Service inquiry

LNP. Loted Number as the transfers to a different local service provider.

LNP Gaussian Local Number Portability (gateway)- A system that provides both internal and external communications with various interfaces and process including:

(1). Linking BehSouth to the Number Portability Administration Center (NPAC).

- (b) when a finance operapany communications between BellSouth and the CLECs for electronic ordering.
- (3) Providing interface between NPAC and AIN SMS for LNP routing processes.

LOOPS : Harnsarie den packs from the central office to the customer premises.

LRN: Location Routing Number

LSR: Local ter top request - A request for local resale service or unbundled network elements from a CLEC.

Μ

 M_{aut} to p_{aut} is p_{aut} in the process and function by which trouble reports are passed to BellSouth and by which the relation of p_{aut} is p_{aut} is a process of the process of the

MARCH: A match by administration system that translates line-related service order data into switch provisioning messages and a constructiby transmits the messages to targeted stored program control system switches.

Ν

NBR: New Eldifrend Request

NC: "No C realts" - All circuits busy announcement.

NI W. Service that in processing trouble reports.

NPA: Numbering Prin Area

NXX: The relicit anget nortion of a telephone number.

0

OASIS: Obtain Availability Services Information System - A BellSouth front-end processor, which acts as an interface between COFFI and SNNE This system takes the USOCs in COFFI and translates them to English for display in RNS.

Oright Development Conditioners contract for feature/service

OASISCAR: OASIS offware contract for feature/service

OASISLEC (2018) B is fitwate contract for feature/service

OASISMTN: UASIS software contract for feature/service

OASISNET: OASIS software contract for feature/service

OASIS/OCE: UNSIS software contract for feature/service

OR TERE I all the process and functions by which resale services or unbundled network elements are ordered from Bell-Sourn as we'll as the process by which an LSR or ASR is placed with BellSouth.

Order (types: the following order types are used in this document:

- (1) If the theorem of a change of address. This Order Type is used to connect main service at a new address when a customer moves from one address to another in any of the nine states within the BellSouth region. A "T" Order Type is always pared with an "F" Order Type which will have the same telephone number following the "F" Order Type Code unless the orders are within different states.
- (2). N Orders establishing a new account. Also, this Order Type Code is occasionally used when changing from one back of system to enother such as when changing from PBX to Centrex.

OBELSOUTH

Florida Perio internet e e e

- (b) 1 (a) Pope used for the following conditions: changes or partial connections or disconnections of service or the languable 'ne'ephone number, grade or class of main line, additional lines, auxiliary lines, PBX trunks (a) that one include of trunks or lines to existing accounts: move of equipment (other than change of address); that was subjected and restoration of service at customer's request.
- (4) R Order Type used for the following conditions: additions, removals or changes in directory listings; responsiocity change orders, addition, removal or changes in directory and billing information; other record corrections reliable. Activity involved.

OSP^{CME Contract} Management System - A system that provides scheduling and completion information on outside open construction activities.

OSS: On the local dup but System - A support system or database which is used to mechanize the flow or performance of work. The net make used to refer to the overall system consisting of hardware complex, computer operating system(s), and approaches used to provide the support functions.

OUT OF SERVICE: Customer has no dial tone and cannot call out.

PQ

PM J B mara le Maplarene it Analysis Platform

PONE A COLLECTION of the

POTS: Pinin Challelephone Service

PREDIC 1997 As an which is used to administer proactive maintenance and rehabilitation activities on outside plant facilities, provide costs to selected work groups to Mechanized Loop Testing and switching system I/O ports.

Preordering: The process and functions by which vital information is obtained, verified, or validated prior to placing a service request.

PRin that will be to

Provision 1 (1) by the compared functions by which necessary work is performed to activate a service requested via an LSR or ASK interference me proper billing and accounting functions.

PSLMS. The first control of the investory Management System - A BellSouth database Operations System which contains availability in the construction construction of switching system features and capabilities and on BellSouth service availability. This database is used to verify the verify of a feature or service in an NXX prior to making a commitment to the customer.

PSIMEORB: PS 1/18 software contract for feature/service.

R

RNS: Regionar hegotiation system - An internal BellSouth service order entry system used by BellSouth Consumer Services to internal bellSouth format.

ROS: Regional Ordering System

_ __ __ __ __

RRC: R- Former Services trouble receipt center which serves residential customers.

RSAG: Regime Sheet Address Guide - The BellSouth database, which contains street addresses validated to be accurate with state of a Unit governments

RSAGADDR. RSAG software contract for address search.
Florida P. fore and C. Burles

RSAGTS 234 C stat ware contract for telephone number search.

S

SAC. Set a print state Center

SEEM: Self Effectuating Enforcement Mechanism

SGC3. Blass a Cr.'or Control System - A system which routes service order images among BellSouth drop points and BellCont' Control System routise provisioning process.

SOIR: Der Der Det Erlagen Record - any change effecting activity to a customer account by service order that impacts 911/E91

SONGS: Service the goliation and Generation System.

Т

TAFE: Trouble Analysis Facilitation Interface - The BellSouth Operations System that supports trouble receipt center personnel in telengiand menaling customer trouble reports.

TAG: Telepoint uncerticus Access Gateway – TAG was designed to provide an electronic interface, or machine-tomachine interface for the bi-directional flow of information between BellSouth's OSSs and participating CLECs.

TN: Tolephore and per

To $\Re = e_{12}$ Freque The number of LSRs which are entered electronically but require manual entering into a service order generation

UV

UNE: Last Bid Net lork Element

UCL: Or work of provide

USOC: Entry Stranger Crucke

WXYZ

Wellers, Welder net Telephone Service

WFA: Work Force Administration

WMC: No & Management Center

WTN: Working Telephone Number.



Appendix C: BellSouth Audit Policy

C-1: BedSouh's Internal Audit Policy

BellSouth's Local cours to make certain that the reports produced by the PMAP platform are of the highest accuracy has been formalized in to the first introduce Measurements Quality Assurance Plan (PMQAP) that documents and augments existing quality assurance becomes as is tograf to the production and validation of Performance Measurements data.

The plan is usist a lineae socions.

- 1. Change Control adding the quality assurance steps involved in the introduction of new measurements and changes to actual guideacity meator.
- 2. Element is conclusive on quality assurance steps used to create monthly SQM reports.
- 3_{11} (1 + 1) (1 + 1) (2 +

The Rens with 1000 AP will ensure that BellSouth effectively and consistently provides accurate performance measurements data for the convities monocers in the SQM. The BehSouth Internal Audit department will audit this plan and its quality assurance steps annually, beginning 1440 H.

C-2: BeaSen eth s External Audit Policy

BeliSouth currently provides many CLECs with audit rights as a part of their individual interconnection agreements. BellSouth has developed on a contract of the structure by the parties to an audit. If requested by a Public Service Commission or by a CLEC exercising on routing to the trights, BellSouth will agree to undergo a comprehensive audit of the current year aggregate level represented on the current version of the office of the office of the office office of the term of the office of the structure of the selfcoded by BellSouth and the CLEC. The results of audits will be made available to all the parties subject to proper sating using on the properties of the results of audits include the following specifications:

- 1. The suffer b bonne of BellSouth.
- 2. The lod is a d of third party auditor shall be selected with input from BellSouth, the PSC, if applicable, and the CLEC(s).
- 3. BellSo where PSC and the CLECs shall jointly determine the scope of the audit.

These comprehensive audits are intended to provide the basis for the PSCs and CLECs to determine that the SQM and PMAP produce accurate data the step of the step

Self-Effectuating Enforcement Mechanism Administrative Plan

Florida Plan

Version 2.2

Updated January 22, 2002

Revision History

Date	Version	Author Contributors		Notes
11/16/01	Version 1.0	Ardene Whittlesey	Craig Duncan David Cornwall	Changes based on discus- sions with PSC staff: 2.7, add language about data retention 4.1.2, add benchmark 4.1.3, add retail analog, 4.1.6, change ALEC to sub- metric in 2nd sentence 4.2.3, remove entire para- graph & renumber 4.4.1, change last word to incurred 4.4.2, remove final sentence
10/25/01	Version 1.1	Ardene Whittlesey	Dave Coon Leah Cooper David Cornwall Craig Duncan Bill Griffin	Initial Submission to PSC
12/14/01	Version 2.2	Chris Mihok	Edward Mulrow Craig Duncan	Changes to Appendix D: Statistical Formulas and Technical Description (See Florida_Updates.doc).
1/10/02	Version 2.1	Ardene Whittlesey	Wayne Tubaugh	Changes to Section 4.0 of plan, per Wayne.
1/22/02	Version 2.2	Ardene Whittlesey	David Cornwall Craig Duncan Bernadette Gorman	Changes to list of metrics.

BELLSOUTH°

Administrative Plan

Scope1-	1
Reporting1-	1
Modification to Measures	1
Enforcement Mechanisms	2

Appendix A: Fee Schedule

Tier 1 Fee Schedule	 A-1
Tier 2 Fee Schedule	 A-1

Appendix B: SEEM Submetrics

Tier 1 Submetrics	 B-1
Tier 2 Submetrics	 B-3 1

Appendix C: Statistical Properties and Definitions

Necessary Properties for a Test Methodology	C-1
Like-to-Like Comparisons	C-1
Aggregate Level Test Statistic	C-1
Production Mode Process	C-2
Balancing	C-2
Trimming	C-2
Measurement Types	C-2
Testing Methodology – The Truncated Z	C-3
Mean Measures	C-3
Proportion Measures	C-3
Rate Measures	C-3
Ratio Measures	C-4

Appendix D: Statistical Formulas and Technical Descriptions

Notation and Exact Testing Distributions	D-1
Additional Notation for Mean Measures	D-2
Notation for Proportion Measures	D-3
Notation for Rate Measures	D-3
Calculating the Truncated Z	D-4
Calculate Cell Weights (W _i)	D-4
W; for Mean Measures	D-4
W _i for Proportion Measures	D-5
W _i for Rate Measures	D-5
Calculate Z _i	D-5
Mean Measure	D-5
Solution 1: Permutation Test	D-6
Solution 2: Adjusted Asymmetric "t" Test	D-6
Proportion Measure	D-8
Rate Measure	D-8
Obtain a Truncated Z Value for Each Cell (Z*j)	D- 9
Calculate the Theoretical Mean and Variance of the Truncated Statistic Under the Null Hy Calculate the Aggregate Test Statistic, Z ^T	pothesis of Parity D-9
Balancing Critical Value	D-11
Test Hypotheses	D-12

Determining the Parameters of the Alternative Hypothesis	D-13
Calculate the Mean and Standard Error of Zj Under the Alternative Hypothesis	D-13
Mean Measure	D-13
Proportion Measure	D- 14
Rate Measure	D-14
Calculate the Critical Value	D-15
Single Cell Test $(L = 1)$	D-15
Multi-Cell Tests $(L > i)$	D-15

Appendix E: BST SEEM Remedy Calculation Procedures

Tier 1 Calculation for Retail Analogs	.E-1
Tier 2 Calculation for Retail Analogs	.E-3
Tier 1 Calculation for Benchmarks	.E-4
Tier 2 Calculations for Benchmarks	.E-7

-

Administrative Plan

1. Scope

- 1.1 This Administrative Plan ("Plan") includes Service Quality Measurements ("SQM") with corresponding Self Effectuating Enforcement Mechanisms ("SEEM") to be implemented by BellSouth pursuant to the Order issued by the Florida Public Service Commission (the "Commission") on September 10, 2001 in Docket 000121-TP
- 1.2 Upon the Effective Date of this Plan, all appendices referred to in this Plan will be located on the BellSouth Performance Measurement Reports website at: https://pmap.bellsouth.com

2. Reporting

- 2.1 In providing services pursuant to the Interconnection Agreements between BellSouth and each ALEC, BellSouth will report its performance to each ALEC in accordance with BellSouth's SQMs.
- 2.2 BellSouth will make performance reports available to each ALEC on a monthly basis. The reports will contain information collected in each performance category and will be available to each ALEC via the Performance Measurements Reports website. BellSouth will also provide electronic access to the available raw data underlying the SQMs.
- 2.3 Final validated SQM reports will be posted no later than the last day of the month after the month in which the activity is incurred, or the first business day thereafter. Final validated SQM reports not posted by this time will be considered late.
 - 2.4 Final validated SEEM reports will be posted on the 15th day of the month, following the final validated SQM report or the first business day thereafter.
 - 2.5 BellSouth shall pay penalties to the Commission, in the aggregate, for all late SQM reports in the amount of \$2000 per day. Such penalty shall be made to the Commission for deposit into the state General Revenue Fund within fifteen (15) calendar days of the actual publication date of the report.
 - 2.6 BellSouth shall pay penalties to the Commission, in the aggregate, for all incomplete or inaccurate SQM reports in the amount of \$400 per day. Such penalty shall be made to the Commission for deposit into the state General Revenue Fund within fifteen (15) calendar days of the final publication date of the report or the report revision date.
 - 2.7 BellSouth shall retain the performance measurement raw data files for a period of 18 months and further retain the monthly reports produced in PMAP for a period of three years.

3. Modification to Measures

- 3.1 During the first two years of implementation, BellSouth will participate in six-month review cycles starting six months after the date of the Commission order. A collaborative work group, which will include BellSouth, interested ALECs and the Commission will review the Performance Assessment Plan for additions, deletions or other modifications. After two years from the date of the order, the review cycle may, at the discretion of the Commission, be reduced to an annual review.
- 3.2 BellSouth and the ALECs shall file any proposed revisions to the SEEM plan one month prior to the beginning of each review period.
- 3.3 From time to time, BellSouth may be ordered by the Florida Public Service Commission to modify or amend the SQMs or SEEMs. Nothing will preclude any party from participating in any proceeding involving BellSouth's SQMs or SEEMs from advocating that those measures be modified.
- 3.4 In the event a dispute arises regarding the ordered modification or amendment to the SQMs or SEEMs, the parties will refer the dispute to the Florida Public Service Commission.

Florida Plan

4. Enforcement Mechanisms

4.1 Definitions

- 4.1.1 *Enforcement Measurement Elements* performance measurements identified as SEEM measurements within the SEEM plan.
- 4.1.2 *Enforcement Measurement benchmark compliance* competitive level of performance established by the Commission used to evaluate the performance of BellSouth and each ALEC for penalties where no analogous retail process, product or service is feasible.
- 4.1.3 *Enforcement Measurement retail analog compliance* comparing performance levels provided to BellSouth retail customers with performance levels provided by BellSouth to the ALEC customer for penalties.
- 4.1.4 *Test Statistic and Balancing Critical Value* means by which enforcement will be determined using statistically valid equations. The Test Statistic and Balancing Critical Value properties are set forth in Appendix C, incorporated herein by this reference.
- 4.1.5 *Cell* grouping of transactions at which like-to-like comparisons are made. For example, all BellSouth retail ISDN services, for residential customers, requiring a dispatch in a particular wire center, at a particular point in time will be compared directly to ALEC resold ISDN services for residential customers, requiring a dispatch, in the same wire center, at a similar point in time. When determining compliance, these cells can have a positive or negative Test Statistic. See Appendix C, incorporated herein by this reference.
- 4.1.6 *Delta* measure of the meaningful difference between BellSouth performance and submetric performance. For individual submetrics the Delta value shall be determined using Ford's Delta Function as ordered by the Florida Public Service Commission. See Appendix C, incorporated herein by this reference.
- 4.1.7 *Tier-1 Enforcement Mechanisms* self-executing liquidated damages paid directly to each ALEC when BellSouth delivers non-compliant performance of any one of the Tier-1 Enforcement Measurement Elements for any month as calculated by BellSouth.
- 4.1.8 *Tier-2 Enforcement Mechanisms* assessments paid directly to the Florida Public Service Commission or its designee. Tier 2 Enforcement Mechanisms are triggered by three consecutive monthly failures in Tier 2 enforcement measurement elements in which BellSouth performance is out of compliance or does not meet the benchmarks for the aggregate of all ALEC data as calculated by BellSouth for a particular Tier-2 Enforcement Measurement Element.
- 4.1.9 Affiliate person that (directly or indirectly) owns or controls, is owned or controlled by, or is under common ownership or control with, another person. For purposes of this paragraph, the term "own" means to own an equity interest (or the equivalent thereof) of more than 10%.

4.2 Application

- 4.2.1 The application of the Tier-1 and Tier-2 Enforcement Mechanisms does not foreclose other legal and regulatory claims and remedies available to each ALEC.
- 4.2.2 Payment of any Tier-1 or Tier-2 Enforcement Mechanisms shall not be considered as an admission against interest or an admission of liability or culpability in any legal, regulatory or other proceeding relating to BellSouth's performance and the payment of any Tier-1 or Tier-2 Enforcement Mechanisms shall not be used as evidence that BellSouth has not complied with or has violated any state or federal law or regulation.

4.3 Methodology

4.3.1 Tier-1 Enforcement Mechanisms will be triggered by BellSouth's failure to achieve applicable Enforcement Measurement Compliance or Enforcement Measurement Benchmarks for each ALEC for the State of Florida for a given Enforcement Measurement Element in a given month. Enforcement Measurement Compliance is based upon a Test Statistic and Balancing Critical Value calculated by BellSouth utilizing BellSouth generated data. The method of calculation is set forth in Appendix D, incorporated herein by this reference.

- 4.3.1.1 All OCNs and ACNAs for individual ALECs will be consolidated for purposes of calculating measurebased failures.
- 4.3.1.2 When a measurement has five or more transactions for the ALEC, calculations will be performed to determine remedies according to the methodology described in the remainder of this document.
- 4.3.1.3 Tier-1 Enforcement Mechanisms apply on a per measurement basis and will escalate based upon the number of consecutive months that BellSouth has reported non-compliance.
- 4.3.1.4 Fee Schedule for Tier-1 Enforcement Mechanisms is shown on the Performance Measurement Reports in Table-1 of Appendix A, incorporated herein by this reference. Failures beyond Month 6 will be subject to Month 6 fees.
- 4.3.2 Tier-2 Enforcement Mechanisms will be triggered by BellSouth's failure to achieve applicable Enforcement Measurement Compliance or Enforcement Measurement Benchmarks for the State for given Enforcement Measurement Elements for three consecutive months based upon the method of calculation set forth in Appendix D, incorporated herein by this reference.
- 4.3.2.1 Tier- 2 Enforcement Mechanisms apply, for an aggregate of all ALEC data generated by BellSouth, on a per measurement basis for a particular Enforcement Measurement Element.
- 4.3.2.2 Fee Schedule for Total Quarterly Tier-2 Enforcement Mechanisms is shown in Table-2 of Appendix A, incorporated herein by this reference.

4.4 Payment of Tier-1 and Tier-2 Amounts

- 4.4.1 If BellSouth performance triggers an obligation to pay Tier-1 Enforcement Mechanisms to an ALEC or an obligation to remit Tier-2 Enforcement Mechanisms to the Commission or its designee, BellSouth shall make payment in the required amount by the end of the second month following the month for which disparate treatment was incurred.
- 4.4.2 For each day after the due date that BellSouth fails to pay an ALEC the required amount, BellSouth will pay the ALEC 6% simple interest per annum.
- 4.4.3 For each day after the due date that BellSouth fails to pay the Tier-2 Enforcement Mechanisms, BellSouth will pay the Commission \$1,000 per day for deposit in the State's General Revenue Fund.
- 4.4.4 If an ALEC disputes the amount paid under Tier-1 Enforcement Mechanisms, the ALEC shall submit a written claim to BellSouth within sixty (60) days after the payment due date. BellSouth shall investigate all claims and provide the ALEC written findings within thirty (30) days after receipt of the claim. If BellSouth determines the ALEC is owed additional amounts, BellSouth shall pay the ALEC such additional amounts within thirty (30) days after its findings along with 6% simple interest per annum. However, the ALEC shall be responsible for all administrative costs associated with resolution of disputes that result in no actual payment. Administrative costs are those reasonable costs incurred in the resolution of the disputed matter. Such costs would include, but not be limited to, postage, travel and lodging, communication expenses, and legal costs. If BellSouth and the ALEC have exhausted good faith negotiations and are still unable to reach a mutually agreeable settlement pertaining to the amount disputed, the Commission will settle the dispute. If Commission intervention is required, a mediated resolution will be pursued.
- 4.4.5 At the end of each calendar year, an independent accounting firm, mutually agreeable to the Florida Public Service Commission and BellSouth, shall certify that all penalties under Tier-1 and Tier-2 Enforcement Mechanisms were paid and accounted for in accordance with Generally Accepted Account Principles (GAAP). These annual audits shall be performed based upon audited data of BellSouth's performance measurements.

4.5 Limitations of Liability

4.5.1 BellSouth's total liability for the payment of Tier-1 and Tier-2 Enforcement Mechanisms shall be collectively and absolutely capped at 39% of net revenues in Florida, based upon the most recently reported ARMIS data.

- 4.5.2 BellSouth will not be responsible for an ALEC's acts or omissions that cause performance measures to be missed or failed, including but not limited to, accumulation and submission of orders at unreasonable quantities or times or failure to submit accurate orders or inquiries. BellSouth shall provide the ALEC with reasonable notice of such acts or omissions or provide the ALEC with any such supporting documentation.
- 4.5.3 BellSouth shall not be obligated for penalties under Tier-1 or Tier-2 Enforcement Mechanisms for noncompliance with a performance measure if such noncompliance was the result of an act or omission by the ALEC that was in bad faith.
- 4.5.4 BellSouth shall not be obligated for penalties under Tier-1 or Tier-2 Enforcement Mechanism for noncompliance with a performance measure if such noncompliance was the result of any of the following: a Force Majeure event; an act or omission by an ALEC that is contrary to any of its obligations under the Act, Commission rule, or state law; or an act or omission associated with third party systems or equipment.
- 4.5.5 In addition to these specific limitations of liability, BellSouth may petition the Commission to consider a waiver based upon other circumstances.

4.6 Affiliate Reporting

4.6.1 BellSouth shall provide monthly results for each metric for each BellSouth ALEC affiliate; however, only the Florida Public Service Commission shall be provided the number of transactions or observations for BellSouth ALEC affiliates. Further, BellSouth shall inform the Commission of any changes regarding non-ALEC affiliates' use of its OSS databases, systems, and interfaces.

4.7 **Dispute Resolution**

4.7.1 Notwithstanding any other provision of the Interconnection Agreement between BellSouth and each ALEC, any dispute regarding BellSouth's performance or obligations pursuant to this Plan shall be resolved by the Commission.

Appendix A: Fee Schedule

1. Tier 1 Fee Schedule

Table A-1 gives Tier 1 payments for Months 1-6. Payments are per affected item.

Table A-1. Liquidated Damages for ther i Measures						
Measure	Month 1	Month 2	Month3	Month4	Month 5	Month 6
Billing	\$450	\$650	\$800	\$1,000	\$1,200	\$1,350
Collocation	\$5,000	\$5,000	\$5,000	\$5,000	\$5,000	\$5,000
IC Trunks	\$1,150	\$1,600	\$2,050	\$2,500	\$2,950	\$3,450
LNP	\$1,700	\$2,400	\$3,100	\$3,750	\$4,450	\$5,150
Maintenance and Repair	\$1,150	\$1,600	\$2,050	\$2,500	\$2,950	\$3,400
Maintenance and Repair UNE	\$4,550	\$6,400	\$8,200	\$10,050	\$11,900	\$13,700
Ordering	\$450	\$650	\$800	\$1,000	\$1,150	\$1,350
Provisioning	\$1,150	\$1,600	\$2,050	\$2,500	\$2,950	\$3,400
Provisioning UNE (CCC)	\$4,550	\$6,400	\$8,200	\$10,050	\$11,900	\$13,700
Pre-Ordering	\$250	\$300	\$400	\$500	\$600	\$700
Change Management	\$1,000	\$1,000	\$1,000	\$1,000	\$1,000	\$1,000

2. Tier 2 Fee Schedule

Table A-2 lists Tier 2 payments for Florida. Payments are per affected item.

bio A 2. Remeay 1 dyments	of the 2 measu
Measure	Payment
Billing	\$700
Collocation	\$15,000
IC Trunks	\$5,700
LNP	\$5,700
Maintenance and Repair	\$3,450
Maintenance and Repair UNE	\$10,000
Ordering	\$700
Provisioning	\$3,450
Provisioning UNE (CCC)	\$10,000
Pre-Ordering	\$250
Change Management	\$1,000

Table A-2: Remedy Payments for Tier 2 Measures

.



Florida Plan

Appendix B: SEEM Submetrics

1. Tier 1 Submetrics

Table B-1 contains a list of Tier 1 submetrics.

Item No.	Submetric			
1	B-1 Invoice Accuracy			
2	B-2 Mean Time to Deliver Invoices			
3	C-3 Collocation Percent of Due Dates Missed - Physical Caged			
4	C-3 Collocation Percent of Due Dates Missed - Virtual			
5	MR-1 Percent Missed Repair Appointments Dispatch - 2 w Analog Loop Design			
6	MR-1 Percent Missed Repair Appointments Dispatch - 2 w Analog Loop Non-Design			
7	MR-1 Percent Missed Repair Appointments Dispatch - Resale Business			
8	MR-1 Percent Missed Repair Appointments Dispatch - Resale Centrex			
9	MR-1 Percent Missed Repair Appointments Dispatch - Resale Design			
10	MR-1 Percent Missed Repair Appointments Dispatch - Resale ISDN			
11	MR-1 Percent Missed Repair Appointments Dispatch - Local Transport			
12	MR-1 Percent Missed Repair Appointments Dispatch - Local Interconnection Trunks			
13	MR-1 Percent Missed Repair Appointments Dispatch - Resale PBX			
14	MR-1 Percent Missed Repair Appointments Dispatch - Resale Residence			
15	MR-1 Percent Missed Repair Appointments Dispatch - UNE Combo Other			
16	MR-1 Percent Missed Repair Appointments Dispatch - UNE Digital Loop \geq DS1			
17	MR-1 Percent Missed Repair Appointments Dispatch - UNE Digital Loop < DS1			
18	MR-1 Percent Missed Repair Appointments Dispatch - UNE ISDN (includes UDC)			
19	MR-1 Percent Missed Repair Appointments Dispatch - UNE Loop and Port Combo			
20	MR-1 Percent Missed Repair Appointments Dispatch - UNE Line Sharing			
21	MR-1 Percent Missed Repair Appointments Dispatch - UNE Switch ports			
22	MR-1 Percent Missed Repair Appointments Dispatch - UNE xDSL (ADSL, HDSL, UCL)			
23	MR-1 Percent Missed Repair Appointments Dispatch - UNE Other - Design			
24	MR-1 Percent Missed Repair Appointments Dispatch - UNE Other - Non Design			
25	MR-1 Percent Missed Repair Appointments Non Dispatch - 2 w Analog Loop Design			
26	MR-1 Percent Missed Repair Appointments Non Dispatch - 2 w Analog Loop Non-Design			
27	MR-1 Percent Missed Repair Appointments Non Dispatch - Resale Business			
28	MR-1 Percent Missed Repair Appointments Non Dispatch - Resale Centrex			
29	MR-1 Percent Missed Repair Appointments Non Dispatch - Resale Design			
30	MR-1 Percent Missed Repair Appointments Non Dispatch - Resale ISDN			
31	MR-1 Percent Missed Repair Appointments Non Dispatch - Local Transport			

Table B-1: Tier 1 Submetrics

٠

Florida Plan

...

Table B-1	: Tier 1	Submetrics	(Continued)

Item No.	Submetric
32	MR-1 Percent Missed Repair Appointments Non Dispatch - Local Interconnection Trunks
33	MR-1 Percent Missed Repair Appointments Non Dispatch - Resale PBX
34	MR-1 Percent Missed Repair Appointments Non Dispatch - Resale Residence
35	MR-1 Percent Missed Repair Appointments Non Dispatch - UNE Combo Other
36	MR-1 Percent Missed Repair Appointments Non Dispatch - UNE Digital Loop >= DS1
37	MR-1 Percent Missed Repair Appointments Non Dispatch - UNE Digital Loop < DS1
38	MR-1 Percent Missed Repair Appointments Non Dispatch - UNE ISDN (includes UDC)
39	MR-1 Percent Missed Repair Appointments Non Dispatch - UNE Loop and Port Combo
40	MR-1 Percent Missed Repair Appointments Non Dispatch - UNE Line Sharing
41	MR-1 Percent Missed Repair Appointments Non Dispatch - UNE Switch ports
42	MR-1 Percent Missed Repair Appointments Non Dispatch - UNE xDSL (ADSL, HDSL, UCL)
43	MR-1 Percent Missed Repair Appointments Non Dispatch - UNE Other - Design
44	MR-1 Percent Missed Repair Appointments Non Dispatch - UNE Other - Non Design
45	MR-2 Customer Trouble Report Rate - 2 w Analog Loop Design
46	MR-2 Customer Trouble Report Rate - 2 w Analog Loop Non-Design
47	MR-2 Customer Trouble Report Rate - Resale Business
48	MR-2 Customer Trouble Report Rate - Resale Centrex
49	MR-2 Customer Trouble Report Rate - Resale Design
50	MR-2 Customer Trouble Report Rate - Resale ISDN
51	MR-2 Customer Trouble Report Rate - Local Transport
52	MR-2 Customer Trouble Report Rate - Local Interconnection Trunks
53	MR-2 Customer Trouble Report Rate - Resale PBX
54	MR-2 Customer Trouble Report Rate - Resale Residence
55	MR-2 Customer Trouble Report Rate - UNE Combo Other
56	MR-2 Customer Trouble Report Rate - UNE Digital Loop >= DS1
57	MR-2 Customer Trouble Report Rate - UNE Digital Loop < DS1
58	MR-2 Customer Trouble Report Rate - UNE ISDN (includes UDC)
59	MR-2 Customer Trouble Report Rate - UNE Loop and Port Combo
60	MR-2 Customer Trouble Report Rate - UNE Line Sharing
61	MR-2 Customer Trouble Report Rate - UNE Switch ports
62	MR-2 Customer Trouble Report Rate - UNE xDSL (ADSL, HDSL, UCL)
63	MR-2 Customer Trouble Report Rate - UNE Other - Design
64	MR-2 Customer Trouble Report Rate - UNE Other - Non Design
65	MR-3 Maintenance Average Duration Dispatch - 2 w Analog Loop Design
66	MR-3 Maintenance Average Duration Dispatch - 2 w Analog Loop Non-Design
67	MR-3 Maintenance Average Duration Dispatch - Resale Business
68	MR-3 Maintenance Average Duration Dispatch - Resale Centrex

.

•••~~

Florida Plan

...

	Table B-1: Tier 1 Submetrics (Continued)
Item No.	Submetric
69	MR-3 Maintenance Average Duration Dispatch - Resale Design
70	MR-3 Maintenance Average Duration Dispatch - Resale ISDN
71	MR-3 Maintenance Average Duration Dispatch - Local Transport
72	MR-3 Maintenance Average Duration Dispatch - Local Interconnection Trunks
73	MR-3 Maintenance Average Duration Dispatch - Resale PBX
74	MR-3 Maintenance Average Duration Dispatch - Resale Residence
75	MR-3 Maintenance Average Duration Dispatch - UNE Combo Other
76	MR-3 Maintenance Average Duration Dispatch - UNE Digital Loop >= DS1
77	MR-3 Maintenance Average Duration Dispatch - UNE Digital Loop < DS1
78	MR-3 Maintenance Average Duration Dispatch - UNE ISDN (includes UDC)
79	MR-3 Maintenance Average Duration Dispatch - UNE Loop and Port Combo
80	MR-3 Maintenance Average Duration Dispatch - UNE Line Sharing
81	MR-3 Maintenance Average Duration Dispatch - UNE Switch ports
82	MR-3 Maintenance Average Duration Dispatch - UNE xDSL (ADSL, HDSL, UCL)
83	MR-3 Maintenance Average Duration Dispatch - UNE Other - Design
84	MR-3 Maintenance Average Duration Dispatch - UNE Other - Non Design
85	MR-3 Maintenance Average Duration Non Dispatch - 2 w Analog Loop Design
86	MR-3 Maintenance Average Duration Non Dispatch - 2 w Analog Loop Non-Design
87	MR-3 Maintenance Average Duration Non Dispatch - Resale Business
88	MR-3 Maintenance Average Duration Non Dispatch - Resale Centrex
89	MR-3 Maintenance Average Duration Non Dispatch - Resale Design
90	MR-3 Maintenance Average Duration Non Dispatch Resale ISDN
91	MR-3 Maintenance Average Duration Non Dispatch - Local Transport
92	MR-3 Maintenance Average Duration Non Dispatch - Local Interconnection Trunks
93	MR-3 Maintenance Average Duration Non Dispatch - Resale PBX
94	MR-3 Maintenance Average Duration Non Dispatch - Resale Residence
95	MR-3 Maintenance Average Duration Non Dispatch - UNE Combo Other
96	MR-3 Maintenance Average Duration Non Dispatch - UNE Digital Loop >= DS1
97	MR-3 Maintenance Average Duration Non Dispatch - UNE Digital Loop < DS1
98	MR-3 Maintenance Average Duration Non Dispatch - UNE ISDN (includes UDC)
99	MR-3 Maintenance Average Duration Non Dispatch - UNE Loop and Port Combo
100	MR-3 Maintenance Average Duration Non Dispatch - UNE Line Sharing
101	MR-3 Maintenance Average Duration Non Dispatch - UNE Switch ports
102	MR-3 Maintenance Average Duration Non Dispatch - UNE xDSL (ADSL, HDSL, UCL)
103	MR-3 Maintenance Average Duration Non Dispatch - UNE Other - Design
104	MR-3 Maintenance Average Duration Non Dispatch - UNE Other - Non Design
105	MR-4 Percent Repeat Trouble within 30 Days Dispatch - 2 w Analog Loop Design

. - 8- 1 D 4. -4 0.1 . . 10 . . . -13

Updated January 22, 2002

Florida Plan

ltem No.	Submetric
106	MR-4 Percent Repeat Trouble within 30 Days Dispatch - 2 w Analog Loop Non-Design
107	MR-4 Percent Repeat Trouble within 30 Days Dispatch - Resale Business
108	MR-4 Percent Repeat Trouble within 30 Days Dispatch - Resale Centrex
109	MR-4 Percent Repeat Trouble within 30 Days Dispatch - Resale Design
110	MR-4 Percent Repeat Trouble within 30 Days Dispatch - Resale ISDN
111	MR-4 Percent Repeat Trouble within 30 Days Dispatch - Local Transport
112	MR-4 Percent Repeat Trouble within 30 Days Dispatch - Local Interconnection Trunks
113	MR-4 Percent Repeat Trouble within 30 Days Dispatch - Resale PBX
114	MR-4 Percent Repeat Trouble within 30 Days Dispatch - Resale Residence
115	MR-4 Percent Repeat Trouble within 30 Days Dispatch -UNE Combo Other
116	MR-4 Percent Repeat Trouble within 30 Days Dispatch - UNE Digital Loop >= DS1
117	MR-4 Percent Repeat Trouble within 30 Days Dispatch - UNE Digital Loop < DS1
118	MR-4 Percent Repeat Trouble within 30 Days Dispatch - UNE ISDN (includes UDC)
119	MR-4 Percent Repeat Trouble within 30 Days Dispatch - UNE Loop and Port Combo
120	MR-4 Percent Repeat Trouble within 30 Days Dispatch - UNE Line Sharing
121	MR-4 Percent Repeat Trouble within 30 Days Dispatch - UNE Switch ports
122	MR-4 Percent Repeat Trouble within 30 Days Dispatch - UNE xDSL (ADSL, HDSL, UCL)
123	MR-4 Percent Repeat Trouble within 30 Days Dispatch - UNE Other - Design
124	MR-4 Percent Repeat Trouble within 30 Days Dispatch - UNE Other - Non Design
125	MR-4 Percent Repeat Trouble within 30 Days Non Dispatch - 2 w Analog Loop Design
126	MR-4 Percent Repeat Trouble within 30 Days Non Dispatch - 2 w Analog Loop Non-Design
127	MR-4 Percent Repeat Trouble within 30 Days Non Dispatch - Resale Business
128	MR-4 Percent Repeat Trouble within 30 Days Non Dispatch - Resale Centrex
129	MR-4 Percent Repeat Trouble within 30 Days Non Dispatch - Resale Design
130	MR-4 Percent Repeat Trouble within 30 Days Non Dispatch - Resale ISDN
131	MR-4 Percent Repeat Trouble within 30 Days Non Dispatch - Local Transport
132	MR-4 Percent Repeat Trouble within 30 Days Non Dispatch - Local Interconnection Trunks
133	MR-4 Percent Repeat Trouble within 30 Days Non Dispatch - Resale PBX
134	MR-4 Percent Repeat Trouble within 30 Days Non Dispatch - Resale Residence
135	MR-4 Percent Repeat Trouble within 30 Days Non Dispatch - UNE Combo Other
136	MR-4 Percent Repeat Trouble within 30 Days Non Dispatch - UNE Digital Loop >= DS1
137	MR-4 Percent Repeat Trouble within 30 Days Non Dispatch - UNE Digital Loop < DS1
138	MR-4 Percent Repeat Trouble within 30 Days Non Dispatch - UNE ISDN (includes UDC)
139	MR-4 Percent Repeat Trouble within 30 Days Non Dispatch - UNE Loop and Port Combo
140	MR-4 Percent Repeat Trouble within 30 Days Non Dispatch - UNE Line Sharing
141	MR-4 Percent Repeat Trouble within 30 Days Non Dispatch - UNE Switch ports
142	MR-4 Percent Repeat Trouble within 30 Days Non Dispatch - UNE xDSL (ADSL, HDSL, UCL)"

Table B-1: Tier 1 Submetrics (Continued)

Updated January 22, 2002

.

Florida Plan

..

Table B-1: Her 1 Submetrics (Continued)		
Item No.	Submetric	
143	MR-4 Percent Repeat Trouble within 30 Days Non Dispatch - UNE Other - Design	
144	MR-4 Percent Repeat Trouble within 30 Days Non Dispatch - UNE Other - Non Design	
145	MR-5 Out of Service (OOS) > 24 hours Dispatch - 2 w Analog Loop Design	
146	MR-5 Out of Service (OOS) > 24 hours Dispatch - 2 w Analog Loop Non-Design	
147	MR-5 Out of Service (OOS) > 24 hours Dispatch - Resale Business	
148	MR-5 Out of Service (OOS) > 24 hours Dispatch - Resale Centrex	
149	MR-5 Out of Service (OOS) > 24 hours Dispatch - Resale Design	
150	MR-5 Out of Service (OOS) > 24 hours Dispatch Resale ISDN	
151	MR-5 Out of Service (OOS) > 24 hours Dispatch - Local Transport	
152	MR-5 Out of Service (OOS) > 24 hours Dispatch - Local Interconnection Trunks	
153	MR-5 Out of Service (OOS) > 24 hours Dispatch - Resale PBX	
154	MR-5 Out of Service (OOS) > 24 hours Dispatch Resale Residence	
155	MR-5 Out of Service (OOS) > 24 hours Dispatch - UNE Combo Other	
156	MR-5 Out of Service (OOS) > 24 hours Dispatch - UNE Digital Loop >= DS1	
157	MR-5 Out of Service (OOS) > 24 hours Dispatch - UNE Digital Loop < DS1	
158	MR-5 Out of Service (OOS) > 24 hours Dispatch - UNE ISDN (includes UDC)	
159	MR-5 Out of Service (OOS) > 24 hours Dispatch - UNE Loop and Port Combo	
160	MR-5 Out of Service (OOS) > 24 hours Dispatch - UNE Line Sharing	
161	MR-5 Out of Service (OOS) > 24 hours Dispatch - UNE Switch ports	
162	MR-5 Out of Service (OOS) > 24 hours Dispatch - UNE xDSL (ADSL, HDSL, UCL)	
163	MR-5 Out of Service (OOS) > 24 hours Dispatch - UNE Other - Design	
164	MR-5 Out of Service (OOS) > 24 hours Dispatch - UNE Other - Non Design	
165	MR-5 Out of Service (OOS) > 24 hours Non Dispatch - 2 w Analog Loop Design	
166	MR-5 Out of Service (OOS) > 24 hours Non Dispatch - 2 w Analog Loop Non-Design	
167	MR-5 Out of Service (OOS) > 24 hours Non Dispatch - Resale Business	
168	MR-5 Out of Service (OOS) > 24 hours Non Dispatch - Resale Centrex	
169	MR-5 Out of Service (OOS) > 24 hours Non Dispatch - Resale Design	
170	MR-5 Out of Service (OOS) > 24 hours Non Dispatch - Resale ISDN	
171	MR-5 Out of Service (OOS) > 24 hours Non Dispatch - Local Transport	
172	MR-5 Out of Service (OOS) > 24 hours Non Dispatch - Local Interconnection Trunks	
173	MR-5 Out of Service (OOS) > 24 hours Non Dispatch - Resale PBX	
174	MR-5 Out of Service (OOS) > 24 hours Non Dispatch - Resale Residence	
175	MR-5 Out of Service (OOS) > 24 hours Non Dispatch - UNE Combo Other	
176	MR-5 Out of Service (OOS) > 24 hours Non Dispatch - UNE Digital Loop >= DS1	
177	MR-5 Out of Service (OOS) > 24 hours Non Dispatch - UNE Digital Loop < DS1	
178	MR-5 Out of Service (OOS) > 24 hours Non Dispatch - UNE ISDN (includes UDC)	
179	MR-5 Out of Service (OOS) > 24 hours Non Dispatch - UNE Loop and Port Combo	

4 0.1 ------••

Updated January 22, 2002

.

Florida Plan

Table B-1: Tier 1 Submetrics (Continued)		
Item No.	Submetric	
180	MR-5 Out of Service (OOS) > 24 hours Non Dispatch - UNE Line Sharing	
181	MR-5 Out of Service (OOS) > 24 hours Non Dispatch - UNE Switch ports	
182	MR-5 Out of Service (OOS) > 24 hours Non Dispatch UNE xDSL (ADSL, HDSL, UCL)	
183	MR-5 Out of Service (OOS) > 24 hours Non Dispatch UNE Other - Design	
184	MR-5 Out of Service (OOS) > 24 hours Non Dispatch UNE Other - Non Design	
185	O-11 FOC & Reject Completeness Fully Mechanized 2W Analog Loop Design	
186	O-11 FOC & Reject Completeness Fully Mechanized 2W Analog Loop w/LNP Design	
187	O-11 FOC & Reject Completeness Fully Mechanized 2W Analog Loop w/LNP Non Design	
188	O-11 FOC & Reject Completeness Fully Mechanized 2W Analog Loop Non Design	
189	O-11 FOC & Reject Completeness Fully Mechanized 2W Analog Loop w/INP Design	
190	O-11 FOC & Reject Completeness Fully Mechanized 2W Analog Loop w/INP Non Design	
191	O-11 FOC & Reject Completeness Fully Mechanized Resale Business	
192	O-11 FOC & Reject Completeness Fully Mechanized Resale Centrex	
193	O-11 FOC & Reject Completeness Fully Mechanized Resale Design (Special)	
194	O-11 FOC & Reject Completeness Fully Mechanized EEL's	
195	O-11 FOC & Reject Completeness Fully Mechanized Resale ISDN	
196	O-11 FOC & Reject Completeness Fully Mechanized Line Splitting	
197	O-11 FOC & Reject Completeness Fully Mechanized Local Interoffice Transport	
198	O-11 FOC & Reject Completeness Fully Mechanized Local Interconnection Trunks	
199	O-11 FOC & Reject Completeness Fully Mechanized LNP Standalone	
200	O-11 FOC & Reject Completeness Fully Mechanized INP Standalone	
201	O-11 FOC & Reject Completeness Fully Mechanized Line Sharing	
202	O-11 FOC & Reject Completeness Fully Mechanized Resale PBX	
203	O-11 FOC & Reject Completeness Fully Mechanized Resale Residence	
204	O-11 FOC & Reject Completeness Fully Mechanized Switch Ports	
205	O-11 FOC & Reject Completeness Fully Mechanized UNE Combo Other	
206	O-11 FOC & Reject Completeness Fully Mechanized UNE Digital Loop >DS1	
207	O-11 FOC & Reject Completeness Fully Mechanized UNE Digital Loop <ds1< td=""></ds1<>	
208	O-11 FOC & Reject Completeness Fully Mechanized UNE ISDN	
209	O-11 FOC & Reject Completeness Fully Mechanized UNE Loop + Port Combos	
210	O-11 FOC & Reject Completeness Fully Mechanized UNE Other Design	
211	O-11 FOC & Reject Completeness Fully Mechanized UNE Other Non Design	
212	O-11 FOC & Reject Completeness Fully Mechanized UNE xDSL (ADSL, HDSL, UC)	
213	O-11 FOC & Reject Completeness Non Mechanized 2W Analog Loop Design	
214	O-11 FOC & Reject Completeness Non Mechanized 2W Analog Loop w/LNP Design	
215	O-11 FOC & Reject Completeness Non Mechanized 2W Analog Loop w/LNP Non Design	
216	O-11 FOC & Reject Completeness Non Mechanized 2W Analog Loop Non Design	

Table B-1: Tier 1 Submetrics (Continued)
--------------------------------	------------

.

BELLSOUTH°

Florida Plan

...

<u> </u>	Table B-1. Her T Submetrics (Continued)
ltem No.	Submetric
217	O-11 FOC & Reject Completeness Non Mechanized 2W Analog Loop w/INP Design
218	O-11 FOC & Reject Completeness Non Mechanized 2W Analog Loop w/INP Non Design
219	O-11 FOC & Reject Completeness Non Mechanized Resale Business
220	O-11 FOC & Reject Completeness Non Mechanized Resale Centrex
221	O-11 FOC & Reject Completeness Non Mechanized Resale Design (Special)
222	O-11 FOC & Reject Completeness Non Mechanized EEL's
223	O-11 FOC & Reject Completeness Non Mechanized Resale ISDN
224	O-11 FOC & Reject Completeness Non Mechanized Line Splitting
225	O-11 FOC & Reject Completeness Non Mechanized Local Interoffice Transport
226	O-11 FOC & Reject Completeness Non Mechanized Local Interconnection Trunks
227	O-11 FOC & Reject Completeness Non Mechanized LNP Standalone
228	O-11 FOC & Reject Completeness Non Mechanized INP Standalone
229	O-11 FOC & Reject Completeness Non Mechanized Line Sharing
230	O-11 FOC & Reject Completeness Non Mechanized Resale PBX
231	O-11 FOC & Reject Completeness Non Mechanized Resale Residence
232	O-11 FOC & Reject Completeness Non Mechanized Switch Ports
233	O-11 FOC & Reject Completeness Non Mechanized UNE Combo Other
234	O-11 FOC & Reject Completeness Non Mechanized UNE Digital Loop >DS1
235	O-11 FOC & Reject Completeness Non Mechanized UNE Digital Loop <ds1< th=""></ds1<>
236	O-11 FOC & Reject Completeness Non Mechanized UNE ISDN
237	O-11 FOC & Reject Completeness Non Mechanized UNE Loop + Port Combos
238	O-11 FOC & Reject Completeness Non Mechanized UNE Other Design
239	O-11 FOC & Reject Completeness Non Mechanized UNE Other Non Design
240	O-11 FOC & Reject Completeness Non Mechanized UNE xDSL (ADSL, HDSL, UC)
241	O-11 FOC & Reject Completeness Partially Mechanized 2W Analog Loop Design
242	O-11 FOC & Reject Completeness Partially Mechanized 2W Analog Loop w/LNP Design
243	O-11 FOC & Reject Completeness Partially Mechanized 2W Analog Loop w/LNP Non Design
244	O-11 FOC & Reject Completeness Partially Mechanized 2W Analog Loop Non Design
245	O-11 FOC & Reject Completeness Partially Mechanized 2W Analog Loop w/INP Design
246	O-11 FOC & Reject Completeness Partially Mechanized 2W Analog Loop w/INP Non Design
247	O-11 FOC & Reject Completeness Partially Mechanized Resale Business
248	O-11 FOC & Reject Completeness Partially Mechanized Resale Centrex
249	O-11 FOC & Reject Completeness Partially Mechanized Resale Design (Special)
250	O-11 FOC & Reject Completeness Partially Mechanized EEL's
251	O-11 FOC & Reject Completeness Partially Mechanized Resale ISDN
252	O-11 FOC & Reject Completeness Partially Mechanized Line Splitting
253	O-11 FOC & Reject Completeness Partially Mechanized Local Interoffice Transport

Table B-1: Tier 1 Submetrics (Continued)

Updated January 22, 2002

.

Florida Plan

ltem No.	Submetric
254	O-11 FOC & Reject Completeness Partially Mechanized Local Interconnection Trunks
255	O-11 FOC & Reject Completeness Partially Mechanized LNP Standalone
256	O-11 FOC & Reject Completeness Partially Mechanized INP Standalone
257	O-11 FOC & Reject Completeness Partially Mechanized Line Sharing
258	O-11 FOC & Reject Completeness Partially Mechanized Resale PBX
259	O-11 FOC & Reject Completeness Partially Mechanized Resale Residence
260	O-11 FOC & Reject Completeness Partially Mechanized Switch Ports
261	O-11 FOC & Reject Completeness Partially Mechanized UNE Combo Other
262	O-11 FOC & Reject Completeness Partially Mechanized UNE Digital Loop >DS1
263	O-11 FOC & Reject Completeness Partially Mechanized UNE Digital Loop <ds1< th=""></ds1<>
264	O-11 FOC & Reject Completeness Partially Mechanized UNE ISDN
265	O-11 FOC & Reject Completeness Partially Mechanized UNE Loop + Port Combos
266	O-11 FOC & Reject Completeness Partially Mechanized UNE Other Design
267	O-11 FOC & Reject Completeness Partially Mechanized UNE Other Non Design
268	O-11 FOC & Reject Completeness Partially Mechanized UNE xDSL (ADSL, HDSL, UC)
269	O-1 Acknowledgement Message Timeliness (Electronically) - EDI
270	O-1 Acknowledgement Message Timeliness (Electronically) - TAG
271	O-2 Acknowledgement Message Completeness - EDI Fully Mechanized
272	O-2 Acknowledgement Message Completeness - TAG Fully Mechanized
273	O-4 Percent flow-through Service Requests (Detail) Total Business
274	O-4 Percent flow-through Service Requests (Detail) Total LNP
275	O-4 Percent flow-through Service Requests (Detail) Total Residence
276	O-4 Percent flow-through Service Requests (Detail) Total UNE
277	O-8 Reject Interval Fully Mechanized 2W Analog Loop Design
278	O-8 Reject Interval Fully Mechanized 2W Analog Loop w/LNP Design
279	O-8 Reject Interval Fully Mechanized 2W Analog Loop w/LNP Non Design
280	O-8 Reject Interval Fully Mechanized 2W Analog Loop Non Design
281	O-8 Reject Interval Fully Mechanized 2W Analog Loop w/INP Design
282	O-8 Reject Interval Fully Mechanized 2W Analog Loop w/INP Non Design
283	O-8 Reject Interval Fully Mechanized Resale Business
284	O-8 Reject Interval Fully Mechanized Resale Centrex
285	O-8 Reject Interval Fully Mechanized Resale Design (Special)
286	O-8 Reject Interval Fully Mechanized EELs
287	O-8 Reject Interval Fully Mechanized Resale ISDN
288	O-8 Reject Interval Fully Mechanized Line Splitting
289	O-8 Reject Interval Fully Mechanized Local Interoffice Transport
290	O-8 Reject Interval Fully Mechanized Local Interconnection Trunks

.....

Florida Plan

Item No.	Submetric
291	O-8 Reject Interval Fully Mechanized LNP Standalone
292	O-8 Reject Interval Fully Mechanized INP Standalone
293	O-8 Reject Interval Fully Mechanized Line Sharing
294	O-8 Reject Interval Fully Mechanized Resale PBX
295	O-8 Reject Interval Fully Mechanized Resale Residence
296	O-8 Reject Interval Fully Mechanized Switch Ports
297	O-8 Reject Interval Fully Mechanized UNE COMBO Other
298	O-8 Reject Interval Fully Mechanized UNE Digital Loop >DS1
299	O-8 Reject Interval Fully Mechanized UNE Digital Loop <ds1< td=""></ds1<>
300	O-8 Reject Interval Fully Mechanized UNE ISDN
301	O-8 Reject Interval Fully Mechanized UNE Loop + Port Combos
302	O-8 Reject Interval Fully Mechanized UNE Other Design
303	O-8 Reject Interval Fully Mechanized UNE Other Non Design
304	O-8 Reject Interval Fully Mechanized UNE xDSL (ADSL, HDSL, UC)
305	O-8 Reject Interval Non Mechanized 2W Analog Loop Design
306	O-8 Reject Interval Non Mechanized 2W Analog Loop w/LNP Design
307	O-8 Reject Interval Non Mechanized 2W Analog Loop w/LNP Non Design
308	O-8 Reject Interval Non Mechanized 2W Analog Loop Non Design
309	O-8 Reject Interval Non Mechanized 2W Analog Loop w/INP Design
310	O-8 Reject Interval Non Mechanized 2W Analog Loop w/INP Non Design
311	O-8 Reject Interval Non Mechanized Resale Business
312	O-8 Reject Interval Non Mechanized Resale Centrex
313	O-8 Reject Interval Non Mechanized Resale Design (Special)
314	O-8 Reject Interval Non Mechanized EELs
315	O-8 Reject Interval Non Mechanized Resale ISDN
316	O-8 Reject Interval Non Mechanized Line Splitting
317	O-8 Reject Interval Non Mechanized Local Interoffice Transport
318	O-8 Reject Interval Non Mechanized Local Interconnection Trunks
319	O-8 Reject Interval Non Mechanized LNP Standalone
320	O-8 Reject Interval Non Mechanized INP Standalone
321	O-8 Reject Interval Non Mechanized Line Sharing
322	O-8 Reject Interval Non Mechanized Resale PBX
323	O-8 Reject Interval Non Mechanized Resale Residence
324	O-8 Reject Interval Non Mechanized Switch Ports
325	O-8 Reject Interval Non Mechanized UNE COMBO Other
326	O-8 Reject Interval Non Mechanized UNE Digital Loop >DS1
327	O-8 Reject Interval Non Mechanized UNE Digital Loop <ds1< td=""></ds1<>

Table B-1: Tier 1 Submetrics (Continued)

Updated January 22, 2002

Florida Plan

Item No.	Submetric
328	O-8 Reject Interval Non Mechanized UNE ISDN
329	O-8 Reject Interval Non Mechanized UNE Loop + Port Combos
330	O-8 Reject Interval Non Mechanized UNE Other Design
331	O-8 Reject Interval Non Mechanized UNE Other Non Design
332	O-8 Reject Interval Non Mechanized UNE xDSL (ADSL, HDSL, UC)
333	O-8 Reject Interval Partially Mechanized 2W Analog Loop Design
334	O-8 Reject Interval Partially Mechanized 2W Analog Loop w/LNP Design
335	O-8 Reject Interval Partially Mechanized 2W Analog Loop w/LNP Non Design
336	O-8 Reject Interval Partially Mechanized 2W Analog Loop Non Design
337	O-8 Reject Interval Partially Mechanized 2W Analog Loop w/INP Design
338	O-8 Reject Interval Partially Mechanized 2W Analog Loop w/INP Non Design
339	O-8 Reject Interval Partially Mechanized Resale Business
340	O-8 Reject Interval Partially Mechanized Resale Centrex
341	O-8 Reject Interval Partially Mechanized Resale Design (Special)
342	O-8 Reject Interval Partially Mechanized EEL's
343	O-8 Reject Interval Partially Mechanized Resale ISDN
344	O-8 Reject Interval Partially Mechanized Line Splitting
345	O-8 Reject Interval Partially Mechanized Local Interoffice Transport
346	O-8 Reject Interval Partially Mechanized Local Interconnection Trunks
347	O-8 Reject Interval Partially Mechanized LNP Standalone
348	O-8 Reject Interval Partially Mechanized INP Standalone
349	O-8 Reject Interval Partially Mechanized Line Sharing
350	O-8 Reject Interval Partially Mechanized Resale PBX
351	O-8 Reject Interval Partially Mechanized Resale Residence
352	O-8 Reject Interval Partially Mechanized Switch Ports
353	O-8 Reject Interval Partially Mechanized UNE COMBO Other
354	O-8 Reject Interval Partially Mechanized UNE Digital Loop >DS1
355	O-8 Reject Interval Partially Mechanized UNE Digital Loop <ds1< td=""></ds1<>
356	O-8 Reject Interval Partially Mechanized UNE ISDN
357	O-8 Reject Interval Partially Mechanized UNE Loop + Port Combos
358	O-8 Reject Interval Partially Mechanized UNE Other Design
359	O-8 Reject Interval Partially Mechanized UNE Other Non Design
360	O-8 Reject Interval Partially Mechanized UNE xDSL (ADSL, HDSL, UC)
361	O-9 Firm Order Confirmation Timeliness Fully Mechanized - 2W Analog Loop Design
362	O-9 Firm Order Confirmation Timeliness Fully Mechanized - 2W Analog Loop w/LNP Design
363	O-9 Firm Order Confirmation Timeliness Fully Mechanized - 2W Analog Loop w/LNP Non Design
364	O-9 Firm Order Confirmation Timeliness Fully Mechanized - 2W Analog Loop Non Design

Table B-1: Tier 1 Submetrics (Continued)

• • • • • •

Florida Plan

Table B-1: Tier 1 Submetrics (Continued)			
Item No.	Submetric		
365	O-9 Firm Order Confirmation Timeliness Fully Mechanized - 2W Analog Loop w/INP Design		
366	O-9 Firm Order Confirmation Timeliness Fully Mechanized - 2W Analog Loop w/INP Non Design		
367	O-9 Firm Order Confirmation Timeliness Fully Mechanized - Resale Business		
368	O-9 Firm Order Confirmation Timeliness Fully Mechanized - Resale Centrex		
369	O-9 Firm Order Confirmation Timeliness Fully Mechanized - Resale Design (Special)		
370	O-9 Firm Order Confirmation Timeliness Fully Mechanized - EELs		
371	O-9 Firm Order Confirmation Timeliness Fully Mechanized - Resale ISDN		
372	O-9 Firm Order Confirmation Timeliness Fully Mechanized - Line Splitting		
373	O-9 Firm Order Confirmation Timeliness Fully Mechanized - Local Interoffice Transport		
374	O-9 Firm Order Confirmation Timeliness Fully Mechanized - Local Interconnection Trunks		
375	O-9 Firm Order Confirmation Timeliness Fully Mechanized - LNP Standalone		
376	O-9 Firm Order Confirmation Timeliness Fully Mechanized - INP Standalone		
377	O-9 Firm Order Confirmation Timeliness Fully Mechanized - Line Sharing		
378	O-9 Firm Order Confirmation Timeliness Fully Mechanized - Resale PBX		
379	O-9 Firm Order Confirmation Timeliness Fully Mechanized - Resale Residence		
380	O-9 Firm Order Confirmation Timeliness Fully Mechanized - Switch Ports		
381	O-9 Firm Order Confirmation Timeliness Fully Mechanized - UNE Combo Other		
382	O-9 Firm Order Confirmation Timeliness Fully Mechanized - UNE Digital Loop >DS1		
383	O-9 Firm Order Confirmation Timeliness Fully Mechanized - UNE Digital Loop <ds1< th=""></ds1<>		
384	O-9 Firm Order Confirmation Timeliness Fully Mechanized - UNE ISDN		
385	O-9 Firm Order Confirmation Timeliness Fully Mechanized - UNE Loop + Port Combos		
386	O-9 Firm Order Confirmation Timeliness Fully Mechanized - UNE Other Design		
387	O-9 Firm Order Confirmation Timeliness Fully Mechanized - UNE Other Non Design		
388	O-9 Firm Order Confirmation Timeliness Fully Mechanized - UNE xDSL (ADSL, HDSL, UC)		
389	O-9 Firm Order Confirmation Timeliness Non Mechanized - 2W Analog Loop Design		
390	O-9 Firm Order Confirmation Timeliness Non Mechanized - 2W Analog Loop w/LNP Design		
391	O-9 Firm Order Confirmation Timeliness Non Mechanized - 2W Analog Loop w/LNP Non Design		
392	O-9 Firm Order Confirmation Timeliness Non Mechanized - 2W Analog Loop Non Design		
393	O-9 Firm Order Confirmation Timeliness Non Mechanized - 2W Analog Loop w/INP Design		
394	O-9 Firm Order Confirmation Timeliness Non Mechanized - 2W Analog Loop w/INP Non Design		
395	O-9 Firm Order Confirmation Timeliness Non Mechanized - Resale Business		
396	O-9 Firm Order Confirmation Timeliness Non Mechanized - Resale Centrex		
397	O-9 Firm Order Confirmation Timeliness Non Mechanized - Resale Design (Special)		
398	O-9 Firm Order Confirmation Timeliness Non Mechanized - EELs		
399	O-9 Firm Order Confirmation Timeliness Non Mechanized - Resale ISDN		
400	O-9 Firm Order Confirmation Timeliness Non Mechanized Line Splitting		
401	0-9 Firm Order Confirmation Timeliness Non Mechanized Local Interoffice Transport		

Updated January 22, 2002

•••••

..

	Table B-1: The T Submetrics (Continued)
Item No.	Submetric
402	O-9 Firm Order Confirmation Timeliness Non Mechanized Local Interconnection Trunks
403	O-9 Firm Order Confirmation Timeliness Non Mechanized LNP Standalone
404	O-9 Firm Order Confirmation Timeliness Non Mechanized INP Standalone
405	O-9 Firm Order Confirmation Timeliness Non Mechanized Line Sharing
406	O-9 Firm Order Confirmation Timeliness Non Mechanized Resale PBX
407	O-9 Firm Order Confirmation Timeliness Non Mechanized Resale Residence
408	O-9 Firm Order Confirmation Timeliness Non Mechanized Switch Ports
409	O-9 Firm Order Confirmation Timeliness Non Mechanized UNE Combo Other
410	O-9 Firm Order Confirmation Timeliness Non Mechanized UNE Digital Loop >DS1
411	O-9 Firm Order Confirmation Timeliness Non Mechanized UNE Digital Loop <ds1< td=""></ds1<>
412	O-9 Firm Order Confirmation Timeliness Non Mechanized UNE ISDN
413	O-9 Firm Order Confirmation Timeliness Non Mechanized UNE Loop + Port Combos
414	O-9 Firm Order Confirmation Timeliness Non Mechanized UNE Other Design
415	O-9 Firm Order Confirmation Timeliness Non Mechanized UNE Other Non Design
416	O-9 Firm Order Confirmation Timeliness Non Mechanized UNE xDSL (ADSL, HDSL, UC)
417	O-9 Firm Order Confirmation Timeliness Partially Mechanized 2W Analog Loop Design
418	O-9 Firm Order Confirmation Timeliness Partially Mechanized 2W Analog Loop w/LNP Design
419	O-9 Firm Order Confirmation Timeliness Partially Mechanized 2W Analog Loop w/LNP Non Design
420	O-9 Firm Order Confirmation Timeliness Partially Mechanized 2W Analog Loop Non Design
421	O-9 Firm Order Confirmation Timeliness Partially Mechanized 2W Analog Loop w/INP Design
422	O-9 Firm Order Confirmation Timeliness Partially Mechanized 2W Analog Loop w/INP Non Design
423	O-9 Firm Order Confirmation Timeliness Partially Mechanized Resale Business
424	O-9 Firm Order Confirmation Timeliness Partially Mechanized Resale Centrex
425	O-9 Firm Order Confirmation Timeliness Partially Mechanized Resale Design (Special)
426	O-9 Firm Order Confirmation Timeliness Partially Mechanized EELs
427	O-9 Firm Order Confirmation Timeliness Partially Mechanized Resale ISDN
428	O-9 Firm Order Confirmation Timeliness Partially Mechanized Line Splitting
429	O-9 Firm Order Confirmation Timeliness Partially Mechanized Local Interoffice Transport
430	O-9 Firm Order Confirmation Timeliness Partially Mechanized Local Interconnection Trunks
431	O-9 Firm Order Confirmation Timeliness Partially Mechanized LNP Standalone
432	O-9 Firm Order Confirmation Timeliness Partially Mechanized INP Standalone
433	O-9 Firm Order Confirmation Timeliness Partially Mechanized Line Sharing
434	O-9 Firm Order Confirmation Timeliness Partially Mechanized Resale PBX
435	O-9 Firm Order Confirmation Timeliness Partially Mechanized Resale Residence
436	O-9 Firm Order Confirmation Timeliness Partially Mechanized Switch Ports
437	O-9 Firm Order Confirmation Timeliness Partially Mechanized UNE Combo Other
438	O-9 Firm Order Confirmation Timeliness Partially Mechanized UNE Digital Loop >DS1

Table B-1: Tier 1 Submetrics (Continued)

Updated January 22, 2002

• ••••

Florida Plan

Item No	Submatria
item No.	Submetric
439	O-9 Firm Order Confirmation Timeliness Partially Mechanized UNE Digital Loop <ds1< td=""></ds1<>
440	O-9 Firm Order Confirmation Timeliness Partially Mechanized UNE ISDN
441	O-9 Firm Order Confirmation Timeliness Partially Mechanized UNE Loop + Port Combos
442	O-9 Firm Order Confirmation Timeliness Partially Mechanized UNE Other Design
443	O-9 Firm Order Confirmation Timeliness Partially Mechanized UNE Other Non Design
444	O-9 Firm Order Confirmation Timeliness Partially Mechanized UNE xDSL (ADSL, HDSL, UC)
445	P-3A Percent Missed Installation Appointments Including Subsequent Appointments Dispatch ≥ 10 - 2 w Analog Loop Design
446	P-3A Percent Missed Installation Appointments Including Subsequent Appointments Dispatch ≥ 10 - 2 w Analog Loop w/LNP Design
447	P-3A Percent Missed Installation Appointments Including Subsequent Appointments Dispatch ≥ 10 - 2 w Analog Loop w/LNP Non Design
448	P-3A Percent Missed Installation Appointments Including Subsequent Appointments Dispatch $\geq 10 - 2$ w Analog Loop w/INP Design
449	P-3A Percent Missed Installation Appointments Including Subsequent Appointments Dispatch ≥ 10 - 2 w Analog Loop w/INP Non Design
450	P-3A Percent Missed Installation Appointments Including Subsequent Appointments Dispatch $\geq 10 - 2$ w Analog Loop Non-Design
451	P-3A Percent Missed Installation Appointments Including Subsequent Appointments Dispatch ≥ 10 - Resale Business
452	P-3A Percent Missed Installation Appointments Including Subsequent Appointments Dispatch≥ 10 - Resale Centrex
453	P-3A Percent Missed Installation Appointments Including Subsequent Appointments Dispatch ≥ 10 - Resale Design
454	P-3A Percent Missed Installation Appointments Including Subsequent Appointments Dispatch ≥ 10 Resale ISDN
455	P-3A Percent Missed Installation Appointments Including Subsequent Appointments Dispatch≥ 10 - Local Transport
456	P-3A Percent Missed Installation Appointments Including Subsequent Appointments Dispatch≥ 10 - Local Interconnection Trunks
457	P-3A Percent Missed Installation Appointments Including Subsequent Appointments Dispatch ≥ 10 - LNP Standalone
458	P-3A Percent Missed Installation Appointments Including Subsequent Appointments Dispatch ≥ 10 - INP Standalone
459	P-3A Percent Missed Installation Appointments Including Subsequent Appointments Dispatch ≥ 10 - Resale PBX
460	P-3A Percent Missed Installation Appointments Including Subsequent Appointments Dispatch ≥ 10 - Resale Residence
461	P-3A Percent Missed Installation Appointments Including Subsequent Appointments Dispatch ≥ 10 - UNE Combo Other

...

Item No.	Submetric
462	P-3A Percent Missed Installation Appointments Including Subsequent Appointments Dispatch ≥ 10 - UNE Digital Loop >= DS1
463	P-3A Percent Missed Installation Appointments Including Subsequent Appointments Dispatch ≥ 10 - UNE Digital Loop < DS1
464	P-3A Percent Missed Installation Appointments Including Subsequent Appointments \geq 10 Dispatch - EELs
465	P-3A Percent Missed Installation Appointments Including Subsequent Appointments Dispatch ≥ 10 - UNE ISDN (includes UDC)
466	P-3A Percent Missed Installation Appointments Including Subsequent Appointments Dispatch ≥ 10 - UNE Line Sharing
467	P-3A Percent Missed Installation Appointments Including Subsequent Appointments ≥ 10 Dispatch - UNE Line Splitting
468	P-3A Percent Missed Installation Appointments Including Subsequent Appointments ≥ 10 Dispatch - UNE Other Design
469	P-3A Percent Missed Installation Appointments Including Subsequent Appointments - ≥ 10 Dispatch - UNE Other Non Design
470	P-3A Percent Missed Installation Appointments Including Subsequent Appointments Dispatch ≥ 10 - UNE Switch ports
471	P-3A Percent Missed Installation Appointments Including Subsequent Appointments Dispatch ≥10 - UNE xDSL (ADSL, HDSL, UCL)
472	P-3A Percent Missed Installation Appointments Including Subsequent Appointments Dispatch in ≥ 10 - UNE Loop and Port Combo
473	P-3A Percent Missed Installation Appointments Including Subsequent Appointments Switch Based ≥ 10 - UNE Loop and Port Combo
474	P-3A Percent Missed Installation Appointments Including Subsequent Appointments Dispatch < 10 - 2 w Analog Loop Design
475	P-3A Percent Missed Installation Appointments Including Subsequent Appointments Dispatch < 10 - 2 w Analog Loop w/LNP Design
476	P-3A Percent Missed Installation Appointments Including Subsequent Appointments Dispatch < 10 - 2 w Analog Loop w/INP Non Design
477	P-3A Percent Missed Installation Appointments Including Subsequent Appointments Dispatch < 10 - 2 w Analog Loop w/INP Design
478	P-3A Percent Missed Installation Appointments Including Subsequent Appointments Dispatch < 10 - 2 w Analog Loop w/LNP Non Design
479	P-3A Percent Missed Installation Appointments Including Subsequent Appointments Dispatch < 10 - 2 w Analog Loop Non-Design
480	P-3A Percent Missed Installation Appointments Including Subsequent Appointments Dispatch < 10 - Resale Business
481	P-3A Percent Missed Installation Appointments Including Subsequent Appointments Dispatch < 10 - Resale Centrex

Table B-1: Tier 1 Submetrics (Continued)

Florida Plan

Item No.	Submetric
482	P-3A Percent Missed Installation Appointments Including Subsequent Appointments Dispatch < 10 - Resale Design
483	P-3A Percent Missed Installation Appointments Including Subsequent Appointments Dispatch < 10 Resale ISDN
484	P-3A Percent Missed Installation Appointments Including Subsequent Appointments Dispatch < 10 - Local Transport
485	P-3A Percent Missed Installation Appointments Including Subsequent Appointments Dispatch - Local Interconnection Trunks
486	P-3A Percent Missed Installation Appointments Including Subsequent Appointments Dispatch < 10 - LNP Standalone
487	P-3A Percent Missed Installation Appointments Including Subsequent Appointments Dispatch < 10 - INP Standalone
488	P-3A Percent Missed Installation Appointments Including Subsequent Appointments Dispatch < 10 - Resale PBX
489	P-3A Percent Missed Installation Appointments Including Subsequent Appointments Dispatch < 10 Resale Residence
490	P-3A Percent Missed Installation Appointments Including Subsequent Appointments Dispatch < 10 - UNE Combo Other
491	P-3A Percent Missed Installation Appointments Including Subsequent Appointments Dispatch < 10 UNE Digital Loop >= DS1
492	P-3A Percent Missed Installation Appointments Including Subsequent Appointments Dispatch < 10 - UNE Digital Loop < DS1
493	P-3A Percent Missed Installation Appointments Including Subsequent Appointments < 10 Dispatch - EELs
494	P-3A Percent Missed Installation Appointments Including Subsequent Appointments Dispatch < 10 - UNE ISDN (includes UDC)
495	P-3A Percent Missed Installation Appointments Including Subsequent Appointments Dispatch < 10 - UNE Line Sharing
496	P-3A Percent Missed Installation Appointments Including Subsequent Appointments < 10 Dispatch - UNE Line Splitting
497	P-3A Percent Missed Installation Appointments Including Subsequent Appointments < 10 Dispatch - UNE Other Design
498	P-3A Percent Missed Installation Appointments Including Subsequent Appointments < 10 Dispatch - UNE Other Non Design
499	P-3A Percent Missed Installation Appointments Including Subsequent Appointments Dispatch < 10 - UNE Switch ports
500	P-3A Percent Missed Installation Appointments Including Subsequent Appointments Dispatch <10 - UNE xDSL (ADSL, HDSL, UCL)
501	P-3A Percent Missed Installation Appointments Including Subsequent Appointments Dispatch in < 10 - UNE Loop and Port Combo
502	P-3A Percent Missed Installation Appointments Including Subsequent Appointments Switch Based < 10 - UNE Loop and Port Combo

able D-1. Her i Submethics (Continued	Table	B-1 :	Tier 1	Submetrics	(Continued)
---------------------------------------	-------	--------------	--------	-------------------	-------------

......

Florida Plan

...

Item No.	Submetric
503	P-3A Percent Missed Installation Appointments Including Subsequent Appointments Non Dispatch > 10 - 2 w Analog Loop Design
504	P-3A Percent Missed Installation Appointments Including Subsequent Appointments Non Dispatch > 10 - 2 w Analog Loop w/LNP Design
505	P-3A Percent Missed Installation Appointments Including Subsequent Appointments Non Dispatch > 10 - 2 w Analog Loop w/LNP Non Design
506	P-3A Percent Missed Installation Appointments Including Subsequent Appointments Non Dispatch > 10 - 2 w Analog Loop w/INP Non Design
507	P-3A Percent Missed Installation Appointments Including Subsequent Appointments Non Dispatch > 10 - 2 w Analog Loop w/INP Design
508	P-3A Percent Missed Installation Appointments Including Subsequent Appointments Non Dispatch > 10 - 2 w Analog Loop Non-Design
509	P-3A Percent Missed Installation Appointments Including Subsequent Appointments Non Dispatch > 10 - Resale Business
510	P-3A Percent Missed Installation Appointments Including Subsequent Appointments Non Dispatch > 10 - Resale Centrex
511	P-3A Percent Missed Installation Appointments Including Subsequent Appointments Non Dispatch > 10 - Resale Design
512	P-3A Percent Missed Installation Appointments Including Subsequent Appointments Non Dispatch > 10 - Resale ISDN
513	P-3A Percent Missed Installation Appointments Including Subsequent Appointments Non Dispatch > 10 - Local Transport
514	P-3A Percent Missed Installation Appointments Including Subsequent Appointments Non Dispatch - Local Interconnection Trunks
515	P-3A Percent Missed Installation Appointments Including Subsequent Appointments Non Dispatch > 10 - LNP Standalone
516	P-3A Percent Missed Installation Appointments Including Subsequent Appointments Non Dispatch > 10 - INP Standalone
517	P-3A Percent Missed Installation Appointments Including Subsequent Appointments Non Dispatch > 10 - Resale PBX
518	P-3A Percent Missed Installation Appointments Including Subsequent Appointments Non Dispatch > 10 - Resale Residence
519	P-3A Percent Missed Installation Appointments Including Subsequent Appointments Non Dispatch > 10 - UNE Combo Other
520	P-3A Percent Missed Installation Appointments Including Subsequent Appointments > 10 Non Dispatch - EELs
521	P-3A Percent Missed Installation Appointments Including Subsequent Appointments - Non Dispatch > 10 - UNE ISDN (includes UDC)
522	P-3A Percent Missed Installation Appointments Including Subsequent Appointments - Non-Dispatch > 10 - UNE Loop and Port Combo
523	P-3A Percent Missed Installation Appointments Including Subsequent Appointments - Non Dispatch > 10 - UNE Line Sharing

Table B-1: Tier 1 Submetrics (Continued)

..

Item No.	Submetric
524	P-3A Percent Missed Installation Appointments Including Subsequent Appointments - > 10 Non Dispatch - UNE Line Splitting
525	P-3A Percent Missed Installation Appointments Including Subsequent Appointments - Non Dispatch > 10 - UNE Digital Loop >= DS1
526	P-3A Percent Missed Installation Appointments Including Subsequent Appointments - Non Dispatch > 10 - UNE Digital Loop < DS1
527	P-3A Percent Missed Installation Appointments Including Subsequent Appointments - > 10 Non Dispatch - UNE Other Design
528	P-3A Percent Missed Installation Appointments Including Subsequent Appointments - > 10 Non Dispatch - UNE Other Non Design
529	P-3A Percent Missed Installation Appointments Including Subsequent Appointments - Non Dispatch > 10 - UNE Switch ports
530	P-3A Percent Missed Installation Appointments Including Subsequent Appointments - Non Dispatch > 10 - UNE xDSL (ADSL, HDSL, UCL)
531	P-3A Percent Missed Installation Appointments Including Subsequent Appointments - Non Dispatch - Dispatch in \geq 10 - UNE Loop & Port Combos
532	P-3A Percent Missed Installation Appointments Including Subsequent Appointments - Non Dispatch - Switch Based ≥ 10 - UNE Loop & Port Combos
533	P-3A Percent Missed Installation Appointments Including Subsequent Appointments - Non Dispatch < 10 - 2 w Analog Loop Design
534	P-3A Percent Missed Installation Appointments Including Subsequent Appointments - Non Dispatch < 10 - 2 w Analog Loop w/LNP Design
535	P-3A Percent Missed Installation Appointments Including Subsequent Appointments - Non Dispatch < 10 - 2 w Analog Loop w/INP Non Design
536	P-3A Percent Missed Installation Appointments Including Subsequent Appointments - Non Dispatch < 10 - 2 w Analog Loop w/INP Design
537	P-3A Percent Missed Installation Appointments Including Subsequent Appointments - Non Dispatch < 10 - 2 w Analog Loop w/LNP Non Design
538	P-3A Percent Missed Installation Appointments Including Subsequent Appointments - Non Dispatch < 10 - 2 w Analog Loop Non-Design
539	P-3A Percent Missed Installation Appointments Including Subsequent Appointments - Non Dispatch < 10 - Resale Business
540	P-3A Percent Missed Installation Appointments Including Subsequent Appointments - Non Dispatch < 10 - Resale Centrex
541	P-3A Percent Missed Installation Appointments Including Subsequent Appointments - Non Dispatch < 10 - Resale Design
542	P-3A Percent Missed Installation Appointments Including Subsequent Appointments - Non Dispatch < 10 - Resale ISDN
543	P-3A Percent Missed Installation Appointments Including Subsequent Appointments - Non Dispatch < 10 - Local Transport
544	P-3A Percent Missed Installation Appointments Including Subsequent Appointments - Non Dispatch - Local Interconnection Trunks

Table	B-1:	Tier 1	Submetrics	(Continued)
			••••••	(•••••••

.

Item No.	Submetric
545	P-3A Percent Missed Installation Appointments Including Subsequent Appointments - Non Dispatch < 10 - LNP Standalone
546	P-3A Percent Missed Installation Appointments Including Subsequent Appointments - Non Dispatch < 10 - INP Standalone
547	P-3A Percent Missed Installation Appointments Including Subsequent Appointments - Non Dispatch < 10 - Resale PBX
548	P-3A Percent Missed Installation Appointments Including Subsequent Appointments - Non Dispatch < 10 - Resale Residence
549	P-3A Percent Missed Installation Appointments Including Subsequent Appointments - Non Dispatch < 10 - UNE Combo Other
550	P-3A Percent Missed Installation Appointments Including Subsequent Appointments - < 10 Non Dispatch - EELs
551	P-3A Percent Missed Installation Appointments Including Subsequent Appointments - Non Dispatch < 10 - UNE ISDN (includes UDC)
552	P-3A Percent Missed Installation Appointments Including Subsequent Appointments - Non Dispatch < 10 - UNE Loop and Port Combo
553	P-3A Percent Missed Installation Appointments Including Subsequent Appointments - Non Dispatch < 10 - UNE Line Sharing
554	P-3A Percent Missed Installation Appointments Including Subsequent Appointments - < 10 Non Dispatch - UNE Line Splitting
555	P-3A Percent Missed Installation Appointments Including Subsequent Appointments - Non Dispatch < 10 UNE Digital Loop >= DS1
556	P-3A Percent Missed Installation Appointments Including Subsequent Appointments - Non Dispatch < 10 - UNE Digital Loop < DS1
557	P-3A Percent Missed Installation Appointments Including Subsequent Appointments - < 10 Non Dispatch - UNE Other Design
558	P-3A Percent Missed Installation Appointments Including Subsequent Appointments - < 10 Non Dispatch - UNE Other Non Design
559	P-3A Percent Missed Installation Appointments Including Subsequent Appointments - Non Dispatch < 10 - UNE Switch ports
560	P-3A Percent Missed Installation Appointments Including Subsequent Appointments - Non Dispatch <10 - UNE xDSL (ADSL, HDSL, UCL)
561	P-3A Percent Missed Installation Appointments Including Subsequent Appointments - Non Dispatch - Dispatch in < 10 - UNE Loop and Port Combo
562	P-3A Percent Missed Installation Appointments Including Subsequent Appointments - Non Dispatch - Switch based < 10 - UNE Loop and Port Combo
563	P-4A Average Order Completion and Completion Notice Interval (AOCCNI) Distribution Dispatch > 10 - 2 w Analog Loop Design
564	P-4A Average Order Completion and Completion Notice Interval (AOCCNI) Distribution Dispatch > 10 - 2 w Analog Loop w/LNP Design
565	P-4A Average Order Completion and Completion Notice Interval (AOCCNI) Distribution Dispatch > 10 - 2 w Analog Loop w/LNP Non Design

Table B-	1:	Tier '	1	Submetrics	(Continued)
----------	----	--------	---	-------------------	-------------

.....

Item No.	Submetric
566	P-4A Average Order Completion and Completion Notice Interval (AOCCNI) Distribution Dispatch > 10 - 2 w Analog Loop w/INP Design
567	P-4A Average Order Completion and Completion Notice Interval (AOCCNI) Distribution Dispatch > 10 - 2 w Analog Loop w/INP Non Design
568	P-4A Average Order Completion and Completion Notice Interval (AOCCNI) Distribution Dispatch > 10 - 2 w Analog Loop Non-Design
569	P-4A Average Order Completion and Completion Notice Interval (AOCCNI) Distribution Dispatch > 10 - Resale Business
570	P-4A Average Order Completion and Completion Notice Interval (AOCCNI) Distribution Dispatch > 10 - Resale Centrex
571	P-4A Average Order Completion and Completion Notice Interval (AOCCNI) Distribution Dispatch > 10 - Resale Design
572	P-4A Average Order Completion and Completion Notice Interval (AOCCNI) Distribution Dispatch > 10 - Resale ISDN
573	P-4A Average Order Completion and Completion Notice Interval (AOCCNI) Distribution Dispatch > 10 - Local Transport
574	P-4A Average Order Completion and Completion Notice Interval (AOCCNI) Distribution Dispatch - Local Interconnection Trunks
575	P-4A Average Order Completion and Completion Notice Interval (AOCCNI) Distribution Dispatch > 10 - LNP Standalone
576	P-4A Average Order Completion and Completion Notice Interval (AOCCNI) Distribution Dispatch > 10 - INP Standalone
577	P-4A Average Order Completion and Completion Notice Interval (AOCCNI) Distribution Dispatch > 10 - Resale PBX
578	P-4A Average Order Completion and Completion Notice Interval (AOCCNI) Distribution Dispatch > 10 - Resale Residence
579	P-4A Average Order Completion and Completion Notice Interval (AOCCNI) Distribution Dispatch > 10 - UNE Combo Other
580	P-4A Average Order Completion and Completion Notice Interval (AOCCNI) Distribution Dispatch > 10 - UNE Digital Loop >= DS1
581	P-4A Average Order Completion and Completion Notice Interval (AOCCNI) Distribution Dispatch > 10 - UNE Digital Loop < DS1
582	P-4A Average Order Completion and Completion Notice Interval (AOCCNI) Distribution Dispatch > 10 - EELs
583	P-4A Average Order Completion and Completion Notice Interval (AOCCNI) Distribution Dispatch > 10 - UNE ISDN (includes UDC)
584	P-4A Average Order Completion and Completion Notice Interval (AOCCNI) Distribution Dispatch > 10 - UNE Line Sharing
585	P-4A Average Order Completion and Completion Notice Interval (AOCCNI) Distribution Dispatch > 10 - UNE Line Splitting
586	P-4A Average Order Completion and Completion Notice Interval (AOCCNI) Distribution Dispatch > 10 - UNE Other Design

Table B-1: Tier 1 Submetrics (Continued)

.

.

..

Item No.	Submetric
587	P-4A Average Order Completion and Completion Notice Interval (AOCCNI) Distribution Dispatch > 10 - UNE Other Non Design
588	P-4A Average Order Completion and Completion Notice Interval (AOCCNI) Distribution Dispatch > 10 - UNE Switch ports
589	P-4A Average Order Completion and Completion Notice Interval (AOCCNI) Distribution Dispatch - Dispatch >10 - UNE xDSL (ADSL, HDSL, UCL) with conditioning
590	P-4A Average Order Completion and Completion Notice Interval (AOCCNI) Distribution Dispatch - Dispatch >10 - UNE xDSL (ADSL, HDSL, UCL) w/o conditioning
591	P-4A Average Order Completion and Completion Notice Interval (AOCCNI) Distribution Dispatch in > 10 - UNE Loop and Port Combo
592	P-4A Average Order Completion and Completion Notice Interval (AOCCNI) Distribution Switch Based > 10 - UNE Loop and Port Combo
593	P-4A Average Order Completion and Completion Notice Interval (AOCCNI) Distribution Dispatch < 10 - 2 w Analog Loop Design
594	P-4A Average Order Completion and Completion Notice Interval (AOCCNI) Distribution Dispatch < 10 - 2 w Analog Loop w/LNP Design
595	P-4A Average Order Completion and Completion Notice Interval (AOCCNI) Distribution Dispatch < 10 - 2 w Analog Loop w/LNP Non Design
596	P-4A Average Order Completion and Completion Notice Interval (AOCCNI) Distribution Dispatch < 10 - 2 w Analog Loop w/INP Design
597	P-4A Average Order Completion and Completion Notice Interval (AOCCNI) Distribution Dispatch < 10 - 2 w Analog Loop w/INP Non Design
598	P-4A Average Order Completion and Completion Notice Interval (AOCCNI) Distribution Dispatch < 10 - 2 w Analog Loop Non-Design
599	P-4A Average Order Completion and Completion Notice Interval (AOCCNI) Distribution Dispatch < 10 - Resale Business
600	P-4A Average Order Completion and Completion Notice Interval (AOCCNI) Distribution Dispatch < 10 - Resale Centrex
601	P-4A Average Order Completion and Completion Notice Interval (AOCCNI) Distribution Dispatch < 10 - Resale Design
602	P-4A Average Order Completion and Completion Notice Interval (AOCCNI) Distribution Dispatch < 10 Resale ISDN
603	P-4A Average Order Completion and Completion Notice Interval (AOCCNI) Distribution Dispatch < 10 - Local Transport
604	P-4A Average Order Completion and Completion Notice Interval (AOCCNI) Distribution Dispatch - < 10 - Local Interconnection Trunks
605	P-4A Average Order Completion and Completion Notice Interval (AOCCNI) Distribution Dispatch < 10 - LNP Standalone
606	P-4A Average Order Completion and Completion Notice Interval (AOCCNI) Distribution Dispatch < 10 - INP Standalone
607	P-4A Average Order Completion and Completion Notice Interval (AOCCNI) Distribution Dispatch < 10 - Resale PBX

.

.

...

Item No.	Submetric
608	P-4A Average Order Completion and Completion Notice Interval (AOCCNI) Distribution Dispatch < 10 Resale Residence
609	P-4A Average Order Completion and Completion Notice Interval (AOCCNI) Distribution Dispatch < 10 - UNE Combo Other
610	P-4A Average Order Completion and Completion Notice Interval (AOCCNI) Distribution Dispatch < 10 UNE Digital Loop >= DS1
611	P-4A Average Order Completion and Completion Notice Interval (AOCCNI) Distribution Dispatch < 10 - UNE Digital Loop < DS1
612	P-4A Average Order Completion and Completion Notice Interval (AOCCNI) Distribution Dispatch < 10 - EELs
613	P-4A Average Order Completion and Completion Notice Interval (AOCCNI) Distribution Dispatch < 10 - UNE ISDN (includes UDC)
614	P-4A Average Order Completion and Completion Notice Interval (AOCCNI) Distribution Dispatch < 10 - UNE Line Sharing
615	P-4A Average Order Completion and Completion Notice Interval (AOCCNI) Distribution Dispatch < 10 - UNE Line Splitting
616	P-4A Average Order Completion and Completion Notice Interval (AOCCNI) Distribution Dispatch < 10 - UNE Other Design
617	P-4A Average Order Completion and Completion Notice Interval (AOCCNI) Distribution Dispatch < 10 - UNE Other Non Design
618	P-4A Average Order Completion and Completion Notice Interval (AOCCNI) Distribution Dispatch < 10 - UNE Switch ports
619	P-4A Average Order Completion and Completion Notice Interval (AOCCNI) Distribution Dispatch <10 - UNE xDSL (ADSL, HDSL, UCL) with conditioning
620	P-4A Average Order Completion and Completion Notice Interval (AOCCNI) Distribution Dispatch <10 - UNE xDSL (ADSL, HDSL, UCL) w/o conditioning
621	P-4A Average Order Completion and Completion Notice Interval (AOCCNI) Distribution Dispatch - Dispatch in < 10 - UNE Loop and Port Combo
622	P-4A Average Order Completion and Completion Notice Interval (AOCCNI) Distribution Dispatch - Switch Based < 10 - UNE Loop and Port Combo
623	P-4A Average Order Completion and Completion Notice Interval (AOCCNI) Distribution Non Dis- patch > 10 - 2 w Analog Loop Design
624	P-4A Average Order Completion and Completion Notice Interval (AOCCNI) Distribution Non Dispatch > 10 - 2 w Analog Loop w/LNP Design
625	P-4A Average Order Completion and Completion Notice Interval (AOCCNI) Distribution Non Dispatch > 10 - 2 w Analog Loop w/INP Non Design
626	P-4A Average Order Completion and Completion Notice Interval (AOCCNI) Distribution Non Dispatch > 10 - 2 w Analog Loop w/INP Design
627	P-4A Average Order Completion and Completion Notice Interval (AOCCNI) Distribution Non Dispatch > 10 - 2 w Analog Loop w/LNP Non Design
628	P-4A Average Order Completion and Completion Notice Interval (AOCCNI) Distribution Non Dispatch > 10 - 2 w Analog Loop Non-Design

Table B-1: Tier 1 Submetrics	(Continued)
------------------------------	-------------

Item No.	Submetric
629	P-4A Average Order Completion and Completion Notice Interval (AOCCNI) Distribution Non Dispatch > 10 - Resale Business
630	P-4A Average Order Completion and Completion Notice Interval (AOCCNI) Distribution Non Dispatch > 10 - Resale Centrex
631	P-4A Average Order Completion and Completion Notice Interval (AOCCNI) Distribution Non Dispatch > 10 - Resale Design
632	P-4A Average Order Completion and Completion Notice Interval (AOCCNI) Distribution Non Dispatch > 10 Resale ISDN
633	P-4A Average Order Completion and Completion Notice Interval (AOCCNI) Distribution Non Dispatch > 10 - Local Transport
634	P-4A Average Order Completion and Completion Notice Interval (AOCCNI) Distribution Non Dispatch - Local Interconnection Trunks
635	P-4A Average Order Completion and Completion Notice Interval (AOCCNI) Distribution Non Dispatch > 10 - LNP Standalone
636	P-4A Average Order Completion and Completion Notice Interval (AOCCNI) Distribution Non Dispatch > 10 - INP Standalone
637	P-4A Average Order Completion and Completion Notice Interval (AOCCNI) Distribution Non Dispatch > 10 - Resale PBX
638	P-4A Average Order Completion and Completion Notice Interval (AOCCNI) Distribution Non Dispatch > 10 Resale Residence
639	P-4A Average Order Completion and Completion Notice Interval (AOCCNI) Distribution Non Dispatch > 10 - UNE Combo Other
640	P-4A Average Order Completion and Completion Notice Interval (AOCCNI) Distribution Non Dispatch > 10 - EELs
641	P-4A Average Order Completion and Completion Notice Interval (AOCCNI) Distribution Non Dispatch > 10 - UNE ISDN (includes UDC)
642	P-4A Average Order Completion and Completion Notice Interval (AOCCNI) Distribution-Dispatch > 10 - UNE Loop and Port Combo
643	P-4A Average Order Completion and Completion Notice Interval (AOCCNI) Distribution Non Dispatch > 10 - UNE Line Sharing
644	P-4A Average Order Completion and Completion Notice Interval (AOCCNI) Distribution Non Dispatch > 10 - UNE Line Splitting
645	P-4A Average Order Completion and Completion Notice Interval (AOCCNI) Distribution Non Dis- patch > 10 UNE Digital Loop >= DS1
646	P-4A Average Order Completion and Completion Notice Interval (AOCCNI) Distribution Non Dispatch > 10 - UNE Digital Loop < DS1
647	P-4A Average Order Completion and Completion Notice Interval (AOCCNI) Distribution Non Dispatch > 10 - UNE Other Design
648	P-4A Average Order Completion and Completion Notice Interval (AOCCNI) Distribution Non Dispatch > 10 - UNE Other Non Design
649	P-4A Average Order Completion and Completion Notice Interval (AOCCNI) Distribution Non Dispatch > 10 - UNE Switch ports

.

Florida Plan

Item No.	Submetric
650	P-4A Average Order Completion and Completion Notice Interval (AOCCNI) Distribution Non Dispatch >10 - UNE xDSL (ADSL, HDSL, UCL) with conditioning
651	P-4A Average Order Completion and Completion Notice Interval (AOCCNI) Distribution Non Dispatch >10 - UNE xDSL (ADSL, HDSL, UCL) w/o conditioning
652	P-4A Average Order Completion and Completion Notice Interval (AOCCNI) Distribution Non Dispatch - Dispatch in > 10 - UNE Loop and Port Combo
653	P-4A Average Order Completion and Completion Notice Interval (AOCCNI) Distribution Non Dispatch - Switch Based > 10 - UNE Loop and Port Combo
654	P-4A Average Order Completion and Completion Notice Interval (AOCCNI) Distribution Non Dispatch < 10 - 2 w Analog Loop Design
655	P-4A Average Order Completion and Completion Notice Interval (AOCCNI) Distribution Non Dispatch < 10 - 2 w Analog Loop Non-Design
656	P-4A Average Order Completion and Completion Notice Interval (AOCCNI) Distribution Non Dispatch < 10 - 2 w Analog Loop w/LNP Design
657	P-4A Average Order Completion and Completion Notice Interval (AOCCNI) Distribution Non Dispatch < 10 - 2 w Analog Loop w/LNP Non Design
658	P-4A Average Order Completion and Completion Notice Interval (AOCCNI) Distribution Non Dispatch < 10 - 2 w Analog Loop w/INP Design
659	P-4A Average Order Completion and Completion Notice Interval (AOCCNI) Distribution Non Dispatch < 10 - 2 w Analog Loop w/INP Non Design
660	P-4A Average Order Completion and Completion Notice Interval (AOCCNI) Distribution Non Dispatch < 10 - Resale Business
661	P-4A Average Order Completion and Completion Notice Interval (AOCCNI) Distribution Non Dispatch < 10 - Resale Centrex
662	P-4A Average Order Completion and Completion Notice Interval (AOCCNI) Distribution Non Dispatch < 10 - Resale Design
663	P-4A Average Order Completion and Completion Notice Interval (AOCCNI) Distribution Non Dispatch < 10 Resale ISDN
664	P-4A Average Order Completion and Completion Notice Interval (AOCCNI) Distribution Non Dispatch < 10 - Local Transport
665	P-4A Average Order Completion and Completion Notice Interval (AOCCNI) Distribution Non Dispatch - Local Interconnection Trunks
666	P-4A Average Order Completion and Completion Notice Interval (AOCCNI) Distribution Non Dispatch < 10 - LNP Standalone
667	P-4A Average Order Completion and Completion Notice Interval (AOCCNI) Distribution Non Dispatch < 10 - INP Standalone
668	P-4A Average Order Completion and Completion Notice Interval (AOCCNI) Distribution Non Dispatch < 10 - Resale PBX
669	P-4A Average Order Completion and Completion Notice Interval (AOCCNI) Distribution Non Dispatch < 10 - Resale Residence
670	P-4A Average Order Completion and Completion Notice Interval (AOCCNI) Distribution Non Dispatch < 10 - UNE Combo Other

Table B-1: Tier 1 Submetrics (Continued)

.

BELLSOUTH®

Florida Plan

item No.	Submetric
671	P-4A Average Order Completion and Completion Notice Interval (AOCCNI) Distribution Non Dispatch < 10 - EELs
672	P-4A Average Order Completion and Completion Notice Interval (AOCCNI) Distribution Non Dispatch < 10 - UNE ISDN (includes UDC)
673	P-4A Average Order Completion and Completion Notice Interval (AOCCNI) Distribution Non-Dispatch < 10 - UNE Loop and Port Combo
674	P-4A Average Order Completion and Completion Notice Interval (AOCCNI) Distribution Non Dispatch < 10 - UNE Line Sharing
675	P-4A Average Order Completion and Completion Notice Interval (AOCCNI) Distribution Non Dispatch < 10 - UNE Line Splitting
676	P-4A Average Order Completion and Completion Notice Interval (AOCCNI) Distribution Non Dis- patch < 10 - UNE Digital Loop >= DS1
677	P-4A Average Order Completion and Completion Notice Interval (AOCCNI) Distribution Non Dis- patch < 10 - UNE Digital Loop < DS1
678	P-4A Average Order Completion and Completion Notice Interval (AOCCNI) Distribution Non Dispatch < 10 - UNE Other Design
679	P-4A Average Order Completion and Completion Notice Interval (AOCCNI) Distribution Non Dispatch < 10 - UNE Other Non Design
680	P-4A Average Order Completion and Completion Notice Interval (AOCCNI) Distribution Non Dispatch < 10 - UNE Switch ports
681	P-4A Average Order Completion and Completion Notice Interval (AOCCNI) Distribution Non Dis- patch <10 - UNE xDSL (ADSL, HDSL, UCL) with conditioning
682	P-4A Average Order Completion and Completion Notice Interval (AOCCNI) Distribution Non Dis- patch <10 - UNE xDSL (ADSL, HDSL, UCL) w/o conditioning
683	P-4A Average Order Completion and Completion Notice Interval (AOCCNI) Distribution Non Dispatch - Dispatch in < 10 - UNE Loop and Port Combo
684	P-4A Average Order Completion and Completion Notice Interval (AOCCNI) Distribution Non Dis- patch - Switch-based < 10 - UNE Loop and Port Combo
685	P-7A Coordinated Customer Conversions Hot Cuts Timeliness% within Interval and Average Interval SL1 IDLC
686	P-7A Coordinated Customer Conversions Hot Cuts Timeliness% within Interval and Average Interval SL1 Non Time Specific
687	P-7A Coordinated Customer Conversions Hot Cuts Timeliness% within Interval and Average Interval SL 1 Time Specific
688	P-7A Coordinated Customer Conversions Hot Cuts Timeliness % within Interval and Average Inter- val SL2 IDLC
689	P-7A Coordinated Customer Conversions Hot Cuts Timeliness % within Interval and Average Inter- val SL2 Time Non Specific
690	P-7A Coordinated Customer Conversions Hot Cuts Timeliness % within Interval and Average Interval SL2 Time Specific
691	P-7C Coordinated Customer Conversions - % Provisioning Troubles Rec w/in 7 days of a completed Service Order - UNE Loops Design - Dispatch

Table B-1: Tier 1 Submetrics (Continued)

,

....

..

Item No.	Submetric
692	P-7C Coordinated Customer Conversions - % Provisioning Troubles Rec w/in 7 days of a completed Service Order - UNE Loops Design - Non Dispatch
693	P-7C Coordinated Customer Conversions - % Provisioning Troubles Rec w/in 7 days of a completed Service Order - UNE Loops Non Design - Dispatch
694	P-7C Coordinated Customer Conversions - % Provisioning Troubles Rec w/in 7 days of a completed Service Order - UNE Loops Non Design - Non Dispatch
695	P-7 Coordinated Customer Conversions Internal Unbundles Loops with INP
696	P-7 Coordinated Customer Conversions Internal Unbundles Loops with LNP
697	P-8 Cooperative Acceptance Testing - % of xDSL Loc ADSL
698	P-8 Cooperative Acceptance Testing - % of xDSL Loc HDSL
699	P-8 Cooperative Acceptance Testing - % of xDSL Loc Other
700	P-8 Cooperative Acceptance Testing - % of xDSL Loc UNE UCL
701	P-9 % Provisioning Troubles w/in 30 days of Service Order Completion Dispatch > 10 - 2 w Analog Loop Design
702	P-9 % Provisioning Troubles w/in 30 days of Service Order Completion Dispatch > 10 - 2 w Analog Loop w/LNP Design
703	P-9 % Provisioning Troubles w/in 30 days of Service Order Completion Dispatch > 10 - 2 w Analog Loop w/LNP Non-Design
704	P-9 % Provisioning Troubles w/in 30 days of Service Order Completion Dispatch > 10 - 2 w Analog Loop Non-Design
705	P-9 % Provisioning Troubles w/in 30 days of Service Order Completion Dispatch > 10 - 2 w Analog Loop w/INP Design
706	P-9 % Provisioning Troubles w/in 30 days of Service Order Completion Dispatch > 10 - 2 w Analog Loop w/INP Non-Design
707	P-9 % Provisioning Troubles w/in 30 days of Service Order Completion Dispatch > 10 - Resale Business
708	P-9 % Provisioning Troubles w/in 30 days of Service Order Completion Dispatch > 10 - Resale Centrex
709	P-9 % Provisioning Troubles w/in 30 days of Service Order Completion Dispatch > 10 - Resale Design
710	P-9 % Provisioning Troubles w/in 30 days of Service Order Completion Dispatch > 10 Resale ISDN
711	P-9 % Provisioning Troubles w/in 30 days of Service Order Completion Dispatch > 10 - Local Transport
712	P-9 % Provisioning Troubles w/in 30 days of Service Order Completion Dispatch - Local Intercon- nection Trunks
713	P-9 % Provisioning Troubles w/in 30 days of Service Order Completion Dispatch > 10 LNP Standal- one
714	P-9 % Provisioning Troubles w/in 30 days of Service Order Completion Dispatch > 10 INP Standal- one
715	P-9 % Provisioning Troubles w/in 30 days of Service Order Completion Dispatch > 10 - Resale PBX
716	P-9 % Provisioning Troubles w/in 30 days of Service Order Completion Dispatch > 10 Resale Residence

. ا ما . D 4. TL 4 0.... in -ti 4/
Item No.	Submetric
717	P-9 % Provisioning Troubles w/in 30 days of Service Order Completion Dispatch > 10 - UNE Combo Other
718	P-9 % Provisioning Troubles w/in 30 days of Service Order Completion Dispatch > 10 - UNE Digital Loop >= DS1
719	P-9 % Provisioning Troubles w/in 30 days of Service Order Completion Dispatch > 10 - UNE Digital Loop < DS1
720	P-9 % Provisioning Troubles w/in 30 days of Service Order Completion Dispatch > 10 - EELs
721	P-9 % Provisioning Troubles w/in 30 days of Service Order Completion Dispatch > 10 - UNE ISDN (includes UDC)
722	P-9 % Provisioning Troubles w/in 30 days of Service Order Completion Dispatch > 10 - UNE Line Sharing
723	P-9 % Provisioning Troubles w/in 30 days of Service Order Completion Dispatch > 10 - UNE Line Splitting
724	P-9 % Provisioning Troubles w/in 30 days of Service Order Completion Dispatch > 10 - UNE Other Design
725	P-9 % Provisioning Troubles w/in 30 days of Service Order Completion Dispatch > 10 - UNE Other Non Design
726	P-9 % Provisioning Troubles w/in 30 days of Service Order Completion Dispatch > 10 - UNE Switch ports
727	P-9 % Provisioning Troubles w/in 30 days of Service Order Completion Dispatch >10 - UNE xDSL (ADSL, HDSL, UCL)
728	P-9 % Provisioning Troubles w/in 30 days of Service Order Completion - Dispatch - Dispatch in > 10 - UNE Loop and Port Combo
729	P-9 % Provisioning Troubles w/in 30 days of Service Order Completion - Dispatch - Switch Based > 10 - UNE Loop and Port Combo
730	P-9 % Provisioning Troubles w/in 30 days of Service Order Completion Dispatch < 10 - 2 w Analog Loop Design
731	P-9 % Provisioning Troubles w/in 30 days of Service Order Completion Dispatch < 10 - 2 w Analog Loop w/LNP Design
732	P-9 % Provisioning Troubles w/in 30 days of Service Order Completion Dispatch < 10 - 2 w Analog Loop w/LNP Non-Design
733	P-9 % Provisioning Troubles w/in 30 days of Service Order Completion Dispatch < 10 - 2 w Analog Loop Non-Design
734	P-9 % Provisioning Troubles w/in 30 days of Service Order Completion Dispatch < 10 - 2 w Analog Loop w/INP Design
735	P-9 % Provisioning Troubles w/in 30 days of Service Order Completion Dispatch < 10 - 2 w Analog Loop w/INP Non-Design
736	P-9 % Provisioning Troubles w/in 30 days of Service Order Completion Dispatch < 10 - Resale Business
737	P-9 % Provisioning Troubles w/in 30 days of Service Order Completion Dispatch < 10 - Resale Cen- trex
738	P-9 % Provisioning Troubles w/in 30 days of Service Order Completion Dispatch < 10 - Resale Design

Table B-1: Tier 1 Submetrics (Continued)

item No.	Submetric
739	P-9 % Provisioning Troubles w/in 30 days of Service Order Completion Dispatch < 10 Resale ISDN
740	P-9 % Provisioning Troubles w/in 30 days of Service Order Completion Dispatch < 10 - Local Transport
741	P-9 % Provisioning Troubles w/in 30 days of Service Order Completion Dispatch - Local Intercon- nection Trunks
742	P-9 % Provisioning Troubles w/in 30 days of Service Order Completion Dispatch < 10 - LNP Standa- lone
743	P-9 % Provisioning Troubles w/in 30 days of Service Order Completion Dispatch < 10 - INP Standal- one
744	P-9 % Provisioning Troubles w/in 30 days of Service Order Completion Dispatch < 10 - Resale PBX
745	P-9 % Provisioning Troubles w/in 30 days of Service Order Completion Dispatch < 10 - Resale Residence
746	P-9 % Provisioning Troubles w/in 30 days of Service Order Completion Dispatch < 10 - UNE Combo Other
747	P-9 % Provisioning Troubles w/in 30 days of Service Order Completion Dispatch < 10 - UNE Digital Loop >= DS1
748	P-9 % Provisioning Troubles w/in 30 days of Service Order Completion Dispatch < 10 - UNE Digital Loop < DS1
749	P-9 % Provisioning Troubles w/in 30 days of Service Order Completion Dispatch < 10 - EELs
750	P-9 % Provisioning Troubles w/in 30 days of Service Order Completion Dispatch < 10 - UNE ISDN (includes UDC)
751	P-9 % Provisioning Troubles w/in 30 days of Service Order Completion Dispatch < 10 - UNE Line Sharing
752	P-9 % Provisioning Troubles w/in 30 days of Service Order Completion Dispatch < 10 - UNE Line Splitting
753	P-9 % Provisioning Troubles w/in 30 days of Service Order Completion Dispatch < 10 - UNE Other Design
754	P-9 % Provisioning Troubles w/in 30 days of Service Order Completion Dispatch < 10 - UNE Other Non Design
755	P-9 % Provisioning Troubles w/in 30 days of Service Order Completion Dispatch < 10 - UNE Switch ports
756	P-9 % Provisioning Troubles w/in 30 days of Service Order Completion Dispatch <10 - UNE xDSL (ADSL, HDSL, UCL)
757	P-9 % Provisioning Troubles w/in 30 days of Service Order Completion Dispatch - Dispatch in < 10 - UNE Loop and Port Combo
758	P-9 % Provisioning Troubles w/in 30 days of Service Order Completion Dispatch - Switch Based < 10 - UNE Loop and Port Combo
759	P-9 % Provisioning Troubles w/in 30 days of Service Order Completion Non Dispatch > $10 - 2$ w Analog Loop Design
760	P-9 % Provisioning Troubles w/in 30 days of Service Order Completion Non Dispatch > 10 - 2 w Analog Loop w/LNP Design

Table B-1: Tier 1 Submetrics (Continued)

.

...

Item No.	Submetric
761	P-9 % Provisioning Troubles w/in 30 days of Service Order Completion Non Dispatch > 10 - 2 w Analog Loop w/LNP Non-Design
762	P-9 % Provisioning Troubles w/in 30 days of Service Order Completion Non Dispatch > 10 - 2 w Analog Loop Non-Design
763	P-9 % Provisioning Troubles w/in 30 days of Service Order Completion Non Dispatch > 10 - 2 w Analog Loop w/INP Design
764	P-9 % Provisioning Troubles w/in 30 days of Service Order Completion Non Dispatch > 10 - 2 w Analog Loop w/INP Non-Design
765	P-9 % Provisioning Troubles w/in 30 days of Service Order Completion Non Dispatch > 10 - Resale Business
766	P-9 % Provisioning Troubles w/in 30 days of Service Order Completion Non Dispatch > 10 - Resale Centrex
767	P-9 % Provisioning Troubles w/in 30 days of Service Order Completion Non Dispatch > 10 - Resale Design
768	P-9 % Provisioning Troubles w/in 30 days of Service Order Completion Non Dispatch > 10 - Resale ISDN
769	P-9 % Provisioning Troubles w/in 30 days of Service Order Completion Non Dispatch > 10 - Local Transport
770	P-9 % Provisioning Troubles w/in 30 days of Service Order Completion Non Dispatch - Local Inter- connection Trunks
771	P-9 % Provisioning Troubles w/in 30 days of Service Order Completion Non Dispatch > 10 LNP Standalone
772	P-9 % Provisioning Troubles w/in 30 days of Service Order Completion Non Dispatch > 10 INP Stan- dalone
773	P-9 % Provisioning Troubles w/in 30 days of Service Order Completion Non Dispatch > 10 - Resale PBX
774	P-9 % Provisioning Troubles w/in 30 days of Service Order Completion Non Dispatch > 10 Resale Residence
775	P-9 % Provisioning Troubles w/in 30 days of Service Order Completion Non Dispatch > 10 - UNE Combo Other
776	P-9 % Provisioning Troubles w/in 30 days of Service Order Completion Non Dispatch > 10 - EEL's
777	P-9 % Provisioning Troubles w/in 30 days of Service Order Completion Non Dispatch > 10 - UNE ISDN (includes UDC)
778	P-9 % Provisioning Troubles w/in 30 days of Service Order Completion Non-Dispatch > 10 - UNE Loop and Port Combo
779	P-9 % Provisioning Troubles w/in 30 days of Service Order Completion Non Dispatch > 10 - UNE Line Sharing
780	P-9 % Provisioning Troubles w/in 30 days of Service Order Completion Non Dispatch > 10 - UNE Line Splitting
781	P-9 % Provisioning Troubles w/in 30 days of Service Order Completion Non Dispatch > 10 UNE Dig- ital Loop >= DS1
782	P-9 % Provisioning Troubles w/in 30 days of Service Order Completion Non Dispatch > 10 - UNE Digital Loop < DS1

Table B	-1:	Tier '	1	Submetrics	(Continued)	
---------	-----	--------	---	-------------------	-------------	--

•~•

Item No.	Submetric
783	P-9 % Provisioning Troubles w/in 30 days of Service Order Completion Non Dispatch > 10 - UNE Other Design
784	\dot{P} -9 % Provisioning Troubles w/in 30 days of Service Order Completion Non Dispatch > 10 - UNE Other Non Design
785	P-9 % Provisioning Troubles w/in 30 days of Service Order Completion Non Dispatch > 10 - UNE Switch ports
786	P-9 % Provisioning Troubles w/in 30 days of Service Order Completion Non Dispatch > 10 - UNE xDSL (ADSL, HDSL, UCL)
787	P-9 % Provisioning Troubles w/in 30 days of Service Order Completion Non Dispatch - Dispatch in > 10 UNE Loop & Port Combos
788	P-9 % Provisioning Troubles w/in 30 days of Service Order Completion Non Dispatch - Switch Based > 10 UNE Loop & Port Combos
789	P-9 % Provisioning Troubles w/in 30 days of Service Order Completion Non Dispatch < 10 - 2 w Analog Loop Design
790	P-9 % Provisioning Troubles w/in 30 days of Service Order Completion Non Dispatch < 10 - 2 w Analog Loop w/LNP Design
791	P-9 % Provisioning Troubles w/in 30 days of Service Order Completion Non Dispatch < 10 - 2 w Analog Loop w/LNP Non-Design
792	P-9 % Provisioning Troubles w/in 30 days of Service Order Completion Non Dispatch < 10 - 2 w Analog Loop Non-Design
793	P-9 % Provisioning Troubles w/in 30 days of Service Order Completion Non Dispatch < 10 - 2 w Analog Loop w/INP Design
794	P-9 % Provisioning Troubles w/in 30 days of Service Order Completion Non Dispatch < 10 - 2 w Analog Loop w/INP Non-Design
795	P-9 % Provisioning Troubles w/in 30 days of Service Order Completion Non Dispatch < 10 - Resale Business
796	P-9 % Provisioning Troubles w/in 30 days of Service Order Completion Non Dispatch < 10 - Resale Centrex
797	P-9 % Provisioning Troubles w/in 30 days of Service Order Completion Non Dispatch < 10 - Resale Design
798	P-9 % Provisioning Troubles w/in 30 days of Service Order Completion Non Dispatch < 10 Resale ISDN
799	P-9 % Provisioning Troubles w/in 30 days of Service Order Completion Non Dispatch < 10 - Local Transport
800	P-9 % Provisioning Troubles w/in 30 days of Service Order Completion Non Dispatch - Local Inter- connection Trunks
801	P-9 % Provisioning Troubles w/in 30 days of Service Order Completion Non Dispatch < 10 LNP Standalone
802	P-9 % Provisioning Troubles w/in 30 days of Service Order Completion Non Dispatch < 10 INP Stan- dalone
803	P-9 % Provisioning Troubles w/in 30 days of Service Order Completion Non Dispatch < 10 - Resale PBX

Table B-1:	Tier 1	Submetrics	(Continued)
------------	--------	-------------------	-------------

•

~ ·

Item No.	Submetric
804	P-9 % Provisioning Troubles w/in 30 days of Service Order Completion Non Dispatch < 10 Resale Residence
805	P-9 % Provisioning Troubles w/in 30 days of Service Order Completion Non Dispatch < 10 - UNE Combo Other
806	P-9 % Provisioning Troubles w/in 30 days of Service Order Completion Non Dispatch < 10 - EEL's
807	P-9 % Provisioning Troubles w/in 30 days of Service Order Completion Non Dispatch < 10 - UNE ISDN (includes UDC)
808	P-9 % Provisioning Troubles w/in 30 days of Service Order Completion Non-Dispatch < 10 - UNE Loop and Port Combo
809	P-9 % Provisioning Troubles w/in 30 days of Service Order Completion Non Dispatch < 10 - UNE Line Sharing
810	P-9 % Provisioning Troubles w/in 30 days of Service Order Completion Non Dispatch < 10 - UNE Line Splitting
811	P-9 % Provisioning Troubles w/in 30 days of Service Order Completion Non Dispatch < 10 UNE Dig- ital Loop >= DS1
812	P-9 % Provisioning Troubles w/in 30 days of Service Order Completion Non Dispatch < 10 - UNE Digital Loop < DS1
813	P-9 % Provisioning Troubles w/in 30 days of Service Order Completion Non Dispatch < 10 - UNE Other Design
814	P-9 % Provisioning Troubles w/in 30 days of Service Order Completion Non Dispatch < 10 - UNE Other Non Design
815	P-9 % Provisioning Troubles w/in 30 days of Service Order Completion Non Dispatch < 10 - UNE Switch ports
816	P-9 % Provisioning Troubles w/in 30 days of Service Order Completion Non Dispatch <10 - UNE xDSL (ADSL, HDSL, UCL)
817	P-9 % Provisioning Troubles w/in 30 days of Service Order Completion Non Dispatch - Dispatch in < 10 - UNE Loop and Port Combo
818	P-9 % Provisioning Troubles w/in 30 days of Service Order Completion Non Dispatch - Switch-based < 10 - UNE Loop and Port Combo
819	TGP-2 Trunk Group Performance ALEC Specific

Table B-1: Tier 1 Submetrics (Continued)

.....

.

-

BELLSOUTH®

Florida Plan

...

2. Tier 2 Submetrics

.

Table B-2 contains a list of Tier 2 submetrics.

Item No.	Tier 2 Sub Metrics
1	B-1 Invoice Accuracy
2	B-2 Mean Time to Deliver Invoices
3	B- 3 Usage Delivery Accuracy
4	C-3 Collocation Percent of Due Dates Missed Physical Caged
5	C-3 Collocation Percent of Due Dates Missed Virtual
6	CM - 1 Timeliness of Change Management Notices
7	CM - 3 Timeliness of documents Associated with change
8	MR-1 Percent Missed Repair Appointments Dispatch - 2 w Analog Loop Design
9	MR-1 Percent Missed Repair Appointments Dispatch - 2 w Analog Loop Non-Design
10	MR-1 Percent Missed Repair Appointments Dispatch - Resale Business
11	MR-1 Percent Missed Repair Appointments Dispatch - Resale Centrex
12	MR-1 Percent Missed Repair Appointments Dispatch - Resale Design
13	MR-1 Percent Missed Repair Appointments Dispatch - Resale ISDN
14	MR-1 Percent Missed Repair Appointments Dispatch - Local Transport
15	MR-1 Percent Missed Repair Appointments Dispatch - Local Interconnection Trunks
16	MR-1 Percent Missed Repair Appointments Dispatch - Resale PBX
17	MR-1 Percent Missed Repair Appointments Dispatch - Resale Residence
18	MR-1 Percent Missed Repair Appointments Dispatch - UNE Combo Other
19	MR-1 Percent Missed Repair Appointments Dispatch - UNE Digital Loop >= DS1
20	MR-1 Percent Missed Repair Appointments Dispatch - UNE Digital Loop < DS1
21	MR-1 Percent Missed Repair Appointments Dispatch - UNE ISDN (includes UDC)
22	MR-1 Percent Missed Repair Appointments Dispatch - UNE Loop and Port Combo
23	MR-1 Percent Missed Repair Appointments Dispatch - UNE Line Sharing
24	MR-1 Percent Missed Repair Appointments Dispatch - UNE Switch ports
25	MR-1 Percent Missed Repair Appointments Dispatch - UNE xDSL (ADSL, HDSL, UCL)
26	MR-1 Percent Missed Repair Appointments Non Dispatch - 2 w Analog Loop Design
27	MR-1 Percent Missed Repair Appointments Non Dispatch - 2 w Analog Loop Non-Design
28	MR-1 Percent Missed Repair Appointments Non Dispatch - Resale Business
29	MR-1 Percent Missed Repair Appointments Non Dispatch - Resale Centrex
30	MR-1 Percent Missed Repair Appointments Non Dispatch - Resale Design
31	MR-1 Percent Missed Repair Appointments Non Dispatch - Resale ISDN
32	MR-1 Percent Missed Repair Appointments Non Dispatch - Local Transport
33	MR-1 Percent Missed Repair Appointments Non Dispatch - Local Interconnection Trunks
34	MR-1 Percent Missed Repair Appointments Non Dispatch - Resale PBX

Table B-2: Tier 2 Submetrics

.

Florida Plan

Table B-2	Tier 2	Submetrics	(Continued)
		Oublicence	(oonunueu)

Item No.	Tier 2 Sub Metrics
35	MR-1 Percent Missed Repair Appointments Non Dispatch - Resale Residence
36	MR-1 Percent Missed Repair Appointments Non Dispatch - UNE Combo Other
37	MR-1 Percent Missed Repair Appointments Non Dispatch - UNE Digital Loop >= DS1
38	MR-1 Percent Missed Repair Appointments Non Dispatch - UNE Digital Loop < DS1
39	MR-1 Percent Missed Repair Appointments Non Dispatch - UNE ISDN (includes UDC)
40	MR-1 Percent Missed Repair Appointments Non Dispatch - UNE Loop and Port Combo
41	MR-1 Percent Missed Repair Appointments Non Dispatch - UNE Line Sharing
42	MR-1 Percent Missed Repair Appointments Non Dispatch - UNE Switch ports
43	MR-1 Percent Missed Repair Appointments Non Dispatch - UNE xDSL (ADSL, HDSL, UCL)
44	MR-2 Customer Trouble Report Rate - 2 w Analog Loop Design
45	MR-2 Customer Trouble Report Rate - 2 w Analog Loop Non-Design
46	MR-2 Customer Trouble Report Rate - Resale Business
47	MR-2 Customer Trouble Report Rate - Resale Centrex
48	MR-2 Customer Trouble Report Rate - Resale Design
49	MR-2 Customer Trouble Report Rate - Resale ISDN
50	MR-2 Customer Trouble Report Rate - Local Transport
51	MR-2 Customer Trouble Report Rate - Local Interconnection Trunks
52	MR-2 Customer Trouble Report Rate - Resale PBX
53	MR-2 Customer Trouble Report Rate - Resale Residence
54	MR-2 Customer Trouble Report Rate - UNE Combo Other
55	MR-2 Customer Trouble Report Rate - UNE Digital Loop >= DS1
56	MR-2 Customer Trouble Report Rate - UNE Digital Loop < DS1
57	MR-2 Customer Trouble Report Rate - UNE ISDN (includes UDC)
58	MR-2 Customer Trouble Report Rate - UNE Loop and Port Combo
59	MR-2 Customer Trouble Report Rate - UNE Line Sharing
60	MR-2 Customer Trouble Report Rate - UNE Switch ports
61	MR-2 Customer Trouble Report Rate - UNE xDSL (ADSL, HDSL, UCL)
62	MR-3 Maintenance Average Duration Dispatch - 2 w Analog Loop Design
63	MR-3 Maintenance Average Duration Dispatch - 2 w Analog Loop Non-Design
64	MR-3 Maintenance Average Duration Dispatch - Resale Business
65	MR-3 Maintenance Average Duration Dispatch - Resale Centrex
66	MR-3 Maintenance Average Duration Dispatch - Resale Design
67	MR-3 Maintenance Average Duration Dispatch - Resale ISDN
68	MR-3 Maintenance Average Duration Dispatch - Local Transport
69	MR-3 Maintenance Average Duration Dispatch - Local Interconnection Trunks
70	MR-3 Maintenance Average Duration Dispatch - Resale PBX
71	MR-3 Maintenance Average Duration Dispatch - Resale Residence

.

Florida Plan

	Table B-2: Tier 2 Submetrics (Continued)
item No.	Tier 2 Sub Metrics
72	MR-3 Maintenance Average Duration Dispatch - UNE Combo Other
73	MR-3 Maintenance Average Duration Dispatch - UNE Digital Loop >= DS1
74	MR-3 Maintenance Average Duration Dispatch - UNE Digital Loop < DS1
75	MR-3 Maintenance Average Duration Dispatch - UNE ISDN (includes UDC)
76	MR-3 Maintenance Average Duration Dispatch - UNE Loop and Port Combo
77	MR-3 Maintenance Average Duration Dispatch - UNE Line Sharing
78	MR-3 Maintenance Average Duration Dispatch - UNE Switch ports
79	MR-3 Maintenance Average Duration Dispatch - UNE xDSL (ADSL, HDSL, UCL)
80	MR-3 Maintenance Average Duration Non Dispatch - 2 w Analog Loop Design
81	MR-3 Maintenance Average Duration Non Dispatch - 2 w Analog Loop Non-Design
82	MR-3 Maintenance Average Duration Non Dispatch - Resale Business
83	MR-3 Maintenance Average Duration Non Dispatch - Resale Centrex
84	MR-3 Maintenance Average Duration Non Dispatch - Resale Design
85	MR-3 Maintenance Average Duration Non Dispatch - Resale ISDN
86	MR-3 Maintenance Average Duration Non Dispatch - Local Transport
87	MR-3 Maintenance Average Duration Non Dispatch - Local Interconnection Trunks
88	MR-3 Maintenance Average Duration Non Dispatch - Resale PBX
89	MR-3 Maintenance Average Duration Non Dispatch - Resale Residence
90	MR-3 Maintenance Average Duration Non Dispatch - UNE Combo Other
91	MR-3 Maintenance Average Duration Non Dispatch - UNE Digital Loop >= DS1
92	MR-3 Maintenance Average Duration Non Dispatch - UNE Digital Loop < DS1
93	MR-3 Maintenance Average Duration Non Dispatch - UNE ISDN (includes UDC)
94	MR-3 Maintenance Average Duration Non Dispatch - UNE Loop and Port Combo
95	MR-3 Maintenance Average Duration Non Dispatch - UNE Line Sharing
96	MR-3 Maintenance Average Duration Non Dispatch - UNE Switch ports
97	MR-3 Maintenance Average Duration Non Dispatch - UNE xDSL (ADSL, HDSL, UCL)
98	MR-4 Percent Repeat Trouble within 30 Days Dispatch - 2 w Analog Loop Design
99	MR-4 Percent Repeat Trouble within 30 Days Dispatch - 2 w Analog Loop Non-Design
100	MR-4 Percent Repeat Trouble within 30 Days Dispatch - Resale Business
101	MR-4 Percent Repeat Trouble within 30 Days Dispatch - Resale Centrex
102	MR-4 Percent Repeat Trouble within 30 Days Dispatch - Resale Design
103	MR-4 Percent Repeat Trouble within 30 Days Dispatch - Resale ISDN
104	MR-4 Percent Repeat Trouble within 30 Days Dispatch - Local Transport
105	MR-4 Percent Repeat Trouble within 30 Days Dispatch - Local Interconnection Trunks
106	MR-4 Percent Repeat Trouble within 30 Days Dispatch - Resale PBX
107	MR-4 Percent Repeat Trouble within 30 Days Dispatch - Resale Residence
108	MR-4 Percent Repeat Trouble within 30 Days Dispatch - UNE Combo Other

Updated January 22, 2002

·····

Florida Plan

ltem No.	Tier 2 Sub Metrics			
109	MR-4 Percent Repeat Trouble within 30 Days Dispatch - UNE Digital Loop >= DS1			
110	MR-4 Percent Repeat Trouble within 30 Days Dispatch - UNE Digital Loop < DS1			
111	MR-4 Percent Repeat Trouble within 30 Days Dispatch - UNE ISDN (includes UDC)			
112	MR-4 Percent Repeat Trouble within 30 Days Dispatch - UNE Loop and Port Combo			
113	MR-4 Percent Repeat Trouble within 30 Days Dispatch - UNE Line Sharing			
114	MR-4 Percent Repeat Trouble within 30 Days Dispatch - UNE Switch ports			
115	MR-4 Percent Repeat Trouble within 30 Days Dispatch - UNE xDSL (ADSL, HDSL, UCL)			
116	MR-4 Percent Repeat Trouble within 30 Days Non Dispatch - 2 w Analog Loop Design			
117	MR-4 Percent Repeat Trouble within 30 Days Non Dispatch - 2 w Analog Loop Non-Design			
118	MR-4 Percent Repeat Trouble within 30 Days Non Dispatch - Resale Business			
119	MR-4 Percent Repeat Trouble within 30 Days Non Dispatch - Resale Centrex			
120	MR-4 Percent Repeat Trouble within 30 Days Non Dispatch - Resale Design			
121	MR-4 Percent Repeat Trouble within 30 Days Non Dispatch Resale ISDN			
122	MR-4 Percent Repeat Trouble within 30 Days Non Dispatch - Local Transport			
123	MR-4 Percent Repeat Trouble within 30 Days Non Dispatch - Local Interconnection Trunks			
124	MR-4 Percent Repeat Trouble within 30 Days Non Dispatch - Resale PBX			
125	MR-4 Percent Repeat Trouble within 30 Days Non Dispatch - Resale Residence			
126	MR-4 Percent Repeat Trouble within 30 Days Non Dispatch - UNE Combo Other			
127	MR-4 Percent Repeat Trouble within 30 Days Non Dispatch - UNE Digital Loop >= DS1			
128	MR-4 Percent Repeat Trouble within 30 Days Non Dispatch - UNE Digital Loop < DS1			
129	MR-4 Percent Repeat Trouble within 30 Days Non Dispatch - UNE ISDN (includes UDC)			
130	MR-4 Percent Repeat Trouble within 30 Days Non Dispatch - UNE Loop and Port Combo			
131	MR-4 Percent Repeat Trouble within 30 Days Non Dispatch - UNE Line Sharing			
132	MR-4 Percent Repeat Trouble within 30 Days Non Dispatch - UNE Switch ports			
133	MR-4 Percent Repeat Trouble within 30 Days Non Dispatch - UNE xDSL (ADSL, HDSL, UCL)			
134	MR-5 Out of Service (OOS) > 24 hours Dispatch - 2 w Analog Loop Design			
135	MR-5 Out of Service (OOS) > 24 hours Dispatch - 2 w Analog Loop Non-Design			
136	MR-5 Out of Service (OOS) > 24 hours Dispatch - Resale Business			
137	MR-5 Out of Service (OOS) > 24 hours Dispatch - Resale Centrex			
138	MR-5 Out of Service (OOS) > 24 hours Dispatch - Resale Design			
139	MR-5 Out of Service (OOS) > 24 hours Dispatch - Resale ISDN			
140	MR-5 Out of Service (OOS) > 24 hours Dispatch - Local Transport			
141	MR-5 Out of Service (OOS) > 24 hours Dispatch - Local Interconnection Trunks			
142	MR-5 Out of Service (OOS) > 24 hours Dispatch - Resale PBX			
143	MR-5 Out of Service (OOS) > 24 hours Dispatch - Resale Residence			
144	MR-5 Out of Service (OOS) > 24 hours Dispatch - UNE Combo Other			
145	MR-5 Out of Service (OOS) > 24 hours Dispatch - UNE Digital Loop >= DS1			

,

.

Florida Plan

ltem No.	Tier 2 Sub Metrics
146	MR-5 Out of Service (OOS) > 24 hours Dispatch - UNE Digital Loop < DS1
147	MR-5 Out of Service (OOS) > 24 hours Dispatch - UNE ISDN (includes UDC)
148	MR-5 Out of Service (OOS) > 24 hours Dispatch - UNE Loop and Port Combo
149	MR-5 Out of Service (OOS) > 24 hours Dispatch - UNE Line Sharing
150	MR-5 Out of Service (OOS) > 24 hours Dispatch - UNE Switch ports
151	MR-5 Out of Service (OOS) > 24 hours Dispatch - UNE xDSL (ADSL, HDSL, UCL)
152	MR-5 Out of Service (OOS) > 24 hours Non Dispatch - 2 w Analog Loop Design
153	MR-5 Out of Service (OOS) > 24 hours Non Dispatch - 2 w Analog Loop Non-Design
154	MR-5 Out of Service (OOS) > 24 hours Non Dispatch - Resale Business
155	MR-5 Out of Service (OOS) > 24 hours Non Dispatch - Resale Centrex
156	MR-5 Out of Service (OOS) > 24 hours Non Dispatch - Resale Design
157	MR-5 Out of Service (OOS) > 24 hours Non Dispatch Resale ISDN
158	MR-5 Out of Service (OOS) > 24 hours Non Dispatch - Local Transport
159	MR-5 Out of Service (OOS) > 24 hours Non Dispatch - Local Interconnection Trunks
160	MR-5 Out of Service (OOS) > 24 hours Non Dispatch - Resale PBX
161	MR-5 Out of Service (OOS) > 24 hours Non Dispatch - Resale Residence
162	MR-5 Out of Service (OOS) > 24 hours Non Dispatch - UNE Combo Other
163	MR-5 Out of Service (OOS) > 24 hours Non Dispatch - UNE Digital Loop >= DS1
164	MR-5 Out of Service (OOS) > 24 hours Non Dispatch - UNE Digital Loop < DS1
165	MR-5 Out of Service (OOS) > 24 hours Non Dispatch - UNE ISDN (includes UDC)
166	MR-5 Out of Service (OOS) > 24 hours Non Dispatch - UNE Loop and Port Combo
167	MR-5 Out of Service (OOS) > 24 hours Non Dispatch - UNE Line Sharing
168	MR-5 Out of Service (OOS) > 24 hours Non Dispatch - UNE Switch ports
169	MR-5 Out of Service (OOS) > 24 hours Non Dispatch UNE xDSL (ADSL, HDSL, UCL)
170	O-11 FOC & Reject Completeness Fully Mechanized 2W Analog Loop Design
171	O-11 FOC & Reject Completeness Fully Mechanized 2W Analog Loop w/LNP Design
172	O-11 FOC & Reject Completeness Fully Mechanized 2W Analog Loop w/LNP Non Design
173	O-11 FOC & Reject Completeness Fully Mechanized 2W Analog Loop Non Design
174	O-11 FOC & Reject Completeness Fully Mechanized Resale Business
175	O-11 FOC & Reject Completeness Fully Mechanized Resale Centrex
176	O-11 FOC & Reject Completeness Fully Mechanized Resale Design (Special)
177	O-11 FOC & Reject Completeness Fully Mechanized EEL's
178	O-11 FOC & Reject Completeness Fully Mechanized Resale ISDN
179	O-11 FOC & Reject Completeness Fully Mechanized Line Splitting
180	O-11 FOC & Reject Completeness Fully Mechanized Local Interoffice Transport
181	O-11 FOC & Reject Completeness Fully Mechanized Local Interconnection Trunks
182	O-11 FOC & Reject Completeness Fully Mechanized LNP Standalone

. . . .

Florida Plan

...

Table B-2: Tier 2 Submetrics (Continued)		
item No.	Tier 2 Sub Metrics	
183	O-11 FOC & Reject Completeness Fully Mechanized Line Sharing	
184	O-11 FOC & Reject Completeness Fully Mechanized Resale PBX	
185	O-11 FOC & Reject Completeness Fully Mechanized Resale Residence	
186	O-11 FOC & Reject Completeness Fully Mechanized Switch Ports	
187	O-11 FOC & Reject Completeness Fully Mechanized UNE Combo Other	
188	O-11 FOC & Reject Completeness Fully Mechanized UNE Digital Loop >DS1	
189	O-11 FOC & Reject Completeness Fully Mechanized UNE Digital Loop <ds1< td=""><td></td></ds1<>	
190	O-11 FOC & Reject Completeness Fully Mechanized UNE ISDN	
191	O-11 FOC & Reject Completeness Fully Mechanized UNE Loop + Port Combos	
192	O-11 FOC & Reject Completeness Fully Mechanized UNE Other Design	
193	O-11 FOC & Reject Completeness Fully Mechanized UNE xDSL (ADSL, HDSL, UC)	
194	O-11 FOC & Reject Completeness Non Mechanized 2W Analog Loop Design	
195	O-11 FOC & Reject Completeness Non Mechanized 2W Analog Loop w/LNP Design	
196	O-11 FOC & Reject Completeness Non Mechanized 2W Analog Loop w/LNP Non Design	
197	O-11 FOC & Reject Completeness Non Mechanized 2W Analog Loop Non Design	
198	O-11 FOC & Reject Completeness Non Mechanized Resale Business	
199	O-11 FOC & Reject Completeness Non Mechanized Resale Centrex	
200	O-11 FOC & Reject Completeness Non Mechanized Resale Design (Special)	
201	O-11 FOC & Reject Completeness Non Mechanized EEL's	
202	O-11 FOC & Reject Completeness Non Mechanized Resale ISDN	
203	O-11 FOC & Reject Completeness Non Mechanized Line Splitting	
204	O-11 FOC & Reject Completeness Non Mechanized Local Interoffice Transport	
205	O-11 FOC & Reject Completeness Non Mechanized Local Interconnection Trunks	
206	O-11 FOC & Reject Completeness Non Mechanized LNP Standalone	
207	O-11 FOC & Reject Completeness Non Mechanized Line Sharing	
208	O-11 FOC & Reject Completeness Non Mechanized Resale PBX	
209	O-11 FOC & Reject Completeness Non Mechanized Resale Residence	
210	O-11 FOC & Reject Completeness Non Mechanized Switch Ports	
211	O-11 FOC & Reject Completeness Non Mechanized UNE Combo Other	
212	O-11 FOC & Reject Completeness Non Mechanized UNE Digital Loop >DS1	
213	O-11 FOC & Reject Completeness Non Mechanized UNE Digital Loop <ds1< td=""><td></td></ds1<>	
214	O-11 FOC & Reject Completeness Non Mechanized UNE ISDN	
215	O-11 FOC & Reject Completeness Non Mechanized UNE Loop + Port Combos	
216	O-11 FOC & Reject Completeness Non Mechanized UNE Other Design	
217	O-11 FOC & Reject Completeness Fully Mechanized UNE Other Non Design	
218	O-11 FOC & Reject Completeness Non Mechanized UNE Other Non Design	
219	0-11 FOC & Reject Completeness Non Mechanized UNE xDSL (ADSL, HDSL, UC)	

Updated January 22, 2002

Florida Plan

Table	B-2.	Tior 2	Submetrice	(Continued)
Iable	D-Z.		Submetrics	(Continued)

Item No.	Tier 2 Sub Metrics				
220	O-11 FOC & Reject Completeness Partially Mechanized 2W Analog Loop Design				
221	O-11 FOC & Reject Completeness Partially Mechanized 2W Analog Loop w/LNP Design				
222	O-11 FOC & Reject Completeness Partially Mechanized 2W Analog Loop w/LNP Non Design				
223	O-11 FOC & Reject Completeness Partially Mechanized 2W Analog Loop Non Design				
224	O-11 FOC & Reject Completeness Partially Mechanized Resale Business				
225	O-11 FOC & Reject Completeness Partially Mechanized Resale Centrex				
226	O-11 FOC & Reject Completeness Partially Mechanized Resale Design (Special)				
227	O-11 FOC & Reject Completeness Partially Mechanized EEL's				
228	O-11 FOC & Reject Completeness Partially Mechanized Resale ISDN				
229	O-11 FOC & Reject Completeness Partially Mechanized Line Splitting				
230	O-11 FOC & Reject Completeness Partially Mechanized Local Interoffice Transport				
231	O-11 FOC & Reject Completeness Partially Mechanized Local Interconnection Trunks				
232	O-11 FOC & Reject Completeness Partially Mechanized LNP Standalone				
233	O-11 FOC & Reject Completeness Partially Mechanized Line Sharing				
234	O-11 FOC & Reject Completeness Partially Mechanized Resale PBX				
235	O-11 FOC & Reject Completeness Partially Mechanized Resale Residence				
236	O-11 FOC & Reject Completeness Partially Mechanized Switch Ports				
237	O-11 FOC & Reject Completeness Partially Mechanized UNE Combo Other				
238	O-11 FOC & Reject Completeness Partially Mechanized UNE Digital Loop >DS1				
239	O-11 FOC & Reject Completeness Partially Mechanized UNE Digital Loop <ds1< th=""></ds1<>				
240	O-11 FOC & Reject Completeness Partially Mechanized UNE ISDN				
241	O-11 FOC & Reject Completeness Partially Mechanized UNE Loop + Port Combos				
242	O-11 FOC & Reject Completeness Partially Mechanized UNE Other Design				
243	O-11 FOC & Reject Completeness Partially Mechanized UNE Other Non Design				
244	O-11 FOC & Reject Completeness Partially Mechanized UNE xDSL (ADSL, HDSL, UC)				
245	O-12 Speed of Answer in Ordering Center Business Service Center				
246	O-12 Speed of Answer in Ordering Center Residence Service Center				
247	O-1 Acknowledgement Message Timeliness (Electronically) - EDI				
248	O-1 Acknowledgement Message Timeliness (Electronically) - TAG				
249	O-2 Acknowledgement Message Completeness - EDI Fully Mechanized				
250	O-2 Acknowledgement Message Completeness - TAG Fully Mechanized				
251	O-3 Percent flow-through Service Requests (Summary) - Total Business				
252	O-3 Percent flow-through Service Requests (Summary) - Total LNP				
253	O-3 Percent flow-through Service Requests (Summary) - Total Residence				
254	O-3 Percent flow-through Service Requests (Summary) - Total UNE				
255	O-8 Reject Interval Fully Mechanized 2W Analog Loop Design				
256	O-8 Reject Interval Fully Mechanized 2W Analog Loop w/LNP Design				

Florida Plan

Table B-2: Tier 2 Submetrics (Continued)			
Item No.	Tier 2 Sub Metrics		
257	O-8 Reject Interval Fully Mechanized 2W Analog Loop w/LNP Non Design		
258	O-8 Reject Interval Fully Mechanized 2W Analog Loop Non Design		
259	O-8 Reject Interval Fully Mechanized Resale Business		
260	O-8 Reject Interval Fully Mechanized Resale Centrex		
261	O-8 Reject Interval Fully Mechanized Resale Design (Special)		
262	O-8 Reject Interval Fully Mechanized EEL's		
263	O-8 Reject Interval Fully Mechanized Resale ISDN		
264	O-8 Reject Interval Fully Mechanized Line Splitting		
265	O-8 Reject Interval Fully Mechanized Local Interoffice Transport		
266	O-8 Reject Interval Fully Mechanized Local Interconnection Trunks		
267	O-8 Reject Interval Fully Mechanized LNP Standalone		
268	O-8 Reject Interval Fully Mechanized Line Sharing		
269	O-8 Reject Interval Fully Mechanized Resale PBX		
270	O-8 Reject Interval Fully Mechanized Resale Residence		
271	O-8 Reject Interval Fully Mechanized Switch Ports		
272	O-8 Reject Interval Fully Mechanized UNE COMBO Other		
273	O-8 Reject Interval Fully Mechanized UNE Digital Loop >DS1		
274	O-8 Reject Interval Fully Mechanized UNE Digital Loop <ds1< td=""></ds1<>		
275	O-8 Reject Interval Fully Mechanized UNE ISDN		
276	O-8 Reject Interval Fully Mechanized UNE Loop + Port Combos		
277	O-8 Reject Interval Fully Mechanized UNE Other Design		
278	O-8 Reject Interval Fully Mechanized UNE Other Non Design		
279	O-8 Reject Interval Fully Mechanized UNE xDSL (ADSL, HDSL, UC)		
280	O-8 Reject Interval Non Mechanized 2W Analog Loop Design		
281	O-8 Reject Interval Non Mechanized 2W Analog Loop w/LNP Design		
282	O-8 Reject Interval Non Mechanized 2W Analog Loop w/LNP Non Design		
283	O-8 Reject Interval Non Mechanized 2W Analog Loop Non Design		
284	O-8 Reject Interval Non Mechanized Resale Business		
285	O-8 Reject Interval Non Mechanized Resale Centrex		
286	O-8 Reject Interval Non Mechanized Resale Design (Special)		
287	O-8 Reject Interval Non Mechanized EEL's		
288	O-8 Reject Interval Non Mechanized Resale ISDN		
289	O-8 Reject Interval Non Mechanized Line Splitting		
290	O-8 Reject Interval Non Mechanized Local Interoffice Transport		
291	O-8 Reject Interval Non Mechanized Local Interconnection Trunks		
292	O-8 Reject Interval Non Mechanized LNP Standalone		
293	O-8 Reject Interval Non Mechanized Line Sharing		

-. . **I**-..... - 10-.. • D 0 T - -

Updated January 22, 2002

.....

Florida Plan

Table B-2: Tier 2 Submetrics (Continued)			
Item No.	Tier 2 Sub Metrics		
294	O-8 Reject Interval Non Mechanized Resale PBX		
295	O-8 Reject Interval Non Mechanized Resale Residence		
296	O-8 Reject Interval Non Mechanized Switch Ports		
297	O-8 Reject Interval Non Mechanized UNE COMBO Other		
298	O-8 Reject Interval Non Mechanized UNE Digital Loop ≥ DS1		
299	O-8 Reject Interval Non Mechanized UNE Digital Loop <ds1< td=""></ds1<>		
300	O-8 Reject Interval Non Mechanized UNE ISDN		
301	O-8 Reject Interval Non Mechanized UNE Loop + Port Combos		
302	O-8 Reject Interval Non Mechanized UNE Other Design		
303	O-8 Reject Interval Non Mechanized UNE Other Non Design		
304	O-8 Reject Interval Non Mechanized UNE xDSL (ADSL, HDSL, UC)		
305	O-8 Reject Interval Partially Mechanized 2W Analog Loop Design		
306	O-8 Reject Interval Partially Mechanized 2W Analog Loop w/LNP Design		
307	O-8 Reject Interval Partially Mechanized 2W Analog Loop w/LNP Non Design		
308	O-8 Reject Interval Partially Mechanized 2W Analog Loop Non Design		
309	O-8 Reject Interval Partially Mechanized Resale Business		
310	O-8 Reject Interval Partially Mechanized Resale Centrex		
311	O-8 Reject Interval Partially Mechanized Resale Design (Special)		
312	O-8 Reject Interval Partially Mechanized EEL's		
313	O-8 Reject Interval Partially Mechanized Resale ISDN		
314	O-8 Reject Interval Partially Mechanized Line Splitting		
315	O-8 Reject Interval Partially Mechanized Local Interoffice Transport		
316	O-8 Reject Interval Partially Mechanized Local Interconnection Trunks		
317	O-8 Reject Interval Partially Mechanized LNP Standalone		
318	O-8 Reject Interval Partially Mechanized Line Sharing		
319	O-8 Reject Interval Partially Mechanized Resale PBX		
320	O-8 Reject Interval Partially Mechanized Resale Residence		
321	O-8 Reject Interval Partially Mechanized Switch Ports		
322	O-8 Reject Interval Partially Mechanized UNE COMBO Other		
323	O-8 Reject Interval Partially Mechanized UNE Digital Loop >DS1		
324	O-8 Reject Interval Partially Mechanized UNE Digital Loop <ds1< td=""></ds1<>		
325	O-8 Reject Interval Partially Mechanized UNE ISDN		
326	O-8 Reject Interval Partially Mechanized UNE Loop + Port Combos		
327	O-8 Reject Interval Partially Mechanized UNE Other Design		
328	O-8 Reject Interval Partially Mechanized UNE Other Non Design		
329	O-8 Reject Interval Partially Mechanized UNE xDSL (ADSL, HDSL, UC)		
330	O-9 Firm Order Confirmation Timeliness Fully Mechanized 2W Analog Loop Design		

,

. . .-..

Florida Plan

Table	B-2 :	Tier 2	Submetrics	(Continued)

ltem No.	Tier 2 Sub Metrics				
331	O-9 Firm Order Confirmation Timeliness Fully Mechanized 2W Analog Loop w/LNP Design				
332	O-9 Firm Order Confirmation Timeliness Fully Mechanized 2W Analog Loop w/LNP Non Design				
333	O-9 Firm Order Confirmation Timeliness Fully Mechanized 2W Analog Loop Non Design				
334	O-9 Firm Order Confirmation Timeliness Fully Mechanized Resale Business				
335	O-9 Firm Order Confirmation Timeliness Fully Mechanized Resale Centrex				
336	O-9 Firm Order Confirmation Timeliness Fully Mechanized Resale Design (Special)				
337	O-9 Firm Order Confirmation Timeliness Fully Mechanized EEL's				
338	O-9 Firm Order Confirmation Timeliness Fully Mechanized Resale ISDN				
339	O-9 Firm Order Confirmation Timeliness Fully Mechanized Line Splitting				
340	O-9 Firm Order Confirmation Timeliness Fully Mechanized Local Interoffice Transport				
341	O-9 Firm Order Confirmation Timeliness Fully Mechanized Local Interconnection Trunks				
342	O-9 Firm Order Confirmation Timeliness Fully Mechanized LNP Standalone				
343	O-9 Firm Order Confirmation Timeliness Fully Mechanized Line Sharing				
344	O-9 Firm Order Confirmation Timeliness Fully Mechanized Resale PBX				
345	O-9 Firm Order Confirmation Timeliness Fully Mechanized Resale Residence				
346	O-9 Firm Order Confirmation Timeliness Fully Mechanized Switch Ports				
347	O-9 Firm Order Confirmation Timeliness Fully Mechanized UNE Combo Other				
348	O-9 Firm Order Confirmation Timeliness Fully Mechanized UNE Digital Loop >DS1				
349	O-9 Firm Order Confirmation Timeliness Fully Mechanized UNE Digital Loop <ds1< td=""></ds1<>				
350	O-9 Firm Order Confirmation Timeliness Fully Mechanized UNE ISDN				
351	O-9 Firm Order Confirmation Timeliness Fully Mechanized UNE Loop + Port Combos				
352	O-9 Firm Order Confirmation Timeliness Fully Mechanized UNE Other Design				
353	O-9 Firm Order Confirmation Timeliness Fully Mechanized UNE xDSL (ADSL, HDSL, UC)				
354	O-9 Firm Order Confirmation Timeliness Non Mechanized 2W Analog Loop Design				
355	O-9 Firm Order Confirmation Timeliness Non Mechanized 2W Analog Loop w/LNP Design				
356	O-9 Firm Order Confirmation Timeliness Non Mechanized 2W Analog Loop w/LNP Non Design				
357	O-9 Firm Order Confirmation Timeliness Non Mechanized 2W Analog Loop Non Design				
358	O-9 Firm Order Confirmation Timeliness Non Mechanized Resale Business				
359	O-9 Firm Order Confirmation Timeliness Non Mechanized Resale Centrex				
360	O-9 Firm Order Confirmation Timeliness Non Mechanized Resale Design (Special)				
361	O-9 Firm Order Confirmation Timeliness Non Mechanized EEL's				
362	O-9 Firm Order Confirmation Timeliness Non Mechanized Resale ISDN				
363	O-9 Firm Order Confirmation Timeliness Non Mechanized Line Splitting				
364	O-9 Firm Order Confirmation Timeliness Non Mechanized Local Interoffice Transport				
365	O-9 Firm Order Confirmation Timeliness Non Mechanized Local Interconnection Trunks				
366	O-9 Firm Order Confirmation Timeliness Non Mechanized LNP Standalone				
367	O-9 Firm Order Confirmation Timeliness Non Mechanized Line Sharing				

.

.

Florida Plan

..

Table B-2: Tier 2 Submetrics (Continued)

Item No.	Tier 2 Sub Metrics
368	O-9 Firm Order Confirmation Timeliness Non Mechanized Resale PBX
369	O-9 Firm Order Confirmation Timeliness Non Mechanized Resale Residence
370	O-9 Firm Order Confirmation Timeliness Non Mechanized Switch Ports
371	O-9 Firm Order Confirmation Timeliness Non Mechanized UNE Combo Other
372	O-9 Firm Order Confirmation Timeliness Non Mechanized UNE Digital Loop >DS1
373	O-9 Firm Order Confirmation Timeliness Non Mechanized UNE Digital Loop <ds1< td=""></ds1<>
374	O-9 Firm Order Confirmation Timeliness Non Mechanized UNE ISDN
375	O-9 Firm Order Confirmation Timeliness Non Mechanized UNE Loop + Port Combos
376	O-9 Firm Order Confirmation Timeliness Non Mechanized UNE Other Design
377	O-9 Firm Order Confirmation Timeliness Fully Mechanized UNE Other Non Design
378	O-9 Firm Order Confirmation Timeliness Non Mechanized UNE Other Non Design
379	O-9 Firm Order Confirmation Timeliness Non Mechanized UNE xDSL (ADSL, HDSL, UC)
380	O-9 Firm Order Confirmation Timeliness Partially Mechanized 2W Analog Loop Design
381	O-9 Firm Order Confirmation Timeliness Partially Mechanized 2W Analog Loop w/LNP Design
382	O-9 Firm Order Confirmation Timeliness Partially Mechanized 2W Analog Loop w/LNP Non Design
383	O-9 Firm Order Confirmation Timeliness Partially Mechanized 2W Analog Loop Non Design
384	O-9 Firm Order Confirmation Timeliness Partially Mechanized Resale Business
385	O-9 Firm Order Confirmation Timeliness Partially Mechanized Resale Centrex
386	O-9 Firm Order Confirmation Timeliness Partially Mechanized Resale Design (Special)
387	O-9 Firm Order Confirmation Timeliness Partially Mechanized EEL's
388	O-9 Firm Order Confirmation Timeliness Partially Mechanized Resale ISDN
389	O-9 Firm Order Confirmation Timeliness Partially Mechanized Line Splitting
390	O-9 Firm Order Confirmation Timeliness Partially Mechanized Local Interoffice Transport
391	O-9 Firm Order Confirmation Timeliness Partially Mechanized Local Interconnection Trunks
392	O-9 Firm Order Confirmation Timeliness Partially Mechanized LNP Standalone
393	O-9 Firm Order Confirmation Timeliness Partially Mechanized Line Sharing
394	O-9 Firm Order Confirmation Timeliness Partially Mechanized Resale PBX
395	O-9 Firm Order Confirmation Timeliness Partially Mechanized Resale Residence
396	O-9 Firm Order Confirmation Timeliness Partially Mechanized Switch Ports
397	O-9 Firm Order Confirmation Timeliness Partially Mechanized UNE Combo Other
398	O-9 Firm Order Confirmation Timeliness Partially Mechanized UNE Digital Loop >DS1
399	O-9 Firm Order Confirmation Timeliness Partially Mechanized UNE Digital Loop <ds1< td=""></ds1<>
400	O-9 Firm Order Confirmation Timeliness Partially Mechanized UNE ISDN
401	O-9 Firm Order Confirmation Timeliness Partially Mechanized UNE Loop + Port Combos
402	O-9 Firm Order Confirmation Timeliness Partially Mechanized UNE Other Design
403	O-9 Firm Order Confirmation Timeliness Partially Mechanized UNE Other Non Design
404	O-9 Firm Order Confirmation Timeliness Partially Mechanized UNE xDSL (ADSL, HDSL, UC)

Updated January 22, 2002

Florida Plan

Table B-2: Tier 2 Submetrics (Continued)

Item No.	Tier 2 Sub Metrics			
405	OSS-1 Average Respone Time and Response Interval PARITY + 2 SEC LENS ATLAS			
406	OSS-1 Average Respone Time and Response Interval PARITY + 2 SEC LENS DSAP			
407	OSS-1 Average Response Time and Response Interval PARITY + 2 SEC LENS PSIMS/ORB			
408	OSS-1 Average Response Time and Response Interval PARITY + 2 SEC TAG PSIMS/ORB			
409	OSS-1 Average Response Time and Response Interval PARITY + 2 SEC LENS RSAG-ADDR			
410	OSS-1 Average Response Time and Response Interval PARITY + 2 SEC LENS RSAG-TN			
411	OSS-1 Average Response Time and Response Interval PARITY + 2 SEC TAG ATLAS			
412	OSS-1 Average Response Time and Response Interval PARITY + 2 SEC LENS CRIS-CRESCSRL			
413	OSS-1 Average Response Time and Response Interval PARITY + 2 SEC TAG CRIS-TAG-CSR			
414	OSS-1 Average Response Time and Response Interval PARITY + 2 SEC TAG DSAP			
415	OSS-1 Average Response Time and Response Interval PARITY + 2 SEC TAG RSAG-ADDR			
416	OSS-1 Average Response Time and Response Interval PARITY + 2 SEC TAG RSAG-TN			
417	OSS-2 Interface Availability (Pre-Ordering) EDI			
418	OSS-2 Interface Availability (Pre-Ordering) HAL			
419	OSS-2 Interface Availability (Pre-Ordering) LENS			
420	OSS-2 Interface Availability (Pre-Ordering) LEO MAINFRAME			
421	OSS-2 Interface Availability (Pre-Ordering) LESOG			
422	OSS-2 Interface Availability (Pre-Ordering) PSIMS			
423	OSS-2 Interface Availability (Pre-Ordering) TAG			
424	OSS-3 Interface Availability (Maintenance and Repair) ALEC ECTA			
425	OSS-3 Interface Availability (Maintenance and Repair) ALEC TAFI			
426	OSS-4 Response Interval (Maintenance and Repair) (OSS-4-CRIS)			
427	OSS-4 Response Interval (Maintenance and Repair) (OSS-4-DLETH)			
428	OSS-4 Response Interval (Maintenance and Repair) OSS-4-DLR)			
429	OSS-4 Response Interval (Maintenance and Repair) (OSS-4-LMOS)			
430	OSS-4 Response Interval (Maintenance and Repair) (OSS-4-LMOSupd)			
431	OSS-4 Response Interval (Maintenance and Repair) (OSS-4-LNP)			
432	OSS-4 Response Interval (Maintenance and Repair) (OSS-4-MARCH)			
433	OSS-4 Response Interval (Maintenance and Repair) (OSS-4-NIW)			
434	OSS-4 Response Interval (Maintenance and Repair) (OSS-4-OSPCM)			
435	OSS-4 Response Interval (Maintenance and Repair) (OSS-4-Predictor)			
436	OSS-4 Response Interval (Maintenance and Repair) (OSS-4-SOCS)			
437	P-3A Percent Missed Installation Appointments Including Subsequent Appointments Dispatch > 10 - 2 w Analog Loop Design			
438	P-3A Percent Missed Installation Appointments Including Subsequent Appointments Dispatch > 10 - 2 w Analog Loop w/LNP Design			
439	P-3A Percent Missed Installation Appointments Including Subsequent Appointments Dispatch > $10 - 2$ w Analog Loop w/LNP Non Design			

. . . .

Item No.	Tier 2 Sub Metrics
440	P-3A Percent Missed Installation Appointments Including Subsequent Appointments Dispatch > 10 - 2 w Analog Loop w/INP Design
441	P-3A Percent Missed Installation Appointments Including Subsequent Appointments Dispatch > 10 - 2 w Analog Loop w/INP Non Design
442	P-3A Percent Missed Installation Appointments Including Subsequent Appointments Dispatch > 10 - 2 w Analog Loop Non-Design
443	P-3A Percent Missed Installation Appointments Including Subsequent Appointments Dispatch > 10 - Resale Business
444	P-3A Percent Missed Installation Appointments Including Subsequent Appointments Dispatch > 10 - Resale Centrex
445	P-3A Percent Missed Installation Appointments Including Subsequent Appointments Dispatch > 10 - Resale Design
446	P-3A Percent Missed Installation Appointments Including Subsequent Appointments Dispatch > 10 Resale ISDN DESIGN
447	P-3A Percent Missed Installation Appointments Including Subsequent Appointments Dispatch > 10 Resale ISDN NON DESIGN
448	P-3A Percent Missed Installation Appointments Including Subsequent Appointments Dispatch > 10 - Local Transport
449	P-3A Percent Missed Installation Appointments Including Subsequent Appointments Dispatch > 10 - Local Interconnection Trunks
450	P-3A Percent Missed Installation Appointments Including Subsequent Appointments Dispatch > 10 - LNP Standalone
451	P-3A Percent Missed Installation Appointments Including Subsequent Appointments Dispatch > 10 - Resale PBX
452	P-3A Percent Missed Installation Appointments Including Subsequent Appointments Dispatch > 10 - Resale Residence
453	P-3A Percent Missed Installation Appointments Including Subsequent Appointments Dispatch > 10 - UNE Combo Other
454	P-3A Percent Missed Installation Appointments Including Subsequent Appointments Dispatch > 10 - UNE Digital Loop >= DS1
455	P-3A Percent Missed Installation Appointments Including Subsequent Appointments Dispatch > 10 - UNE Digital Loop < DS1
456	P-3A Percent Missed Installation Appointments Including Subsequent Appointments - > 10 Dispatch - EEL's
457	P-3A Percent Missed Installation Appointments Including Subsequent Appointments Dispatch > 10 - UNE ISDN (includes UDC)
458	P-3A Percent Missed Installation Appointments Including Subsequent Appointments Dispatch > 10 - UNE Line Sharing
459	P-3A Percent Missed Installation Appointments Including Subsequent Appointments - > 10 Dispatch - UNE Line Splitting
460	P-3A Percent Missed Installation Appointments Including Subsequent Appointments - > 10 Dispatch - UNE Other Design

Table B-2: Tier 2 Submetrics (Continued)

- -

. . .

Item No.	Tier 2 Sub Metrics
461	P-3A Percent Missed Installation Appointments Including Subsequent Appointments - > 10 Dispatch - UNE Other Non Design
462	\dot{P} -3A Percent Missed Installation Appointments Including Subsequent Appointments Dispatch > 10 - UNE Switch ports
463	P-3A Percent Missed Installation Appointments Including Subsequent Appointments Dispatch >10 - UNE xDSL (ADSL, HDSL, UCL)
464	P-3A Percent Missed Installation Appointments Including Subsequent Appointments Dispatch in > 10 - UNE Loop and Port Combo
465	P-3A Percent Missed Installation Appointments Including Subsequent Appointments Dispatch In < 10 - UNE Loop and Port Combo
466	P-3A Percent Missed Installation Appointments Including Subsequent Appointments Dispatch < 10 - 2 w Analog Loop Design
467	P-3A Percent Missed Installation Appointments Including Subsequent Appointments Dispatch < 10 - 2 w Analog Loop w/LNP Design
468	P-3A Percent Missed Installation Appointments Including Subsequent Appointments Dispatch < 10 - 2 w Analog Loop w/LNP Non Design
469	P-3A Percent Missed Installation Appointments Including Subsequent Appointments Dispatch < 10 - 2 w Analog Loop w/INP Design
470	P-3A Percent Missed Installation Appointments Including Subsequent Appointments Dispatch < 10 - 2 w Analog Loop w/INP Non Design
471	P-3A Percent Missed Installation Appointments Including Subsequent Appointments Dispatch < 10 - 2 w Analog Loop Non-Design
472	P-3A Percent Missed Installation Appointments Including Subsequent Appointments Dispatch < 10 - Resale Business
473	P-3A Percent Missed Installation Appointments Including Subsequent Appointments Dispatch < 10 - Resale Centrex
474	P-3A Percent Missed Installation Appointments Including Subsequent Appointments Dispatch < 10 - Resale Design
475	P-3A Percent Missed Installation Appointments Including Subsequent Appointments Dispatch < 10 Resale ISDN
476	P-3A Percent Missed Installation Appointments Including Subsequent Appointments Dispatch < 10 - Local Transport
477	P-3A Percent Missed Installation Appointments Including Subsequent Appointments Dispatch - Local Interconnection Trunks
478	P-3A Percent Missed Installation Appointments Including Subsequent Appointments Dispatch < 10 - LNP Standalone
479	P-3A Percent Missed Installation Appointments Including Subsequent Appointments Dispatch < 10 - Resale PBX
480	P-3A Percent Missed Installation Appointments Including Subsequent Appointments Dispatch < 10 - Resale Residence
481	P-3A Percent Missed Installation Appointments Including Subsequent Appointments Dispatch < 10 - UNE Combo Other

Table B-2: Tier 2 Submetrics (Continued)

,

-- - -----

ltem No.	Tier 2 Sub Metrics
482	P-3A Percent Missed Installation Appointments Including Subsequent Appointments Dispatch < 10 - UNE Digital Loop >= DS1
483	P-3A Percent Missed Installation Appointments Including Subsequent Appointments Dispatch < 10 - UNE Digital Loop < DS1
484	P-3A Percent Missed Installation Appointments Including Subsequent Appointments < 10 Dispatch - EEL's
485	P-3A Percent Missed Installation Appointments Including Subsequent Appointments Dispatch < 10 - UNE ISDN (includes UDC)
486	P-3A Percent Missed Installation Appointments Including Subsequent Appointments Dispatch < 10 - UNE Line Sharing
487	P-3A Percent Missed Installation Appointments Including Subsequent Appointments < 10 Dispatch - UNE Line Splitting
488	P-3A Percent Missed Installation Appointments Including Subsequent Appointments < 10 Dispatch - UNE Other Design
489	P-3A Percent Missed Installation Appointments Including Subsequent Appointments < 10 Dispatch - UNE Other Non Design
490	P-3A Percent Missed Installation Appointments Including Subsequent Appointments Dispatch < 10 - UNE Switch ports
491	P-3A Percent Missed Installation Appointments Including Subsequent Appointments Dispatch <10 - UNE xDSL (ADSL, HDSL, UCL)
492	P-3A Percent Missed Installation Appointments Including Subsequent Appointments Dispatch out > 10 - UNE Loop and Port Combo
493	P-3A Percent Missed Installation Appointments Including Subsequent Appointments Dispatch Out < 10 - UNE Loop and Port Combo
494	P-3A Percent Missed Installation Appointments Including Subsequent Appointments Non Dispatch > 10 - 2 w Analog Loop Design
495	P-3A Percent Missed Installation Appointments Including Subsequent Appointments Non Dispatch > 10 - 2 w Analog Loop w/LNP Design
496	P-3A Percent Missed Installation Appointments Including Subsequent Appointments Non Dispatch > 10 - 2 w Analog Loop w/LNP Non Design
497	P-3A Percent Missed Installation Appointments Including Subsequent Appointments Non Dispatch > 10 - 2 w Analog Loop w/INP Design
498	P-3A Percent Missed Installation Appointments Including Subsequent Appointments Non Dispatch > 10 - 2 w Analog Loop w/INP Non Design
499	P-3A Percent Missed Installation Appointments Including Subsequent Appointments Non Dispatch > 10 - 2 w Analog Loop Non-Design
500	P-3A Percent Missed Installation Appointments Including Subsequent Appointments Non Dispatch > 10 - Resale Business
501	P-3A Percent Missed Installation Appointments Including Subsequent Appointments Non Dispatch > 10 - Resale Centrex
502	P-3A Percent Missed Installation Appointments Including Subsequent Appointments Non Dispatch > 10 - Resale Design

Florida Plan

Item No.	Tier 2 Sub Metrics
503	P-3A Percent Missed Installation Appointments Including Subsequent Appointments Non Dispatch > 10 - Resale ISDN
504	P-3A Percent Missed Installation Appointments Including Subsequent Appointments - Non Dispatch > 10 - Local Transport
505	P-3A Percent Missed Installation Appointments Including Subsequent Appointments - Non Dispatch - Local Interconnection Trunks
506	P-3A Percent Missed Installation Appointments Including Subsequent Appointments - Non Dispatch > 10 - LNP Standalone
507	P-3A Percent Missed Installation Appointments Including Subsequent Appointments Non Dispatch > 10 - Resale PBX
508	P-3A Percent Missed Installation Appointments Including Subsequent Appointments Non Dispatch > 10 Resale Residence
509	P-3A Percent Missed Installation Appointments Including Subsequent Appointments Non Dispatch > 10 - UNE Combo Other
510	P-3A Percent Missed Installation Appointments Including Subsequent Appointments > 10 Non Dispatch - EEL's
511	P-3A Percent Missed Installation Appointments Including Subsequent Appointments Non Dispatch > 10 - UNE ISDN (includes UDC)
512	P-3A Percent Missed Installation Appointments Including Subsequent Appointments Non-Dispatch > 10 - UNE Loop and Port Combo
513	P-3A Percent Missed Installation Appointments Including Subsequent Appointments Non Dispatch > 10 - UNE Line Sharing
514	P-3A Percent Missed Installation Appointments Including Subsequent Appointments > 10 Non Dispatch - UNE Line Splitting
515	P-3A Percent Missed Installation Appointments Including Subsequent Appointments Non Dispatch > 10 UNE Digital Loop >= DS1
516	P-3A Percent Missed Installation Appointments Including Subsequent Appointments Non Dispatch > 10 - UNE Digital Loop < DS1
517	P-3A Percent Missed Installation Appointments Including Subsequent Appointments > 10 Non Dispatch - UNE Other Design
518	P-3A Percent Missed Installation Appointments Including Subsequent Appointments > 10 Non Dispatch - UNE Other Non Design
519	P-3A Percent Missed Installation Appointments Including Subsequent Appointments Non Dispatch > 10 - UNE Switch ports
520	P-3A Percent Missed Installation Appointments Including Subsequent Appointments Non Dispatch > 10 - UNE xDSL (ADSL, HDSL, UCL)
521	P-3A Percent Missed Installation Appointments Including Subsequent Appointments Non Dispatch < 10 - 2 w Analog Loop Design
522	P-3A Percent Missed Installation Appointments Including Subsequent Appointments Non Dispatch < 10 - 2 w Analog Loop w/LNP Design
523	P-3A Percent Missed Installation Appointments Including Subsequent Appointments Non Dispatch < 10 - 2 w Analog Loop w/LNP Non Design

Table B-2: Tier 2 Submetrics (Continued)

..

Item No.	Tier 2 Sub Metrics
524	P-3A Percent Missed Installation Appointments Including Subsequent Appointments Non Dispatch < 10 - 2 w Analog Loop w/INP Design
525	P-3A Percent Missed Installation Appointments Including Subsequent Appointments Non Dispatch < 10 - 2 w Analog Loop w/INP Non Design
526	P-3A Percent Missed Installation Appointments Including Subsequent Appointments Non Dispatch < 10 - 2 w Analog Loop Non-Design
527	P-3A Percent Missed Installation Appointments Including Subsequent Appointments Non Dispatch < 10 - Resale Business
528	P-3A Percent Missed Installation Appointments Including Subsequent Appointments Non Dispatch < 10 - Resale Centrex
529	P-3A Percent Missed Installation Appointments Including Subsequent Appointments Non Dispatch < 10 - Resale Design
530	P-3A Percent Missed Installation Appointments Including Subsequent Appointments Non Dispatch < 10 Resale ISDN
531	P-3A Percent Missed Installation Appointments Including Subsequent Appointments Non Dispatch < 10 - Local Transport
532	P-3A Percent Missed Installation Appointments Including Subsequent Appointments Non Dispatch - Local Interconnection Trunks
533	P-3A Percent Missed Installation Appointments Including Subsequent Appointments Non Dispatch < 10 - LNP Standalone
534	P-3A Percent Missed Installation Appointments Including Subsequent Appointments Non Dispatch < 10 - Resale PBX
535	P-3A Percent Missed Installation Appointments Including Subsequent Appointments Non Dispatch < 10 Resale Residence
536	P-3A Percent Missed Installation Appointments Including Subsequent Appointments Non Dispatch < 10 - UNE Combo Other
537	P-3A Percent Missed Installation Appointments Including Subsequent Appointments < 10 Non Dispatch - EEL's
538	P-3A Percent Missed Installation Appointments Including Subsequent Appointments Non Dispatch < 10 - UNE ISDN (includes UDC)
539	P-3A Percent Missed Installation Appointments Including Subsequent Appointments Non Dispatch < 10 - UNE Loop and Port Combo
540	P-3A Percent Missed Installation Appointments Including Subsequent Appointments Non Dispatch < 10 - UNE Line Sharing
541	P-3A Percent Missed Installation Appointments Including Subsequent Appointments < 10 Non Dis- patch - UNE Line Splitting
542	P-3A Percent Missed Installation Appointments Including Subsequent Appointments Non Dispatch < 10 UNE Digital Loop >= DS1
543	P-3A Percent Missed Installation Appointments Including Subsequent Appointments Non Dispatch < 10 - UNE Digital Loop < DS1
544	P-3A Percent Missed Installation Appointments Including Subsequent Appointments < 10 Non Dispatch - UNE Other Design

Table B-2: Tier 2 Submetrics (Continued)

Item No.	Tier 2 Sub Metrics
545	P-3A Percent Missed Installation Appointments Including Subsequent Appointments < 10 Non Dis- patch - UNE Other Non Design
546	P-3A Percent Missed Installation Appointments Including Subsequent Appointments Non Dispatch < 10 - UNE Switch ports
547	P-3A Percent Missed Installation Appointments Including Subsequent Appointments Non Dispatch <10 - UNE xDSL (ADSL, HDSL, UCL)
548	P-3A Percent Missed Installation Appointments Including Subsequent Appointments Switch-based > 10 - UNE Loop and Port Combo
549	P-3A Percent Missed Installation Appointments Including Subsequent Appointments Switch-based < 10 - UNE Loop and Port Combo
550	P-4A Average Order Completion and Completion Notice Interval (AOCCNI) Distribution Dispatch > 10 - 2 w Analog Loop Design
551	P-4A Average Order Completion and Completion Notice Interval (AOCCNI) Distribution Dispatch > 10 - 2 w Analog Loop w/LNP Design
552	P-4A Average Order Completion and Completion Notice Interval (AOCCNI) Distribution Dispatch > 10 - 2 w Analog Loop w/LNP Non Design
553	P-4A Average Order Completion and Completion Notice Interval (AOCCNI) Distribution Dispatch > 10 - 2 w Analog Loop w/INP Design
554	P-4A Average Order Completion and Completion Notice Interval (AOCCNI) Distribution Dispatch > 10 - 2 w Analog Loop w/INP Non Design
555	P-4A Average Order Completion and Completion Notice Interval (AOCCNI) Distribution Dispatch > 10 - 2 w Analog Loop Non-Design
556	P-4A Average Order Completion and Completion Notice Interval (AOCCNI) Distribution Dispatch > 10 - Resale Business
557	P-4A Average Order Completion and Completion Notice Interval (AOCCNI) Distribution Dispatch > 10 - Resale Centrex
558	P-4A Average Order Completion and Completion Notice Interval (AOCCNI) Distribution Dispatch > 10 - Resale Design
559	P-4A Average Order Completion and Completion Notice Interval (AOCCNI) Distribution Dispatch > 10 - Resale ISDN
560	P-4A Average Order Completion and Completion Notice Interval (AOCCNI) Distribution Dispatch > 10 - Local Transport
561	P-4A Average Order Completion and Completion Notice Interval (AOCCNI) Distribution Dispatch - Local Interconnection Trunks
562	P-4A Average Order Completion and Completion Notice Interval (AOCCNI) Distribution Dispatch > 10 - LNP Standalone
563	P-4A Average Order Completion and Completion Notice Interval (AOCCNI) Distribution Dispatch > 10 - Resale PBX
564	P-4A Average Order Completion and Completion Notice Interval (AOCCNI) Distribution Dispatch > 10 - Resale Residence
565	P-4A Average Order Completion and Completion Notice Interval (AOCCNI) Distribution Dispatch > 10 - UNE Combo Other

....

Table B-2: Tier 2 Submetrics ((Continued)
--------------------------------	-------------

Item No.	Tier 2 Sub Metrics
566	P-4A Average Order Completion and Completion Notice Interval (AOCCNI) Distribution Dispatch > 10 - UNE Digital Loop >= DS1
567	P-4A Average Order Completion and Completion Notice Interval (AOCCNI) Distribution Dispatch > 10 - UNE Digital Loop < DS1
568	P-4A Average Order Completion and Completion Notice Interval (AOCCNI) Distribution Dispatch > 10 - EEL's
569	P-4A Average Order Completion and Completion Notice Interval (AOCCNI) Distribution Dispatch > 10 - UNE ISDN (includes UDC)
570	P-4A Average Order Completion and Completion Notice Interval (AOCCNI) Distribution Dispatch > 10 - UNE Line Sharing
571	P-4A Average Order Completion and Completion Notice Interval (AOCCNI) Distribution Dispatch > 10 - UNE Line Splitting
572	P-4A Average Order Completion and Completion Notice Interval (AOCCNI) Distribution Dispatch > 10 - UNE Other Design
573	P-4A Average Order Completion and Completion Notice Interval (AOCCNI) Distribution Dispatch > 10 - UNE Other Non Design
574	P-4A Average Order Completion and Completion Notice Interval (AOCCNI) Distribution Dispatch > 10 - UNE Switch ports
575	P-4A Average Order Completion and Completion Notice Interval (AOCCNI) Distribution Dispatch >10 - UNE xDSL (ADSL, HDSL, UCL) with conditioning
576	P-4A Average Order Completion and Completion Notice Interval (AOCCNI) Distribution Dispatch >10 - UNE xDSL (ADSL, HDSL, UCL) w/o conditioning
577	P-4A Average Order Completion and Completion Notice Interval (AOCCNI) Distribution Dispatch in > 10 - UNE Loop and Port Combo
578	P-4A Average Order Completion and Completion Notice Interval (AOCCNI) Distribution Dispatch in < 10 - UNE Loop and Port Combo
579	P-4A Average Order Completion and Completion Notice Interval (AOCCNI) Distribution Dispatch < 10 - 2 w Analog Loop Design
580	P-4A Average Order Completion and Completion Notice Interval (AOCCNI) Distribution Dispatch < 10 - 2 w Analog Loop w/LNP Design
581	P-4A Average Order Completion and Completion Notice Interval (AOCCNI) Distribution Dispatch < 10 - 2 w Analog Loop w/LNP Non Design
582	P-4A Average Order Completion and Completion Notice Interval (AOCCNI) Distribution Dispatch < 10 - 2 w Analog Loop w/INP Design
583	P-4A Average Order Completion and Completion Notice Interval (AOCCNI) Distribution Dispatch < 10 - 2 w Analog Loop w/INP Non Design
584	P-4A Average Order Completion and Completion Notice Interval (AOCCNI) Distribution Dispatch < 10 - 2 w Analog Loop Non-Design
585	P-4A Average Order Completion and Completion Notice Interval (AOCCNI) Distribution Dispatch < 10 - Resale Business
586	P-4A Average Order Completion and Completion Notice Interval (AOCCNI) Distribution Dispatch < 10 - Resale Centrex

.

Florida Plan

..

Item No.	Tier 2 Sub Metrics
587	P-4A Average Order Completion and Completion Notice Interval (AOCCNI) Distribution Dispatch < 10 - Resale Design
588	P-4A Average Order Completion and Completion Notice Interval (AOCCNI) Distribution Dispatch < 10 Resale ISDN
589	P-4A Average Order Completion and Completion Notice Interval (AOCCNI) Distribution Dispatch < 10 - Local Transport
590	P-4A Average Order Completion and Completion Notice Interval (AOCCNI) Distribution Dispatch - Local Interconnection Trunks
591	P-4A Average Order Completion and Completion Notice Interval (AOCCNI) Distribution Dispatch < 10 - LNP Standalone
592	P-4A Average Order Completion and Completion Notice Interval (AOCCNI) Distribution Dispatch < 10 - Resale PBX
593	P-4A Average Order Completion and Completion Notice Interval (AOCCNI) Distribution Dispatch < 10 - Resale Residence
594	P-4A Average Order Completion and Completion Notice Interval (AOCCNI) Distribution Dispatch < 10 - UNE Combo Other
595	P-4A Average Order Completion and Completion Notice Interval (AOCCNI) Distribution Dispatch < 10 - UNE Digital Loop >= DS1
596	P-4A Average Order Completion and Completion Notice Interval (AOCCNI) Distribution Dispatch < 10 - UNE Digital Loop < DS1
597	P-4A Average Order Completion and Completion Notice Interval (AOCCNI) Distribution Dispatch < 10 - EEL's
598	P-4A Average Order Completion and Completion Notice Interval (AOCCNI) Distribution Dispatch < 10 - UNE ISDN (includes UDC)
599	P-4A Average Order Completion and Completion Notice Interval (AOCCNI) Distribution Dispatch < 10 - UNE Line Sharing
600	P-4A Average Order Completion and Completion Notice Interval (AOCCNI) Distribution Dispatch < 10 - UNE Line Splitting
601	P-4A Average Order Completion and Completion Notice Interval (AOCCNI) Distribution Dispatch < 10 - UNE Other Design
602	P-4A Average Order Completion and Completion Notice Interval (AOCCNI) Distribution Dispatch < 10 - UNE Other Non Design
603	P-4A Average Order Completion and Completion Notice Interval (AOCCNI) Distribution Dispatch < 10 - UNE Switch ports
604	P-4A Average Order Completion and Completion Notice Interval (AOCCNI) Distribution Dispatch <10 - UNE xDSL (ADSL, HDSL, UCL) with conditioning
605	P-4A Average Order Completion and Completion Notice Interval (AOCCNI) Distribution Dispatch <10 - UNE xDSL (ADSL, HDSL, UCL) w/o conditioning
606	P-4A Average Order Completion and Completion Notice Interval (AOCCNI) Distribution Dispatch out > 10 - UNE Loop and Port Combo
607	P-4A Average Order Completion and Completion Notice Interval (AOCCNI) Distribution Dispatch out < 10 - UNE Loop and Port Combo

Table B-2: Tier 2 Submetrics (Continued)

.

Item No.	Tier 2 Sub Metrics
608	P-4A Average Order Completion and Completion Notice Interval (AOCCNI) Distribution Non Dispatch > 10 - 2 w Analog Loop Design
609	P-4A Average Order Completion and Completion Notice Interval (AOCCNI) Distribution Non Dispatch > 10 - 2 w Analog Loop w/LNP Design
610	P-4A Average Order Completion and Completion Notice Interval (AOCCNI) Distribution Non Dis- patch > 10 - 2 w Analog Loop w/LNP Non Design
611	P-4A Average Order Completion and Completion Notice Interval (AOCCNI) Distribution Non Dispatch > 10 - 2 w Analog Loop Non-Design
612	P-4A Average Order Completion and Completion Notice Interval (AOCCNI) Distribution Non Dispatch > 10 - Resale Business
613	P-4A Average Order Completion and Completion Notice Interval (AOCCNI) Distribution Non Dispatch > 10 - Resale Centrex
614	P-4A Average Order Completion and Completion Notice Interval (AOCCNI) Distribution Non Dispatch > 10 - Resale Design
615	P-4A Average Order Completion and Completion Notice Interval (AOCCNI) Distribution Non Dispatch > 10 Resale ISDN
616	P-4A Average Order Completion and Completion Notice Interval (AOCCNI) Distribution Non Dispatch > 10 - Local Transport
617	P-4A Average Order Completion and Completion Notice Interval (AOCCNI) Distribution Non Dispatch - Local Interconnection Trunks
618	P-4A Average Order Completion and Completion Notice Interval (AOCCNI) Distribution Non Dispatch > 10 - LNP Standalone
619	P-4A Average Order Completion and Completion Notice Interval (AOCCNI) Distribution Non Dispatch > 10 - Resale PBX
620	P-4A Average Order Completion and Completion Notice Interval (AOCCNI) Distribution Non Dispatch > 10 - Resale Residence
621	P-4A Average Order Completion and Completion Notice Interval (AOCCNI) Distribution Non Dispatch > 10 - UNE Combo Other
622	P-4A Average Order Completion and Completion Notice Interval (AOCCNI) Distribution Non Dispatch > 10 - EEL's
623	P-4A Average Order Completion and Completion Notice Interval (AOCCNI) Distribution Non Dispatch > 10 - UNE ISDN (includes UDC)
624	P-4A Average Order Completion and Completion Notice Interval (AOCCNI) Distribution Non-Dispatch > 10 - UNE Loop and Port Combo
625	P-4A Average Order Completion and Completion Notice Interval (AOCCNI) Distribution Non Dispatch > 10 - UNE Line Sharing
626	P-4A Average Order Completion and Completion Notice Interval (AOCCNI) Distribution Non Dispatch > 10 - UNE Line Splitting
627	P-4A Average Order Completion and Completion Notice Interval (AOCCNI) Distribution Non Dis- patch > 10 UNE Digital Loop >= DS1
628	P-4A Average Order Completion and Completion Notice Interval (AOCCNI) Distribution Non Dis- patch > 10 - UNE Digital Loop < DS1

Table B-2: Tier 2 Submetrics (Continued)

.

.....

Table E	3-2: Tie	er 2 Su	Ibmetrics	(Continued)

ltem No.	Tier 2 Sub Metrics
629	P-4A Average Order Completion and Completion Notice Interval (AOCCNI) Distribution Non Dispatch > 10 - UNE Other Design
630	P-4A Average Order Completion and Completion Notice Interval (AOCCNI) Distribution Non Dispatch > 10 - UNE Other Non Design
631	P-4A Average Order Completion and Completion Notice Interval (AOCCNI) Distribution Non Dispatch > 10 - UNE Switch ports
632	P-4A Average Order Completion and Completion Notice Interval (AOCCNI) Distribution Non Dispatch >10 - UNE xDSL (ADSL, HDSL, UCL) with conditioning
633	P-4A Average Order Completion and Completion Notice Interval (AOCCNI) Distribution Non Dispatch >10 - UNE xDSL (ADSL, HDSL, UCL) w/o conditioning
634	P-4A Average Order Completion and Completion Notice Interval (AOCCNI) Distribution Non Dispatch < 10 - 2 w Analog Loop Design
635	P-4A Average Order Completion and Completion Notice Interval (AOCCNI) Distribution Non Dispatch < 10 - 2 w Analog Loop Non-Design
636	P-4A Average Order Completion and Completion Notice Interval (AOCCNI) Distribution Non Dispatch < 10 - 2 w Analog Loop w/LNP Design
637	P-4A Average Order Completion and Completion Notice Interval (AOCCNI) Distribution Non Dispatch < 10 - 2 w Analog Loop w/LNP Non Design
638	P-4A Average Order Completion and Completion Notice Interval (AOCCNI) Distribution Non Dis- patch < 10 - 2 w Analog Loop w/INP Design
639	P-4A Average Order Completion and Completion Notice Interval (AOCCNI) Distribution Non Dispatch < 10 - 2 w Analog Loop w/INP Non Design
640	P-4A Average Order Completion and Completion Notice Interval (AOCCNI) Distribution Non Dis- patch < 10 - Resale Business
641	P-4A Average Order Completion and Completion Notice Interval (AOCCNI) Distribution Non Dispatch < 10 - Resale Centrex
642	P-4A Average Order Completion and Completion Notice Interval (AOCCNI) Distribution Non Dispatch < 10 - Resale Design
643	P-4A Average Order Completion and Completion Notice Interval (AOCCNI) Distribution Non Dispatch < 10 Resale ISDN
644	P-4A Average Order Completion and Completion Notice Interval (AOCCNI) Distribution Non Dis- patch < 10 - Local Transport
645	P-4A Average Order Completion and Completion Notice Interval (AOCCNI) Distribution Non Dis- patch - Local Interconnection Trunks
646	P-4A Average Order Completion and Completion Notice Interval (AOCCNI) Distribution Non Dis- patch < 10 - LNP Standalone
647	P-4A Average Order Completion and Completion Notice Interval (AOCCNI) Distribution Non Dispatch < 10 - Resale PBX
648	P-4A Average Order Completion and Completion Notice Interval (AOCCNI) Distribution Non Dispatch < 10 - Resale Residence
649	P-4A Average Order Completion and Completion Notice Interval (AOCCNI) Distribution Non Dispatch < 10 - UNE Combo Other

.....

ltem No.	Tier 2 Sub Metrics
650	P-4A Average Order Completion and Completion Notice Interval (AOCCNI) Distribution Non Dispatch < 10 - EEL's
651	\dot{P} -4A Average Order Completion and Completion Notice Interval (AOCCNI) Distribution Non Dispatch < 10 - UNE ISDN (includes UDC)
652	P-4A Average Order Completion and Completion Notice Interval (AOCCNI) Distribution Non-Dispatch < 10 - UNE Loop and Port Combo
653	P-4A Average Order Completion and Completion Notice Interval (AOCCNI) Distribution Non Dispatch < 10 - UNE Line Sharing
654	P-4A Average Order Completion and Completion Notice Interval (AOCCNI) Distribution Non Dispatch < 10 - UNE Line Splitting
655	P-4A Average Order Completion and Completion Notice Interval (AOCCNI) Distribution Non Dispatch < 10 - UNE Digital Loop >= DS1
656	P-4A Average Order Completion and Completion Notice Interval (AOCCNI) Distribution Non Dispatch < 10 - UNE Digital Loop < DS1
657	P-4A Average Order Completion and Completion Notice Interval (AOCCNI) Distribution Non Dispatch < 10 - UNE Other Design
658	P-4A Average Order Completion and Completion Notice Interval (AOCCNI) Distribution Non Dispatch < 10 - UNE Other Non Design
659	P-4A Average Order Completion and Completion Notice Interval (AOCCNI) Distribution Non Dispatch < 10 - UNE Switch ports
660	P-4A Average Order Completion and Completion Notice Interval (AOCCNI) Distribution Non Dispatch <10 - UNE xDSL (ADSL, HDSL, UCL) with conditioning
661	P-4A Average Order Completion and Completion Notice Interval (AOCCNI) Distribution Non Dispatch <10 - UNE xDSL (ADSL, HDSL, UCL) w/o conditioning
662	P-4A Average Order Completion and Completion Notice Interval (AOCCNI) Distribution Switch- based > 10 - UNE Loop and Port Combo
663	P-4A Average Order Completion and Completion Notice Interval (AOCCNI) Distribution Switch- based < 10 - UNE Loop and Port Combo
664	P-7A Coordinated Customer Conversions Hot Cuts Timeliness % within Interval and Average Interval SL1 IDLC
665	P-7A Coordinated Customer Conversions Hot Cuts Timeliness % within Interval and Average Inter- val SL1 Non Time Specific
666	P-7A Coordinated Customer Conversions Hot Cuts Timeliness % within Interval and Average Inter- val SL 1 Time Specific
667	P-7A Coordinated Customer Conversions Hot Cuts Timeliness % within Interval and Average Inter- val SL2 IDLC
668	P-7A Coordinated Customer Conversions Hot Cuts Timeliness % within Interval and Average Inter- val SL2 Time Non Specific
669	P-7A Coordinated Customer Conversions Hot Cuts Timeliness % within Interval and Average Inter- val SL2 Time Specific
670	P-7C Coordinated Customer Conversions - % Provisioning Troubles Rec w/in 7 days of a completed Service Order - UNE Loops Design - Dispatch

.

Florida Plan

Item No.	Tier 2 Sub Metrics
671	P-7C Coordinated Customer Conversions - % Provisioning Troubles Rec w/in 7 days of a completed Service Order - UNE Loops Design - Non Dispatch
672	P-7C Coordinated Customer Conversions - % Provisioning Troubles Rec w/in 7 days of a completed Service Order - UNE Loops Non Design - Dispatch
673	P-7C Coordinated Customer Conversions - % Provisioning Troubles Rec w/in 7 days of a completed Service Order - UNE Loops Non Design - Non Dispatch
674	P-7 Coordinated Customer Conversions Internal - Unbundles Loops with INP
675	P-7 Coordinated Customer Conversions Internal - Unbundles Loops with LNP
676	P-8 Cooperative Acceptance Testing - % of xDSL Loc ADSL
677	P-8 Cooperative Acceptance Testing - % of xDSL Loc HDSL
678	P-8 Cooperative Acceptance Testing - % of xDSL Loc Other
679	P-8 Cooperative Acceptance Testing - % of xDSL Loc UNE UCL
680	P-9 % Provisioning Troubles w/in 30 days of Service Order Completion Dispatch > 10 - 2 w Analog Loop Design
681	P-9 % Provisioning Troubles w/in 30 days of Service Order Completion Dispatch > 10 - 2 w Analog Loop w/LNP Design
682	P-9 % Provisioning Troubles w/in 30 days of Service Order Completion Dispatch > 10 - 2 w Analog Loop w/LNP Non-Design
683	P-9 % Provisioning Troubles w/in 30 days of Service Order Completion Dispatch > 10 - 2 w Analog Loop Non-Design
684	P-9 % Provisioning Troubles w/in 30 days of Service Order Completion Dispatch > 10 - Resale Business
685	P-9 % Provisioning Troubles w/in 30 days of Service Order Completion Dispatch > 10 - Resale Cen- trex
686	P-9 % Provisioning Troubles w/in 30 days of Service Order Completion Dispatch > 10 - Resale Design
687	P-9 % Provisioning Troubles w/in 30 days of Service Order Completion Dispatch > 10 Resale ISDN DESIGN
688	P-9 % Provisioning Troubles w/in 30 days of Service Order Completion Dispatch > 10 Resale ISDN NON DESIGN
689	P-9 % Provisioning Troubles w/in 30 days of Service Order Completion Dispatch > 10 - Local Transport
690	P-9 % Provisioning Troubles w/in 30 days of Service Order Completion Dispatch - Local Intercon- nection Trunks
691 -	P-9 % Provisioning Troubles w/in 30 days of Service Order Completion Dispatch > 10 LNP Standal- one
692	P-9 % Provisioning Troubles w/in 30 days of Service Order Completion Dispatch > 10 - Resale PBX
693	P-9 % Provisioning Troubles w/in 30 days of Service Order Completion Dispatch > 10 Resale Residence
694	P-9 % Provisioning Troubles w/in 30 days of Service Order Completion Dispatch > 10 - UNE Combo Other

Table B-2: Tier 2 Submetrics (Continued)

Updated January 22, 2002

.....

Item No.	Tier 2 Sub Metrics
695	P-9 % Provisioning Troubles w/in 30 days of Service Order Completion Dispatch > 10 - UNE Digital Loop >= DS1
696	P-9 % Provisioning Troubles w/in 30 days of Service Order Completion Dispatch > 10 - UNE Digital Loop < DS1
697	P-9 % Provisioning Troubles w/in 30 days of Service Order Completion Dispatch > 10 - EEL's
698	P-9 % Provisioning Troubles w/in 30 days of Service Order Completion Dispatch > 10 - UNE ISDN (includes UDC)
699	P-9 % Provisioning Troubles w/in 30 days of Service Order Completion Dispatch > 10 - UNE Line Sharing
700	P-9 % Provisioning Troubles w/in 30 days of Service Order Completion Dispatch > 10 - UNE Line Splitting
701	P-9 % Provisioning Troubles w/in 30 days of Service Order Completion Dispatch > 10 - UNE Other Design
702	P-9 % Provisioning Troubles w/in 30 days of Service Order Completion Dispatch > 10 - UNE Other Non Design
703	P-9 % Provisioning Troubles w/in 30 days of Service Order Completion Dispatch > 10 - UNE Switch ports
704	P-9 % Provisioning Troubles w/in 30 days of Service Order Completion Dispatch >10 - UNE xDSL (ADSL, HDSL, UCL)
705	P-9 % Provisioning Troubles w/in 30 days of Service Order Completion Dispatch in > 10 - UNE Loop and Port Combo
706	P-9 % Provisioning Troubles w/in 30 days of Service Order Completion Dispatch in < 10 - UNE Loop and Port Combo
707	P-9 % Provisioning Troubles w/in 30 days of Service Order Completion Dispatch < 10 - 2 w Analog Loop Design
708	P-9 % Provisioning Troubles w/in 30 days of Service Order Completion Dispatch < 10 - 2 w Analog Loop w/LNP Design
709	P-9 % Provisioning Troubles w/in 30 days of Service Order Completion Dispatch < 10 - 2 w Analog Loop w/LNP Non-Design
710	P-9 % Provisioning Troubles w/in 30 days of Service Order Completion Dispatch < 10 - 2 w Analog Loop Non-Design
711	P-9 % Provisioning Troubles w/in 30 days of Service Order Completion Dispatch < 10 - Resale Business
712	P-9 % Provisioning Troubles w/in 30 days of Service Order Completion Dispatch < 10 - Resale Cen- trex
713	P-9 % Provisioning Troubles w/in 30 days of Service Order Completion Dispatch < 10 - Resale Design
714	P-9 % Provisioning Troubles w/in 30 days of Service Order Completion Dispatch < 10 - Resale ISDN
715	P-9 % Provisioning Troubles w/in 30 days of Service Order Completion Dispatch < 10 - Local Transport
716	P-9 % Provisioning Troubles w/in 30 days of Service Order Completion Dispatch - Local Intercon- nection Trunks

Table B-2: Tier 2 Submetrics (Continued)

. ...

Item No.	Tier 2 Sub Metrics
717	P-9 % Provisioning Troubles w/in 30 days of Service Order Completion Dispatch < 10 - LNP Standa- lone
718	P-9 % Provisioning Troubles w/in 30 days of Service Order Completion Dispatch < 10 - Resale PBX
719	P-9 % Provisioning Troubles w/in 30 days of Service Order Completion Dispatch < 10 Resale Residence
720	P-9 % Provisioning Troubles w/in 30 days of Service Order Completion Dispatch < 10 - UNE Combo Other
721	P-9 % Provisioning Troubles w/in 30 days of Service Order Completion Dispatch < 10 - UNE Digital Loop >= DS1
722	P-9 % Provisioning Troubles w/in 30 days of Service Order Completion Dispatch < 10 - UNE Digital Loop < DS1
723	P-9 % Provisioning Troubles w/in 30 days of Service Order Completion Dispatch < 10 - EEL's
724	P-9 % Provisioning Troubles w/in 30 days of Service Order Completion Dispatch < 10 - UNE ISDN (includes UDC)
725	P-9 % Provisioning Troubles w/in 30 days of Service Order Completion Dispatch < 10 - UNE Line Sharing
726	P-9 % Provisioning Troubles w/in 30 days of Service Order Completion Dispatch < 10 - UNE Line Splitting
727	P-9 % Provisioning Troubles w/in 30 days of Service Order Completion Dispatch < 10 - UNE Other Design
728	P-9 % Provisioning Troubles w/in 30 days of Service Order Completion Dispatch < 10 - UNE Other Non Design
729	P-9 % Provisioning Troubles w/in 30 days of Service Order Completion Dispatch < 10 - UNE Switch ports
730	P-9 % Provisioning Troubles w/in 30 days of Service Order Completion Dispatch <10 - UNE xDSL (ADSL, HDSL, UCL)
731	P-9 % Provisioning Troubles w/in 30 days of Service Order Completion Dispatch out > 10 - UNE Loop and Port Combo
732	P-9 % Provisioning Troubles w/in 30 days of Service Order Completion Dispatch out < 10 - UNE Loop and Port Combo
733	P-9 % Provisioning Troubles w/in 30 days of Service Order Completion Non Dispatch > 10 - 2 w Analog Loop Design
734	P-9 % Provisioning Troubles w/in 30 days of Service Order Completion Non Dispatch > 10 - 2 w Analog Loop w/LNP Design
735	P-9 % Provisioning Troubles w/in 30 days of Service Order Completion Non Dispatch > 10 - 2 w Analog Loop w/LNP Non-Design
736	P-9 % Provisioning Troubles w/in 30 days of Service Order Completion Non Dispatch > $10 - 2$ w Analog Loop Non-Design
737	P-9 % Provisioning Troubles w/in 30 days of Service Order Completion Non Dispatch > 10 - Resale Business
738	P-9 % Provisioning Troubles w/in 30 days of Service Order Completion Non Dispatch > 10 - Resale Centrex

Table B-2: Tier 2 Submetrics (Continued)

.....

...

Item No.	Tier 2 Sub Metrics
739	P-9 % Provisioning Troubles w/in 30 days of Service Order Completion Non Dispatch > 10 - Resale Design
740	P-9 % Provisioning Troubles w/in 30 days of Service Order Completion Non Dispatch > 10 Resale ISDN DESIGN
741	P-9 % Provisioning Troubles w/in 30 days of Service Order Completion Non Dispatch > 10 Resale ISDN NON DESIGN
742	P-9 % Provisioning Troubles w/in 30 days of Service Order Completion Non Dispatch > 10 - Local Transport
743	P-9 % Provisioning Troubles w/in 30 days of Service Order Completion Non Dispatch - Local Inter- connection Trunks
744	P-9 % Provisioning Troubles w/in 30 days of Service Order Completion Non Dispatch > 10 LNP Standalone
745	P-9 % Provisioning Troubles w/in 30 days of Service Order Completion Non Dispatch > 10 - Resale PBX
746	P-9 % Provisioning Troubles w/in 30 days of Service Order Completion Non Dispatch > 10 Resale Residence
747	P-9 % Provisioning Troubles w/in 30 days of Service Order Completion Non Dispatch > 10 - UNE Combo Other
748	P-9 % Provisioning Troubles w/in 30 days of Service Order Completion Non Dispatch > 10 - EEL's
749	P-9 % Provisioning Troubles w/in 30 days of Service Order Completion Non Dispatch > 10 - UNE ISDN (includes UDC)
750	P-9 % Provisioning Troubles w/in 30 days of Service Order Completion Non-Dispatch > 10 - UNE Loop and Port Combo
751	P-9 % Provisioning Troubles w/in 30 days of Service Order Completion Non Dispatch > 10 - UNE Line Sharing
752	P-9 % Provisioning Troubles w/in 30 days of Service Order Completion Non Dispatch > 10 - UNE Line Splitting
753	P-9 % Provisioning Troubles w/in 30 days of Service Order Completion Non Dispatch > 10 UNE Dig- ital Loop >= DS1
754	P-9 % Provisioning Troubles w/in 30 days of Service Order Completion Non Dispatch > 10 - UNE Digital Loop < DS1
755	P-9 % Provisioning Troubles w/in 30 days of Service Order Completion Non Dispatch > 10 - UNE Other Design
756	P-9 % Provisioning Troubles w/in 30 days of Service Order Completion Non Dispatch > 10 - UNE Other Non Design
757	P-9 % Provisioning Troubles w/in 30 days of Service Order Completion Non Dispatch > 10 - UNE Switch ports
758	P-9 % Provisioning Troubles w/in 30 days of Service Order Completion Non Dispatch > 10 - UNE xDSL (ADSL, HDSL, UCL)
759	P-9 % Provisioning Troubles w/in 30 days of Service Order Completion Non Dispatch < 10 - $2 w$ Analog Loop Design
760	P-9 % Provisioning Troubles w/in 30 days of Service Order Completion Non Dispatch < 10 - 2 w Analog Loop w/LNP Design

Item No.	Tier 2 Sub Metrics
761	P-9 % Provisioning Troubles w/in 30 days of Service Order Completion Non Dispatch < 10 - 2 w Analog Loop w/LNP Non-Design
762	P-9 % Provisioning Troubles w/in 30 days of Service Order Completion Non Dispatch < 10 - 2 w Analog Loop Non-Design
763	P-9 % Provisioning Troubles w/in 30 days of Service Order Completion Non Dispatch < 10 - Resale Business
764	P-9 % Provisioning Troubles w/in 30 days of Service Order Completion Non Dispatch < 10 - Resale Centrex
765	P-9 % Provisioning Troubles w/in 30 days of Service Order Completion Non Dispatch < 10 - Resale Design
766	P-9 % Provisioning Troubles w/in 30 days of Service Order Completion Non Dispatch < 10 Resale ISDN
767	P-9 % Provisioning Troubles w/in 30 days of Service Order Completion Non Dispatch < 10 - Local Transport
768	P-9 % Provisioning Troubles w/in 30 days of Service Order Completion Non Dispatch - Local Inter- connection Trunks
769	P-9 % Provisioning Troubles w/in 30 days of Service Order Completion Non Dispatch < 10 - LNP Standalone
770	P-9 % Provisioning Troubles w/in 30 days of Service Order Completion Non Dispatch < 10 - Resale PBX
771	P-9 % Provisioning Troubles w/in 30 days of Service Order Completion Non Dispatch < 10 Resale Residence
772	P-9 % Provisioning Troubles w/in 30 days of Service Order Completion Non Dispatch < 10 - UNE Combo Other
773	P-9 % Provisioning Troubles w/in 30 days of Service Order Completion Non Dispatch < 10 - EEL's
774	P-9 % Provisioning Troubles w/in 30 days of Service Order Completion Non Dispatch < 10 - UNE ISDN (includes UDC)
775	P-9 % Provisioning Troubles w/in 30 days of Service Order Completion Non-Dispatch < 10 - UNE Loop and Port Combo
776	P-9 % Provisioning Troubles w/in 30 days of Service Order Completion Non Dispatch < 10 - UNE Line Sharing
777	P-9 % Provisioning Troubles w/in 30 days of Service Order Completion Non Dispatch < 10 - UNE Line Splitting
778	P-9 % Provisioning Troubles w/in 30 days of Service Order Completion Non Dispatch < 10 UNE Dig- ital Loop >= DS1
779	P-9 % Provisioning Troubles w/in 30 days of Service Order Completion Non Dispatch < 10 - UNE Digital Loop < DS1
780	P-9 % Provisioning Troubles w/in 30 days of Service Order Completion Non Dispatch < 10 - UNE Other Design
781	P-9 % Provisioning Troubles w/in 30 days of Service Order Completion Non Dispatch < 10 - UNE Other Non Design
782	P-9 % Provisioning Troubles w/in 30 days of Service Order Completion Non Dispatch < 10 - UNE Switch ports

Table B-2: Tier 2 Submetrics (Continued)

.....

Florida Plan

Item No.	Tier 2 Sub Metrics
783	P-9 % Provisioning Troubles w/in 30 days of Service Order Completion Non Dispatch <10 - UNE xDSL (ADSL, HDSL, UCL)
784	P-9 % Provisioning Troubles w/in 30 days of Service Order Completion Switch-based > 10 - UNE Loop and Port Combo
785	P-9 % Provisioning Troubles w/in 30 days of Service Order Completion Switch-based < 10 - UNE Loop and Port Combo
786	P-11 Service Order Accuracy - Resale
787	P-11 Service Order Accuracy - UNE
788	P-11 Service Order Accuracy - UNE - P
789	PO-1 Loop Makeup - Average Response Time - Manual
790	PO-2 Loop Makeup - Average Response Time - Electronic
791	TGP-1 Trunk Group Performance Aggregate

Table B-2: Tier 2 Submetrics (Continued)

.

.

Appendix C: Statistical Properties and Definitions

The statistical process for testing whether BellSouth's (BST) wholesale customers (alternative local exchange carriers or ALECs) are being treated equally with BST's retail customers involves more than a simple mathematical formula. Three-key elements need to be considered before an appropriate decision process can be developed. These are the type of:

- data
- comparison
- performance

This appendix describes the properties of a test methodology and the truncated Z statistic for four types of measures.

1. Necessary Properties for a Test Methodology

Once the key elements are determined, a test methodology should be developed that complies with the following properties:

- Like-to-Like Comparisons
- Aggregate Level Test Statistic
- Production Mode Process
- Balancing
- Trimming

Like-to-Like Comparisons

When possible, data should be compared at appropriate levels, e.g. wire center, time of month, dispatched residential, new orders. The testing process should:

- Identify variables that may affect the performance measure
- Record these important confounding covariates
- Adjust for the observed covariates in order to remove potential biases and to make the ALEC and the ILEC units as comparable as possible

Aggregate Level Test Statistic

Each performance measure of interest should be summarized by one overall test statistic giving the decision make a rule that determines whether a statistically significant difference exists. The test statistic should have the following properties:

- The method should provide a single overall index on a standard scale.
- If entries in comparison cells are exactly proportional over a covariate, the aggregated index should be very nearly the same as if comparisons on the covariate had not been done.
- The contribution of each comparison cell should depend on the number of observations in the cell.
- Cancellation between comparison cells should be limited.
- The index should be a continuous function of the observations.

Production Mode Process

The decision system must be developed so that it does not require intermediate manual intervention, i.e., the process must be mechanized to the extent possible.

- Calculations are well defined for possible eventualities.
- The decision process is an algorithm that needs no manual intervention.
- Results should be arrived at in a timely manner.
- The system must recognize that resources are needed for other performance measure-related processes that also must be run in a timely manner.
- The system should be auditable, and adjustable over time.

Balancing

The testing methodology should balance Type I and Type II Error probabilities.

- P (Type I Error) = P (Type II Error) for well-defined null and alternative hypotheses.
- The formula for a test's balancing critical value should be simple enough to calculate using standard mathematical functions, i.e., one should avoid methods that require computationally intensive techniques.
- Little to no information beyond the null hypothesis, the alternative hypothesis, and the number of observations should be required for calculating the balancing critical value.

Trimming

Trimming of extreme observations from BellSouth and ALEC distributions is needed in order to ensure that a fair comparison is made between performance measures. Three conditions are needed to accomplish this goal. These conditions are:

- Trimming should be based on a general rule that can be used in a production setting.
- Trimmed observations should not simply be discarded; they need to be examined and possibly used in the final decision-making process.
- Trimming should only be used on performance measures that are sensitive to "outliers."

Measurement Types

The performance measurements that will undergo testing are of four types: mean, ratio, proportion, and rate. All four have similar characteristics. Different types of data are used to calculate them. Table C-1 shows the type of data that is used to derive each measurement type.

Data Used to Derive Measure	
Interval measurements	
Counts	

Table C-1: Measurements Types and Data
2. Testing Methodology – The Truncated Z

The calculation of the Truncated Z statistic is described in Appendix A of the "Louisiana Statistician's Report." The methodology described in this document is the same as that described in the "Statistician's Report;" however, this document contains extra technical details to avoid undefined situations when programming the technique.

In summary, many covariates are chosen in order to provide meaningful comparison levels below the submetric level chosen for the parity comparison. This includes such factors as wire center and time of month, as well as order type for provisioning measures. In each comparison cell, a Z statistic is calculated. The form of the Z statistic may vary depending on the performance measure, but it should be distributed approximately as a standard normal, with mean zero and variance equal to one. Assuming that the test statistic is derived so that it is negative when the performance for the ALEC is worse than for the ILEC, a positive truncation is done – i.e. if the result is negative it is left alone, if the result is positive it is changed to zero. A weighted sum of the truncated statistics is calculated where a cell's weight depends on the volume of BST and ALEC orders in the cell. The weighted sum is standardized by the subtracting theoretical mean of the truncated distribution, and this is divided by the standard error of the weighted sum. Summaries based on measurement type are given for the calculation of the cell Z statistic.

Mean Measures

For mean measures, an adjusted, asymmetric t statistic is calculated for each like-to-like cell that has at least seven BST and seven ALEC transactions. This statistic is an adjustment to the modified z statistic in order to make the assumption that the statistic is approximately normally distributed more reasonable even for fairly small sample sizes. The adjusted, asymmetric t statistic is part of the methodology described in the "Statistician's Report," and it has been documented for the statistical community in the August 2001 issue of The American Statistician,¹ a peer review statistics journal. The statistic was created for mean performance measure parity tests in order to reduce the number of permutation tests needed for calculating cell statistics. Several sets of BST/CLEC mean measure data from Louisiana were examined in order to determine when the adjustment results give approximately the same results as a permutation test. The result is that a permutation test is used when one or both of the BST and ALEC sample sizes is less than seven. The adjusted, asymmetric t statistic and the permutation calculation are described below.

Proportion Measures

For performance measures that are calculated as a proportion, in each adjustment cell, the cell Z and the moments for the truncated cell Z can be calculated in a direct manner. In adjustment cells where proportions are not close to zero or one, and where the sample sizes are reasonably large $(n_{ij}p_{ij}(1-p_{ij}) > 9)$, a normal approximation can be used. In this case, the moments for the truncated Z come directly from properties of the standard normal distribution. If the normal approximation is not appropriate, the hypergeometric distribution is the exact permutation distribution. In this case, the moments of the truncated Z are calculated exactly using the hypergeometric probabilities.

Rate Measures

The truncated Z methodology for rate measures has the same general structure for calculating the Z in each cell as proportion measures. For the rate measure customer trouble report rate there are a fixed number of access lines in service for the ALEC, b_{2j} , and a fixed number for BST, b_{1j} . The modeling assumption is that the occurrence of a trouble is independent between access lines, and the number of troubles in b access lines follows a Poisson distribution with mean λ_b where λ is the probability of a trouble per 1 access line and b (= $b_{1j} + b_{2j}$) is the total number of access lines in service. The exact permutation distribution for this situation is the binomial distribution (the limit for the hypergeometric distribution) that is based on the total number of BST and ALEC troubles, n, and the proportion of BST access lines in service, $q_i = b_{1j}/b$

^{1.} Balkin, S. D. and Mallows, C. L. (2001), "An Adjusted, Asymmetric Two-Sample t Test," The American Statistician, 55, 203-206.



In an adjustment cell, if the number of ALEC troubles is greater than 15 and the number of BST troubles is greater than 15, and $n_{ij}q_{ij}(1-q_{ij}) > 9$, then a normal approximation can be used. In this case, the moments of the truncated Z come directly from properties of the standard normal distribution. Otherwise, if there are very few troubles, the number of ALEC troubles can be modeled using a binomial distribution with n equal to the total number of troubles (ALEC plus BST troubles.) In this case, the moments for the truncated Z are calculated explicitly using the binomial distribution.

Ratio Measures

The current plan contains no measures that call for the use of a Z parity statistic.

Appendix D: Statistical Formulas and Technical Descriptions

We start by assuming that any necessary trimming² of the data is complete, and that the data are disaggregated so that the comparison are made within appropriate classes or adjustment cells that define "like" observations.

This appendix contains information on the following:

- Notation and Exact Testing Distributions
- Calculating the Truncated Z
- Balancing Critical Value

1. Notation and Exact Testing Distributions

The basic notation for the construction of the truncated z statistic is detailed below. In these notations the word "cell" should be taken to mean a like-to-like comparison cell that has both of the following:

- one (or more) ILEC observations
- one (or more) ALEC observations
- L = the total number of occupied cells
- $j = 1, \dots, L;$ and index for the cells
- n_{1i} = the number of ILEC transactions in cell j
- n_{2i} = the number of ALEC transactions in cell j
- n_i = the total number of transactions in cell j; $n_{1i} + n_{2i}$
- X_{1ik} = individual ILEC transactions in cell j; k = 1,...,n_{1i}
- X_{2ik} = individual ALEC transactions in cell j; k = 1, ..., n_{2i}
- Y_{ik} = individual transactions (both ILEC and ALEC) in cell j

$$= \begin{cases} X_{1jk} & k = 1, \dots, n_{1j} \\ X_{2jk} & k = n_{1j} + 1, \dots, n_{j} \end{cases}$$

 $\Phi^{-1}(.)$ =the inverse of the cumulative standard normal distribution function

In addition to this basic notation, additional notation is necessary for mean and ratio measures. This additional notation, and the notation needed for proportional and rate measures, is given in the following sections.

^{2.} When it is determined that a measure should be trimmed, trim the ILEC observations to the largest ALEC value from all ALEC observations in the month under consideration. That is, no ALEC values are removed; all ILEC observations greater than the largest ALEC observation are trimmed.

Florida Plan

Additional Notation for Mean Measures

For mean performance measures, the following additional notation is needed.

 $\overline{X}_{ij} = \text{the ILEC sample mean of cell } j$ $\overline{X}_{ij} = \text{the ALEC sample mean of cell } j$ $S_{1j}^{2} = \text{the ILEC sample variance in cell } j$

 s_{2j}^2 = the ALEC sample variance in cell j

 $\{Y_{jk}\}=$ a random sample of size n_{2j} from the set of Y_{j1}, \ldots, Y_{jn} ; $k = 1, \ldots, n_{2j}$

 M_i = The total number of distinct pairs of samples of size n_{1i} and n_{2i} ;

$$= \begin{pmatrix} n_{j} \\ n_{1j} \end{pmatrix}$$

The exact parity test is the permutation test based on the "modified Z" statistic. For large samples, we can avoid permutation calculations since this statistic will be normal (or Student's t) to a good approximation. For small samples, where we cannot avoid permutation calculations, we have found that the difference between "modified Z" and the textbook "pooled Z" is negligible. We therefore propose to use the permutation test based on pooled Z for small samples. This decision speeds up the permutation computations considerably because for each permutation we need only compute the sum of the ALEC sample values, and not the pooled statistic itself.

A permutation probability mass function distribution for cell j, based on the "pooled Z' can be written as

$$PM(t) = P(\sum_{k} y_{jk} = t) = \frac{the \ number \ of \ samples \ that \ sum \ to \ t}{M_{j}}$$

and the corresponding cumulative permutation distribution is

$$CPM(t) = P(\sum_{k} y_{jk} \le t) = \frac{\text{the number of samples with sum} \le t}{M_{j}}$$

Updated January 22, 2002

Florida Plan

Notation for Proportion Measures

For proportion measures the following notation is defined.

- a_{1j} = the number of ILEC cases possessing an attribute of interest in cell j'
- a_{2i} = the number of ALEC cases possessing an attribute of interest in cell j
- a_j = the number of cases possessing an attribute of interest in cell j; $a_{1j} + a_{2j}$

The exact distribution for a parity test is the hypergeometric distribution. The hypergeometric probability mass function distribution for cell j is

$$HG(h) = P(H = h) = \begin{cases} \frac{\binom{n_{1j}}{h} \binom{n_{2j}}{a_j - h}}{\binom{n_j}{a_j}}, \max(0, a_j - n_{2j}) \le h \le \min(a_j, n_{1j}) \\ 0 & \text{otherwise} \end{cases}$$

and the cumulative hypergeometric distribution is

$$CHG(x) = P(H \le x) = \begin{cases} 0 & x < \max(0, a_j - n_{2j}) \\ \sum_{h=\max(0, a_j - n_{1j})}^{x} HG(h), & \max(0, a_j - n_{2j}) \le x \le \min(a_j, n_{1j}) \\ 1 & x > \min(a_j, n_{1j}) \end{cases}$$

Notation for Rate Measures

For rate measures, the notation needed is defined as:

- b_{1i} = the number of ILEC base elements in cell j
- b_{2j} = the number of ALEC base elements in cell j
- b_j = the total number of base elements in cell j; $b_{1j} + b_{2j}$

$$\vec{r}_{1j}$$
 = the ILED sample rate of cell j; $n_{1i} + b_{1i}$

$$\hat{r}^2 2j =$$
 the ILED sample rate of cell j; $n_{2i} + b_{2i}$

 q_j = _ the relative proportion of ILEC elements for cell j; $b_{1j} \div b_j$

BELLSOUTH®

The exact distribution for a parity test is the binomial distribution. The binomial probability mass function distribution for cell j is:

BN(k) = P(B = k) =
$$\begin{cases} \binom{n_j}{k} q_j^k (1 - q_j)^{n_j - k}, & 0 \le k \le n_j \\ 0 & \text{otherwise} \end{cases}$$

and the cumulative binomial distribution is

$$CBN(x) = P(B \le x) = \begin{cases} 0 & x < 0\\ \sum_{k=0}^{x} BN(k), & 0 \le x \le n_{j}\\ 1 & x > n_{j} \end{cases}$$

2. Calculating the Truncated Z

The general methodology for calculating an aggregate level test statistic is outlined below. More detailed instructions follow.

- Calculate Cell Weights (W_i)
- Calculate Z_i
- Obtain a Truncated Z Value for Each Cell (Z*j)
- · Calculate the Theoretical Mean and Variance of the Truncated Statistic Under the Null Hypothesis of Parity
- Calculate the Aggregate Test Statistic, Z^T

Calculate Cell Weights (W_i)

To calculate cell weights, W_j , a weight based on the number of transactions is used so that a cell, which has a larger number of transactions, has a larger weight. The actual weight formula depends on the type of measure. The formulas for each type of measure are given below.

W_i for Mean Measures

$$\mathbf{W}_{j} = \sqrt{\frac{\mathbf{n}_{1j}\mathbf{n}_{2j}}{\mathbf{n}_{j}}}$$

In the special case where all BST and ALEC values in a cell are identical, the weight must be reset to zero, that is $W_i = 0$. For more information, see "Calculate Z_i " on page 5.

W_j for Proportion Measures

$$\mathbf{W}_{j} = \sqrt{\frac{\mathbf{n}_{2j}\mathbf{n}_{1j}}{\mathbf{n}_{j}} \cdot \frac{\mathbf{a}_{j}}{\mathbf{n}_{j}} \cdot \left(1 - \frac{\mathbf{a}_{j}}{\mathbf{n}_{j}}\right)}$$

W_i for Rate Measures

$$\mathbf{W}_{j} = \sqrt{\frac{\mathbf{b}_{1j}\mathbf{b}_{2j}}{\mathbf{b}_{j}} \cdot \frac{\mathbf{n}_{j}}{\mathbf{b}_{j}}}$$

Calculate Z_i

In each cell calculate a Z statistic, Zj, which has mean 0 and variance 1 under the null hypothesis. The formula for the test statistic depends on the type of measure.

Mean Measure

Use the conditions in the following table to determine the method for calculating Z_j . Details of each solution are given below.

Condition 1	Condition 2	Condition 3	Solution
	$s_{2}^{2} = 0$	$\overline{\mathbf{X}}_{1j} = \overline{\mathbf{X}}_{2j}^{\dagger}$	Set $Z_j = 0$ and reset $W_j = 0$.
$s_{1j}^2 = 0$	21	$\overline{\mathbf{X}}_{1j} \neq \overline{\mathbf{X}}_{2j}$	
	$s_{2j}^2 > 0$	NA	Permutation Test, See Solution 1
	$\min(n_{1j}, n_{2j}) \le 6$	NA	
$s_{1j}^2 > 0$	$\min(n_{1j}, n_{2j}) > 6$	NA	"t" Test, See Solution 2

[†] All values in the cell, from BellSouth and the ALEC, are the same.

Solution 1: Permutation Test

The type of permutation test will depend on M_i , the total number of distinct pairs of samples of size n_{1i} and n_{2i} .

- a) $M_i \leq 1000$, Perform an Exact Permutation Test
 - i) Calculate the sample sum for all possible samples of size n_{2i} .
 - ii) Rank the sample sums from smallest to largest. Ties are dealt by using average ranks.
 - iii) Let R_0 be the rank of the observed sample sum with respect to all the sample sums.

iv)
$$\alpha = 1 - \frac{R_0 - 0.5}{M}$$

v)
$$Z_j = \Phi^{-1}(\alpha)$$

b) $M_i > 1000$, Perform a Random Permutation Test

- i) Draw a random sample of 1,000 sample sums from the permutation distribution.
- ii) Add the observed sample sum to the list. There is a total of 1001 sample sums.
- iii) Rank the sample sums from smallest to largest. Ties are dealt by using average ranks.
- vi) Let R₀ be the rank of the observed sample sum with respect to all the sample sums.

vii)
$$\alpha = 1 - \frac{R_0 - 0.5}{1001}$$

iv) $Z_i = \Phi^{-1}(\alpha)$

Solution 2: Adjusted Asymmetric "t" Test

i)
$$t_j = \frac{\overline{X}_{1j} - \overline{X}_{2j}}{s_{1j}\sqrt{\frac{1}{m_1} + \frac{1}{m_2}}}$$
 This is the "modified Z" statistic.

ii) Find g, the median value of all values of

$$\gamma_{1j} = \frac{n_{1j}}{(n_{1j} - 1)(n_{1j} - 2)} \sum_{k} \left(\frac{X_{1jk} - \overline{X}_{1j}}{s_{1j}} \right)^{2}$$

over all cells within the submeasure being tested such that all three conditions stated below are true. If no submeasure cells exist that satisfy these conditions, then g = 0.

 $\gamma_{1j} > 0$ $n_{1j} > 6$ $n_{1j} \ge n_{3q}$, where n_{3q} is the 3 quartile of all n_{1j} in cells where the first two conditions are true. BELLSOUTH°

Florida Plan

iii) If g = 0, skip this step. Otherwise, calculate

$$\begin{split} t_{\min j} &= \frac{-3\sqrt{n_{1j}n_{2j}n_j}}{g(n_{1j}+2n_{2j})} \\ iv) \quad T_j &= \begin{cases} t_j & g = 0 \\ t_j + \frac{g}{6} \bigg(\frac{n_{1j} + 2n_{2j}}{\sqrt{n_{1j}n_{2j}(n_{1j}+n_{2j})}} \bigg) \bigg(t_j^2 + \frac{n_{2j} - n_{1j}}{n_{1j}+2n_{2j}} \bigg) \\ t_j + \frac{g}{6} \bigg(\frac{n_{1j} + 2n_{2j}}{\sqrt{n_{1j}n_{2j}(n_{1j}+n_{2j})}} \bigg) \bigg(t_{\min j}^2 + \frac{n_{2j} - n_{1j}}{n_{1j}+2n_{2j}} \bigg) \\ g > 0, t_j \ge t_{\min j} \end{cases}$$

v)
$$\alpha = P(t_{n_{ij}-1} \leq T_j)$$

That is, α is the probability that a t random variable with n_{1j} - 1 degrees of freedom, is less than T_j .

vi)
$$Z_j = \Phi^{-1}(\alpha)$$

Proportion Measure

Use the conditions in the following table to determine the method for calculating Z_j .

Condition 1	Condition 2	Condition 3	Solution
W _j = 0	NA	NA	$Z_j = 0$
		$\min\left\{a_{1j}\left(1-\frac{a_{1j}}{n_{1j}}\right),a_{2j}\left(1-\frac{a_{2j}}{n_{2j}}\right)\right\} \le 9$	Use the exact hypergeometric test: $\alpha = CHG(a_{1j})$
W _j > 0	L = 1	$\min\left\{a_{1j}\left(1-\frac{a_{1j}}{n_{1j}}\right), a_{2j}\left(1-\frac{a_{2j}}{n_{2j}}\right)\right\} > 9$	$Z_{j} = \Phi^{-1}(\alpha)$ Use the standardize hypergeometric Z score $Z_{i} = \frac{n_{j} a_{1j} - n_{1j} a_{j}}{2}$
	L>1	NA	$\int \sqrt{\frac{n_{1j} n_{2j} a_j (n_j - a_j)}{n_j - 1}}$

Rate Measure

Use the conditions in the following table to determine the method for calculating Z_{j} .

Condition 1	Condition 2	Condition 3	Solution
$W_j = 0$	NA	NA	$Z_j = 0$
W _j > 0	L = 1		Use the exact binomial test:
		$\min(n_{1j}, n_{2j}) \le 15 \text{ or } n_j q_j (1 - q_j) \le 9$	$\alpha = CBN(a_{1j})$
			$Z_j = \Phi^{-1}(\alpha)$
		{ $\min(n_{1j}, n_{2j}) > 15, n_j q_j (1-q_j) > 9$ }	Use the standardize binomial Z score
-	L > 1	NA	$Z_{j} = \frac{n_{1j} - n_{j} q_{j}}{\sqrt{n_{j} q_{j} (1 - q_{j})}}$

Florida Plan

Obtain a Truncated Z Value for Each Cell (Z_j^*)

To limit the amount of cancellation that takes place between cell results during aggregation, cells whose results suggest possible favoritism are left alone. Otherwise the cell statistic is set to zero. This means that positive equivalent Z values are set to 0, and negative values are left alone. However, if there is only one cell, this is unnecessary. Mathematically, this is written as

$$Z_{j}^{*} = \begin{cases} Z_{j} & L = 1\\ \min(0, Z_{j}) & \text{otherwise} \end{cases}$$

Recall that L is the total number of occupied cells with positive weight for the test.

Calculate the Theoretical Mean and Variance of the Truncated Statistic Under the Null Hypothesis of Parity

To compensate for the truncation in Obtain a Truncated Z Value for Each Cell (Z^*j) an aggregated, weighted sum of the Z^*_{j} must be centered and scaled properly so that the final aggregate statistic follows a standard normal distribution.

Note: If there is only one occupied cell with positive weight, that is, L = 1, then the following calculations are not needed.

There are three possibilities in this procedure:

1. If $W_i = 0$, then no evidence of favoritism is contained in the cell. The formula for calculating

 $E(Z_j^*|H_0)$ and $Var(Z_j^*|H_0)$ cannot be used. Set both equal to 0.

2. If one of the following statements in the 'If' column is true, use the formulas in the 'Then' column.

Measure Type	lf	Then
Mean		
	$\min(n_{1j}, n_{2j}) > 6 \text{ and } s_{1j}^2 > 0$	$E(Z_{i}^{*} H_{0}) = -\frac{1}{\sqrt{2}}$
Proportion		$\sqrt{2\pi}$
-	$\min\left\{a_{1j}\left(1-\frac{a_{1j}}{n_{1j}}\right), a_{2j}\left(1-\frac{a_{2j}}{n_{2j}}\right)\right\} > 9$	and
Rate		1
	$\min(n_{1j}, n_{2j}) > 15 \text{ and } n_j q_j (1-q_j) > 9$	$Var(Z_{j}^{*} H_{0}) = \frac{1}{2} - \frac{1}{2\pi}$

Updated January 22, 2002

Florida Plan

3. Otherwise, determine the total number of values for Z_{ji}^* . Let Z_{ji} and θ_{ji} denote the values of Z_{ji}^* and the probabilities of observing each value, respectively.

$$E(Z_{j}^{*} | H_{0}) = \sum_{i} \theta_{ji} z_{ji} \qquad Var(Z_{j}^{*} | H_{0}) = \sum_{i} \theta_{ji} z_{ji}^{2} - \left[E(Z_{j}^{*} | H_{0}) \right]^{2}$$

and

The actual value of z and θ depends on the type of measure. Use the table below to calculate z and θ .

Measure Type	Formulas	
Mean		
	$N_{j} = min(M_{j}, 1, 000), i = 1,, N_{j}$	
	$z_{ji} = \min\left\{0, \Phi^{-1}\left(1 - \frac{R_i - 0.5}{N_j}\right)\right\} \text{ where } R_i \text{ is the rank of sample sum i}$	
	$\Theta_{j} = \frac{1}{N_{j}}$	
Proportion		
	$z_{ji} = \min\left\{0, \frac{n_{j} i - n_{1j} a_{j}}{\sqrt{\frac{n_{1j} n_{2j} a_{j} (n_{j} - a_{j})}{n_{j} - 1}}}\right\}, i = \max(0, a_{j} - n_{2j}), \dots, \min(a_{j}, n_{1j})$ $\theta_{ji} = HG(i)$	
Rate		
	$z_{ji} = \min \left\{ 0, \frac{i - n_j q_j}{\sqrt{n_j q_j (1 - q_j)}} \right\}, i = 0, \dots, n_j$	
	$\theta_{ji} = BN(i)$	

BELLSOUTH°

Florida Plan

Calculate the Aggregate Test Statistic, Z^T

Calculate the aggregate test statistic, Z^T, using the following formula.

$$Z^{\mathrm{T}} = \begin{cases} Z_{1} & L = 1\\ \frac{\sum_{j} W_{j} Z_{j}^{\star} - \sum_{j} W_{j} E(Z_{j}^{\star} | H_{0})}{\sqrt{\sum_{j} W_{j}^{2} \operatorname{Var}(Z_{j}^{\star} | H_{0})}} & \text{otherwise} \end{cases}$$

3. Balancing Critical Value

There are four key elements of the statistical testing process:

Symbol	Element	Description
H ₀	Null hypothesis	parity exists between ILEC and ALEC services
H _a	alternative hypothesis	the ILEC is giving better service to its own customers
Z ^T	truncated Z statistic	
c	critical value	

The decision rule³ using these elements is summarized below.

If	$Z^T < c$	then	accept H_a
If	$Z^T \ge c$	then	accept H ₀ .

There are two types of errors possible when using such a decision rule:

- Type I Error Deciding favoritism exists when there is, in fact, no favoritism
- Type II Error Deciding parity exists when there is, in fact, favoritism.

....

^{3.} This decision rule assumes that a negative test statistic indicates poor service for the ALEC customer. If the opposite is true, then reverse the decision rule.

The probabilities of each type of error are:

- Type I Error $\alpha = P(Z^T < c \mid H_0)$
- Type II Error $\beta = P(Z^T \ge c \mid H_a)$

We want a balancing critical value, c_B , so that $\alpha = \beta$. It can be shown that

$$c_{B} = \frac{\mathbf{E}(\mathbf{Z}^{\mathsf{T}} \mid \mathbf{H}_{a}) - \mathbf{E}(\mathbf{Z}^{\mathsf{T}} \mid \mathbf{H}_{0})}{\mathbf{SE}(\mathbf{Z}^{\mathsf{T}} \mid \mathbf{H}_{a}) + \mathbf{SE}(\mathbf{Z}^{\mathsf{T}} \mid \mathbf{H}_{0})}$$

when Z^{T} is approximately normally distributed. The derivation of the components of this equation depends on the form of the null and alternative hypotheses, as well as other factors.

Test Hypotheses

...

Measure Type	Null Hypothesis, H ₀	Alternative Hypothesis, H _a
Mean	$\mu_{1j} = \mu_{2j}, \sigma_{1j}^{2} = \sigma_{2j}^{2}$	$\mu_{2j} = \mu_{1j} + \delta_j \cdot \sigma_{1j}, \ \sigma_{2j}^2 = \lambda_j \cdot \sigma_{1j}^2 \ \delta_j > 0, \ \lambda_j \ge 1$
Proportion	$\mathbf{p}_{2j} = \mathbf{p}_{1j}$	$\operatorname{arcsin}(\sqrt{\mathbf{p}_{2j}}) - \operatorname{arcsin}(\sqrt{\mathbf{p}_{1j}}) = \frac{\delta_j}{2}$
Rate	$\mathbf{r}_{2j} = \mathbf{r}_{1j}$	$\sqrt{r_{2j}} - \sqrt{r_{1j}} = \frac{\delta_j}{2}$

.

Determining the Parameters of the Alternative Hypothesis

Parameter Choices for δ_j – set of parameters δ_j are important because they directly index differences in service. The Florida commission staff has chosen to use one value across all cells for a submeasure test ($\delta_j = \delta$). The value of δ will be based on the effective number of ALEC transaction used in the test. The following formulae will be used to determine δ .

1)
$$\Omega_{j} = \begin{cases} \frac{W_{j}}{\sqrt{\frac{n_{j}n_{2j}}{n_{j}}}} & \text{mean or proportion measure} \\ \frac{W_{j}}{\sqrt{\frac{n_{j}n_{2j}}{n_{j}}}} & \text{rate measure} \end{cases}$$
2)
$$n_{e} = \frac{\left(\sum_{j} \Omega_{j} n_{2j}\right)^{2}}{\sum_{j} \Omega_{j}^{2} n_{2j}}$$

Note, that given the definition of W_j for mean measures, Ωj is either 0 or 1. Thus, n_e for mean measures is the total number of ALEC transactions across cells with positive weight. Also, when there is only one occupied cell with positive weight, then $n_e = n_{2j}$, the ALEC sample size in the single cell.

$$\delta = \left(\frac{4}{n_e^2}\right)^{0.155}$$

Parameter Choices for λ_j – set of parameters λ_j index alternatives to the mean measure null hypothesis that arise because there might be greater unpredictability or variability in the delivery of service to an ALEC customer over that which would be achieved for an otherwise comparable ILEC customer. While concerns about differences in the variability of service are important, it turns out that the truncated Z test is relatively insensitive to all but very large values of the λ_j . Put another way, reasonable differences in the values chosen here could make very little difference in the balancing points chosen. Hence,

$$\lambda_j = 1$$
 $j = 1, \dots, L$

Calculate the Mean and Standard Error of Z_j Under the Alternative Hypothesis

Let m_j and se_j be the mean and standard error of Z_j under the alternative hypothesis. The distribution of the cell statistic depends on the measurement type.

Mean Measure

 Z_j is approximately normally distributed with mean 0 and standard error 1 under the null hypotheses. Under the alternative hypothesis, the distribution is approximately normal with mean and variance given in the table below.



Proportion Measure

In this case, Z_j is approximately the same as

$$Z = \frac{\arcsin\left(\sqrt{\frac{a_{1_{j}}}{n_{1_{j}}}}\right) - \arcsin\left(\sqrt{\frac{a_{2_{j}}}{n_{2_{j}}}}\right)}{\frac{1}{2}\sqrt{\frac{1}{n_{1_{j}}} + \frac{1}{n_{2_{j}}}}}$$

which is approximately normally distributed with mean 0 and standard error 1 under the null hypotheses. Under the alternative hypothesis, the distribution is approximately normal with mean and standard error given in the table below.

Rate Measure

In this case, Z_j is approximately the same as

$$Z = \frac{\sqrt{\frac{n_{1j}}{b_{1j}}} - \sqrt{\frac{n_{2j}}{b_{2j}}}}{\frac{1}{2}\sqrt{\frac{1}{b_{1j}} + \frac{1}{b_{2j}}}}$$

which is approximately normally distributed with mean 0 and standard error 1 under the null hypotheses. Note that this statistic is approximately the same as

$$Z = \frac{\arcsin\left(\sqrt{\frac{n_{1j}}{b_{1j}}}\right) - \arcsin\left(\sqrt{\frac{n_{2j}}{b_{2j}}}\right)}{\frac{1}{2}\sqrt{\frac{1}{b_{1j}} + \frac{1}{b_{2j}}}}$$

when the BST and CLEC sample rates are close to 0. Under the alternative hypothesis, the distribution is approximately normal with mean and standard error given in the table below.

Measure Type	mj	sej
Mean		
Proportion	$-\delta \sqrt{\frac{n_{1j}n_{2j}}{n_{1j}+n_{2j}}}$	1
Rate	$-\delta \sqrt{\frac{b_{1j}b_{2j}}{b_{1j}+b_{2j}}}$	

Calculate the Critical Value

Single Cell Test (L = 1)

 $c_B = \frac{m_j}{se_j + 1} = \frac{m_j}{2}$ since $se_j = 1$ in all cases.

Multi-Cell Tests (L > 1)

Calculate the critical value according to the following procedure.

1. Calculate the theoretical mean and variance of the truncated statistic under the null hypothesis of parity, $E(Z_{i}^{i}|H_{0})$ and $Var(Z_{i}^{i}|H_{0})$, within each cell.

Condition	$E(Z_{j}^{*} H_{0})$	$\operatorname{Var}(Z_{j}^{*} H_{0})$
$W_j = 0$	0	0
W _j > 0	$-\frac{1}{\sqrt{2\pi}}$	$\frac{1}{2} - \frac{1}{2\pi}$

•

3.

2. Calculate the theoretical mean and variance of the truncated statistic under the alternative hypothesis, $E(Z_1^*|H_a)$ and $Var(Z_1^*|H_a)$, within each cell.

Condition	$E(Z_j^{\bullet} H_a)$	$Var(Z_j^{\bullet} H_a)$
W _j = 0	0	0
W _j > 0	$m_{j}\Phi(-m_{j})-\phi(-m_{j})$	$(m_j^2+1)\Phi(-m_j)-m_j\phi(-m_j)-E(Z_j^*\mid H_a)^2$

Note: $\Phi(\cdot)$ is the cumulative standard normal distribution function, and $\phi(\cdot)$ is the standard normal density function.

$$c_{B} = \frac{\sum_{j} W_{j} E(Z_{j}^{*} | H_{a}) - \sum_{j} W_{j} E(Z_{j}^{*} | H_{0})}{\sqrt{\sum_{j} W_{j}^{2} V \operatorname{ar}(Z_{j}^{*} | H_{a})} + \sqrt{\sum_{j} W_{j}^{2} V \operatorname{ar}(Z_{j}^{*} | H_{0})}}$$

Appendix E: BST SEEM Remedy Calculation Procedures

Four sample calculations are included in this appendix. These calculations cover the following:

- Tier 1 Calculation for Retail Analogs
- Tier 2-Calculation for Retail Analogs
- Tier 1 Calculation for Benchmarks
- Tier 2 Calculations for Benchmarks

1. Tier 1 Calculation for Retail Analogs

Complete the steps below to calculate performance for a Tier 1 retail analog. An example follows the procedure.

- Calculate the overall test statistic for each ALEC; Z^T_{ALEC-1} (per statistical methodology discussed in Appendix D).
- 2. Calculate the balancing critical value (^CB_{ALEC-1}) that is associated with the alternative hypothesis (for fixed parameters δ , Ψ , or ε).
- 3. Determine parity or disparity by subtracting the value of Step 2 from that of Step 1. ABS $(Z_{ALEC-1}^{T} {}^{C}B_{ALEC-1})$
- 4. Determine the relationship of the overall test statistic (from Step 1) and the balancing critical value (from Step 2).

Relationship	Action
$C_{B_{ALEC-1}} \ge Z_{ALEC-1}^{T}$	No payment is necessary. End procedure.
$^{C}B_{ALEC-1} < Z^{T}_{ALEC-1}$	Go to Step 5.

5. Determine the payment to ALEC-1 by obtaining the appropriate dollar amount from the Tier 1 fee schedule (Appendix A) for the measurement category containing the submetric being evaluated.

ALEC Payment = fee (\$\$) from Tier 1 fee schedule for the appropriate measurement category.

Florida Plan

Tier 1 Retail Analog Example:

Percent Missed Installation Appointments, "Dispatch In" < 10 circuits, UNE Loop and Port Combo, Month 1

Note: Statistics are for illustrative purposes only. While the plan is measurement based, the number of transactions are used in the calculations to determine pass or fail status.

Cell	ILEC Misses	ILEC trans_count	CLEC Misses	CLEC trans_count	Cell Z Score	Cell Weight
1	0	263	0	1	0	0
2	0	150	0	4	0	0
3	0	847	0	1	0	0
4	108	1771	0	1	0.044565652	0.044466294
5	0	10	0	2	0	0
6	24	104	0	3	0.169841555	0.164306431
7	0	82	0	9	0	0
8	8	114	1	8	0.264906471	0.246518978
	14	241	2	11	-5.302645611	0.351774499
10	0	198	0	3	0	0
11	17	235	1	11	0.213200716	0.203527695
Total counts	171	4015	3	54	NA	NA

The results are summarized below.

Percent Missed		Aggregate $Z = -3.4923$
BST	4.26%	BCV = -1.83311
CLEC	5.56%	Difference = negative (failure)

The metric fails. The payment made to the ALEC for this failure would be based on the fee of \$4,550 as listed in the Tier 1 Fee Schedule for Provisioning-UNE (CCC).

.

- -

Florida Plan

2. Tier 2 Calculation for Retail Analogs

Tier 2 is triggered by three consecutive monthly failures of any Tier 2 remedy plan submetric. Calculate monthly statistical results and failures per submetric as outlined below for the ALEC aggregate performance.

1. Determine the Tier 2 payment for the state designated agency from the Tier 2 fee schedule (Appendix A) for the measurement category containing the submetric being evaluated.

State designated agency payment = fee (\$\$) from Tier 2 Fee Schedule

Example:

Percent Missed Installation Appointments Dispatch < 10 - Resale Centrex

Cell	ILEC Misses	ILEC trans_count	CLEC Misses	CLEC trans_count	Cell Z Score	Cell Weight
1	0	22	1	11	-0.57735	0.375
2	3	18	1	10	-1.732051	0.405046
3	1	15	0	9	2.5553	0.213211
4	0	17	1	11	-1.154701	0.213211
Total counts	4	72	3	41	NA	NA

Percent Missed		Aggregate $Z = -1.73205$.	
BST	5.56%	BCV =-0.55526	
CLEC	7.32%	Difference = negative (failure)	

The measure fails. The payment made to the state designated agency for this failure would be \$3,450, the fee listed in the Tier 2 Fee Schedule.

. . . .

3. Tier 1 Calculation for Benchmarks

Use the procedure below to calculate results for benchmarks with five or more observations. An example follows the procedure.

- 1. For each ALEC with five or more observations, calculate monthly performance results for the State.
- 2. Determine the benchmark.

Sample Size	Benchmark Source
sample size < 5	Invalid sample size. No payment is neces- sary.
$5 < \text{sample size} \le 30$	Use equivalent benchmark from Table E-1 A
sample size > 30	SOM

90% \$	% Sample Size 95% Sample Size		85% 5	85% Sample Size		97% Sample Size	
Size	Benchmark	Size	Benchmark	Size	95% Equivalent	Size	95% Equivalent
5	60.00%	5	80.00%	5	60.00%	5	80.00%
6	66.67%	6	83.33%	6	66.67%	6	83.33%
7	71.43%	7	85.71%	7	57.14%	7	85.71%
8	75.00%	8	75.00%	8	62.50%	8	87.50%
9	66.67%	9	77.78%	9	66.67%	9	88.89%
10	70.00%	10	80.00%	10	70.00%	10	90.00%
11	72.73%	11	81.82%	11	63.64%	11	90.91%
12	75.00%	12	83.33%	12	66.67%	12	91.67%
13	76.92%	13	84.62%	13	69.23%	13	84.62%
14	78.57%	14	85.71%	14	71.43%	14	85.71%
15	73.33%	15	86.67%	15	66.67%	15	86.67%
16	75.00%	16	87.50%	16	68.75%	16	87.50%
17	76.47%	17	82.35%	17	70.59%	17	88.24%
18	77.78%	18	83.33%	18	72.22%	18	88.89%
- 19	78.95%	19	84.21%	19	68.42%	19	89.47%
20	80.00%	20	85.00%	20	70.00%	20	90.00%
21	76.19%	21	85.71%	21	71.43%	21	90.48%
22	77.27%	22	86.36%	22	72.73%	22	90.91%
23	78.26%	23	86.96%	23	73.91%	23	91.30%
24	79.17%	24	87.50%	24	70.83%	24	91.67%

Table E-1: Small Sample Size Table

90% 5	Sample Size	95% Sample Size		85% Sample Size		97% Sample Size	
Size	Benchmark	Size	Benchmark	Size	95% Equivalent	Size	95% Equivalent
25	80.00%	25	88.00%	25	72.00%	25	92.00%
26	80.77%	26	88.46%	26	73.08%	26	92.31%
27	81.48%	27	88.89%	27	74.07%	27	92.59%
28	78.57%	28	89.29%	28	75.00%	28	89.29%
29	79.31%	29	86.21%	29	72.41%	29	89.66%
30	80.00%	30	86.67%	30	73.33%	30	90.00%

I aple E-1: Small Sample Size Table (Continued	E-1: Small Sample Size Table (Continued
--	---

3. Determine whether the monthly performance percentage meets the benchmark standard (or equivalent percentage for small samples).

Monthly Performance and Benchmark Relationship	Action
Monthly performance \geq benchmark	No payment is necessary; end procedure.
Monthly performance < benchmark	Failure; go to Step 4.

4. Determine the payment to ALEC-1 by obtaining the appropriate dollar amount from the Tier 1 fee schedule (Appendix A) for the measurement category containing the submetric being evaluated.

ALEC-1 payment= \$\$ from Tier 1 Fee Schedule

Tier 1 Benchmark, Small Sample Size Example:

Reject Interval Fully Mechanized 2-Wire Analog Loop Non-Design; Benchmark = 97%; Month 1

Numerator	Denominator	CLEC Performance	Benchmark (small sample size of 9)	Pass/Fail			
7	9	$77.78\% \le 1$ hour	$88.89\% \le 1$ hour (small sample size of 9) ^A	fail			
^A The compariso size table) for 97	^A The comparison benchmark of 88.89% was obtained from the Table E-1 (the small sample size table) for 97% benchmarks						

Payment to the ALEC would be \$450, the fee obtained from Ordering measures in the Tier 1 fee schedule.

-- --

Tier 1 Benchmark Example:

Reject Interval - Partially Mechanized, Business; Benchmark is 95%; Month 1

Numerator	Denominator	CLEC Performance	Benchmark	Pass/Fail
36	40	$90\% \leq 10$ hours	$95\% \leq 10$ hours	fail

Payment to the ALEC would be \$450, the fee obtained from Ordering measures in the Tier 1 fee schedule.

4. Tier 2 Calculations for Benchmarks

Tier-2 calculations for benchmark measures are the same as the Tier 1 benchmark calculations, except the ALEC aggregate data is evaluated over three consecutive months.

- 1. Accumulate the statewide monthly results for the measurement.
- 2. Determine whether the current month fails the statewide average.

Current Month Tier 2 Failure	Action
Yes	Go to Step 3.
No	No Tier 2 payment is necessary; end proce- dure.

3. Determine whether there is a Tier 2 failure.

Tier 2	Action		
One Month Prior to Current Month	Two Months Prior to Current Month		
Failure	Failure	Go to Step 4.	
Failure	Pass	No Tier 2 failure, no pay-	
Pass	Failure	ment. End of procedure.	

4. Determine the payment to the state designated agency by obtaining the appropriate dollar amount from the Tier 2 Fee Schedule (Appendix A) for the fee measurement category containing the submetric being evaluated.

State designated agency payment = Fee (\$\$) from Tier 2 Fee Schedule for the appropriate measurement category.

Tier 2 Benchmark Example:

Percent Missed Installation Appointments - LNP; Benchmark = 95%

Month	Numerator	Denominator	CLEC Performance (%)	Benchmark (%)	Pass/Fail
Current	1	8	87.5	95	fail
One month prior to Current	3	39	92.31	95	fail
Two months prior to current	4	75	94.6	95	fail

Payment to the state would be \$5,700, the fee obtained from the LNP category in the Tier 2 Fee Schedule.